
ROBERT SILVA 
Mayor 

ROLANDO CASTRO 
Mayor Pro Tern 

VICTOR MARTINEZ 

JESSE MENDOZA 

OSCAR ROSALES 

CITY OF MENDOTA 
"Cantaloupe Center Of The World" 

AGENDA 
MENDOTA CITY COUNCIL 
Regular City Council Meeting 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

643 QUINCE STREET 
March 12, 2019 

6:00 PM 

CRISTIAN GONZALEZ 
City Manager 

JOHN KINSEY 
City Attorney 

The Mendota City Council welcomes you to its meetings, which are scheduled for the 2nd and 4th Tuesday of every 
month. Your interest and participation are encouraged and appreciated. Notice is hereby given that Council may 
discuss and/or take action on any or all of the items listed on this agenda. Please turn your cell phones on 
vibrate/off while in the council chambers. 

Any public writings distributed by the City of Mendota to at least a majority of the City Council regarding any item on 
this regular meeting agenda will be made available at the front counter at City Hall located at 643 Quince Street 
Mendota, CA 93640, during normal business hours, 8 AM - 5 PM. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring special assistance to participate at this 
meeting please contact the City Clerk at (559) 655-3291 . Notification of at least forty-eight hours prior to the meeting 
will enable staff to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the meeting. 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

FLAG SALUTE 

INVOCATION 

FINALIZE THE AGENDA 

1. Adjustments to Agenda 

2. Adoption of final Agenda 

PROCLAMATION 

1. Proposed adoption of Proclamation No. 19-01, honoring and celebrating 
imminent centenarian and longtime Mendota resident Norberto Rojas. 

CITIZENS ORAL AND WRITTEN PRESENTATIONS 
At this time members of the public may address the City Council on any matter not listed on the agenda involving 
matters within the jurisdiction of the City Council. Please complete a "request to speak" form and limit your 
comments to THREE (3) MINUTES. Please give the completed form to City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting . All 
speakers shall observe proper decorum. The Mendota Municipal Code prohibits the use of boisterous, slanderous, or 
profane language. All speakers must step to the podium, state their names and addresses for the record. Please 
watch the time. 

City Council Agenda 1 3/12/2019 

r-- -- -- ---. -- ~ -. . . -. ' -- -. -- ,..........--. ' 
' ~ 643 Quince Street Mendota, California 93640 . - . -

Telephone: (559) 655-3291 Fresno Line: (559) 266-6456 Fax: (559) 655-4064 www.cityofmendota.com 
TDD/TTY 866-735-2919 (English) TDD/TTY 866-833-4703 (Spanish) The City of Mendota is an equal opportunity provider and employer 

~-- • - j ' ... . . ~ .. 



APPROVAL OF MINUTES AND NOTICE OF WAIVING OF READING 

1. Minutes of the special City Council meetings of February 20, 2019 and February 
27, 2019, and the regular City Council meeting of February 26, 2019. 

2. Notice of waiving of the reading of all resolutions and/or ordinances introduced 
and/or adopted under this agenda. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion and one 
vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and will be considered separately. 

1. FEBRUARY 26, 2019 THROUGH MARCH 8, 2019 
WARRANT LIST CHECKS NO. 45032 THRU 45072 
TOTAL FOR COUNCIL APPROVAL = $237,901.37 

2. Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 19-14, authorizing execution of a 
professional services agreement for the topographic and biological surveys in 
support of the improvements to and expansion of Rojas-Pierce Park. 

3. Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 19-15, conditionally approving the 
exclusive-use permits for City facilities for 2019. 

BUSINESS 

1. Introduction and first reading of Ordinance No. 19-02, amending Title 17, 
Chapter 17.08, Section 17.08.040 of the Mendota Municipal Code to modify 
the procedure for the initiation of zoning amendments. 

a. Receive report from City Manager Gonzalez 
b. Inquiries from Council to staff 
c. Mayor opens floor to receive any comment from the public 
d. Council provide any input and waive the first reading of Ordinance No. 19-

02, and sets the public hearing for the March 26th City Council Meeting 

2. Introduction and first reading of Ordinance No. 19-03, amending Title 8, Chapter 
8.20 of the Mendota Municipal Code relating to the recovery of attorney fees in 
nuisance abatement proceedings. 

a. Receive report from City Manager Gonzalez 
b. Inquiries from Council to staff 
c. Mayor opens floor to receive any comment from the public 
d. Council provide any input and waive the first reading of Ordinance No. 19-

03, and sets the public hearing for the March 26th City Council Meeting 

City Council Agenda 2 3/12/2019 



3. Council discussion and consideration of Resolution No. 19-16, authorizing the 
City Manager to execute documents that will allow the City to participate in the 
County JPA for receiving Community Development Block Grant funds. 

a. Receive report from City Manager Gonzalez 
b. Inquiries from Council to staff 
c. Mayor opens floor to receive any comment from the public 
d. Council provide any input and direction to staff, including the adoption of 

Resolution No. 19-16. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

1. Public hearing and second reading of Ordinance No. 19-01, approving an 
amendment to the Development Agreement by and between the City of 
Mendota and KSA Homes, Inc., relating to the development of the property 
commonly known as the La Colonia property. 

a. Receive report from City Manager Gonzalez 
b. Inquiries from Council to staff 
c. Mayor opens the public hearing, accepting comments from the public 
d. Mayor closes the public hearing 
e. Council provide any input, waive second reading, and adopt Ordinance 

No. 19-01. 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

1. Animal Control, Code Enforcement, and Police Department 
a) Monthly Report 

2. Economic Development 
a) Monthly Report 

3. City Attorney 
a) Update 

4. City Manager 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

1. Council Member(s) 

2. Mayor 

City Council Agenda 3 3/12/2019 



ADJOURNMENT 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 

I, Matt Flood, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby declare that the foregoing 
agenda for the Mendota City Council Regular Meeting of March 12, 2019, was posted 
on the outside bulletin board located at City Hall, 643 Quince Street Friday, March 8, 
2019 at 3:45 p.m. ~ 

·?fee: ~ M3tt Flood, City O?e 

City Council Agenda 4 3/12/2019 



 

Minutes of Special City Council Meeting  1    2/20/19 

 
 
 

MINUTES OF MENDOTA 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

JOINT-MEETING OF THE  
MENDOTA CITY COUNCIL AND  

THE MENDOTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
  
 
 

Special Meeting     Wednesday, February 20, 2019          6:00p.m. 
 
Joint Meeting called to order by Mayor Silva at 6:08 p.m.  
 
Mayor Silva introduced the City staff that were present at the meeting. 
 
Roll Call 
 
Council Members Present: Mayor Robert Silva, Mayor Pro Tem Rolando 

Castro, Councilors Victor Martinez and Jesse 
Mendoza 

   
Council Members Absent: Councilor Rosales 
 
Mendota Unified School District (MUSD) Board of Trustees conducted roll call 
and established a quorum.  
   
The Flag Salute was led by Mayor Silva 
 
FINALIZE THE AGENDA 
 
1. Adjustments to Agenda. 

 
2. Adoption of final Agenda. 
 
The agenda was adopted by Council consensus. 
 
CITIZENS ORAL AND WRITTEN PRESENTATIONS 
 
Mayor Silva reported that the Council received a request to speak form from Ms. 
Vanessa Ochoa, but that the item would be discussed under item “f” of the discussion 
forum. 
 
Kevin Romero (160 Tuft Street) – provided an update on Mendota High School 
softball. 

 

 



 

Minutes of Special City Council Meeting  2    2/20/19 

 
BUSINESS 
 

1. Discussion Forum  
 

a. Lighting at McCabe Elementary School 
 
 Mendota Unified School District (MUSD) Board of Trustees President Adrian 
 Perez introduced the item and Superintendent Lopez reported that he received 
 requests to install additional lighting around McCabe Elementary School; the 
 limited lighting currently exists around the school during evening hours; the 
 amount of individuals who walk around the school during the evening and  night 
 hours; Caltrans having jurisdiction over any improvements made along Derrick 
 Avenue; and stated that MUSD would like to work with the City to install 
 additional lighting around the school. 
 
 City Manager Gonzalez suggested that a study be conducted to examine the 
 amount of additional light fixtures that should be installed around the school; 
 acquiring cost estimates for the light fixtures; and presenting the findings to the 
 City Council in the future for their consideration. 
 
 Discussion was held on the need for additional lighting around the school; 
 creating a cost-sharing agreement between the City and MUSD for the purchase 
 and installation of the lights; conducting a study on existing lights and potential 
 researching options for lighting; the timeline for conducting the study; acquiring 
 cost-estimates for the proposed project; whether there are grants currently 
 available that can fund the  project; the City looking into creating a walking trail 
 from Mendota to Pool Park; and whether MUSD will be installing additional 
 lighting at the community center property. 
 

b. New Crosswalk at McCabe Elementary School 
 
  MUSD Board President Perez introduced the item and Superintendent Lopez  
  reported that he received requests to install a crosswalk on Sorensen Street. 
 
  Discussion was held on the conditions that need to be met in order to install a  
  crosswalk; and further examining the issue. 
 
  Superintendent Lopez requested that item “d” be discussed next. 
 
  d.   Landscaping on Sorensen Island behind McCabe Elementary 
 
 MUSD Board President Perez introduced the item and Superintendent Lopez  
 reported that an island was created along Sorensen Street as a result of the 
 Sorensen Street reconstruction project; and inquired on the possibility of 
 beautifying the islands. 



 

Minutes of Special City Council Meeting  3    2/20/19 

 
  Discussion was held on options available to beautify the islands; contacting  
  organizations that may be interested in donating greenery that will be planted at  
  the islands; the types of plants and trees that should be planted; MUSD’s efforts  
  to address the landscaping at its school sites; establishing a joint sub-committee  
  between the City and MUSD Board to work together to beautify the islands on  
  Sorensen Street; and working with other agencies to hold an Earth Day event  
  and beautify the community. 
 

c. City Street Sweeper 
 

 MUSD Board President Perez introduced the item and Superintendent Lopez  
 reported that green waste has accumulated near curbs at certain school sites; 
 and stated that MUSD would like to work with the City to have the City’s street 
 sweeper sweep school facilities. 
 
 Discussion was held on having representatives of both organizations meet to 
 discuss the details of the item; and the frequency that MUSD is requesting that 
 the street sweeper sweep their facilities. 
 
 e.   Community Center 
  
 MUSD Board President Perez introduced the item and Superintendent Lopez  
 provided the background of the issues surrounding the Community Center 
 property; reported that the lease agreement that the City entered into for the 
 lease of the property expired in 2012; that MUSD is interested in officially 
 terminating the lease; that MUSD would continue to support the programs that 
 utilize  the community center; and that MUSD would incur any existing sub-
 leases. 
 
 Discussion was held on the MUSD ending the lease but agreeing to continue 
 supporting  all of the services that are currently provided on the property, 
 including the  senior center; the district wanting to expand its facilities and looking 
 into developing additional preschool facilities on the property; and MUSD’s legal 
 counsel bringing forth an agreement laying out terms of the decision. 
 
 f.   Use of MUSD Recreational Facilities 
 
 Mayor Silva introduced the item and reported that there is a growing interest for 
 the use of MUSD’s recreational facilities by the community. 
 
 Discussion was held on the Rojas-Pierce Park expansion project. 
 
 Dino Perez and Vanessa Ochoa (Westside Youth, Inc.) – provided information 
 on the newly formed Mendota Baseball league; and requested the district’s 



 

Minutes of Special City Council Meeting  4    2/20/19 

 support in allowing the organization to utilize their recreational facilities for  the 
 baseball program. 
 
 Discussion was held on the City and MUSD working together to accommodate all 
 baseball programs; ensuring that existing baseball programs work together to 
 serve the children in the community; the facility-use application process for 
 MUSD; working on accommodating the use of recreational facilities for the 
 programs; and the 2019 Mendota Fireworks Show. 
 
 Sergio Valdez (Mendota Youth Recreation) - commented on issues he has 
 with the newly formed baseball league; and the need for the two programs to 
 work together to serve the children.  
 
 Discussion was held on the division that is occurring in the community; having 
 the organizations work together; giving families that opportunity to decide which 
 programs they want to put their children; and MUSD and the City working with 
 grant writers to apply for grants to assist non-profit organizations in the 
 community.  
 
 Jonathan Leiva - stated that he would like to bring back the Earth Day event to 
 the community; that he would like to plant trees throughout the community; and 
 requested the support of MUSD and the City.  
 
 Discussion was held on conducting an audit of the trees located throughout the 
 City and school facilities to determine the best locations to plant the trees; 
 ensuring that drought tolerant plants are planted; and staff members of both 
 agencies working with Mr. Leiva.  
 
 g.  Pedestrian Safety in School Zones 
 
 Mayor Silva introduced the item and reported that students are crossing Highway 
 33 unsafely; and requested the assistance of MUSD to notify the parents of the 
 students of the issue.  
 
 Discussion was held on methods to deter students from crossing roads unsafely 
 and encourage them to utilize crosswalks; ways to notify parents of the issue and 
 ask them to speak to their children regarding the issue; the good work of the 
 crossing guards; and the need for additional lighted crosswalks. 
 
 Mayor Silva reported on the Bass Avenue signal light that will be installed as part 
 of the La Colonia subdivision. 
 
 Discussion was held on layout of the La Colonia subdivision map; the potential 
 reconfiguration of the schools; and the increase in the City’s population and its 
 impact to the City and schools. 
 



 

Minutes of Special City Council Meeting  5    2/20/19 

 h.   Update on the Proposed Roundabout at the Intersection of Oller and Derrick    
       Avenues 
 
 Mayor Silva introduced the item and City Manager Gonzalez provided an update 
 on the project, including the timeline of the project.  
 
 Discussion was held on the timeline of the project; and the proposed layout of the 
 roundabout. 
 
 i.   Other Issues of Joint Interest 
 
 Superintendent Lopez thanked the City Council for their work. 
 
 Mayor Silva provided an update on the Canna-Hub development. 
 
 The City Council thanked the MUSD Board and staff for their work. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
With no more business to be brought before the Council, a motion for adjournment was 
made at 8:20 p.m. by Councilor Martinez, seconded by Councilor Mendoza; 
unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Rosales). 
 
 
_______________________________   
Robert Silva, Mayor      
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Matt Flood, City Clerk 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  1     2/26/2019 

  
MINUTES OF MENDOTA 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 

Regular Meeting    February 26, 2019 
 

Meeting called to order by Mayor Silva at 6:00 p.m.  
 
Roll Call 
 
Council Members Present: Mayor Robert Silva, Councilors Victor Martinez, 

Jesse Mendoza, and Oscar Rosales 
 
Council Members Absent:    Mayor Pro Tem Rolando Castro 
 
Flag salute led by Councilor Rosales 
 
FINALIZE THE AGENDA 
 
1. Adjustments to Agenda. 

 
2. Adoption of final Agenda. 
 
A motion was made by Councilor Rosales to adopt the agenda, seconded by Councilor 
Mendoza; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Castro). 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
1. Joseph Oldham to provide an update on the Sustainable Aviation Project. 
 
Joseph Oldham provided an update on the Sustainable Aviation project, including the 
ongoing testing of the electric planes; the historical significance of the project; the 
amount of flight time and analysis that has been done to the planes; the formation of 
New Vision Aviation, whom will lease and operate the aircraft on the City’s behalf; the 
development of a training protocol for the aviation training program; the attention that 
the program has garnered from all over the world, including from Boeing; the additional 
requirements that need to be met to begin the flight training operations, including 
acquiring Federal Aviation Administration approval; and thanked the Council and staff 
for their support and assistance with the project. 

 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  2     2/26/2019 

 
Discussion was held on the project’s progress; the possibility of bringing the electric 
planes to Mendota for the public to see; and the Council thanked Mr. Oldham for his 
work on the project. 
 
2. Council to recognize the Mendota Police Department’s Explorer Program for their 
 outstanding activities in 2018. 
 
The participants of the Mendota Police Department Explorer Program introduced 
themselves. 
 
Chief of Police Andreotti introduced the program’s advisors; summarized the various 
activities and events that the Explorers have participated in; the progression of the 
program; and the program’s continued successes at the Explorer Convention 
competitions. 
 
The Council thanked the program’s participants and advisors for their hard work. 
 
3. Council to recognize Sergeant Frank Renteria for his service to the community. 
 
The Council thanked Sergeant Renteria for his service and dedication to the community, 
and wished him well in his future endeavors. 
 
Chief Andreotti commented on the great service that Sgt. Renteria has provided to the 
community and to the police department. 
 
CITIZENS ORAL AND WRITTEN PRESENTATIONS 
 
Kevin Romero (160 Tuft Street) – provided an update on Mendota High School sports. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES AND NOTICE OF WAIVING OF READING 

 
1. Minutes of the regular City  Council meeting of February 12, 2019. 
 
2. Notice of waiving of the reading of all resolutions and/or ordinances 
 introduced and/or adopted under this agenda. 
 
A motion was made by Councilor Rosales to approve items 1 and 2, seconded by 
Councilor Mendoza; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Castro). 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
1. FEBRUARY 12, 2019 THROUGH FEBRUARY 21, 2019 

WARRANT LIST CHECKS NO. 44982 THRU 45031 
TOTAL FOR COUNCIL APPROVAL     =   $383,024.60 

 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  3     2/26/2019 

2. Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 19-11, approving and accepting the public 
 improvements constructed for Tract No. 6111, Tract No. 6146, and Tract No. 
 6148. 
 
3. Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 19-12, authorizing approval of signature 
 authority for items related to the Bureau of Reclamation-funded relocation 
 program of projects.  
 
4. Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 19-13, approving an amendment to the 
 School Resource Officer agreement with the Mendota Unified School District. 
 
A motion was made by Councilor Mendoza to adopt items 1 through 4 of the Consent 
Calendar, seconded by Councilor Rosales; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: 
Castro). 
 
BUSINESS 
 
1. Council discussion and consideration to form an ad-hoc sub-committee to 
 provide input on the sale and development of City Surplus Real Property. 
 
Mayor Silva introduced the item and City Manager Gonzalez summarized the report 
including the history of the Request for Proposals (RFP) that was issued for the sale 
and development of the property; the Council’s action to direct staff to begin 
negotiations with the selected RFP respondent; Council expressing interest in taking 
part of the negotiation process; and the proposed sub-committee being designed with 
the purpose to provide staff with input ahead of the negotiation sessions. 
 
Discussion was held on the Councilors who were interested in participating in the sub-
committee; and ensuring that the sub-committee does not violate the Brown Act. 
 
A motion was made by Councilor Martinez to appoint Councilors Mendoza and Martinez 
as the members of the sub-committee, and Mayor Silva as the alternate sub-committee 
member, seconded by Councilor Mendoza; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: 
Castro). 
 
2. Introduction and first reading of Ordinance No. 19-01, approving an amendment 
 to the Development Agreement by and between the City of Mendota and KSA 
 Homes, Inc., relating to the development of the property commonly known as the 
 La Colonia property. 
 
Mayor Silva introduced the item and City Manager Gonzalez summarized the report 
including that the Council previously held the first reading of a proposed ordinance that 
would amend the development agreement for the La Colonia subdivision; staff creating 
a different amendment, since the last Council meeting, which would be easier to 
administer and is more advantageous to the City; the history of the La Colonia 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  4     2/26/2019 

subdivision; the subjects that the proposed amendment addresses; and the newly 
developed amendment requiring that the ordinance process start over. 
 
Discussion was held on the timeline for the development of the Rojas-Pierce Park 
Expansion project; and the discussion that was held with the school district regarding 
the use of their recreation facilities. 
 
A motion was made by Councilor Martinez to conduct the first reading of Ordinance No. 
19-01, and set the public hearing for the March 12th, seconded by Councilor Rosales; 
unanimously approved (4 ayes). 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
1. Administrative Services 
 a) Monthly Report 
 
Director of Administrative Services Lekumberry summarized her report including 
recruitment efforts; new hires; safety trainings; the average number of Senior Center 
attendees; and special projects. 
 
2. City Attorney 
 a) Update 
 
City Attorney Kinsey reported that Assistant City Attorney Cardella would attend the 
meetings on his behalf when he is not able to attend; and the upcoming AB 1835 and 
AB 1234 required trainings. 
 
3. City Manager 
 
Inadvertently skipped. 
 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
  
1. Council Member(s) 
 
Councilor Mendota thanked the staff for their work. 
 
Councilor Rosales thanked the staff for their work; and inquired on the possibility of 
installing an outdoor employee break area at the police department. 
 
Councilor Mendota thanked the staff for their work; reported that the Salvadoran 
Consulate would be at Gonzalez Hall on March 31st; and requested updates on the 
AMOR project, and automated meter reading project. 
 
Discussion was held on the need to begin fundraising for the 2019 Mendota Fireworks 
Show. 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  5     2/26/2019 

 
City Manager Gonzalez reported that staff is working on bringing back the Annual Earth 
Day event; and provided an update on the grant writer. 
 
2. Mayor 
 
Mayor Silva reported on the amount of organizations who are interested in providing 
their services in AMOR’s proposed community building; and reported on the action that 
the Fresno County Board of Supervisors took in regards to a solar development near 
Mendota. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no more business to be brought before the Council, a motion for adjournment was 
made at 7:09 p.m. by Mayor Silva, seconded by Councilor Martinez; unanimously 
approved (4 ayes, absent: Castro). 
 
 
_______________________________   
Robert Silva, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Matt Flood, City Clerk 



 

Minutes of Joint Work/Study Session  1           2/27/19 

 

 
MINUTES OF MENDOTA 

CITY COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/RECREATION COMMISSION 
JOINT WORK/STUDY SESSION 

 
 
 
Joint Work/Study Session Wednesday, February 27, 2019      10:00 AM 

 
Meeting called to order by Mayor Silva 10:00 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL CITY COUNCIL 
Council Members Present: Mayor Robert Silva, Mayor Pro Tem Rolando 

Castro, and Council Member Jesse Mendoza 
 
Council Members Absent:    Council Members Victor Martinez and Oscar 

Rosales 
 
ROLL CALL PLANNING COMMISSION 
Commissioners Present:  Chairperson Juan Luna, Vice-Chairperson Martin 

Albert Escobedo, Commissioners Jose Alonso, 
Jose Gutierrez, and Jonathan Leiva 

 
Commissioners Absent:  None 
 
ROLL CALL RECREATION COMMISSION 
Commissioners Present:  Chairperson Robert Silva, Vice-Chairperson Paul 

Ochoa, Commissioners Jose Alonso and Jessica 
Barron 

 
Commissioners Absent:  Commissioner Angela Gonzalez 
 
Staff Present:   Cristian Gonzalez, City Manager; Rudy Marquez,  
     Finance Officer; Matt Flood, Economic   
     Development  Manager; Jennifer Lekumberry,  
     Administrative Services Director; Gregg   
     Andreotti, Chief of  Police; Jeronimo Angel, Chief  
     Plant Operator; Teofilo Bautista, Public Works  
     Superintendent; Kevin Smith, Lieutenant; Carlos  

                                      
 

 



 

Minutes of Joint Work/Study Session  2           2/27/19 

     Esqueda, Sergeant; and Ophelia Lugo, Records  
     Manager. 
 
Flag Salute led by Mayor Silva 
 
WORK/STUDY SESSION 
 
1. AB 1825 – Sexual harassment training 

 
Mayor Silva introduced Steve Crass, who presented on the requirement that the City of 
Mendota has to provide training that is compliant with state and federal law to all 
applicable employees; the obligation supervisory employees have to intervene when 
harassment is detected or reported; statutory requirements for dealing with and 
reporting harassment; the qualifications that need to be met to be able to provide the 
training; the consequences of not completing the training; the types of harassment: 
verbal, physical, and visual; the protected classes in California; Quid Pro Quo and 
Hostile Work Environment types of sexual harassment; that harassment can be 
committed by just about anyone involved with the workplace, including clients; different 
examples and situations that do or do not constitute harassment; the fact that 
supervisors are not individually reliable for discrimination or retaliation, but can be for 
harassment; the subgroups that fall within protected classes; the remedies available to 
victims of harassment; the process in the City of Mendota to deal with harassment, 
including discipline; the importance of having comprehensive workplace policies that 
address harassment; and a test was administered to all participants. 

 
Mayor Silva thanked Mr. Crass for the presentation.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None Offered 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Consensus was reached to adjourn the work/study session at 12:01 p.m. 
 
_______________________________   
Robert Silva, Mayor      
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Matt Flood, City Clerk 



CITY OF MENDOTA

CASH DISBURSEMENTS

2/26/2019 - 3/8/2019

Check# 45032 - 45072

Date Check # Amount Vendor Department Description

February 26, 2019 45032 $54.13 ADT SECURITY SERVICES GENERAL SECURITY SERVICES 3/3/19 - 4/2/19 COMMUNITY CENTER

February 26, 2019 45033 $1,687.33 MUTUAL OF OMAHA GENERAL LIFE AD&D LTD STD INSURANCE FOR MARCH 2019

February 26, 2019 45034 $2,382.00 PITNEY BOWES INC GENERAL-WATER-SEWER CONTRACT STANDARD SLA EQUIPMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT FY 18/19

February 26, 2019 45035 $1,983.98 PURCHASE POWER GENERAL-WATER-SEWER POSTAGE METER REFILL 1/23/19 & 2/8/19

February 28, 2019 45036 $730.00 CARLOS ESQUEDA GENERAL PER DIEM EXPENSES 3/3/2019 - 3/8/2019 POST DRE TRAINING & PER DIEM 

EXPENSES 3/10/2019 - 3/15/2019

February 28, 2019 45037 $730.00 JORGE URBIETA GENERAL PER DIEM EXPENSES 3/3/2019 - 3/8/2019 POST DRE TRAINING & PER DIEM 

EXPENSES 3/10/2019 - 3/15/2019

March 4, 2019 45038 $60,000.00 DIEPENBROCK ELKIN GLEASON LLP GENERAL WARKENTINE/TANKERSLEY THIRD INSTALLMENT OF FIVE 

March 5, 2019 45039 $98,597.00 WESTAMERICA BANK GENERAL PAYROLL TRANSFER 2/18/19 - 3/3/19

March 8, 2019 45040 $3,000.00 ADMINISTRATIVE SOLUTIONS, INC. GENERAL MEDICAL CHECK RUN 3/5/19

March 8, 2019 45041 $288.93 ADT SECURITY SERVICES GENERAL-WATER-SEWER SECURITY SERVICES 3/13/19-4/12/19 CITY HALL, EDD, DMV

March 8, 2019 45042 $285.21 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC GENERAL-WATER-SEWER PUBLIC WORKS UNIFORM WEEKS OF 2/7/2019 - 2/28/2019

March 8, 2019 45043 $1,297.31 AT&T GENERAL-WATER-SEWER CITYWIDE TELEPHONE SERVICES 1/25/19-2/24/19. POLICE DEPT DISPATCH 

PHONE SERVICES 12/27/18-2/26/19

March 8, 2019 45044 $537.74 AT&T MOBILITY GENERAL AIRCARDS & CELL PHONE SERVICES 1/12/19-2/11/19 (PD)

March 8, 2019 45045 $74.00 AUTOZONE GENERAL (1) WIPER BLADE 22", (1) WIPER BLADE 26", AND (4) MOTOR OIL (PD)

March 8, 2019 45046 $400.00 BAR PSYCHOLOGICAL GROUP GENERAL POST PRE-EMPLOYMENT PSYCH SCREEN (PD)

March 8, 2019 45047 $30.34 TEOFILO BAUTISTA GENERAL REIMBURSEMENT FOR  CARRARA BARBLE TILE (VINYL) FOR DMV

March 8, 2019 45048 $1,113.75 BSK ASSOCIATES WATER-SEWER (6) MONTHLY WASTEWATER, WEEKLY TREATMENT &DISTRIBUTION GENERAL 

EDT

March 8, 2019 45049 $3,150.00 CENTRAL VALLEY SWEEPING, LLC STREETS STREET SWEEPING SERVICES CITY WIDE 

March 8, 2019 45050 $464.32 COLONIAL LIFE GENERAL LIFE INSURANCE FOR FEBRUARY 2019

March 8, 2019 45051 $645.52 CORBIN WILLITS SY'S INC. GENERAL-WATER-SEWER ENHANCEMENT & SERVICES FEES FOR MOM SYS MARCH 2019

March 8, 2019 45052 $337.19 CROWN SERVICES CO. GENERAL-SEWER (5) TOILET 1XWK RENT - PD, LINDGREN PARK, POOL PARK, & WASTEWATER 

PLANT 

March 8, 2019 45053 $840.00 D & D DISPOSAL INC. GENERAL ANIMAL CONTROL DISPOSAL FOR FEBRUARY 2019

March 8, 2019 45054 $200.00 DATA TICKET, INC. GENERAL DAILY CITATION PROCESSING, NOTICES, APPEALS JANUARY 2019 (PD)

March 8, 2019 45055 $270.26 DATAMATIC, INC. WATER MONTHLY SOFTWARE LICENSE & SERVICES MAINTAINCE FEE APRIL 2019

March 8, 2019 45056 $37.79 EINERSON'S PREPRESS GENERAL 250 CT BUSINESS CARDS (PD)

March 8, 2019 45057 $99.85 EMPLOYEE RELATIONS WATER-SEWER PRE-EMPLOYMENT BACKGROUND CHECK GENERAL MAINTENANCE WORKER
1



CITY OF MENDOTA

CASH DISBURSEMENTS

2/26/2019 - 3/8/2019

Check# 45032 - 45072

March 8, 2019 45058 $11,250.00 FIREBAUGH POLICE GENERAL POLICE DISPATCH SERVICES FOR FEBRUARY 2019

March 8, 2019 45059 $434.00 FRESNO MOBILE RADIO INC. GENERAL (31) POLICE RADIOS SERVICES FOR FEBRUARY 2019

March 8, 2019 45060 $8,822.50 I CAD INC. WATER WATER PLANT COMPUTER TROUBLESHOOTING MAIN TO PRISON SITE. 

MATERIAL & SERVICE ONSITE VFD COMMISSIONING 

March 8, 2019 45061 $300.00 LEXIS NEXIS GENERAL-WATER-SEWER SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES FOR FEBRUARY 2019

March 8, 2019 45062 $485.89 METRO UNIFORM GENERAL (2) PANTS, LONG SLEEVE SHIRT, (6) SEW PATCH, (2) COVERED CUFF CASE, 

HANDCUFF, KEY EXTENSION (PD)

March 8, 2019 45063 $2,068.87 NORTHSTAR CHEMICAL WATER (700G) SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE, (300G) SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE - 12.5 MILL

March 8, 2019 45064 $609.04 PETTY CASH GENERAL-WATER-SEWER PETTY CASH EXPENSES TAG# 444-450, 609-628

March 8, 2019 45065 $29,858.83 PG&E GENERAL-WATER-SEWER-

STREETS-AVIATION

CITYWIDE UTILITY SERVICES 1/9/19-2/7/19

March 8, 2019 45066 $2,609.70 PROVOST & PRITCHARD GENERAL-SEWER-STORM 

DRAIN

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES- OCT 2018  SEWER & STORM DRAIN LIFT STATION 

DETAILS PASSTHRU CANNAHUB NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2018 SERVICES 

March 8, 2019 45067 $19.95 SEBASTIAN GENERAL SECURITY SERVICES 1/21/2019 - 2/20/2019 (PD)

March 8, 2019 45068 $194.85 TCM INVESTMENTS GENERAL MPC3503 LEASE PAYMENT FOR COPIER (PD)

March 8, 2019 45069 $615.00 MARK ANTHONY DUARTE GENERAL-WATER-SEWER PEST CONTROL SERVICES FOR CITY BUILDINGS

March 8, 2019 45070 $1,286.29 TRIANGLE ROCK PRODUCTS, LLC STREETS ASPHALT FOR STREET PATCHING

March 8, 2019 45071 $51.00 WANGER JONES HELSLEY PC ATTORNEYS GENERAL PASSTHRU - LEGAL SERVICES RE: CANNAHUB DEVELOPMENT 1/15/19

March 8, 2019 45072 $58.80 WECO GENERAL-WATER-SEWER RENT CYL ACETYLENE #4, OXYGEN D&K FEBRUARY 2019

$237,901.37

2



AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS  

 

FROM: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

 

SUBJECT: TOPOGRAPHIC AND BIOLOGICAL SURVEYS IN SUPPORTS OF 

IMPROVEMENTS TO ANDEXPANSION OF ROJAS-PIERCE PARK 

RECOMMENDATION FOR APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT 

 

DATE: MARCH 12, 2019 

 

 

ISSUE 

 

Should the City Council adopt the attached resolution to authorize approval of the attached 

agreement with Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group for biological and topographic surveying 

services in support of the Improvements at Rojas-Pierce Park, in the total amount of $12,580? 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

For several years, staff has been working with potential state and federal funding sources to 

secure the monies necessary to construct a major expansion and improvement to the recreational 

and athletic facilities at Rojas-Pierce park. Despite the City’s status as a Severely Disadvantaged 

Community (SDAC) and the priority that brings in certain funding programs, and despite a 

commitment of $329,000 from the Community Development Block Grant program (CDBG), the 

City’s desired project has remained out of reach. 

 

That situation has changed with the agreement reached for development of the La Colonia 

subdivision. As stated in the amended agreement, the developer will provide $884,000 to the 

City’s General Fund, to be committed to the improvement of Rojas-Pierce park. Total funds 

available for park improvements are summarized as follows: 

 

 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) $329,000.00 

 Banked City Park Development Impact Funds $305,000.00 

 La Colonia Impact Fees:      $884,000.00 

  Total Available: $1,518,000.00 

 

At this point, the project will improve the City-owned 10-acre parcel immediately to the west of 

the existing park improvements and is expected to include the following elements: 

 

 Additional soccer field with LED lighting, scoreboard and metal bleachers  



 High-school-size baseball field with skinned or turfed infield, LED lighting, scoreboard 

and metal bleachers on concrete pads 

 Modular restroom building with snack bar area 

 Expanded grass area with automated irrigation, for the two new playfields 

 

The project will not include extension of Smoot Avenue nor construction of additional parking. 

Those improvements will remain on the list for construction with future funding sources. 

 

ANALYSIS 

 

This will be the first project using CDBG funding since the City elected to leave the Fresno 

County CDBG program and participate in the Statewide funding pool. Doing so means that the 

City now has the obligation to carry out all necessary environmental analysis under CEQA and 

NEPA, the State and Federal environmental protection acts. A letter dated September 19, 2017 

was sent by the U.S. Department of Fish and Wildlife to Fresno County acknowledging the 

occurrence of kit fox and blunt-nosed leopard lizards (both federally endangered species) in the 

project area. The first step in determining the likelihood of their presence in the project area is to 

perform a biological survey for suitable habitat. 

 

The topographical survey will provide the base mapping on-which park improvements will be 

laid out and the construction drawings prepared. These both are critical initial steps in moving 

the project toward construction. 

 

The attached agreement with Provost & PritchardConsulting Group provides for the necessary 

biological and topographicsurveying servicesin support of preparation of environmentaland 

construction documents for use in the construction of the site improvements.The total fees under 

the contract will be $12,580. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

Compensation for these services will be paid from the three sources summarized above, all of 

which are dedicated to funding park improvements.  No General Funds will be expensed as part 

of this action.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

That the City Council adopt the attached resolution authorizing approval of the attached 

agreement with Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group for the biological and topographic 

surveying services in support of improvements at Rojas-Pierce Park, in the total amount of 

$12,580. 



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTYOF FRESNO 
 
   
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 19-14 
OFTHE CITY OF MENDOTAAUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION OF APROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENTFOR THE TOPOGRAPHIC AND 
BIOLOGICALSURVEYS IN SUPPORT OF 
IMPROVEMENTS TO ANDEXPANSION OF 
ROJAS-PIERCE PARK 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mendota has determined that certain improvements to 
Rojas-Pierce Park are necessary and desirable for the benefit of the community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has assembled funds sufficient to complete design and 
construction of those contemplated improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has determined that the City Engineer, Provost & Pritchard 
Consulting Group, is the firm most qualified to provide the needed biological and 
topographic surveying services necessary for the project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to retain the City Engineer, Provost & Pritchard 
Consulting Group, to provide the biological and topographic surveying services 
necessary to prepare for the preparation of environmental and construction documents 
for the construction of the contemplated park improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Engineer has submitted a proposal for such services, 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference, that is 
acceptable to City staff; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota authorizes the City Manager to approve and execute the proposal, attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A”, entitled “Proposal for Biological and Topographic Surveying 
Services in Support of Construction of Playfield and Related Improvements, Rojas-
Pierce Park” received for this project which was presented to the Council at its regular 
meeting of March 12, 2019, in the amount of $12,580.00. 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Robert Silva, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 I, Matt Flood, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a regular 
meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 12thday of March, 2019, by 
the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
 

______________________________ 
Matt Flood, City Clerk 



286 W. Cromwell Avenue 
Fresno, CA  93711-6162 

Tel:  (559) 449-2700 
Fax:  (559) 449-2715 

www.ppeng.com  

\\ppeng.com\pzdata\clients\Mendota_City of-3336\3336OG01_On-Going\100\102 Contracts\102.42 Rojas Pierce Park Improvements\190226 Rojas Pierce Park Surveys.docx 

 
Engineering  Surveying  Planning  Environmental  GIS  Construction Services  Hydrogeology  Consulting 

Fresno    Bakersfield    Visalia    Clovis    Modesto    Los Banos    Chico    Merced   

 
March 6, 2019 
 
Cristian Gonzalez, City Manager 
City of Mendota 
643 Quince Street 
Mendota, CA  93640 
 
RE: Proposal for Biological and Topographic Surveying Services In 

Support of Construction of Playfield and Related Improvements
Rojas-Pierce Park

 
Dear Cristian: 
 
In response to your request we have prepared this proposal to provide biological and 
topographic surveying services related to a variety of improvements at Rojas Pierce Park.  
 
Following is our proposed scope of work, including a discussion of our understanding of the 
project, a recommended list of deliverables, what is and is not included, an anticipated 
schedule, and our professional fees. A proposal for planning, engineering and construction 
phase services related to this project is forthcoming. 

Phase SURV: Topographic Field Survey  
P&P staff will perform the survey field work needed for design of the project, as detailed below: 

 Perform field survey to determine existing land elevations and locate current facilities 
including electrical, water and sewer services, structures, playfield extents and other 
improvements which will impact design of the new improvements. 

 Prepare base plan drawings for use in designing the improvements. 

Phase BIO:  Biological Survey 
Pursuant to the letter to the County of Fresno from the U.S. Department of Fish and Wildlife dated 
September 19, 2017, a habitat assessment for, at a minimum, the kit fox and blunt-nosed leopard 
lizard shall be performed. These are two federally endangered species known to occur in the 
project area. Below are the tasks described to complete the BIO phase. 

 Provost & Pritchard will complete the following desktop studies to provide analysis within 
the NEPA document: Endangered Species 

 Provost & Pritchard will complete a Biological Survey and Report to provide analysis within 
the CEQA and NEPA environmental documents: 

Deliverables: One (1) electronic copy of the Biological Report. 

Additional Services 

A separate proposal for planning, engineering and construction phase services related to this 
project is forthcoming. 



Mr. Cristian Gonzalez  March 6, 2019  
Proposal for Biological and Topographic Surveying Services: Rojas-Pierce Park  Page 2 of 2 

\\ppeng.com\pzdata\clients\Mendota_City of-3336\3336OG01_On-Going\100\102 Contracts\102.42 Rojas Pierce Park Improvements\190226 Rojas Pierce Park Surveys.docx 

Professional Fees 

We propose to complete the work in the phases above on a fixed fee basis as shown in the 
following table. Each phase will be billed monthly, in proportion to the percentage of the phase 
work that is complete. Reimbursable expenses, including mileage for all planned site visits, are 
included in the fixed-fee phase fees shown. 

Project Phase Phase Fee 

Topographic Survey & Base Map $6,510 

Biological Survey $6,070 

Total Contract: $12,580.00 

Project Timeline: 

Once we are authorized to proceed, we will move forward with the above scopes. Weather 
permitting, we anticipate completing the scope of work within a month. Actual timelines and 
durations of tasks may vary due to factors outside of the control of Provost & Pritchard. We will 
will work diligently to meet the project timeline as closely as we can. 

Assumptions: 

 Field survey work will not include establishment of property boundaries, setting property 
corners, or preparation/filing of a Record of Survey map with Fresno County. Should any of 
that prove to be necessary the work can be done under additional services. 

 Reconnaissance, intensive or protocol surveys for special status or endangered plant and 
animal species are not proposed at this time.  

This project will be subject to the terms and conditions in the attached Consultant Services 
Agreement, which has been reviewed and modified by the City Attorney for use with previous 
capital improvement projects.  If this proposal is acceptable, please sign below and on the 
attached agreement and return copies of each to our office.  The signed documents will be our 
notice to proceed. As always, we thank you for the opportunity to be of service.  

City of Mendota  Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group 

By:   By:    

Name/Title:   Cristian Gonzalez,  
City Manager 

 Name/Title:   Michael Osborn 
Project Manager 

Date Signed:     Date Signed:   March 6, 2019 

   By:    

   Name/Title:   David McGlasson, PE, PLS  
Principal Engineer 

   Date Signed:   March 6, 2019 

 



Project Manager: MLO Prepared By: JMT 
 

  
286 W. Cromwell Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93711-6162 
(559)449-2700 
FAX (559)449-2715 
www.ppeng.com  
 
 

CONSULTANT 
SERVICES 

AGREEMENT 
 

CSA No:  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Client City of Mendota  Proposal No.  
 
Attention Cristian Gonzalez  Telephone (559) 655-3291 x105 
 
Bill To City of Mendota  Fax (559) 655-4064 
 
Billing Address 643 Quince Street  E-Mail cristian@cityofmendota.com  
 
City, Zip Code Mendota, CA 93640    
 
Project Title Rojas Pierce Park Surveys  Location Mendota, CA 

 
Description of Services:
See attached “Proposal for Biological and Topographic Surveying Services in Support of Construction of 
Playfield and Related Improvements, Rojas-Pierce Park” dated March 6, 2019.

The provisions set forth below and on the following paragraphs 1 through 42 are incorporated into and
made a part of this Agreement. In signing, the Client acknowledges that they have read and approved all
such terms and hires Provost & Pritchard Engineering Group, Inc., dba Provost & Pritchard Consulting
Group, (Consultant) to perform the above described services.
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

Client and Consultant agree that the following terms and conditions shall be part of this agreement: 
1. In providing services under this Agreement, the Consultant shall perform in a manner consistent with 

that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing 
under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same or similar locality.  The Consultant makes 
no warranty, express or implied, as to its professional services rendered under this Agreement. 

2. Client acknowledges that Consultant is not responsible for the performance of work by third parties 
including, but not limited to, the construction contractor and its subcontractors. 

3. Client agrees that if Client requests services not specified in the scope of services described in this 
agreement, Client will pay for all such additional services as extra services, in accordance with 
Consultant's billing rates utilized for this contract.  

DOCUMENTS 
4. Client acknowledges that all reports, plans, specifications, field data and notes and other documents, 

including all documents on electronic media, prepared by Consultant (collectively Work Product) are 
instruments of service which shall remain the property of Consultant and may be used by Consultant 
without the consent of Client. Consultant shall retain all common law, statutory law and other rights, 
including copyrights.  Consultant grants Client a perpetual, royalty-free fully paid-up, nonexclusive and 
irrevocable license to copy, reproduce perform, dispose of, use and re-use the Work Product in 
connection with the Project, in whole or in part, and to authorize others to do so for the benefit of Client.  
Client acknowledges that its right to utilize Work Product pursuant to this agreement will continue only 
so long as Client is not in default, pursuant to the terms and conditions of this agreement, and Client 
has performed all its obligations under this agreement. 

http://www.ppeng.com/
mailto:cristian@cityofmendota.com


City of Mendota  03/06/2019 
Rojas Pierce Park Surveys  Page 2 of 6 

 

 

Page 2 of 6 
 

5. Client agrees not to reuse Work Product, in whole or in part, for any project other than the project that 
is the subject of this agreement. Client further agrees to waive all claims against Consultant resulting 
in any way from any unauthorized changes or unauthorized reuse of the Work Product for any other 
project by anyone on Client’s behalf. Client agrees not to use or permit any other person to use versions 
of Work Product which are not final and which are not signed and stamped or sealed by Consultant. 
Client shall be responsible for any such use of non-final Work Product. Client hereby waives any claim 
for liability against Consultant for use of non-final Work Product. If a reviewing agency requires that 
check prints be submitted with a stamp or seal, those shall not be considered final for purposes of this 
paragraph. 

6. In the event Client (1) makes, agrees to, authorizes, or permits changes in Work Product, or (2) makes, 
agrees to, authorizes, or permits construction of such unauthorized changes, which changes are not 
consented to in writing by Consultant, or (3) does not follow recommendations prepared by Consultant 
pursuant to this agreement, resulting in unauthorized changes to the project, Client acknowledges that 
the unauthorized changes and their effects are not the responsibility of Consultant. Client agrees to 
release Consultant from all liability arising from such unauthorized changes, and further agrees to 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless Consultant, its officers, directors, employees and subconsultants 
from and against all claims, demands, damages or costs, including attorneys' fees, arising from such 
changes.  

7. Under no circumstances shall delivery of Work Product for use by the Client be deemed a sale by the 
Consultant, and the Consultant makes no warranties, either express or implied, of merchantability and 
fitness for any particular purpose. In no event shall the Consultant be liable for indirect or consequential 
damages as a result of the Client’s unauthorized use or reuse of the Work Product.  

8. The Client is aware that differences may exist between electronic files delivered and the printed hard-
copy construction documents. In the event of a conflict between the signed construction documents 
prepared by the Consultant and electronic files, the signed sealed hard-copy documents shall govern. 

LIMITATIONS 
9. Consultant makes no representations concerning soils or geological conditions unless specifically 

included in writing in this agreement, or by amendments to this agreement. If Consultant recommends 
that Client retain the services of a Geotechnical Engineer and Client chooses to not do so, Consultant 
shall not be responsible for any liability that may arise out of the making of or failure to make soils or 
geological surveys, subsurface soils or geological tests, or general soils or geological testing.  

10. Client acknowledges that, unless specifically stated to the contrary in the proposal’s description of 
services to be provided, Consultant's scope of services for this project does not include any services 
related in any way to asbestos and/or hazardous or toxic materials. Should Consultant or any other 
party encounter such materials on the job site, or should it in any other way become known that such 
materials are present or may be present on the job site or any adjacent or nearby areas which may 
affect Consultant's services, Consultant may, at its option, suspend or terminate work on the project 
until such time as Client retains a qualified contractor to abate and/or remove the asbestos and/or 
hazardous or toxic materials and warrant that the job site is free from any hazard which may result from 
the existence of such materials.  

INDEMNIFICATION 
11. To the fullest extent allowed by law, Consultant will indemnify and hold harmless, but shall have no 

duty to defend Client, its officers. directors, employees and agents (collectively, the "Client 
lndemnitees") from, for and against any and all claims, demands, damages, losses. expenses. liabilities 
and penalties arising out of or relating to the Project, but only to the extent caused by the negligent or 
other wrongful acts or omissions of Consultant, its subconsultants, or any person or entity for whose 
acts or omissions any of them are responsible, or by the failure of any such party to perform as required 
by this Agreement. To the fullest extent allowed by law, Client will indemnify and hold harmless, but 
shall have no duty to defend Consultant and its officers, directors, employees and agents from, for and 
against any and all claims, demands, damages, losses, expenses, liabilities and penalties arising out 
of or relating to the Project, but only to the extent caused by the negligent or other wrongful acts or 
omissions of Client or any person or entity for whose acts or omissions it is responsible, or by the failure 
of any such party to perform as required by this Agreement. The obligations and rights of this Section 
are in addition to other obligations and rights of indemnity provided under this Agreement or applicable 
law. 



City of Mendota  03/06/2019 
Rojas Pierce Park Surveys  Page 3 of 6 

 

 

Page 3 of 6 
 

FINANCIAL 
12. All fees and other charges due Consultant will be billed monthly and shall be due at the time of billing 

unless specified otherwise in this agreement. If Client fails to pay Consultant within sixty (60) days after 
invoices are rendered, Consultant shall have the right in its sole discretion to consider such default in 
payment a material breach of this entire agreement, and, upon written notice, Consultant's duties, 
obligations and responsibilities under this agreement may be suspended or terminated for cause 
pursuant to Sections 26 through 31. In such event, Client shall promptly pay Consultant for all 
outstanding fees and charges due Consultant at the time of suspension or termination including all 
costs and expenses incurred in the performance of services up to suspension or termination.  

13. Consultant shall not be liable to Client for any costs or damages that may result from the termination 
or suspension of services under this agreement due to Client’s failure to pay Consultant invoices in 
accordance with the terms of this paragraph.  In the event that Consultant agrees to resume terminated 
or suspended services after receiving full payment of all late invoices, Client agrees that time schedules 
and fees, as applicable, related to the services will be equitably adjusted to reflect any delays or 
additional costs caused by the termination or suspension of services. 

14. In all cases where the proposal calls for payment of a retainer, that payment shall be made by Client to 
Consultant prior to commencement of services under this agreement. Upon receipt of retainer payment, 
the Consultant shall commence services as provided for under this Agreement.  Unless otherwise 
provided for in the project proposal, such retainer shall be held by Consultant throughout the duration 
of the contract, and shall be applied to the final project invoice, and to any other outstanding AR, 
including late payment charges, on the project.  Any amount of said retainer in excess of the final 
invoice and other outstanding AR shall be returned to the Client within 30 days of issuance of the final 
project invoice. 

15. Client agrees that all billings from Consultant to Client will be considered correct and binding on Client 
unless Client, within ten (10) days from the date of receipt of such billing, notifies Consultant in writing 
of alleged inaccuracies, discrepancies, or errors in billing.  In the event of a dispute over any billing or 
portion of billing, Client agrees to pay the undisputed portion of any billings in accordance with the 
payment terms set forth in Section 18.  

16. Client agrees to pay a monthly late payment charge, which will be the lesser of one and one half percent 
(1-1/2%) per month or a monthly charge not to exceed the maximum legal rate, which will be applied 
to any unpaid balance commencing thirty (30) days after the date of the billing.  Client acknowledges 
that payments applied first to unpaid late payment charges and then to unpaid balances of invoices.   

17. In the event Consultant's fee schedule changes due to any increase of costs such as the granting of 
wage increases and/or other employee benefits to field or office employees or any taxes or fees 
imposed by local, state, or federal government on consultants’ fees during the lifetime of this 
agreement, the new fee schedule shall apply to all subsequent work on time-and-materials contracts. 

18. If payment for Consultant's services is to be made on behalf of Client by a third party lender, Client 
agrees that Consultant shall not be required to indemnify the third party lender, in the form of an 
endorsement or otherwise, as a condition to receiving payment for services.  Client agrees to reimburse 
Consultant for all collection agency fees, legal fees, court costs, reasonable consultant staff costs and 
other expenses paid or incurred by Consultant in the event that collection efforts become necessary to 
enforce payment of any unpaid billings due to Consultant in connection with the services provided in 
this agreement.   

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
19. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, the aggregate liability 

of the Consultant under this Agreement, whether for breach of contract, tort, strict liability or 
any other legal theory, will not exceed the total amount of Consultant's compensation for 
performing services under this Agreement or $50,000, whichever is greater, however this 
limitation of Consultant's liability does not apply to third-party claims, or to the Client's 
reasonable attorneys' fees and expert witnesses' fees and litigation expenses arising out of or 
related to such third-party claims for which Consultant is liable. 

DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
20. In an effort to resolve any conflicts or disputes that arise regarding performance under this agreement 

by either party, Client and Consultant agree that all such disputes shall be submitted to nonbinding 
mediation, using a mutually agreed upon mediation services experienced in the resolution of 
construction disputes.  Unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, such mediation shall be a pre-



City of Mendota  03/06/2019 
Rojas Pierce Park Surveys  Page 4 of 6 

 

 

Page 4 of 6 
 

condition to the initiation of any litigation.  The parties further agree to include a similar mediation 
provision in their agreements with other independent contractors and consultants retained for the 
project and require them to similarly agree to these dispute resolution procedures.  This provision shall 
not be interpreted to restrict the right of either party to file an action in a court of law, in the County of 
Fresno, State of California, having appropriate jurisdiction or to preclude or limit the Consultant’s right 
to record, perfect or to enforce any applicable lien or Stop Notice rights.   

CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 
21. If the scope of services contained in this agreement does not include construction phase services for 

this project, Client agrees that such construction phase services will be provided by Client or by others. 
Client assumes all responsibility for interpretation of the contract documents and for construction 
observation and supervision and waives any claim against Consultant that may in any way be 
connected thereto. In addition, Client agrees to indemnify and hold Consultant harmless from any loss, 
claim, or cost, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs of defense, arising or resulting from the 
performance of such services by other persons or entities and from any and all claims arising from the 
modification, clarification, interpretation, adjustments or changes made to the contract documents to 
reflect changed field or other conditions, except for claims arising from the negligence or other wrongful 
acts of Consultant, its employees, its subconsultants, or any other person or entity for which Consultant 
is responsible. 

22. Client agrees to include provisions in its contract with the construction contractor to the effect that in 
accordance with generally accepted construction practices, the construction contractor will be required 
to assume sole and complete responsibility for job site conditions during the course of construction of 
the project, including safety of all persons and property, and that this requirement shall apply 
continuously and not be limited to normal working hours. Neither the professional activities of 
Consultant nor the presence of Consultant or its employees or subconsultants at a construction site 
shall relieve the contractor and its subcontractors of their obligations, duties and responsibilities 
including, but not limited to, construction means, methods, sequence, techniques or procedures 
necessary for performing, superintending or coordinating all portions of the work of construction in 
accordance with the contract documents and applicable health or safety requirements of any regulatory 
agency or of state law.  

23. Client agrees to require its contractor and subcontractors to review the plans, specifications and 
documents prepared by Consultant prior to the commencement of construction phase work. If the 
contractor and/or subcontractors believe there are deficiencies, conflicts, errors, omissions, code 
violations, or other deficiencies in the plans, specifications and documents prepared by Consultant, 
contractors shall notify Client so those deficiencies may be corrected or otherwise addressed by 
Consultant prior to the commencement of construction phase work.  

24. If, during the construction phase of the project, Client discovers or becomes aware of changed field or 
other conditions which necessitate clarifications, modifications or other changes to the plans, 
specifications, estimates or other documents prepared by Consultant, Client agrees to notify Consultant 
and, at Client’s option, retain Consultant to prepare the necessary changes or modifications before 
construction activities proceed.  Further, Client agrees to require a provision in its construction contracts 
for the project which requires the contractor to promptly notify Client of any changed field or other 
conditions so that Client may in turn notify Consultant pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph. 

25. If, due to the Consultant's error, omission or negligence, a required item or component of the Project is 
omitted from the Consultant's construction documents, the Consultant shall not be responsible for 
paying the cost required to add such item or component to the extent that such item or component 
would have been required and included in the original construction documents. The Consultant will not 
be responsible for any cost or expense that enhances the value of the Project. 

SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION 
26. If the Project or the Consultant’s services are suspended by the Client for more than thirty (30) 

consecutive calendar days, the Consultant shall be compensated for all services performed and 
reimbursable expenses incurred prior to the receipt of notice of suspension. In addition, upon 
resumption of services, the Client shall compensate the Consultant for expenses incurred as a result 
of the suspension and resumption of its services, and the Consultant’s schedule and fees for the 
remainder of the Project shall be equitably adjusted. 



City of Mendota  03/06/2019 
Rojas Pierce Park Surveys  Page 5 of 6 

 

 

Page 5 of 6 
 

27. If the Consultant’s services are suspended for more than ninety (90) days, consecutive or in the 
aggregate, the Consultant may terminate this Agreement upon giving not less than five (5) calendar 
days’ written notice to the Client. 

28. If the Client is in breach of the payment terms or otherwise is in material breach of this Agreement, the 
Consultant may suspend performance of services upon five (5) calendar days’ notice to the Client. The 
Consultant shall have no liability to the Client, and the Client agrees to make no claim for any delay or 
damage as a result of such suspension caused by any breach of this Agreement by the Client. Upon 
receipt of payment in full of all outstanding sums due from the Client, or curing of such other breach 
that caused the Consultant to suspend services, the Consultant shall resume services, and there shall 
be an equitable adjustment to the remaining project schedule and fees as a result of the suspension. 

29. Client acknowledges Consultant has the right to complete all services included in this agreement. In 
the event this agreement is terminated before the completion of all services, unless Consultant is 
responsible for such early termination, Client agrees to release Consultant from all liability for services 
not performed or completed by Consultant and from liability for any third-party reliance, use, 
interpretation or extrapolation of Consultant’s work product. In the event all or any portion of the services 
by Consultant are suspended, abandoned, or otherwise terminated, Client shall pay Consultant all fees 
and charges for services provided prior to termination, not to exceed the contract limits specified herein, 
if any. Client acknowledges if the project services are suspended and restarted, there will be additional 
charges due to suspension of the services which shall be paid for by Client as extra services pursuant 
to Section 26.  Client acknowledges if project services are terminated for the convenience of Client, 
Consultant is entitled to reasonable termination costs and expenses, to be paid by Client as extra 
services pursuant to Section 28. 

30. The Client may terminate this Agreement for the Client's convenience and without cause upon giving 
the Consultant not less than seven (7) calendar days' written notice. 

31. In the event of termination of this Agreement by either party, Consultant shall invoice Client for all 
outstanding services and expenses reasonably incurred by the Consultant in connection with the 
orderly termination of this Agreement, including but not limited to demobilization, reassignment of 
personnel, associated overhead costs and all other expenses directly resulting from the termination. 
The Client shall within thirty (30) calendar days of termination pay the Consultant for all services 
rendered and all reimbursable costs incurred by the Consultant up to the date of termination, in 
accordance with the payment provisions of this Agreement. 

OTHER 
32. This agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of 

Client and Consultant. 
33. This agreement shall not be assigned by either Client or Consultant without the prior written consent of 

the other. 
34. Consultant's or Client's waiver of any term, condition or covenant shall not constitute the waiver of any 

other term, condition or covenant. Consultant's or Client's waiver of any breach of this agreement shall 
not constitute the waiver of any other breach of the Agreement.  

35. Client and Consultant agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is determined to be illegal, 
in conflict with any law. void or otherwise unenforceable, and if the essential terms and provisions of 
this Agreement remain unaffected, then the validity of the remaining terms and provisions will not be 
affected and the offending provision will be given the fullest meaning and effect allowed by law. 

36. This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
California. 

37. Within the limits of the approved scope and fee, Consultant may engage the services of any 
subconsultants when, in the Consultant's sole opinion, it is appropriate to do so. Such subconsultants 
may include testing laboratories, geotechnical engineers and other specialized consulting services 
deemed necessary by the Consultant to carry out the scope of the Consultant's services. 

38. Consultant shall be entitled to immediately, and without notice, suspend the performance of any and 
all of its obligations pursuant to this agreement if Client files a voluntary petition seeking relief under 
the United States Bankruptcy Code or if there is an involuntary bankruptcy petition filed against Client 
in the United States Bankruptcy Court, and that petition is not dismissed within fifteen (15) days of its 
filing.  Any suspension of services made pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph shall continue 
until such time as this agreement has been fully and properly assumed in accordance with the 
applicable provisions of the United States Bankruptcy Code and in compliance with final order or 
judgment issued by the Bankruptcy Court.   



City of Mendota  03/06/2019 
Rojas Pierce Park Surveys  Page 6 of 6 

 

 

Page 6 of 6 
 

39. This agreement shall not be construed to alter, affect or waive any design professional's lien, 
mechanic's lien or stop notice right, which Consultant may have for the performance of services 
pursuant to this agreement. Client agrees to provide to Consultant the current name and address of 
the record owner of the property upon which the project is to be located. Client also agrees to provide 
Consultant with the name and address of any and all lenders who may loan money on the project and 
who are entitled to receive a preliminary notice.  

40. Consultant shall not be liable for damages resulting from the actions or inactions of governmental 
agencies including, but not limited to, permit processing, environmental impact reports, dedications, 
general plans and amendments thereto, zoning matters, annexations or consolidations, use or 
conditional use permits, project or plan approvals, and building permits. Client agrees that it is the 
responsibility of Client to maintain in good standing all governmental approvals or permits and to timely 
apply for any necessary extensions thereof.  

41. Consultant and Client each agree to waive consequential damages for claims, disputes or other matters 
in question arising out of or relating to this Agreement.  This mutual waiver is applicable, without 
limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination in accordance with paragraphs 
26 through 31, except for termination expenses provided for in said paragraph 31. Client further agrees 
that to the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall not be liable to Client for any special, indirect 
or consequential damages whatsoever, whether caused by Consultant's negligence, errors, omissions, 
strict liability, breach of contract, breach of warranty or other cause or causes whatsoever, including 
but not limited to, loss of use of equipment or facility, and loss of profits or revenue. 

42. This Agreement is the entire Agreement between the Client and the Consultant. It supersedes all prior 
communications, understandings and agreements, whether oral or written. Amendments to this 
Agreement must be in writing and signed by both the Client and the Consultant. 
 

Client City of Mendota  
Provost & Pritchard Engineering Group, Inc., 
dba Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group 

By   By  

Name/Title Cristian Gonzalez  
Name/Title 

David McGlasson 
Principal-In-Charge 

Date Signed   Date Signed  
  

 



 

AGENDA ITEM –  STAFF REPORT  

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

FROM: MARILU G. SANDOVAL, ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT III 

SUBJECT: CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF EXCLUSIVE USE PERMITS FOR 2019 

DATE:  MARCH 12, 2019 

  

ISSUE 

Should the Council approve the Exclusive Use Permits with the attached conditions? 

 

BACKGROUND 

The Mendota Municipal Code allows organizations to submit an application for the 

exclusive (reserved) use of City facilities for approval at the first Council meeting in 

March. Any applications submitted after this will be secondary to these permits and may 

be approved by the City Manager. 

 

ANALYSIS 
Staff is presenting to Council a listing of the Exclusive Use Permit applications that the 

City has received to reserve use of various City facilities. Some applications require a 

conditional approval from Council due to them missing some of the requirements for 

approval. Staff is asking that the Council conditionally approve those applications, as 

well as to approve the complete applications with operation-related conditions. 

 

As contained in the resolution, any applicants that are lacking information for full 

approval will be required to submit the needed documentation within 30 days (April 11
th

 

by end of business day) or before use of the facility, whichever comes first. Attached to 

this staff report is each of the individual applications and Resolution No. 19-15, including 

Exhibit A, that lists all of the conditions for permitted approval and/or operation. In effort 

to establish and maintain consistency and fair treatment of all non-profit organizations 

submitting an Exclusive Use Permit application, the fees waived per event on Exhibit A 

are based on the City of Mendota’s administrative policies that are attached as Exhibits B 

and C. Although the City of Mendota strives to support non-profit organizations by 

providing a reasonable waiver of fees, it is important to note that the event organizer is 

responsible for ensuring all other costs associated with their event will be paid for by 

their organization.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT  

General Fund will gain $3,967.50 if all applicable fees are paid. Any waiver of fees may 

adversely impact the General Fund if the City is responsible to provide services that are 

not reimbursed by event organizer. Waived fees may also adversely impact the budget of 



2 

the Mendota Community Corporation. In order to avoid either situation, staff 

recommends that there be no additional waiver of fees other than those shown in Exhibit 

A, in accordance with the established, Council approved, Administrative Policy-City 

Participation in Community Events and Administrative Policy-Number 2004.01-Event 

Permit for Non-Profit Organizations. 

  

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that Council adopt Resolution No. 19-15 conditionally approving the 

exclusive use applications as contained in Exhibit A.  

 



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTYOF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 19-15 
OFTHE CITY OF MENDOTACONDITIONAL 
APPROVAL OF THE EXCLUSIVE USE PERMITS 
FOR CITY FACILITIES FOR 2019 
 
 WHEREAS, as of February 22, 2019, fifteen (15) Facility Use applications were 
submitted to City staff for the Exclusive Use of a city facility for the purpose of an event 
or a reoccurring event that will be of benefit to the community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the organizations must comply with the Mendota Municipal Code 
and Exhibit “B” of Administrative Policy Number 2004.01, which states Mendota based 
Non-Profit organizations will have one Community Event or Street Fair permit waived in 
a given calendar year and each additional thereafter will receive 50% discount in same 
calendar year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the organizations must comply with the Mendota Municipal Code 
and Exhibit “C” of Administrative Policy- City Participation in Community Events,  which 
states the City of Mendota shall host the events listed on the policy; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the applications and considered all 
conditions, which are stated in Exhibit “A”, included herein and made part hereof, and 
has independently determined that the use of a city facility is a benefit to the community. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota that the City Council hereby approves the Exclusive Use Permit applications 
with the conditions provided on Exhibit “A” for the use of a city facility for an event or a 
reoccurring event. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the aforementioned 
organizations are required to submit any required documentation for full approval on or 
before the first use of the facility, or April 12th, 2019, whichever comes first. 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Robert Silva, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 I, Matt Flood, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a regular 
meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 12th day of March, 2019, 
by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
       ______________________________ 
       Matt Flood, City Clerk 



. CITY OF MENDOTA. . . 
FACILitY USE APPLICATION 

3 4 
,;:----

/:). 
RE.C 

P°LE!.\SE coMPLETE A~L ciLiEsr10Ns oR if~M·s FOR WHICH INFORMA.TJON rs '-~i;olJESreo. PR~NT 
ALL ANSWERS EXCEPT THE SIGNATURE. 

FOR (lSE OF ALL -9~ SUBSTANTIAL!.:'( ALL OF THE R9~.AS-PJE·Rc·~ PAFn<; P.JcNiC AREA AND 
BANDSTAND OR MENDOTA POOL PARK BANDSTAND VETERANS.PARK APPLICANTS MUST ' . . : . . J . . ' . . . . . . 

APPEAR BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL FOR APPRO\'AL- bF THE PERMIT. 

Nore: S·ECTION 12.20.050 APPLICATIO.N$ FOR EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FIL~:o WITH THE CJTY 
C°L~RK DURING THE MO:NtH OF FEBRUARY ANNUALLY ANO SHALL EH~ SET FOR CONSIDERATION 
·s.v THE ·cirY COUNCIL AT ·ITS .FIRST ME·ETING IN MARCH ANNUALLY. APPUCATIONS FOR 
E~GLU'SIVE. USE SHALL BE FILED NOT l,..ESS THAN TWE~TY ONE (21.) NOR MORE THAN ONE 
~UN·DRED FIFTY (150:) .DAYS P.fUOR TO THE USE OF THE FACJLIT'(. PROMOTERS.SHALL REQUEST 
AN AGREEMENT WJTH THE CITY BESU)~S THE APPLICATION. . 

.NOTE: SecnoN 12.20.110: APPLIOANT MU~ST .PROVlbE T:He CITY WIT:H · ·s~RTIFICATES OF 
INS~_RANCE SPECIFYING THE CITY OF ~ENDOTA AS NAM~.D ,_NSURED EVIDENCING LIABILITY AND 
PROPER1Y DAMAGE ~IMJTS WITH A COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT QF NOT LESS 'THAN ONlt MILUON 
'?PL.LARS _($1 ,000.,000). . 

'\ 
;'") 

[ COMPLETED APPLiCATION. 
- [ ] PROOFOFINSURANC.E.POLICYSHOWINa·c1TYOFMENootAAS.AnbmoNAL:rNsu.REo. Jl.'f~ \...,/, \\'\ 

~[ ] PROOF OP LIAHILITY INSUR~CE .FOR FACILITY USE ~Jl ~ + 3} '. ~ - \ ;;>... / ?-oi...;.1 Yl ~IA.,.- tc Ylt,0-

- [ ] DEPOSIT, USE PEE, .AND KEY DEPOStT SUBMITIED TO F,J1fANCE DEPARTMENT. 
- ·[( 1 OBTAINED SECURITY AS REQIJlRED BY MENDOTA PoLiCE- bEP ARTMENT 

\l'J ORIGINAL SIGNA'fUJIB OF.PERMITr~E WITH ACKNOWLEDGfy.IENT. 
--.1--- AMPLIFIED Musrc PERMIT-IF APPLICAHLE . 

1 



1. 

2. The org.an:i.zation, individu·~I,· business or entity aip·ptyhi.Q fo:r- the use perrnit:· 

mend.do YOcrh feo~ . 
3. The contact person on '3ebaf:f.of the appHcant, reg~rd~ng the event or activity for which 

use perm.it is ~eque~te.d .fo~ethe~ with all of t~e foH.owhig i~formati~n: · 

NAME: 6e~t0 \J~ .. 
ADDRESS (STREET AND CITY)== ft.~ °SJ.-
T~~EPHONE No!: s:n ) ·hct7 ~ 4ott "? 

3-lb ... , q 

4. DATE: &u~S&~ 12'-~.-1~ TIM1t:3:mp m ,,/.o 10:o0pl4f) 
5. Ple.~se de~crfbe the exact pat~ area or areas· ·requested ·for Exclusive Use, (List below 

and circle th~ area on ttie att~ched map). 
~ - L 

. ~av"t:.115 /of- .. 
6. Purpose or :function for which .the perrn:it is requ·ested. Give sta,tement of reasons for 

exclusive &Jse .. No_te: S~ct_i91112.20.09Q(bl(.c) F·~es a,nd .. Deposits as requJreq . 

8. 

9. 

· , 

. ~ ~f-; 

Will alcoh6Hc beverages· be s·old? Yes . No. ~ note:". if yes, you must ap.ply for 
arid re.ceive a separate permit from the state deparrment of alcohol be,verage co·ntrolf if 
so, Hquor·HabiHty insuran~e .is requfred to be purchas·ed-tfilrty (30) days in advance by · 
the applJ~a .. nt The Fresno ~ounty Sherlff's department must .b~ contac~ed regarding . 
thi.s ·appU:cation. The City ~f Mendota park$ are tobacco ·fre·e· an4 alcohol free. · 

Has a pro.mo~er b~en contr~"c:>ted . to pr~?.ent, . ·.produce, ·or oth,erwise t?e involved in the 
event, activ:ity .or e-ilte·rtalr--~ent durin,g -_the _ev~nt? Xes_.·_· No )&?. Note: $ection 
12~20.11 o, if y·es, the promo.te·r is requked ·ta provide ce,rtifi.cate of inslirance evideAc"ing 
liability and property damag~. Umi-ts with a ·com~lned ~lngle Unilt of not f-ess than 

.$1.;000,000 with a deductibJe of nor more than $500; ·and shaU ~pecify the City of 
Mendota -and applicant as nam~d insured. . 

2 



10. 
. . . 

If . a .promoter will pres.ent, produce, or otherwise be i:nv~»lved· in the event, activity or 
~nte.rtair;unent,' state. the .name, adqress and telepfi~~~- humber ~f . -the promoter . ~nd 
de~cribe hi$Jher/ft$. p~rtic'ipatiori' ·in th~ event. N:ote: Secticm 5.o·a.03·0 Amusement_ Park 
Ri·d~s ~rid A~tr~ctioti~; :Se.c*·~on 5.08.300 Musical and TJJea~ripal Sh9~$. The Promoter ·is 
:requlred to obtain ·a buslness lfoense. · 

.. .. ... ''' \' 
.. NAMe:· _ 
ADORES.-$-.: ---------'lr,---.---------
PA~~PM~~~VO~~M~~:-~ ~-~~-'~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-

Detaiied de$cri:ption of al:i entertainritent .and acti-vities, ·including e:qui.pment arid 
v~hicles to be usedr the na~µre ~nd times o.f use of $U~r--: equlp'rf1erytJ an~ _th~ . nature ·~ild 
time of use of ·any ampfifi.ed sound equipment. Please· keep lri mind that anything not 
mentioned befow:wHI rio.t be ~Uowed. · · · 

.· aj)e~~le.J ~4 l.l'f~ Jn .. s, . <9/- -~ !JSe.J, .(._ 111!&> 

12.· 

13. 

14. 

15._ 

16. 

17. 

Wi~ll con.~es~i~n sta~df$.) be .. _ljse~_,? . . . .Y~s ~ No~ Note: for b.a~~baH diamon.ci 
cohcessio~, $150.00 fee, per league, no :exemptionsr- .· · 

Will" the_r~ bpe · n admissions charge to the ev~nt? Ifs~, stat~ the exact alTioL:Jnt of each 
tic-ket $ _ · . State .the reason for imposing this admission charg~. .. . . . . . 
Will there tie a live band at . this: function? ·. Yes . ~- No 
(See attached municipal c9de regitr~ing rii_ois~ ordiflanc;:~) . 

State th~ names and addresses of af:I pe·r~on.s Ot' g,roup·s which wiH rec~·ive any' of the 
proceeds. fr<?m this event, including concess-ions, and how those proc.e·eds · wHI be 
divid~d an10.1_1g sue~ person~ pr groups"/) .... · h 

· . Mm~ ._:1o{J:t14 ~~tv?B~1-: 
If this perrnft appUcation is for aH· or substantiaHy · ail of the park area, or all or 
subst~ntia'i:,y _ all of th,e P.icnip and bandst~nd are, state ·the .. overriding pt.fbli~ interest or 
special circw~stances. whic:h justify excluding residents of the City of Mendota from 
using their p~-bH~ park f~cH:i~ies. · · · · 

I, , r ~: , h~ve read the JVJendota Mun.icipal Code . Chapter 
12.20 re: -_r . permits : attach~f:{J. I ynd.erst~Uid all of the r~quirements for con~ucting an 
event or ac~~vity in the use of "t e 0·~5..;pj~rce a·rk or any City facility. . f' agree on 
behalf of 'ilwself and . . , . (name of a·ppUCaflt), the 
organization. on whose -ehalf this apphcation is maqe, ·to indemnify, defend and hold 
the City of Mendota harmless, from and against any and af:I claims, actions~ suits, and 
,proceedings for mone'y damages or 0th.er reJie·f for personal injury, property ·damage or 
other losses ·resulting from or. ~aused by the activity or event for which this perm.it is 

3 



I I 

iss·ued. The keys to a·ny facii,lty or e:rectrica:f panel wfn not be issued ti:ntH this document 
is signe.d hy the perm"itte~ requesting a f~cUity and/Qr consent/hold harmless 
agre~,ments ar~ s~bmitted to ~ity ~taff and p.~o.Of of iri:Surance i~ p.rov-lded and all fees 
a·nd ct~~posits are pai~. . . 

sign<iture of Per.:U:~te~: 71 '\--i p \\ ~ DATE: "'2- t~ l f 
I, ~~ l;Q \ I Ot t k ( . 'declare I h~ve read i!ll]d linders tilnd the foregoing app;ie:ittion 
and all atachments .th_er~tp". J · furth.~r ~~clare that I wUI ~bide b_y an City1 State, County and 
Federal laws at said event. · · 

.. 
Dated: _. _z_ .... ""'_-:/__...· _"" _f47 _____ _ 

· CITY MANAGER APP~c;>VAL 

THJS APP.qCATION IS APPROVED I REJ,ECTEO FOR USE OF THE · ON . 
_________ ......._....,...• TH:i: FOLLOWING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SHALL APPLY, MAY INCLUDE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT REQUl:fU;MENTS. . . . 

( . 

CITY MANAGE-R: 
~~~~--~----~----------

.DATE: -------
. ***********~**********************************~***********************************************************~** 
S~CURJTY REQUIREMENT-OR CONDITIONS AS P~R CITY PF ME.NDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT: . 

PouceDEPT: 

4 



Policy Number: WS244545 Date Entered: 4/3/2018 

ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

~ 4/1/2018 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~~~~~CT JIM TEKUNOFF 
ALL SERVE INSURANCE SERVICES 

r:igN~o Extl: ( 559) 999-1355 I r:,~ Nol: ( ) -
106 6 N GRANTLAND AVE 

~toA~~ss: ALLSERVEINS@GMAIL. COM 
FRESNO, CA 93723 

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 

INSURER A : NORTHFIELD INSURANCE COMPANY 

INSURED MENDOTA YOUTH RECREATION, INC. INSURER B : 

INSURER C: 

667 QUINCE STREET INSURER D : 

MENDOTA, CA 93640 INSURER E : 

INSURER F: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 
LIMITS LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD WVD PO LICY NUMBER IMM/DDNYYYl IMM/DDNYYYl 

A ~ COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000 

~ CLAIMS-MADE ~ OCCUR x WS244545 4/1/2018 4/1/2019 
DAMAGE TO RENTED 

$100,000 PREMISES (Ea occurrence} 

MED EXP (Any one person) $EXCLUDED 
-

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000 
-
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE $ 2,000,000 

~ D PRO- O we PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ Excluded POLICY JECT 

OTHER: $ 

AUTO MO BILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $ (Ea accident} 
f----

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 
f----

OWNED 
~ 

SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 
f----

AUTOS ONLY 
f----

AUTOS 
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $ 
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY !Per accidentl 

$ 

UMBRELLA LIAB H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 
-

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

OED I I RETENTION $ $ 

WORKERS COMPENSATION 
1 mTUTE I I OTH-

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ER 
YIN 

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE D N I A 
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 
If yes. describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101 , Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 

2018 OPEN MARKET ON SUNDAYS FROM APRIL THROUGH NOVEMBER 

@ 7TH STREET AND RIO FRIO STREET MENDOTA, CA 93640 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCEL LA Tl ON 

CITY OF MENDOTA 

643 QUINCE AVE SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 

MENDOTA, CA 93640 ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

ti~\+ 
I 

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 

Produced using Forms Boss Plus software. www.FormsBoss.com; Impressive Publishing,LLC 800-208-1977 



.. ' .. . . 
CITY OF MENDOTA. . . 

FACILITY USE APPLICATION 

PLEf\SE coMPLETE A4L QUESTIONS oFi if~M·s FOR WHICH J.NFORM.J\.TloN rs ·R.i;QUEsreo. PR~Nr 
ALL ANSWERS EXCEPT THE Sl'GNATURE. 

FOR ~SE OF ALL .Q~ SUBSTANT,ALI.: X ALL OF THE R9~AS-PIERC·~ PAFU<; PICNiC AREA AND 

· BANDSTAND OR MENDOTA POOL PARK .BANDSTAND VE-TERANS.PARK APPLICANTS MUST ' . . . ; . J . . . ' . . . . . . . 

APPEAR BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL FOR APPROVAl-b.f THE PERMIT .. . . ~ . 

Nore: SecTtON 12.20.050 APPLICAT10-N$ FOR EXCLus1ve use SHALL ae FILgo w1tH THE cJTY 

· c°L~RK DURING THE MQJ.JtH OF FEBRUARY ANNUALLY ANO SHALL en~ SST FOR ·coNSlDERATION 

·~y THE C.iTY COUNCJL AT ·ITS 'FIRST MEETING IN MARCH AN'~UALLY. APPUCATIONS FOR 

E~QLUSIVE use SHALL BE FILED NOT LESS THAN TWENTY O~E (21.) NOR MORE THAN ONE 

~UNDRED FIFTY (150) .DAYS PR19R TO THE USE OF THE F~CJLIT'(. PROMOT6RS.SHALL REQUEST 

A~ AGRE·EMENT WITH THE CITY B,ESU)};S THE APPLICATION. . 

-NOTE: SECTION 12 .. 20 .• 11·0: APPLICANT MUST PROVJbE THE. CITY WIT:l':I ¢ERTIFICATES OF 
IN·s~~RANCE SPECl:FYING THE CITY OF ~ENDOTA AS NAM~.o fNSURED EVJDENClNG LIABILITY AND 
PROPERTY O:AMAGE ~fMITS VVJTH A COMBINED SINGLE UMIT QF NOT LESS .THAN ONE MILLl'ON 
c;>OL:LARS .($1,000.,000). . 

A· [ . 
[ ] 
[ 

/" [ ] 
- [), 

[ ] 

COMPLETED APPLiCATION. 
PROOF OF INSURANCE.POLICY SHOWING'CITY OF MENJ:?OTA AS ADDITIONALrNStJ:Rfr:D. 
PROOF OF LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR FACILITY USE , 
DEPOSIT, USE FEE, AND KEY DEPOSiT SUBMITIED TO F~ANCE J::?EP MTMENT. 
OBTAINED SECURITY AS REQI)lRED BY MENDOTA POLI CR iJ°.EP ARTMENT 
ORIGINAL SIGNA'fU~ OF.PERMIIT,EE WITH ACKNOWLEDGM.ENT. 

~---AMPJ,,IflED Musrc PERMIT·IF APPLICABLE 

1 



1. This app.lication is for the us~ of the foUowhig fac~iHty: . . 

C!ommwt11./::j CeYJkr 

3. The contact person O:n l)e:f:laf:f.of the applicant, reg~rding the event or activity for which 
use permit is requested _fogether wi·th au of the followlrig information: · 

. . . . . . . . 

NAME: 6e~u \) Q/dp~ 
AooRess {STREET AND CJTv): :3;J s · Pu.ch.et{ S:b 
r~~EPHoNe No?: 557 I 6'l2 - 'lotl3 

I . . . 

A~ 

4. DATE:(t\art'h lb pvt.. iJ TIME: tOJ:(il? - 17) QO P. vVi 

5. Ple-~se de~crfbe the exact p~r~ area or areas· requested ·for Exclusive Us~. {List below 
and circle the area on -tpe attached map) • 

.,, . ·n 

C'Q MW\\f\&'.l.'l~ C'21#£ 

2 



10. ff .a .promoter wm p_res.ent, produce, or otherwise be i:nvolved' in the event, activity or . 
ente_rtai~ment, · state. the _name, add.ress and telepho:IJ~ humber ~f . -the promoter . ~nd 
describe hi~iher/('ts. p;J,rtic.ipatiori' ·in th~ event. N:ote: SeCtiO.n. 5.0~J.030 Amusement. ?:;irk 
Rid~s ~rad A~tr~ctio11~; :Se.ct_(pn. 5.08.300 Musical and Th.eatri.pal Shi;>~$. The Promoter is 
requlre~ to ~btal~ ·a b~si~~ss H~·ense. · 

-~ .. ·NAME:· ~ 
A 

-.~~~~~~~-. -,---~~~~~-

:. DDRESS: ~ 

PARTl'CIPAT-10-.N-./:-.:l:N-,v-.. o---,LV_E_·~M--f:-_.N-_.T-:_·-........ ----~-:_'~---------=---=---=-----=---=-·-.~~--~~::_-:_-_______ _..., __ 
1 ( Detaiied de$cri:ptioo of al:i entertaimraent .and acthiities, ·tnchJdJng equlpment arid 

v~hicles to be used;-, the na~ure. ~·nd times .o.f use of su~~: equi·pmerytJ an~ .th~ . nature -~nd 
time of use of ·any ampHfi.ed sound equipment. Please· keep hi mind that anything not 
mentioned befow:wHI no.t be ~-If.owed. · · · · 

.. Vve... v.1 ii.\ be..-- do,~ 4 mr;v'111~ hreolA.I 1.u1~ki ~.'< 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15 ... 

16. 

17 . . 

Wi~ll con~~ssi~n sta~d($_) b~ _(Jsed? . . .Yes ~No~ Note: for b_a~~baH diamond: 
con·cessio~, $150.00 fee, per league, no :exemption~( .· · 

lJY'~fl · the .. r~ byn admissions char~e to the e_v~nt?. If s9~ stat~ ~h~ exact amo~~t of ea.ch 
ticket $ 0 · . . SttJte .the reason for 1mposmg ·th1~ adm1ss1on charg~. · · . r . . . . 
WUI there :IJe a .live. ·b.and a.f. . th.is : functi·on? . Yes k2 No 
(.See attached munici-pal c9de r~g~rding ri_ois~ ordinance) f 

State th~ names and addresses of af.I pe·r~ons or g,roups which wUI rece.ive any' of the 
proceeds. from this event, including concess·ions, and. how those proce·eds. wUI be 

divideM;nad9h vai or re~ . 
If .this pe_itnlt appUcation is for all or substantiaHy · ail of the park area, or all or 
subst~:ui.fia.iW . all of ·th.e p_icnip and bandst~tid are, state ·the. overriding ptfbli<; interest or 
special circumstances. which justify excluding residents of the City of Mendota from 
using their p~-bM~ park faciH~ies. .· · · · 

·1, .5r~o {JQ/J;7 . h21ve read the l\llendota Municipai C!lde Chapter 
12.20 r ~a.r~ permits :·(attach~~J. _I ynderst~nd all of the requirements for con~ucting an 
event or ac~~vity in the use of he RoJ..· s~Pierce ark or a~ny City facility . . .r agree 011 
behalf . of 'in.yself and . .. / . Q ; " (name of a·ppUcant)., · the 
organization. on whose behaf. 1s appHcati.on is maqe, ·to indemnify, de,end and hold 
the City of Mendota harmless, from and against an.y -and aH claims, actions·, suits, and 
_proceedin_gs for mone'y cfamages or other reJief fo-r personal injury, property ·(lamage or 
other losses ·resulting from or. ~aused by the activity or event for which thi's perm.it is 

3 



iss·ued. The keys .~o a'ny faci~'lty 9r e:rectrictd panel wfn not b~ issued untH this documen~ 
i~ sig.ne.d by the perrnitte~ requesting a f~ciHW and/Qr consent/hold harmless 
agreements ~re submitted to city staff and proo,. of irisurance is provided and all fees 

. iind deposits are pi.id. 1 . . . J . . . . . . 
signature of Per~lte~: ,· ~ \ DATE: z~ 7::1 <J : 

- . 7 t> • 

1, Seiir."1 ~ h ~7 . , 'declarll I h~ve r~ad al)d Understand the foregoing apf);ic:ition 
and aU ·.atchments . th.er~tQ .. I ·fu:rth.e.r declare that I wUI ~bide by an City, State, County a:nd 
Federal ''~lws at said event. · · · 

: 

· CITY MANAGER APPROVAL 

THIS APPqCATION IS APP~OVED I RfEJ,ECTED FOR USE OF THE · ON 
___ __...__......,. ,__ _ __.....· _- ....,...• TH:iE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SHALL APPLY, MAY INCLUDE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT REQWREMENTS. . . . 

( . 

DATE: -------
. ***********~****************~*****************~***********************************************************~** 
S~CURJTY R·EQUIREMENT-OR CONDITIONS AS PER CITY PF ME.NDOTA POLICE! DEPARTMENT: 

PouceqEPT: DATE: 
-----~~~~~----

4 



Policy Number: WS244545 Date Entered: 6/27 /2018 

ACOR 
® 

I CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

~ 4/1/2018 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER 2~~~~cr Jim Tekunoff 
ALL SERVE INSURANCE SERVICES 

;A~~N,,TO l:V.I• ( 559) 999-1355 1 r:,~ N~l= 1066 N GRANTLAND AVE 
( ) -

~oMDA~~ss: ALLSERVEINS@GMAIL. COM 
FRESNO, CA 93723 

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 

INSURER A: Northfield :Insurance 
INSURED MENDOTA YOUTH RECREATION, INC. 

INSURER B: 

INSURER C: 

667 QUINCE STREET INSURER D : 

MENDOTA, CA 93640 INSURER E: 

INSURER F: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR 
TYPE OF INSURANCE 

ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 
LTR 1r.1..;:n wvn POLICY NUMBER IMM/DDNYYYI IMM/DD/YYYYI LIMITS 

A le COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000 

=:J CLAIMS·MADE rs OCCUR 
DAMAGE TO RENTED WS244545 4/1/2018 4/1/2019 PREMISES IEa occurrence I $ 100, 000 

>--

>--
MED EXP (Any one person) $EXCLUDED 

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY - $1,000,000 

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000 

~ DPRO· DLoc PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG $EXCLUDED POLICY JECT 

OTHER: $ 
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $ - (Ea accident) 

ANY AUTO BODIL y INJURY (Per person) $ 
- -

OWNED SCHEDULED 
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 

- -HIRED NON·OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident\ $ 

- --- - - -

$ 

UMBRELLA LIAB H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ -
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

OED I I RETENTION $ $ 
WORKERS COMPENSATION I ~ffruTE I I OTH· 
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ER 

Y/N 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 

D 
N/A 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 

~~i~~rt¥r~~ ~~~PERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS /VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more apace la required) 

--- ~--

ADULT SOFTBALL LEAGUE - EIGHT 

' -
~~ vVlU V\A~ l1h 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER 
CITY OF MENDOTA 
643 QUINCE AVE 
MENDOTA, CA 93640 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 

I 

-

(8) 

j,/ 

~ - --,. 

·-., 

TEAMS EACH FOR MEN AND LADIES 

-· 

lb1" K:.- "ti+ 
·-

,1 I ,- .++ .. ·1 ( e . 
CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

J:IM 'l'EKUNOFF 

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 

Produced using Forms Boss Plus software. www .FormsBoss.com; Impressive Publishing,LLC 800-208-1977 



. . -. . . 
_ CITY OF MENDOTA. . . 

FACILITY USE APPLICATION 

P°LEf\S_E C.OMPLETE A~L QUESTIONS OffiTJ:M·S FOR WHICH INFORMA.TiON IS"fl.i;QIJESTED. PR,NT 
ALL ANSWERS EXCEPT THE SIGNATURE. 

FOR l:JSE OF ALL-9~ SUBSTANTIALL)~ ALL OF THE R9~AS~PJERC·~ PAR:K PICNiC AREA AND 
BANDSTAND OR MENDOTA POOL PARK BANDSTAND VE.TERANS.PARK APPLICANTS MUST ' . . ; . ' . . ' . . . . . . . . 

APPEAR BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL FOR APP ROYAL· O.F THE PERMIT • 

. Nore: Si:cr10N 12.20.050 APPLICAT1ciN$ FOR EXCLus1ve U$E SHALL ae FJL~:o w1tH THE CITY 
- C°LFRK DURING THE MQNTH OF FEBRUARY ANNUALLY ANO SHALL EH~ SET FOR ·coNSIDERATlo:N 

·av THE c.iTY COUNCIL AT ·ITS "FtRST MEETING IN MARCH ANNUALLY. APPUCATIONS FOR 
EXGLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED NOT ~ESS THAN TWENTY ONE (21.) NOR MORE THAN o"NE 
~UNDRED FWTY (150) .DAYS PRIOR TO THE USE OF THE F~C-~ury. PROMOTERS.SHALL REQUEST 
AN AGRE-EM ENT WITH THE CITY BESIDl;S THE APPLICATION • 

. Nore: Secr10N ~2._20~11 .o: APPLICANT MUST -PROVI;DE 't.H~ CITY w1rH p:~1u1F1cATEs OF 
INS~~RANCE SPECU:YrNG THE CITY Q.F ~ENDOTA AS NAM.~.D rNsURED EVIDENClNG LIABILITY AND 
PROPERTY DAMAGE UMIJS WJTH A COMBINED SINGLE UMIT OF NOT LESS .THAN ON££ MILUON 

· I;>OL:LARS _($1,000,000). . 

[~ 
/'""\ [ ] 
- [ ] 

- ·[ ] 
- [ 

[ 
,,...., [ ] 

COMPLETED APPLICATION. 
• ~ • f 

PROOF Of INSURANCE POLICY SlPWING 'CITY OF MEN[?OTA AS ADDITIONAL rNSlJRED. 
PROOF OF LIABILITY INSUR~CE FOR FACILITY USE , 
DEPOSIT, USE FEE, AND KEY DEPOSiT SUBMITTED TO FWANCE DEPARTMENT. 

. O~TAJNED SEGURlTY AS REQlJlRED BY MENDOTA PoLicE .D.EP ARTMENT 
ORIGINAL SIGNA'fU~ OF.PERMITT,BE WITH ACKNOWLEDGM,~NT. 
AMPLJfIED MUSIC PERMIT-IF APPLICAHLE 

1 



1". This app.licat~on is for the us_e of the foUow:hig .faciUty: 

~CJ6·. A:vt · 
2. The org.an:i_zation, indhiidu·~I, · bµslness or en~ity a1pply·i;ri_g for· the use perm.it:· 

. men dt:>kr Voe&lh ~hm · · · · . 
3. The contact person on ~epal:f.of the applicant, ~eg~,rcHng the event or activity for which 

use permit is requested _fogether with au of the foUowhig in.formation: · 

NAME; . s ~'\r~lO ()s_tif . . ·. . . 
ADDRESS (STREET AND CITY): =~/Lee A au 5/- ~ a 

) 
~ I 

r~~EPMoNe No!: s-51~- [l./7 ... 'lo fl: .. 

4. 

5. Ple~se de~crlbe the exact p~f~ area or areas· requested ·for Exclusive Use, {List below 
. ~d circle the area on ttie attached .map). . . . 

. t1tlu1 lj WI<', 1 5rv:wlcirr 5icaN· . Ce,/Ji /1511/5 · 
6. Purpose or :function for which .the perni:it is requested. Give sta!tement o.f ~easons for 

exclusive use. No_te: S~ct_i91112.20.090(bl(c) F:~es and .. Deposits as requ.ireq. 

An DI.la{ . hotucl ~sJ,:14 
'7. Ntimber"of per~~ms expec~ecrto attend the function or event _ . ..... 5 ..... 00___,, ____ _ 

8. Will alco~6Mc beverages· be s·old? Yes~ No. · · note:· if yes, you must ap.ply for 
arid re.ceive a separate permit from the state department of alcohol beverage co'ntrolf if 
so, liquor· f:iabiHty insurance is requfred to be purchas·ed -tnfrty (30) days in advance by 
the applJ~a .. nt Th~ Fresno 9ounty Shef'.iff's department must .be contac~ed regarding 
this -appli:cation. The City 9f M~ndota p~rk~ are tobacco ·free· ar.1~ alc9hol free. 

9. · Has a promoter b~en contr~·9ted . to pr~;;ent, _· produce, ·or Qtnerwise be involved in the 
event, actiV:ity or eilte.rfai1rw~ent durin;g '_the _ev~nt? Y:es_.·_· No ~ • Note: $action 
12.20.110, if yes, the proirio~e·r is requi·red ·ta .provide certifi.cate of i ·~rance evidelilc·ing 
liability and property dama.g~. limits wi·th a com~lned slng·le Hnilt of not i·ess than 
$1,000,000 with a deductibJe of. nor more than $500; ·and shaU ~pecify the City of 
Mendota and applicant as n~m.~d in~ured. · 

2 



1 o. If. a promoter will p_res.ent, produce, or otherwis~ be i:nvofv.ed· in the event, activi·ty or 
entertainment; state. the _name, adqress and telephc>f'.1.e humbe·r ~f . the promoter . ~nd 
describe hi:S/herli'ts. p~rtic.ipatiori· in th~ event. Note: Seetion 5Jla.03·0 Amusement Park 
Rh:l~s ~rid A~tr~ction,s; :SeCtioh 5.08.300 Musical and Th.eatri.paf Shows. The Promoter ·is 
:requlred to obtain ·a busln~ss license. · 

NAME: . . . \ 

ADDRESS: \. · . 

PARTICIPATIONllNVOLVEMI;NT: ~ . -~ '. -:--~. ___.._~~~~~~~~~~~~~-.---.---.----,.~~ 

1 ( De'taiied de~cri:ption of ali entertainment _and acthiities, 'including e_qui.pment an·d 
v~hicles to be used;_ the ria~ure -~·nd times o.f use of sucr-i: equJp:mer:it, an~ _th~ - nature -~nd 
time of use of ·any ampHfied sound equipment. Please· keep ·hi mind that anything not 
mentioned befow:wHI n~t be ~-If.owed. . . a;11 n 1 lqf . ·a ls 

-~A eP*'~~ 
·(:,Je;o 

~~~~~w_:=:~-=UL.1-~~--""""~~-¥4.-"-{.Jwi=-"L---,:~~i....--.~~~.--~.JL:.+.(j...i.£~~~~~ 

.__.,,~--r.....,;1.--A:~~-fcrU&H--ffPT---__,...~~-Yt-#-ff!~~~~~~~~--~~~~-.~~~~· . . ./.D 

12. 

!h.d~ 

WHI conq~s$ion standf$) b~ _Jjsed? ~Yes ..--- No~ Note: for b.a~ebaH diamond 
concessio~, $150.00 'fee~ per league, 11oexemption~. 

13. WiJf there be ·an admission:s charge to the event? J,f so,. state the exact amou.nt of ea.ch 
tic.ket $. z~eP- . I State .the reason for im'posing t.hl·$ admission charge . . 
.. . . . . . 

14. WUI there :be a -live. hand a.f. . this·. function? 
(See attached municipal c9de regar9ing rii_oise ordiriance) 

\?·. Yes 
~-··· 

No 

15 .. 

. 16. 

17. 

State th~ names an~ addresses of a.fl pe·r~ons or g:roup·s which wUI rece.ive any" of .the 
proceeds. from this event, including concessions, and how those preo.e·eds. wiH be 
divided il1t10n~ such l\ertjO!JSff !f!11ps. '\. . l . 

. . .. . O\l)Vl.Qf$· .~ ~,,~ .. ,b,1 
If this pe_rtnit appHcation is for at:i or substantiaHy · ail of th'e park area, or . all or 
subst~n:tiatly _ all of the p_icni.c and bandst~nd are, state the. overriding pvbtig interest or 
special circu~stances. whic:h justify excluding residents of the Ci-ty of Mendota from 
using their pubHc park f'~ciU~i~s. · · · · 

·, s.ew ·. \) r.v\ !,e:,; have read the 1V1endota Munici.pal CPde Chapter 
12.20 re: p~f'penniW(atfachedJ. I und.erstand all of the requirements for conducting an
event or· ac~ivi.ty in the se of" h .R jas·.;_~ierc Park or a:ny City facility . . f agree o_, 
behalf of 'inyself and . ', J ~ (name of _a.ppUcant)., the 
organization on whose behalf this appli:cati_on is ma . e, ·to indemnify, defend and hold 

. the City of Mendota harmless, from .and against any and au claims, actions:,, suits, and 
proceedings for mone"y cfamages or other reJief for personal injury, property ·damage or 
other losses :resulting from or. ~aused by the activity or event for which thi's perm.it is 

3 



iss·ued. The keys to a·ny faciJJty or efoctric~d panel wfll not be issued untH this document 
i~ signe.d b.y the perrnlttee requesting a f~ciH~y and/Qr consent/hold harmless 
agreements are submitted to city staff afild proo,. of insurance is provided and all fees 

. iind deposits are piiid. l - - . . . . . 

Signature of Per~~te~; .1;,y· . ..:.. u~ DATe:: Z- f-/ f -

1, _ ~b Ucu-/ i1 , 'declare I h~ve r~ad~IJd u.nderstilnd ~he foregoing app;ication 
andaff.i "hments th.er~tp._ J ·fu:rth.~r ~~clare that I Wdl ~bide by all C1.fy, State, County and 

. Federal l;aws at said event. · · 

: 

· CJTY MANAGER APP~OVAL 

THIS AP.PL~CATION IS APPROVED I REJ·ECT~O FOR USE OF THE · ON . 
________ ........ ____,...• THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SHALL APPLY, MAY INCLl.fDE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT REQWREMENTS. . . . 

( . 

CITY MANAGER: 
~~~~-------~~-----~--

DATE: -------
. ***********~**********************************~***********************************************************~** 
S~CURfTY R·EQUIRE.MEf:JT.OR CONDITIONS AS P~R CITY OF ME.NDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT: 

PouceDEPT: 

4 



Policy Number: WS244545 Date Entered: 4/3/2018 

ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MM/DDNYYY) 

~ 4/1/2018 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER CONTACT 
NAME: ALL SERVE INSURANCE SERVICES 
r:igNJo Extl: { 559) 999-1355 I rti~ Nol: { ) -

1066 N GRANTLAND AVE 
~DMDAd~ss: ALLSERVEINS@GMAIL. COM 

FRESNO, CA 93723 
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 

INSURER A : NORTHFIELD INSURANCE COMPANY 

INSURED MENDOTA YOUTH RECREATION, INC. 
INSURER B: 

INSURER C: 

667 QUINCE STREET INSURER D : 

MENDOTA, CA 93640 INSURER E : 

INSURER F: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER · REVISION NUMBER· 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 
LIMITS LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD WVD POLICY NUMBER IMM/DD/YYYYI IMM/DD/YYYYI 

A lX COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

' 
EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1, 000, 000 

D CLAIMS-MADE ~ OCCUR x WS244545 4/ 1/201~' 4/1/2019 ) 
DAMAGE TO RENTED $ 100, 000 PREMISES IEa occurrencel 

/ 

~ -- MED EXP (Any one person) $EXCLUDED 

~ 
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000 

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000 

~ D PRO- DLoc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ EXCLUDED POLICY JECT 

OTHER: $ 

AUTO MO BILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $ 
'---- IEa accident) 

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 
~ -OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 
- AUTOS ONLY ~ AUTOS 

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $ AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY IPer accident) 

$ 

UMBRELLA LIAB H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 
-

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

DED I I RETENTION $ $ 
WORKERS COMPENSATION I ~~~TUTE I I OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ER 

Y / N 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE D N / A 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 
If yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 

...,....-... ~·---
----~. 

\ 
7 /12/2018 - 7 /15/2018 ~PM - 12AM, HARVEST FIESTA @ ROJAS PIERCE PARK 350 SORENSEN AVE MENDOTA, CA 93640 
.. _ ...... -- -· .. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 
CITY OF MENDOTA 

643 QUINCE AVE SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 

MENDOTA, CA 93640 ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

I JIM TEKUNOFF 

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 

Produced using Forms Boss Plus software. www.FormsBoss.com; Impressive Publishing, LLC 800-208-1977 



. I 

/\ 

. Cl'fYOFMENDOTA . . . 
FACILITY USE APPLICATION 

. Fia 07 2019 
~ · 

P°LEAS.E coMPLETE A~L QUESTIONS oFi ir.~M·s FOR WHICH INFORMA,rloN rs 'R.i;OIJ-ESTED. PR~Nr 
AL~ ANSWERS EXCEPT THE SIGNATURE. 

FOR llSE OF -ALL -9~ SUBSTANTIAL'-:'( ALL OF THE R9~.AS~P·IERC·~ PAR~ PJcNiC AREA AND 
BANDSTAND, OR M~NDOTA POOL PA~K BANDSTAND, VETERAN~· PARK, APP:~.ICANTS MUST 

APPEAR BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL FOR AP PROV.Al- OF TH'E PcRMJT. 

. . 
NOTE: SECTION 12.20.050 APPLICATICiN$ FOR EXCLUSIVE U$E SHALL BE FILgD WITH THE CITY 

C°L~RK DURING THE Nio:NtH OF FEBRUARY ANNUALLY ANO SHALL en~ SET FOR CONSIDERATION 
·sy THE c.iTY COUNCIL AT ·ITS "FIRST ME·EnNG IN MARCH ANNUALLY. APPUCATIONS FOR 

e~¢Lus1vE use SHALL BE FILED NOT ~ess THAN TWENTY ON.E (21.) NoR MoRe THAN ONE 
~UNDRED FIFTY (150) .DAYS PRIOR TO THE USE OF THE F~CJLIT'(. PROMOTERS.SHALL RfQUEST 

AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY BESlo:'f;S THE APPLICATION. 

Nors: sscnoN 12~20.110: APPLICANT Musr P.Rovfoe !.He c11Y w1r:H ¢eRrrF1cATEs oF 
INSURANCE SPECl,FYING THE CITY O.F MENDOTA AS NAMED INSURED EVIDENClNG LIABILITY AND 
PROPERTY DAMAGE ~IMIJS WJTH A coniistN.ED SINGLE ijMfr OF ·NOT Less tt-tAN ONc. MILLION 
f?OL~LARS .($1,600,000). 

[/ ]" 
- [ ] 
- [ ] 
- [ ] 
-- [ ] 

[~ _ [ ] 

COMPLETED APPLiCATION. 
PROOF OF INSURAN~E POLICY SiWWING.CITY OF MENJ:?OTA AS ADDITIONAL INSlJJ¢D. 
PROOF OP LIAB'ILITY IN'SUR~CE FOR FACILITY USE . I 

DEPOSIT, USE PEE, AND KEY DEPOStT SUBMfTIED TO FWANCE DEPARTMENT. 
OBTAINED' SECURITY AS REQUlRED By MENDOTA PoLicE- b'EP MTMENT 
ORIGINAL SIGNATURE OF.PERMITr,EE WlTH ACKNOWLEDGMENT. 
AMP~lfIED Music PERMIT·IF APPLICAHLE · ·· .. 

1 

. . 



1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

·7. 

8. 

9. 

This app-licat~on is for the us_e of the foUowi,ri.g f~c~Uty: 

~. {)~~ 
The ·org-an"ization, i:ridivi~u-~I, · busine~s or entity a·pp-Jyi;n_g fo:r-the use permit:· 

tnV1ckf4t 104 &0~&1 . . 
The contact person on _be~al:f_ofthe applicant, ~eg~·rd·~n.g the event or activity for whfoh 
use permJt is ~equeste.d .to~ethe~ with all of t~e foHowhig i~formation: . . · · · 

NAME: ~r&~, . {JQ~7 · . . · · . 
ADDRESS {STRE~T AND CITY): iQ'f . jli {1JC,,u 7 .-J_ 

r~~EPHoNe No~= 55' l kr2- llat.~ - . . -
v~ 6)5 l)j 'f oCf ~ 5j" 'J ~(l)M fl, {oJOcJ 

DATE: If'* Qls-Qh ··';;rl TIME: 6 :wp.NA Jo 12 ~ 6!dJf ,; Jo IZ.;.., 'Jj 16'-i-J &. />4'1 

Ple-~se descri.be the exact park area ~r areas· requested ·for Exclusive Us~. {List below 
and circle th~ a-rea on ttie a:ttached map). · · 

\>gui \11 °"" 5oocY tor . 
Purpose or function for which .the permit is reques.ted. Give sta;tement of reasons for 
exclusive use. _No.te: S~ct.i91112.20.090fbl(c) F;f)es a.nd .. De.posits as requ_ired~ . · · 

9Q.C 8'~ dz~~- kl &irn1Ca/£bs 
Nlimber"of per~~ms expectecr to attend the fur:lctfon o,r event_. --~:721>.-i:;... ....... ___, ___ _ 

Will alcoholic beverages· be s·otd? Yes . No.~ note:· if yes, you must ap.ply for 
arid re:ceive a se.parate permit from the state department of alcohol beverage control, i.f 
so, liquor· HabiUty insuran~e is requfrec:I to be purcha~u~d -thfrty (30) days in advance by 
the appJJ~ant The Fresno ~ounty Sheriff's department must .be contac~ed regarding 
this appUc~tion.- The City 9f Mendota p~rk~ are tobacco ·free· ar.u~ alcohol free. 

Has a promoter b~en contr~·Qted . to pr~~ent,_ -.p-roduce, ·or otherwi~sbe involved in the 
event, activity .o'r e·nte·rtaiir--~ent durin;g ·_the _ev~nt? v_es_.·_· No : ~ote: ~ection 
12y20.110, if yes~ the pro·mo_te·r is requi·red ·ta .provide certifi.cate of· .surance evidencing 
liability and property damag~. limits wi·th a com~ined slng·le Hrrilt of not f·ess than 
$1,000,000 with a deductibJe of. nor more than $500; ·and shaU $pecify the City Qf · 
Mendota and appllcant as n~m-~d in~ured. · -

2 



1 O. If · a .promoter will p.res.~nt, produce, or otherwise be lnvoJv.ecf in the event, activity or 
~nte,rtair;unent, · state. the name, adqress and telephofJ.e. ·~·umber qf . the promoter . ~nd 
describe hi~lher#t~. p~rtic.lpatiorl' ·in the event. N:ote: Secticm 5.o·a.03·0 Amusement. P:~rk 
Ri·d~s ~rid Attr~ctio·n.~; :Se·a*jon 5.08.300 Musical and Theatrlpal sh9ws. The promoter is 
:require~ to «?btai'~ a b~·sl~~ss li~e~se. · · 

·:NAME:· ~ . 
A .. ~ -
:. DDRE.s·s: '" 

~--~.--. .------.__~~~--------~ 

PARTICIPATIONllNVOLVEMp~T:_" .,.....· ....,....,.--------· ·----------,-----.----

11; Detaiied de$cri:ption of a·li en.tertainn1erJt .. and. acthiities, ·inch1ding e_qui.pment arid 
v~hicles to be used;_ the na~ure -~tnd times oJ use of $u~ri: equi:p:rne~tJ an~ _th~ .nature -~nd 
time of use of ·any ampHfi.ed sound equipment. Please· keep lo mind that anything not 
mentioned befow :wH'I no.t be alf.owed. · . . .. 

12. 

13. 

WHI con~~s$ion stand($) b~ (Jsed? ~Yes - ·--No, Note: for b.a~ebaH diamond 
concessio~, ~150.00 'fee~ per leag,ue~xemption~. 

'J."ill"there beAl admissions charge to the e_v~nt?. If so~ stale !h~ ex .. act amoi'.u1t of ea.ch 
~1cket $ ~ · .. . State .~he reason _for 1mposmg ·ttn~ adm1ss1on charg~. 

14. WHI there be a .live. band a·t .. this . functi·on? · · Yes ----___,.,- No 
(See attached ffiunicipal c9de reg~r~1ng rii_oise ordinance) 

15._ State th~ names and addresses ·Of all pe·r~ons Ot' g,roup·s which wilt rece°ht~ any' of .the 
proceeds. frc:>m this event, including concess·ions, arid' how those proc.eeds · wiH be 
divided amon~ such ~nstV_9~s. r\ !. 

. · .- · tl\.Rfl ~ .. ~QCJ!1a ~eve f4114 -: 
16. ff this pe_rtnlt application is for aH. or substan:fiaHy . all of th'e park area, or all or 

subst~ritia'i:ly . all of the p_icntc and bandst~nd a.re, state the. overriding p4blig interest or 
special circu~stances . whic:h justify excluding residents of the City of Mendota from 

. using th~ir p~·bHc park ~aci:f:ities. · · · · 

17 . . J, h~ve read the fVlendota Mun.icipal Code .Chapter 
12.20 re: ark permits :'(attac·hedJ. I und.erstand all of the requirements for conducting an 
event or ac_t~ ·vity in the use of'tne " Ro··~s·~pierce Pa·rk or a:ny City facifity . . fagree oo 
behalf of ·myself and . _ t (name of a·ppUcant)., the 
organization on whose be alf this · a pp flea ti.on is maqe, ·to i·ndemnify, defend and hold 
the City of Mendota harmless, from and aga·inst any .and aU claims, actions·, suits, and 
.Proceedin.gs for mone'y damages or other reHe·f for personal injury, property ·damage Of 
other losses :resulting from or. ~aused by the activity or event for which thi's perm.it is 

3 



iss·ued. The keys to a·ny facii-lty or e:lectric~d panel wi·ll not be issued tintH this docunient . 
i$ sig.ne.d by the permitte~ requestin_g a facility• andl9r consent/hold harmless 
agre~.ments at~ s~:bmitted to ~-ity ~taff and p~o.of of in~mrance i~ provided a-nd au fees 
a·nd d~'posl~ are pai~. . 

Signature of Permitee: <St:1~ lxitk . DATE: Z,,J ... /Q 

1, ~D ·. l2o, lkf. . . , 'declarEl I h~ve r~ada,l]d li;"derstand !he for:egoing app;ication 
and all- ~attachments ther~tp._ J · furth.~r ~eclare that I w1H ~bide by afl C1.ty, State, County and 
Federal Jaws at said event. · · 

: 

. · CITY MANAGER APP~t;>VAL · 

THJS APPqCATION IS APPROVED I REJ,ECTEO FOR USE OF THE · ON . 
_____ _. _ _.......,_. ___,...• THiE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SHALL APPLY, MAY INCLUDE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT REQUJ:RE;MENTS. . . . 

( . 

CITY MANAGER: 
~~~~--~---~~~--~--

DATE: -------
. ***********~**********************************~***********************************************************~* 
S~CURJTY REQUIRE.MENT.O.R C()NDITfONS AS PER CITY OF M~E.NDOTA POLfCt DEPARTMENT: 

PouceDEPT: 

4 



Policy Number: WS244545 Date Entered: 4/03/2018 

ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE l 
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

~ 4/1/2018 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~Z~~~cT Jim Tekunoff 
ALL SERVE INSURANCE SERVICES 

rtigNJo Extl: (559) 999-1355 I jfj~ No): ( ) -
1066 N GRANTLAND AVE 

~~D~~ss: ALLSERVEINS@GMAIL. COM 
FRESNO, CA 93723 

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 

INSURER A : NORTHFIELD INSURANCE COMPANY 

INSURED MENDOTA YOUTH RECREATION, INC. INSURER B : 

INSURER C: 

667 QUINCE STREET INSURER D : 

MENDOTA, CA 93640 INSURER E : 

INSURER F: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DD /YYYYI IMM/DD/YYYYl LIMITS 

A ~ COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY ,.,-----.., ..... 
EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000 

D CLAIMS-MADE ~ OCCUR x WS2244545 4/1/2018 4/1/2019 
' DAMAGE TO RENTED $ 100, 000 PREMISES IEa occurrence) 

MED EXP (Any one person) $EXCLUDED 
-

-- .- PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1, 000, 000 
-

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE $ 2,000,000 

~ D PRO· O Loc PRODUCTS· COMP/OP AGG $EXCLUDED POLICY JECT 

OTHER: $ 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $ !Ea accident\ 
>---

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 
~ ~ 

OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 
>--- AUTOS ONLY 1---- AUTOS 

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $ 
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY <Per accident) 

$ 

UMBRELLA LIAB H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 
~ 

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

DED I I RETENTION $ $ 
WORKERS COMPENSATION I ~ffTuTE I I OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ER 

Y/N 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE D N/A 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE · EA EMPLOYEE $ 
If yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE · POLICY LIMIT $ 

,::'1.IOHJ;l) ERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO 101, Addmo"I Romo•k• Sohodolo, moy bo ottoohod " mo" opooo lo "•''"di 

10/27/2018 RED RIBBON CARNIVAL, 12PM - 5PM@ ROJAS PIERCE PARK 350 SORENSEN AVE 

"~/ 
MENDOTA, CA 93640 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

CITY OF MENDOTA 

643 QUINCE AVE SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 

MENDOTA, CA 93640 ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

I JIM TEKUNOFF 

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 

Produced using Forms Boss Plus software. www.FormsBoss.com; Impressive Publishing,LLC 800-208-1977 



. . . 

CITY OF MENDOTA. . . 
FACILITY USE APPLICATION 

/\ 
RE 

FEB U 7 lD19 .Ji_ 

PLEf.\S.E coMPLETE Af:.L QUESTIONS oR rr.~Ms FOR WHICH INFORMATION rs REQUESTED. PR~NT 
ALL ANSWERS EXCEPT THE SIGNATURE. 

FOR USE OF -ALL 9R SUBSTANTIAL~ Y ALL OF THE R9~.AS .. f>IERC~ PARK; PICNic AREA AND 

BANDSTAND, OR MENDOTA POOL PA~K BANDSTAND, VETERANS. PARK, APPLICANTS MUST 

APPEAR BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL FOR APPROVAL OF THE PERMIT. . . . 

. Nore: SECTION 12.20.050 APPLICATIONS FOR EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILE·o WITH THE CITY 

c·L~RK DURING THE MQNTH OF FEBRUARY ANNUALLY AND SHALL BE SET FOR CONSIDERATION 

~y THE CiTY COUNCIL AT ·ITS "FIRST MEETING IN MARCH AN"11UALLY. APPLICATIONS FOR 

E~C:LUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED NOT LESS THAN TWENTY ONE (21) NOR MORE THAN ONE 

HUNDRED FIFTY (150) .DAYS PRIOR TO THE USE OF THE F~qLIT'(. PROMOTERS SHALL REQUEST 

AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY BESl6ES THE APPLICATION. 

NOTE: SECTION 12.20.110: APPLICANT MUST PROVIDE THE CITY WITH c ·ERTIFICATES OF 

INS~_RANCE SPECIPYING THE CITY OF MENDOTA AS NAME_D .l_NSURED EVIDENClNG LIABILITY AND 

PROPERTY DAMAGE LIMITS WITH A COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT OF NOT LESS THAN ONE MILLION 

C?OL_LARS ($1,000,000). . 

[ J ']' 
- [ ] 
- [ ] 

- [ ] 
- [ ] 

[ 

COMPLETED APPLiq~TION. , 
PROOF OF INSURANCE POLICY SHOWING.CITY OF MENQOT!\ AS ADDITIONAL INSURED. 
PROOF OF LIABILITY INSUR~CE FOR FACILITY USE I 

DEPOSIT, USE PEE, AND KEY DEPOSIT SUBMITIED TO FINANCE DEPARTMENT. 
OBTAINED SECURITY AS REQUlRED By MENDOTA PoLicE DEP AATMENT 
ORIGINAL SIGNATUIIB OF.PERMITT~E WITH ACKNOWLEDGfy.IENT. 
AMPLIFIED MUSIC PERMIT-IF APPLICABLE 

1 

. . 



1. This app.lication is for the us.~ of the following faclUty: 

Comrnl{ n ~ c'enk 
2. The org.ah·i_zation, individual,. business or entity aipp.Jying for- the use permit: 

fntnJob \fQ(Ai, fkc~ . . . 

3. The contact person on l)e,haff.of the applicant, regarding the event or activity for which 

4. 

5. 

6. 

·7. 

8. 

9. 

use permit is requested fogether with all of the followhig i~fo~mation: · 

NAME: . 'Y115tu Uatdo . 
ADDRess (STREET AND c1rvJ: 3:> >= Pue111Ut. 51-: !J1aJJ/.l.e 
T~~EPHONE No.: 551 b ft? --4P<l3 

DATE: /(-/6 - /2 
Ple~se de~cribe the exact park area or areas· requested for Exclusive Us~. (List below 
and circle the area on ttie attached map). 

bJJrlO'IU/11/~ dmk C.tt1~ · C:Pd!L{ev J 
Purpose or function for which the perm:it is requested. Give statement of reasons for 
exclusive ~se. NQte: Sect_i9n 12.20.090(b}(_c) Fees cmd. Deposits as required . 

. An a ua f 5eni e: ./twnf f!J.1 "''5 lr.tdi ~ 
Ntimber·of pers9ns expected to attend the function or event . . 

Will alcohoHc beverages· be sold? Yes . No.~ note: if yes, you must apply for 
and re.ceive a separate permit from the state depar,ltnent of alcohol beverage co·ntrol, if 
so, liquor· liability insur~nce is required to be purchased ·thirty (30) days in advance by 
the appl_icant. The Fresno County Sheriff's department must .be contact~d regarding 
this appUcation. The City ~f Mendota parks are tobacco free· a11~ alcohol free. · 

Has a promoter b~en contracted . to . pr~~ent, _- produce, ·or otherwise be involved in the 
event, activity or entertal~~ent during _the _ev~nt? '(es_-_ No1. Note: $ection 
12.20.110, if yes, the proniote·r is required to provide certificate of i·"5Urance evidencing 
liability and property damag~, limits with a "com~lned single limit of not less than 
$1,000,000 with a deductibl,e o.f . nor more than $500; ·and shaU ~pecify the City of 
Mendota and applicant as nam.~d in~ured. 

2 



10. If a promoter will present, produce, or otherwise be involved· in the event, activity or 
entertainment,· state. the name, adqress and telephone ~·umber Qf . the promoter . ~nd 
describe hi$/her/its partic.ipation in the event. Note: Section 5.0-8.030 Amusement Park 
Rides ~~d Attractions; $eet,on 5.08.300 Musical and Th.eatrical Shows. The Promoter is 
required to obtain a business license. 
NAME: . . . .. \ 

ADDRESS: \ . 

PARTICIPATION/INVOLVEMENT: ·. . \ 
-,-~----'--~~~~~~~~~~~--.,...~~~~~~ 

1 ( Detaiied description of ali entertainment and activities, including equi.pment arid 
v~hicles to be used,_ the nature Ci!lnd times o_f use of sue~: equip·mel)t, an~ _the .nature ~nd 
time of use of ·any amplified sound equipment. Please· keep iri mind that anything not 
mentioned below wiU no.t be allowed. · · · 

. 11,dl be.- tbtl7 a l~ fJlm.15 lvnch .hr CJ /I 

12. 

13. 

Wi:ll con~ ... · essio,n stand{$) .be used? . . .. Yf!JS • -:- -\.., .. .. No. Note: for baseball diamond 
concession, ~150.00 fee, per league, no exempt•~ . 

Will' the.r~ be ·an admissions charge to the event? Ifs~, stat~ the exact amo1:1nt of ea.ch 
~ic.ket $ (? · . . State .~he reason .tor im'posing this admission charge. 

14. WiU there be a -live. ·band at this . functi·on? 
----~-

Yes ~ - . No 
(See attached municipal cc;>de re9arding n_ois~ ordinance) ( 

15. State th~ names and addresses of all per~ons or g·roup·s which will rece.ive any. of the 
proceeds. fr<?m this event, including concessions, and how those proceeds· wiH be 
divide.d. among such i:rsons or groups.~~ 

3rf;\lf1J7 cam~ dlem!M~c 

16. If this permit appHcation is for all or substantially · air of th'e park area, or all or 
substantial:'y all of the picnic and bandstand are, state the_ overriding public; interest or 
special circumstances . which justify excluding residents of the City of Mendota from 
using their pubHc· park facilities. · · 

17 .. I, h~ve read the Mendota Municipal Code .Chapter 
12.20 re: · .rk permits ·(attac·hed). I 1.:1nderst~nd all of the requirements for con~ucting an 
event or .a.ctivity in the use of'it~7!~"~iei'ce Park or any City facility. I agree on 
beh af~ of. myself and . fl\R1J -f;l"f ~~ . . . . (nam.e of applicant), the 
orgamzatlon on whose behalf t 1s apphcat-On 1s made, to rndemmfy, defend and hold 
the City of Mendota harmless, from and against any and aH claims, actions·J suits, and 
proceedings for mone"y cfamages or other reJlef for personal injury, property ·damage or 
other losses ·resulting from or. caused by the activity or event for which this perm.it is 

3 



issued. The keys to any facility or electrical panel will not be issued un~il this document 
is signed by the permittee requesting a facility and/or consent/hold harmless 
·agreements are submitted to city staff and proof of insurance is provided and all fees 

and deposits are paid. ~ 

1
~ 

Signature of Permitee: ~ .. ~ DATE: 0)- 7~ tc; 
. I, :se $ 1,0 \ ) Ql I ~ , declare I have read and understand the foregoing application 
and all atthmen~ thereTc>:I further declare that I will abide by ·all City, State, County and 
Federal laws at said event. 

of Permitee 

CITY MANAGER APPROVAL 

THIS APPLICATION IS APPROVED I REJECTED FOR USE OF THE ON 
-----------· THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SHALL APPLY, MAY INCLUDE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT REQUIREMENTS. 

DATE: --------
************************************************************************************************************* 

SECURITY REQU_IREMENT OR CONDITIONS AS PER CITY OF MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT: 

POLICE DEPT: DATE: 
~---------

4· 



Policy Number: WS244545 Date Entered: 4/3/2018 

ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

~ 4/1/2018 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~~~~~cT Jim Tekunoff 
ALL SERVE INSURANCE SERVICES 

r:igNJo Extl: (559) 999-1355 J ifi~ Nol: ( ) -
10 6 6 N GRANTLAND AVE 

~~D~~ss: ALLSERVEINS@GMAIL. COM 
FRESNO, CA 93723 

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A : NORTHFIELD INSURANCE COMPANY 

INSURED MENDOTA YOUTH RECREATION, INC. 
INSURER B: 

INSURER C : 

667 QUINCE STREET INSURER D : 

MENDOTA, CA 93640 INSURER E : 

INSURER F : 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD WVD POLICY NUMBER IMM/DD/YYYYl IMM/DD/YYYY.l LIMITS 

A ~ COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

( /4~~:J ) EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000 

D CLAIMS-MADE ~ OCCUR x WS244545 4/1/2018 DAMAGE TO RENTED $ 100, 000 PREMISES (Ea occurrence\ 
.._____. MED EXP (Any one person) $EXCLUDED 

~ 

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY ,...__ $ 1, 000, 000 

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE $ 2,000,000 

~ D PRO- D LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $EXCLUDED POLICY JECT 

OTHER: $ 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $ (Ea accident\ -
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 

- -OWNED SCHEDULED 
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS 

BODILY INJURY (Per accident} $ ,...__ 
HIRED - NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident\ $ 

$ 

UMBRELLA LIAB H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 
~ 

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

DED I I RETENTION $ $ 
WORKERS COMPENSATION I ~.ffTuTE I I OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ER 

Y/N 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE D N/A 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 
If yes. describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 

- -- --- -----

( ,11/17 /2018 - ~~'NIOR CITIZEN THANKSGIVING LUNCH 9AM - 4PM, @ 195 . SMOOT AVE MENDOTA, CA 93640 
'~~-...:. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 
CITY OF MENDOTA 

643 QUINCE AVE SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 

MENDOTA, CA 93640 ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

I JIM TEKUNOFF 

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 

Produced using Forms Boss Plus software. www.FormsBoss.com; Impressive Publishing, LLC 800-208-1977 



CITY OF MENDOTA 
FACILITY USE APPLICATION 

PLEASE COMPLETE ALL QUESTIONS OR ITEMS FOR WHICH INFORMATION IS REQUESTED. PRINT 

ALL ANSWERS EXCEPT THE SIGNATURE. . · 

FOR USE OF ALL OR SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF THE ROJAS-PIERCE PARK PICNIC AREA AND 

BANDSTAND, OR MENDOTA POOL PARK BANDSTAND, VETERANS PARK, APPLICANTS MUST 
APPEAR BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL FOR APPROVAL OF THE PERMIT. 

NOTE: SECTION 12.20.050 APPLICATIONS FOR EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED WITH THE CITY 
CLERK DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY ANNUALLY AND SHALL BE SET FOR CONSIDERATION 

BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT ITS FIRST ·MEETING IN MARCH ANNUALLY. APPLICATIONS FOR 

EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED NOT LESS THAN .TWENTY ONE (21) NOR MORE THAN ONE 
HUNDRED FIFTY (150) DAYS PRIOR TO THE USE OF THE FACILITY. PROMOTERS SHALL REQUEST 

AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY BESIDES THE APPLICATION. 

NOTE: SECTION 12.20.110: APPLICANT MUST PROVIDE THE CITY WITH CERTIFICATES OF 

· INSURANCE SPECIFYING THE CITY OF MENDOTA AS NAMED INSURED EVIDENCING LIABILITY AND 

PROPERTY DAMAGE LIMITS WITH A COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT OF NOT LESS THAN ONE MILLION 

DOLLARS ($1,000,000). 

[vi 
- [ ] 
- [ ] 
- [ ] 
- [ 1 

[/j 
- [ ] 

COMPLETED APPLICATION. 

PROOF OF INSURANCE POLICY SHOWING CITY OF MENDOTA AS ADDITIONAL INSURED. 

PROOF OF LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR FACILITY USE 

DEPOSIT, USE FEE, AND KEY DEPOSIT SUBMITTED TO FINANCE DEPARTMENT. 

OBTAINED SECURITY AS REQUIRED BY MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT 

ORIGINAL SIGNATURE OF PERMITTEE WITH ACKNOWLEDGMENT. 

AMPLIFIED MUSIC PERMIT IF APPLICABLE 

1 



1. .This application is for the use of the following facility: 

I)~ ~ 1h S!:rul kekM. 9+- 4).ur-«9- ~5+-
2. The organization, individual, business or entity applying for the use permit: 

men dak l/a4ti ~ 
3. The contact .person on behalf of the applicant, regarding the event or activity for which 

use permit is requested together with all of the following information: 

4. 

NAME: 5 e~w . Ua~ . . . 
ADDRESS (STREET AND CITY)~= A:1clte4 ~ /)1.a1 u <4-
TELEPHONE No.: S'T? 6 SQ- 4'L2 0 · 

DATE: ~ O}/ . 24?/ 9 
I 

5. Please describe the exact park area or areas requested for Exclusive Use. (List below 
and circle the area on the attached map). 

f)iP--::§k + b ~RID t't,¢Au(51: ~0$ 5t-- July 9 
6. Purpose or function for which the permit is requested. Give statement of reasons for 

exclusive use. Note: Section 12.20.090(b)(c) Fees and Deposits as required. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

C4nnuo.{ CJ\w~ W 
Number of persons expected to attend the function or event. 

Will alcoholic beverages be sold? Yes No . .Y_ note: if yes, you must apply for 
and receive a separate permit from the state dep~t of alcohol beverage control, if 
so, liquor liability insurance is required to be purchased thirty (30) days in advance by 
the applicant. The Fresno County Sheriff's dep_artment must be contacted regarding 
this application. The City of Mendota parks are tobacco free and alcohol free. 

Has a promoter been contracted to present, produce, or otherwise be involved in the 
event, activity or entertainment during the event? Yes_ No-~ Note: section 
12.20.110, if yes, the promoter is required to provide certificate of i~~ance evidencing 
liability and property damage limits with a combined single limit of not less than 
$1,000,000 ·with a deductible of nor more than $500, and shall specify the . City of 
Mendota and applicant as named insured. -

2 



10. If a promoter will pre~ent, prod~ce, or otherwise be involved in the event, activity or 
entertainment, state the name, address and telephone number of the promoter and 
describe his/her/its participation in the event. Note: Section 5.08.030 Amusement Park 
Rides and Attractions; Section 5.08.300 Musical and Theatrical Shows. The Promoter is 
required to obtain a business license. 

NAME: . \ 
ADDRESS: ~ 
PARTICIPATIONnNVOLVEMENT:_~l--------------------

11. Detailed description of all entertainment and activities, including equipment and 
vehicles to be used, the nature and times of use of such equipment, and the nature and 
time of use of any amplified sound equipment. Please keep in mind that anything not 
mentioned below will not be allowed. 

12. Will concession stand(s) be used? . Yes ~ No. Note: for baseball diamond 
concession, $150.00 fee, per league, no exempti~ 

13. Will there be an admissions charge to the event? If so, state the exact amount of each 
ticket $ p . State the reason for imposing this admission charge. 

14. Will there be a live band at this function? Yes ~ No ------
(See attached municipal code regard ing noise ordinance) 

15. . State the names and addresses of all persons or groups whi~h will receive any of the 
proceeds from this event, including concessions, and how those proceeds will be 

divided among such pmtfi {l;:,V.r '\/oe.M ~G-4 
16. If this permit application is for all or substantially · all of the park area, or all or 

substantially all of the picnic and bandstand are, state the overriding public interest or 
special circumstances which justify excluding residents of the City of Mendota from 
using their public park facilities. 

17. have read the Mendota Municipal Code Chapter . 
r permits (attached). I understand all of the requirements for conducting an 

event or activity in the use of th ja -Pierce Park or any City facility. I agree on 
behalf of myself and . (name of applicant), the 
organization on whose behalf this application i made, to indemnify, defend and hold 
the City of Mendota harmless, from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, and 
proceedings for money damages or other relief for personal injury, property damage or 
other losses resulting from or caused by the activity or event for which this permit is 

3 



issued. The keys to any facility or electrical panel will not be issued until this document 
is signed by the permittee requesting a facility and/or consent/hold harmless 
agreements are submitted to city staff and proof of insurance is provided and all fees 
and deposits are paid. 

Signature of Permitee: ~.A._ DATE: Z?--"12 
I 

-~ ........... ~ .......... ~~""'"""""'........,~--' declare I have read and understand the foregoing application 
chments thereto. I further declare that I will abide by all City, State, County and 

Federal laws at said event. 

CITY MANAGER APPROVAL 

THIS APPLICATION IS APPROVED I REJECTED FOR USE OF THE ON 

-----------. THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SHALL APPLY, MAY INCLUDE 
PO LICE DEPARTMENT REQUIREMENTS. 

CITY MANAGER: DATE: 
-------------~ --------

************************************************************************************************************* 

SECURITY REQUIREMENT OR CONDITIONS AS PER CITY OF MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT: 

POLICE DEPT: DATE: ----------
4 



Policy Number: ws244545 DateEntered: 4/3/2018 

ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MM/DDNYYY) 

~ 4/1/2018 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~~~~~cT Jim Tekunoff 
ALL SERVE INSURANCE SERVICES 

wgNJo Extl: (559) 999-1355 I jfj~ Nol: ( ) -
1066 N GRANTLAND AVE 

~DMD~~ss: ALLSERVEINS@GMAIL. COM 
FRESNO, CA 93723 

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 

INSURER A : NORTHFIELD INSURANCE COMPANY 

INSURED MENDOTA YOUTH RECREATION, INC. INSURER B: 

INSURER C: 

667 QUINCE STREET INSURER D : 

MENDOTA, CA 93640 INSURER E : 

INSURER F: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER : REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD WVD POLICY NUMBER IMM/DD/YYYYl IMM/DD/YYYYl LIMITS 

A lX COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000 

D CLAIMS-MADE ~ OCCUR x DAMAGE TO RENTED WS244545 4/1 /2018 4/1/2019 PREMISES I Ea occurrence\ $ 100, 000 
1--

MED EXP (Any one person) $EXCLUDED 
-

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1, 000, 000 
-

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000 xi D PRO- D LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $EXCLUDED POLICY JECT 

OTHER: $ 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $ (Ea accident\ -
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 

1--
OWNED 

-
SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 

1-- AUTOS ONLY - AUTOS 
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $ 
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accidentl 

$ 

UMBRELLA LIAB H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 
1--

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

DED I I RETENTION $ $ 
WORKERS COMPENSATION I ~!ffruTE I I OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ER 

Y/N 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE D N / A 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE · EA EMPLOYEE $ 
If yes, describe under 

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below 

\ 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOC!l\TIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 

OOWNTOWN=:J 
} · 

/ 

I CHRISTMAS POSADA' s 1659 & 1667 7TH ST MENDOTA, CA 93640 AND CHRISTMAS PARADE 

POSADA'S - DECEMBER 7 & 14 2018, 6PM - 8PM AND CHRISTMAS PARADE DECEMBER 15, 2018, 9AM - 9PM ------ -· - ------------ - - --

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

CITY OF MENDOTA 

643 QUINCE AVE SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 

MENDOTA, CA 93640 ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

I JIM TEKUNOFF 

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 

Produced using Forms Boss Plus software. www.FormsBoss.com; Impressive Publishing,LLC 800-208-1977 



' ;. 
~AW: ... 

. . 
·· = . ~ = • ;· i : .' . I I .. g ~ . i. r . 
! . . . J 

! .~': .... 
. · .·" i -- h1.~ .... : 

.1. ~n . 

I .. 
• . · -I I ... ~~ I 

.. -.:.!~ . 

I 
N 

. I 

-~ 

· ~\ 

...... 
\ 
\ 

'\ 
1 
.!I 

/ 

.rot . . 

I 
I 

j 
.H!·_-_.. • ~ . . ~ . ' 

:-:.r. 

. ,, 

.... "· :-

:--· ~-r~ : • 

·' . .. . 

. '\ ., 
. ~ 

'• 
·" 

. · \~ · --"'' . 

CITY OF MENDOTA 
OFFICIAL ADDRESS MAP 

January 30, 2018 

. ...... 



( ' -'1-\2 ~ Z.O(°t 

~V\.-T~, 

' ( 

'-"t:l ~ 



. .. . . 

. CITYOFMENDOTA ... 
FACILITY USE APPLICATION 

PLE~S.E COMPLETE Ai:-L QUESTIONS OR rQ:Ms FOR WHICH INFORMATION rs 'REQUESTED. PR,NT 

ALL ANSWERS EXCEPT THE SIGNATURE. 

FOR l:JSE OF ALL 9R SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF THE RO~AS .. PIERC~ PAR~ PICNiC AREA AND 

BANDSTAND, OR MENDOTA POOL PARK BANDSTAND, VETERAN~ PARK, APPLICANTS MUST 

APPEAR BEFORE THE. CITY COUNCIL FOR APPROVAL OF THE PERMIT. . . 

. . 
NOTE: SECTION 12.20.050 APPLICATIONS FOR EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILE·o WITH THE CITY 

c°L.~RK DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY ANNUALLY AND SHALL BE SET FOR CONSIDERATION 

~y THE CiTY COUNCIL AT ·ITS FIRST MEETING IN MARCH AN~UALLY • . APPLICATIONS FOR 

EX¢LUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED NOT LESS THAN TWENTY ONE (21) NOR MORE THAN ONE 

~UNDRED FIFTY (150) .DAYS PRIOR TO THE USE OF THE FAq_~UTy. PROMOTERS SHALL REQUEST 

AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY BESIDES THE APPLICATION. 

NOTE: SECTION 12.20.110: APPLICANT MUST PROVfDE THE CITY WITH c·ERTIFlCATES. OF 

INS~.RANCE SPECl,FYING THE CITY OF ~ENDOTA AS NAM~_D .1.NSURED EVIDENCING LIABILITY AND 

PROPERTY DAMAGE LIMITS WITH A COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT OF NOT LESS .THAN ONIE MILLION 
f:?OL_LARS .($1,000,000). 

[ 
[ 
[ 

- [ ] 
~ [ ] 

b1 

COMPLETED APPLICATION. . . . 
PROOF OF INSURANCE POLICY SHOWING.CITY OF MENI?OTA AS ADDITIONAL INSURED. 
PROOF OP LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR FACILITY USE . . . 
DEPOSIT, USE PEE, AND KEY DEPOSIT SUBMJITED TO FINANCE DEPARTMENT . 

. OBTAINED SE(:!URITY AS REQUlRED BY MENDOTAPOLiCE DEPARTMENT 
ORIGINAL SIGNATHiffi OF .PERMIIT~E WITH ACKNOWLEDGty.fENT. 
AMPUflED MUSIC PERMIT IF APPLICABLE 

1 



1. This app.lication is for the use of the foHowi·ng faciUty: 
. . 

c()Wt~ ~ 
2. The org.ani.zation, individual,. business or entity a.ppJylng for the use permit:· 

~lM· ~Ll~ ~ 
3. The contact person on ~ehalf .of the applicant, regarding the event or activity for which 

use permit is requested .fogether with all of the following information: · 
. .· . . . . 

NAME: do ~ c,_,. fu_l'Cf 

ADDRES~(STREETANOCIT~:._~~~?~~· ~J~~-~~~~~~~~~~· -~~~~t~~-· ~
T~LEPHONE No.: ~I ?I 7.[t.f?.73 

l 

4. 
(.AJ"~~ DATE: SZh._ -~~ TIME:. _____________ _ 

5. Ple.~se describe the exact park a·rea or areas· requested for Exclusive Use. (List below . 
and circle the area on ttie attached map). 

~~· 

6. Purpose or function for which .the permit is requested. Give statement of reasons for 
exclusive use. No_te: Secti91112.20.090(b)(c) F~es and Deposits as required. 

tM~~ .v~ he.~ _\,tA.-lL-: ~~ ~ ~ 

·7. Ntimber"of pers9ns expected to attend the function or event . . ~ ~ ~ 

B. Will alcoh6Hc beverages be sold? Yes No . . 'L-nofe:if yes, you must ap.ply for 
arid receive a separate permit from the state department of alcohol beverage co·ntrol1 if 
so, liquor· liability insurance is required to be purchased ·thirty (30) days in advance by 
the applicant. The Fresno County Sheriff's department must .be contact~d regar~ing 
this application. The City of Mendota parks are tobacco free an~ alcohol free. · 

9. Has a promoter b~en contr~cted . to . pr~:;ent, . -produce, · or e>tberwise be i1n.volv - in the 
event, activity or e·iltertai~~ent during _the _ev~nt? Y.es_.-_· No_· . ote: $ection 
12.20.110, if y·es, the promoter is required to provide certificate of insurance evidencing 
liability and property damagf3 limits with a "com~·ined single limit of not less than 
$1,000,000 with a deductible ·o.f. nor more than $500; and shall ~pecify the City of 
Mendota and applicant as named insured. . 

. ... ' 

2 



. . 

10. ff .a promoter will present, produce, or otherwis~ be involved· in the event, activity or 
entertainment, state. the name, adqress and telephone ~-umber Qf . .the promoter . and 
describe his/her/i'ts pt1rticipatio11" in the event. Note: Section 5.0-8.030 Amusement. Park 
Rides ~rid Attr~ctio11s; Sect~oh 5.08.300 Musical and Th.eatrical Sh9w~. The promoter is 
required to C?btai~ a b~si~~ss li~ense. 

~=!~ss: ,YJJ /YJ= 
[, 

PARTICIPATION/INVOLVEMENT: · . . 
--.,....~~~~~~~~~~~~~---,-~------.,--~ 

11: Detaiied description of ali entertain merit and activities, including equipment arid 
v~hicles to be used,_ the nature ~nd times o_f use of such. equipriten,t, an~ .th~ nature ~ild 
time of use of ·any ampl.ified sound equipment. Please keep iri mind that anything not 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17 . . 

mentioned below will no,t be allowed. . . ' .. 

WHI con~ession stand{s) be used? . Yes ~Note: for ba~ebaH diamond 
concessio~, ~150.00 fee, per league, no :exemption~. 

'J.V~l- fthere ~ ~· n admissions charge to the e_v~nt?. If so~ state ~he_ exa_ ct amo~nt of each 
~1cket $ ~ti: . • State .~he reason _for 1mposmg th1$ adm1ss1on charge. . . 

WiU there be a Hve. ·band ~d this . functi·on? Yes No 
(See attached triunicrpal c9de regarding n_ois~ ordinance) 

State th~ names and addresses of all per~ons or group·s which will rece.ive any of the 
proceeds. fr<?m this event, including concessions, arid how those proceeds ·will be 
divide_d among such persons or groups. 

If this pe.rmit application is for all or substantially · ai·1 of th·e park area, or all or 
subst~ntial~y all of the picnl.c and bandsiand are, state the_ overriding P'-'blic; interest or 
special circu~stances . whic·h justify excluding residents of the City of Mendota from 
using their publ:ic park facnities. - · 

-1, do~ . ~- Bio~ h~ve read the Mendota Municipal Code .Chapter 
12.20 re: pa_r~ _ permits :(attac·hed). I ~nderst~rid all of the requirements for con~ucting an 
event or _ ac~_ lvity in the u~- ,o. orf ·t ~hee Rojas.;P_ 'erce Park or any City facili~y. . r ·agree on 
behalf of myself and . ~L-- . {name of applicant), the 
organization on whose beh.alf this application is made, 'to indemnify, defend and hold 
the City of Mendota harmless, from and against any and all claims, actions·1 suits, and 
proceedings for mone"y cfamages or other relief for personal injury, property ·damage or 
other I asses ·resulting from or. caused by the activity or event for which this perm.it is 

3 



. ( 

. ( 

issued. The keys to a·ny facility or electrical panel will not be issued untH this document 
is signe.d by the permittee requesting a facility andl(>r consent/hold harmless 
agreements ate submitted to city staff and proof of insurance is provided and au fees 
iind deposits are. paid/~- · · · · .

1 
/ 

. 

Sign~ture of~. ermi.tee~~-. DATE: / _ z_, 7 (j · 
f I I 

1, JP~ ~ .. lfio1~ · . . . , 'declar~ I have r~a~ a11d. und~~stand the foregoing appUc·ation 
~nd all .attachments.theretp._ I furth~r declare that I will ~bide by all City, S-tate, County and 
Federal laws at said event. · · 

Dated: . Ji/A L / 5 
- ,~ 

Si~itee 

.. 

· CITY MANAGER APPROVAL 

THIS APPL!CATION IS APPROVED I REJ;ECTED FOR USE OF THE · ON 

-----~---=-··-· THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SHALL APPLY, MAY INCLUDE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT REQmREMENTS. . . . 

( . 

CITY MANAGER: 
~~--~---~--=-~~~------

DATE: _____ _ 

***********~**********************************~*************************************************************~ 
SECURITY REQUIREMENT.OR CONDITIONS AS P~R CITY OF MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT: 

POLICE DEPT: DATE: 
~----~--~--~~ 

4 



NAMED INSURED : Rivers of Living Water Christian Church 

POLICY NUMBER: 01241627 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CG 20 26 07 04 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED - DESIGNATED 
PERSON OR ORGANIZATION 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE 

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or Organization(s) 

City of Mendota 
Attn: Erica 
643 Quince St. 
Mendota, CA 93640 

Church event to be held at the City of Mendota Community Center, 195 Smoot Ave., 
Mendota, CA 93640. Dates: July 7 - 12, 2019. Vacation Bible School, ages 5 to 12 to be 
held -in the evenings from 4pm-9:30pm (estimate 65 people). 
Activities: Bible study, arts & crafts, table games, dodge ball, softball, ring toss. 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

Section II - Who Is An Insured is amended to in
clude as an additional insured the person(s) or organi
zatiori(s) showri in the Schedule, but only with respect 
to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or 
"personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or 
in part, by your acts or omissions or the acts or omis
sions of those acting on your behalf: 

A. In the performance of your ongoing operations; or 

B. In connection with your premises owned by or 
rented to you. 

CG 20 26 07 04 ©ISO Properties, Inc., 2004 Page 1of1 D 

• j 

I 



ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MM/DDNYYY) 

~ 01/29/2019 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATIER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
~EPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

.MPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER California Church Ins. Sv 
CONTACT Becky Koski, ext. 303 ~Lii.Mi=· 

1822 W Kettleman Lane PHONE (209)333-1682 I ff'i~ llA\•(209)333-0776 IA I,.. lJA "'~·\, 

Suite 1A E·MAIL becky@califomiachurchinsurance.com AnnC>CCOCO· 

Lodi CA 95242-
INSURER/SI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A: GuideOne Insurance 15032 

INSURED INSURER B: 

Rivers Of Living Water Christian Church INSURERC: 

615 J Street INSURER D: 
Mendota CA 93640 

INSURER E: 

l~!=:llJ?r:J? F • 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 
I TC> TYPE OF INSURANCE , .. .,. .... •Anll"\ POLICY NUMBER LIMITS 

A x COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY y 01241627 09/01/2018 09/01/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000 
t--D CLAIMS-MADE 0 OCCUR 

DAMAGE TO RENTED 1,000,000 
t--

DDJ:::MIC:J:::C:fl::" $ 

t--
MED EXP (Anv one person) $ 10,000 

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY 
t--

$ 1,000,000 

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE $ 3,000,000 

~ POLICY D m?r DLoc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 3,000,000 

OTHER: $ 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $ II=" ~,..,..;~on+\ 
t--

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 
- E SCHEDULED OWNED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 
- AUTOS ONLY AUTOS 

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $ 
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY fDor ,,,..,..;,font\ -

I $ 

UMBRELLA LIAS H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ -
EXCESS LIAS CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

OED I I RETENTION $ $ 

WORKERS COMPENSATION I ~~fTllTF I I ~~H-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 

D 
N/A 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 
If yes, describe under 

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ oi::c::rRIPTIOl\l OF OPERLlTl()l\JC:: below 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more s,ace is required) 
Church event to be held at the City of Mendota Community Center, 195 Smoot Ave., Mendota, CA 93 40. 
Dates: July 7 -12, 2019. 

Vacation Bible School, ages 5 to 12 to be held in the evenings from 4pm-9:30pm (estimate 65 people). 
Activities: Bible study, arts & crafts, table games, dodgeball, softball, ring toss. 

Certificate Holder is named as additional insured per GuideOne form CG2026 attached. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION AI000039 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
City of Mendota THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 

Attn: Erica ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

643 Quince Street 

Mendota CA 93640- AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

I 
>1-1~~ 

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DA TE (MM/DDNYYY) 

~ 01/29/2019 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

.MPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER California Church Ins. Sv CONTACT Becky Koski, ext, 301 ~1.1111.u:. 

1822 W Kettleman Lane PHONE (209)333-1682 I rti~ tJn\·(209)333-0776 /Alt' tJn Cv6\• 

Suite 1A E-MAIL becky@californiachurchinsurance.com .11nngi::~~· 

Lodi CA 95242-
INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A : GuideOne Insurance 15032 

INSURED INSURER B: 

Rivers Of Living Water Christian Church INSURER C : 

615 J Street INSURER D: 
Mendota CA 93640 

INSURER E: 

ltJ~11gi::g F • 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR 
TYPE OF INSURANCE 

ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 
I Tg Jlfcn 1•n1n POLICY NUMBER LIMITS 

A x COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY y 01241627 09/01/2018 09/01/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000 - =:J CLAIMS-MADE ~ OCCUR 
DAMAGE TO RENTED 
DRl=MIC:l=C: II=<> $ 1,000,000 

MED EXP (Any one person) $ 10,000 
~ 

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000 
-

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000 

~ POLICY D rr& D LOC PRODUCTS· COMP/OP AGG $ 3,000,000 

OTHER: $ 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $ IF::i ,,,_,_;,font\ -
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ - -OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 

>--- AUTOS ONLY - AUTOS 
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $ AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY IDt>r~"";"on+I 

>--- >---

$ 

UMBRELLA LIAB H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ -
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

OED I I RETENTION $ $ 

WORKERS COMPENSATION I ~~fTtlTI= I I OTH-
l=R 

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/N 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE D N/A 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 
If yes, describe under 
ni::<:rRIPTION OF opi=RATIQNS below EL DISEASE · POLICY LIMIT $ 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more s8ace is re~uired) 
Evidence of Insurance for upcoming events the church is holding at the, City of Mendota Community Center, 1 5 Smoo Ave., Mendota, CA 93640. 
1. Thanksgiving Dinner. Date: November 2, 2019. Times: 4pm -10pm. (estimated 75 people). Activities: eating, fellowship and table games. 
2. Christmas Dinner. Date: December 7, 2019. Times: 4pm - 10pm. (estimate 80 people). Activities: eating, fellowship and table games. 

NOTE: A RENEWAL CERTIFICATE WILL BE RE-ISSUED AT RENEWAL AS THE EVENTS TAKE PLACE AFTER THE RENEWAL DATES. AN ENDORSEMENT WILL BE 
PROVIDED AT THAT TIME. THIS CERTIFICATE IS TO RESERVE THE LOCATION IN ADVANCE. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER 

City of Mendota 
Attn: Erica 
643 Quince Street 
Mendota 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 

CA 93640-

CANCELLATION AI000039 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



CITY OF MENDOTA 
FACILITY USE APPLICATION 

PLEASE COMPLETE ALL QUESTIONS OR ITEMS FOR WHICH INFORMATION IS REQUESTED. PRINT 

ALL ANSWERS EXCEPT THE SIGNATURE. 

FOR USE OF .ALL .OR SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF THE ROJAS-PIERCE PARK PICNIC AREA AND 

BANDSTAND, OR MENDOTA POOL· PARK BANDSTAND, VETERANS PARK, APPLICANTS MUST 
APPEAR BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL FOR APPROVAL OF THE PERMIT. 

NOTE: SECTION 12.20.050 APPLICATIONS FOR EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED WITH THE CITY 

CLERK DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY ANNUALLY AND SHALL BE SET FOR CONSIDERATION 

BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT ·ITS FIRST MEETING IN MARCH ANNUALLY. APPLICATIONS FOR 

EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED NOT LESS THAN TWENTY ONE (21) NOR MORE THAN ONE 

HUNDRED FIFTY (150) .DAYS PRIOR TO THE USE OF THE FACILITY. PROMOTERS SHALL REQUEST 

AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY BESIDES THE APPLICATION. 

NOTE: SECTION 12.20.110: APPLICANT MUST PROVIDE THE CITY WITH CERTIFICATES OF 

INSURANCE SPECIFYING THE CITY OF MENDOTA AS NAMED INSURED EVIDENCING LIABILITY AND 

PROPERTY DAMAGE LIMITS WITH A COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT OF NOT LESS THAN ONE MILLION 

~OLLARS ($1,000,000). . 

( ] COMPLETED APPLICATION. 

( ] PROOF OF INSURANCE POLICY SHOWING CITY OF MENDOTA AS ADDITIONAL INSURED. 

[ ] PROOF OF LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR FACILITY USE u. XJ t u { Z-e>h 

( ] DEPOSIT, USE FEE, AND KEY DEPOSIT SUBMITTED TO FINANCE DEPARTMENT. 

[ ] OBTAINED SECURITY AS REQUIRED BY MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT 
( ] ORIGINAL SIGNATURE OF PERMITTEE WITH ACKNOWLEDGMENT. 

( ] AMPLIFIED MUSIC PERMIT IF APPLICABLE 

1 



1. This application is for the use of the folloWing facility: \'.l"CS-\-.-C>D'°"'.!I ..,\ i_SV\ts IL f&trt 
12-£,~-~\crc. i:: '=?ctf"'Y-- -~Atv:;s \ o\- -35D Sui-e"'-5 o>" · 

2. The organization, individual, business or entity applying for the use permit: 

)A)ajs1Je._ '(QLtUo ~c • -\)~co~~~~ 
3. The contact person on b~half of the applicant, regarding the event or activity for which 

use permit is requested together with all of the following information: · 

NAME: J::>\ V".Q ~e..v -e.-Z.. 

ADDRESS (STREET A~D CITY): DOC! .(..n..S\.,1 \J\.~iffi1 1 \' A, 
. TELEPHONE No.: (.5s9) l,55- '-{~ oi 

'.21>\ C\ E"v-e.wy w~ esd.~,)l . . 
4. DATE:~~ -h¢-. l'l ,1.oft TIME: ..3it>b ~..., _ H:,3D fVO - Wc..c.~r 

5. Please describe the exact park area or areas· requested for Exclusive Use. (List below 
and ci_rcle the area on ttle attached map). 

~-~~e'P.Ct-.'.\fv\;\'QS \1>1 _j>c;.~ £s~1 sv~-+Jktv-DlJll\'\S 
6. Purpose or function for which the permit is requested. Give statement of reasons for 

exclusive use. No.te: Section 12.20.090(b)(c) Fees and Deposits as required. 

ftr ~- D(>P«' t\ix .... let -~Cseie~r n°"'~'-\ 
·7. Number·of persons expected to attend the function or event. . ~1:,,;25f>-3cD · 

8. Will alcoholic beverages be sold? Yes No.i note: if yes, you must apply for 
and receive a separate permit from the state department of alcohol beverage control, if 
so, liquor liability insurance is required to be purchased ·thirty (30) days in advance by 
the applicant. The Fresno County Sheriff's department must .be contacted · regarding 
this application. The City of Mendota parks are tobacco free and alcoh~I free. 

9. Has a promoter b~en contracted . to present, produce, or otherwise be involved in the 
event, activity or entertainment during the event? Yes_ NoX . Note: section 
12.20.110, if yes, the promoter is required to provide certificate of insurance evidencing 
liability and property damage limits with a combined single limit of not less than 
$1,000,000 with a deductible of nor more than $500, and shall ~pecify the. City of 
Mendota and applicant as named insured. 

2 



10. If. a promoter will' present, produce, or otherwise. be . involved in the event, activity or 
entertainment, state the name, address and telephone number of the promoter and 
describe his/her/its participation in the event. Note: Section s~oa.030 Amusement Park 
Rides and Attractions; Sect~ori 5.08.300 Musical and Theatrical Shows. The Promoter is 
required to obtain a business license. 

NAME: ;11/A-
ADDRESS: 

--~------------~~--~~ 
PARTICIPATION/INVOLVEMENT: . 

------~-----------------~--------------

11. Detailed description of all entertainment and activities, including equipment and 
vehicles to be used, the nature and times of use of such equipme11t, and the nature and 
time of use of any amplified sound equipment. Please keep in mind that anything not 
mentioned below will not be allowed. 

12. Will concession stand{s) be used? Yes V No. Note: for baseball diamond 
concession, $150.00 fee, per league, no exemptions. 

13. Will there be an admissions charge to the event? If so, state the exact amount of each 
~icket $ 0 - . State the reason for imposing this admission charge. 

. . 
14. Will there be a live band at this function? Yes No ------

(See attached municipal code regarding noise ordinance) 

15. State the names and addresses of all persons or groups which will receive any of the 
proceeds from this event, including concessions, and how those proceeds ·will be 
divided among such persons or groups. 
\~· cle 'ioLl:\\\ JV\cd 

16. If this· permit application is for all or substantially all of the park area, or all or 
substantially all of the picnic and bandstand are, state the overriding public interest or 
special circumstances which justify excluding residents of the City of Mendota from 
using their public park facilities. 

· 11. I, :n\~ 9 e.1f ~ have read the Mendota Municipal Co~e Chapter 
12.20 re: park permits {attached). I understand all .of the requirements for conducting an 
event or activity in the use of the Rojas-Pierce Park or any City facility. I ·agree on 
behalf of myself and _ -i-- {name of applicant), th~ 
·organization on whose behalf this application is made, to indemnify, defend and hold 
the City of Mendota harmless, from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, and 
proceedings for money damages or ot~er relief for personal injury, property damage or 
other losses resulting from or. caused by the activity or event for which this permit is 

3 



~·· 

issued. The keys to a·ny facility or electrical panel will not be issued until this document 
is signed by the permittee requesting a facility and/or consent/hold harmless 
agreements are submitted to city staff and proof of insurance is provided and all fees 
and deposits are paid. · 

I, :7J :z_ , declare I J,ave read and understand the foregoing application 
an all attachments the·reto. I further declare that I will abide by all City, State, County and 
Federal laws at said event. 

Dated: ~<AV\ .... 

·CITY MANAGER APPROVAL 

THIS APPLICATION IS APPROVED/ REJECTED FOR USE OF THE . ON 

------------· _. THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SHALL APPLY, MAY INCLUDE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT REQUIREMENTS. . 

CITY MANAGER: 
---------'----~---~-

DATE: _____ _ 

************************************************************************************************************* 
SECURITY REQUIREMENT OR CONDITIONS AS PER CITY OF MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT: 

POLICE DEPT: DATE: ---------
4 



ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

I ~ 11/7/2018 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MA TIER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~2~~~CT Sara Foster 
Stratton Agency, Inc. rt,gN~o i::vtl· 888-888-4501 I FAX 
643 Blair Island Rd Suite 402 IA/C Nol: 650-508-0121 

Redwood City CA 94063 ~~DA~~ss: policyservices@str~ttonagency.com 
INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A : Markel Insurance Company* 38970 
INSURED WESTYOU-01 INSURERS: 
Westside Youth Inc 
1709 7th St INSURERC: 

Mendota CA 93640 INSURERD: 

INSURER E: 

INSURERF: 
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 958651477 REVISION NUMBER: 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE .TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP LIMITS LTR 1111~n Wlln POLICY NUMBER IMM/DD/YYYYI IMM/DD/YYYYI 
A x COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY y 8502CY304860-10 10/23/2018 10/23/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000 

- D CLAIMS-MADE 0 OCCUR 
DAMAGE TO RENTED 

- PREMISES IEa occurrence\ $ 

MED EXP (Any one person) $ 
-

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000 
-

GEN'LAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE $ 2,000,000 

~ DPRO- DLoc PRODUCTS -COMP/OP AGG $ 2,000,000 POLICY JECT 

OTHER: $ 

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 1002CY 433701-1 10/23/2018 10/23/2019 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $1,000,000 (Ea accident\ 
~ 

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 
t--

OWNED X SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 
t-- AUTOS ONLY _ AUTOS 
x HIRED x NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $ AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident\ 

$ 

UMBRELLA LIAB H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 
~ 

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

OED I I RETENTION $ $ 
WORKERS COMPENSATION I PER I I OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY STATUTE ER 

YIN 
ANYPROPRIETORIPARTNER/EXECUTIVE 

D NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 
If yes, describe under 

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below 
A Sexual Abuse & Sexual Molestation 8502CY304860-10 10/23/2018 10/23/2019 Per Person $1,000,000 

Per Policy Period $2,000,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additlonal Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space Is required) 
The certificate holder is included as additional insured where required by a written contract or permit subject to the terms and conditions of the General Liability 
policy but only to the extent bodily injury or property damage is caused in whole or in part by the negligence of the insured. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

City of Mendota 
643 Quince Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
Mendota CA 93640 g_-2_ q-
I "d--- -

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



CITY OF MENDOTA 
FACILITY USE APPLICATION 

PLEASE COMPLETE ALL QUESTIONS OR ITEMS FOR WHICH INFORMATION IS REQUESTED. PRINT 

ALL ANSWERS EXCEPT THE SIGNATURE. 

FOR USE OF .ALL OR SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF THE ROJAS-PIERCE PARK PICNIC AREA AND 

BANDSTAND, OR MENDOTA POOL· PARK BANDSTAND, VETERANS PARK, APPLICANTS MUST 
APPEAR BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL FOR APPROVAL OF THE PERMIT. 

NOTE: SECTION 12.20.050 APPLICATIONS FOR EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED WITH THE CITY 

CLERK DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY ANNUALLY AND SHALL BE SET FOR CONSIDERATION 

BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT ·ITS FIRST MEETING IN MARCH ANNUALLY. APPLICATIONS FOR 

EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED NOT LESS THAN TWENTY ONE (21) NOR MORE THAN ONE 

HUNDRED FIFTY (150) PAYS PRIOR TO THE USE OF THE FACILITY. PROMOTERS SHALL REQUEST 

AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY BESIDES THE APPLICATION. 

NOTE: SECTION 12.20.110: APPLICANT MUST PROVIDE THE CITY WITH CERTIFICATES OF 

INSURANCE SPECIFYING THE CITY OF MENDOTA AS NAMED INSURED EVIDENCING LIABILITY AND 

PROPERTY DAMAGE LIMITS WITH A COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT OF NOT LESS THAN ONE MILLION 

C?OLLARS ($1,000,000). . 

( ] COMPLETED APPLICATION. 

( ] PROOF OF INSURANCE POLICY SHOWING CITY OF l'v!ENDOTA AS ADDITIONAL INSURED. 

( ] PROOF OF LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR FACILITY USE 

( ] DEPOSIT, USE FEE, AND KEY DEPOSIT SUBMITTED TO FINANCE DEPARTMENT. 

[ ] OBTAINED SECURITY AS REQUIRED BY MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT 

( ] ORIGINAL SIGNATURE OF PERMITTEE WITH ACKNOWLEDGMENT. 

( ] AMPLIFIED MUSIC PERMIT IF APPLICABLE 

1 



1. This application is for the use of the following facility: 

C'o-('$\ ,~ 
2. The organization, individual, business or entity applying for the use permit: 

\A)i::,,$1 Je_ j'OV\\-h~~ ; n oct '~'/ t\g "'dolc. 1<2 ~ . 

3. The contact person on b~half of the applicant, regarding the event or activity for which 
use permit is requested together with all of the following information: · 

NAME: :t),·~o . ~-e_ ~ 
AooREss(STREETANoC1rv): flD9 7¥'- S -\ re.-e-+., M~~D=\-g 

I 

. TELEPHONE No.: t~C\J ~55-i..-\'b{)1r . 

4. 

5. Please describe the exact park area or areas· requested for Exclusive Use. (List below 
and ci_rcle the area on ttie attached map). 

'{:+\\ \8--~ @.(=§CL15ot-<'. 1>14\ i:_\ c:\ I ~~I · 0. V l \'\ OV\ 

6. Purpose or function for which the permit is requested. Give statement of reasons for 
exclusive use. No.te: Section 12.20.090(b)(c) Fees and Deposits as required. 

E~volls -e.< s ~QC V'{t\=flro.\i \- -S'o.r 'f 01A ~\,,. \.)V'\'S(AMS 

·7. Number·of persons expected to attend the function or event. !D0-5cD 

8. Will alcoholic beverages be sold? Yes L No. note: if yes, you must apply for 
and receive a separate permit from the state department of alcohol beverage control, if 
so, liquor liability insurance is required to be purchased ·thirty (30) days in advance by 
the applicant. The Fresno County Sheriff's department must .be contacted · regarding 
this application. The City of Mendota parks are tobacco free and alcoh~I free. 

9. Has a promoter b~en contracted . to pr~s.ent, produce, or otherwise b""involved in the 
event, activity or entertainment during the event? Yes_ No_T_. Note: section 
12.20.110, if yes, the promoter is required to provide certificate of insurance evidencing 
liability and property damage limits with a combined single limit of not less than 
$1,000,000 with a deductible of nor more than $500, and shall ~pecify the. City of 
M~ndo~a and applicant as named in~ured. 

2 



1 O. If . a promoter wm present, produce, or otherwise. be . involved in the event, activity or 
entertainment, state the name, address and telephone number of the promoter and 
describe his/her/its participation in the event. Note: Section 5~08.030 Amusement Park 
Rides and Attractions; Sect~ori 5.08.300 Musical and Theatrical Shows. The Promoter is 
required to obtain a business license. 

NAME: · ;V/,4 
ADDRESS: ---------------------
PART IC IP AT ION 11 NV O L VE MEN T: . ----------------------

11. Detailed description of all entertainment and activities, including equipment and 
vehicles to be used, the nature and times of use of such equipmeryt, and the nature and 
time of use of any amplified sound equipment. Please keep in mind that anything not 
mentioned below will not be allowed. · 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

· 11. 

0ru-\V\.\JtA.\ it-\J.eS1 ~J. 1 \(Ve. ~·r ~ ± b'j5 1 c\ t>l\Ait.J i )t!vY\e.& 

Will concession stand{s) be used? Yes ,/ .. No. Note: for baseball diamond 
concession, $150.00 fee, per league, no exemptions. 

Will there be an admissions charge to the event? If so, state the exact amount of each 
ticket $ 2- .. DD . State the reason for imposing this dmission charge. 
. f>v'''( 0 . ~ ik_y ~· ~~UJ'""dct'f <:;v-...\'t \'--'f ($ ~\. • ~/ 
Will there be a live band at this function? Yes / No 
(See attached municipal code regarding noise ordinance) 

State the names and addresses of all persons or groups which will receive any of the 
proceeds from this event, including concessions, and how those proceeds ·will be 
divided amqng such persons or groups. · t\ 
WeZ\5 t r1 'e.: 'f'olA+\o. ~c... .. (7{)q1-f:st-, J.Oc Y Dl;t~ -rvv0vaVV\S 

If this· permit application is for all or substantially all of th.e park area, or all or 
substantially all of the picnic and bandstand are, state the overriding public interest or 
special circumstances which justify excluding residents of the City of Mendota from 
using their public park facilities. 

·I, ·:J'::::>'l ""-O ~eu-e--t- have read the Mendota Municipal Co~e Chapter 
12.20 re: park permits (attached). I understand all . of the requirements for conducting an 
event or activity in the use of the Rojas-Pierce Park or any City facility. I ·agree on 
behalf of myself and ~""-O ~ef'e..-z_ (name of applicant), th~ 
·organization on whose behalf this application is made, to indemnify, defend and hold 
the City of Mendota harmless, from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, and 
proceedings for money damages or ot~er relief for personal injury, property damage or 
other losses resulting from or. caused by the activity or event for which this permit is 

3 



issued. The keys to a·ny ·facility or electrical panel will not be issued until this document 
is signed by the permittee requesting a facility and/or consent/hold harmless 
agreements are submitted to city staff and proof of insurance is provided and all fees 
and deposits are .paid. · 

1, -:!) \ V\..O ~e .. rc --i-- , declare I have read and understand the foregoing application 
and all attachments the·reto. I further declare that I will abide by all City, State, County and 
Federal laws at said event. 

Signature of Permitee 

·CITY MANAGER APPROVAL 

THIS APPLICATION IS APPROVED/ REJECTED FOR USE OF THE ON 

~~~~~~~~-----~ 
• THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SHALL APPLY, MAY INCLUDE 

POLICE DEPARTMENT REQUIREMENTS. . 

CITY MANAGER: 
-~~~-~---'----~~~---

DATE: --------
******************~****************************************************************************************** 
SECURITY REQUIREMENT OR CONDITIONS AS PER CITY OF MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT: 

POLICE DEPT: 

4 



ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MM/DDNYYY) 

~ 11/7/2018 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~2~~~cT Sara Foster 
Stratton Agend, Inc. rl18NJo Ext\: 888-888-4501 I FAX 
643 Blair lslan Rd Suite 402 IA/C Nol: 650-508-0121 

Redwood City CA 94063 ~~DA~~ss: policyseNices@strattonaQencv.com 

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A : Markel Insurance Company* 38970 
INSURED WESTYOU-01 INSURERS: 
Westside Youth Inc 
1709 7th St INSURERC: 

Mendota CA 93640 INSURERD: 

INSURERE: 

INSURERF: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 958651477 REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE 
ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 

LTR INC::n \llntn POLICY NUMBER IMM/DDNYYYI IMM/DD/YYYY\ LIMITS 
A x COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY y 8502CY304860-10 10/23/2018 10/23/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000 
~ 

=:=] CLAIMS-MADE 0 OCCUR 
DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES IEa occurrence) $ 

- MED EXP (Any one person) $ 

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY - $1,000,000 

GEN'LAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE $ 2,000,000 

~ DPRO- DLoc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 2,000,000 POLICY JECT 

OTHER: $ 

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 1002CY 433701-1 10/23/2018 10/23/2019 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $1,000,000 IEa accident\ -
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 

-
OWNED X SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 

- AUTOS ONLY 
- ~81~8WNED x HIRED 
~ AUTOSONLY 

PROPERTY DAMAGE $ AUTOS ONLY IPer accident) 
$ 

UMBRELLA LIAB H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 
~ 

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

OED I I RETENTION$ $ 
WORKERS COMPENSATION I PER I I OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY STATUTE ER 

Y/N 
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 

D 
N/A E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 
If yes, describe under 

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below 
A Sexual Abuse & Sexual Molestation B502CY304860-10 10/23/2018 10/23/2019 Per Person $1,000,000 

Per Polley Period $2,000,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 
The certificate holder is included as additional insured where required by a written contract or permit subject to the terms and conditions of the General Liability 
policy but only to the extent bodily injury or property damage is caused in whole or in part by the negligence of the insured. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

City of Mendota 
643 Quince Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE Mendota CA 93640 

4-2.a---< 
I 

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



. CITY OF MENDOTA. . . 
FACILITY USE APPLICATION 

PU~ASE COMPLETE A~L auesT10Ns ofi iT.~M·!? FOR WHICH INFORMA.rloN rs "R.~QUESTED. PR~NT 
ALL ANSWERS EXCEPT THE SIGNATURE. 

FOR l:JSE OF ALL .Q~ SUBSTANTIAL~ X ALL OF THE Rp~AS-PlERCI; PARK; PJcNiC AREA AND 
BANDSTAND OR MENDOTA POOL PARK BANDSTAND VETERANS.PARK APPLICANTS MUST ' . . . : . ' . . ' . : . . . . 

APPEAR BEFORE THE CJTY COUNCIL FOR APP ROY.Al- OF TH;E PERMIT. 

Nore: SECTION 12.20.oso APPLICATICiN$ FOR EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE Filgo WITH THE CJTY 
c°L~RK OUFUNG THE MQJ-JtH OF FEBRUARY ANN·UALLY AND SHALL lf3'1~ SET FOR 'CONSIDERATION 
·av THE ciTY COUNCIL AT ·ITS .FIRST MEETING IN MARCH ANNUALLY. APPUCATfONS FOR 
EX¢tus1ve use SHALL ee FILED NOT LEss THAN TWE~rv ON.E (21.) NOR MORE THAN ONE 

~UNDRED FIFTY (150) .DA VS PRl·OR TO THE USE OF THE F~C-~,LITY. PROMOTERS. SHALL REQUEST 
Afi AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY BESl0:ES THE APPLICATION • 

. NOTE: SECTION 12.20 .. 11-0: APPLICANT MUST PROVlbE t.He CITY WIT:~ ¢'.ERTIF-ICATES OF 
INS~~RANCE SPECl!FYIN'G THE CITY OF ~ENDOTA AS NAM~_D .(NSURED EVIDENC:J.NG LIABIUTY AND 
PROPERTY DAMAGE ~IMITS WJTH A COMBINED SINGLE UMIT QF NOT LESS tl-IAN ·oNc MILUON 

l?OL:LARS .($1,600,000). . 

[,/f 
~ [ ] 
~ [ ] 
- [ ] - c · 

[ ' ] 
~ [ ] 

COMPLETED APPLiqJ\'flON. , 
PROOF OF INSURANCE POLICY SJ-~OWING 'CITY OF MEN.QOTA AS ADDlTIONAL INSUR)m. 
PROOF OF LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR FACILITY USE I 

DEPOSIT, USE FHE, AND KEY DEPOSIT SUBMJTIED TO FINANCE DEPARTMENT. 
OBTAINED SECURITY AS REQUlRED BY MENDOTAPOLiCE- b'EPARTMENT 

·ORIGINAL sIGNA'fUJlE oF.PERMITIJ3E wrTH ACKNOWLEDGM.E:N·r. 
AMPl.>Jf'IED Musrc PERMIT·IF APPLICABLE 

1 



1. . Thi-s app.Hcation is for the us_e of the foHowlrig fac~;Hty: 

~4~·· Pa~ 
2. The org.an:i_zation, f:ndividu-~I,. bµslness or entity a,p·p·l·yhig fo:r- the use p_errnit:· 

O\Qtld~ 'fa,&- ~*51ck. YP~-6~ J IMl1ikk 
3. The contact person o:n JJetiaf:f.of-the appHcant, reg~,rcHng the event or activity for .which 

4. 

5. 

6. 

8. 

9. 

use permit is ~equeste.d _to~ethe~ with au of t~e fo.fl.owhig i~formation: · 

NAME: 5i1'.5l.t0. Ua~ . · ~ 
ADDRESS (5TR;T ~ND CITY):= i h.JOAJUi 5b /)J(:lt! l"-1 . 
r~~EPHoNe No~: ,5$ ·6<rJ- lta V'~ 

DATE: 3Afg ~) hit?) . 

Ple-~se de~cribe the exact p~r~ area or area~· requested for Exclusive Us~. (List below 
and ·circle the area on tpe att~6hed map). 

~l U.1f2n . · ... 

Purpose o.r :function for which .th.e perrn:it is requested. Give sta,tement of reasons for 
· exclusive IJSe. No_te: S~¢t.i91112.20.09Q(bl(c) F.E;)es a,nd. De:posits as requ_ired. 

A11rw~1 . ~pa~ 51~ . 
Number"of per~~ms expec~~cffo attend the furicti.on or event __ ...... ~'"'""0 ..... 0 ....... ____ _ 

Will alcohoHc beverages· be s·old? Yes - . No. \,..... note:· if yes, you must ap.ply for 
arid re.ceive a separate permit from the state department of alcohol beverage co·ntrol1 if 
so, liquor· HabiHty insuranpe is requfred to be purchas·ed ··thfrty (30) days in advance by 
the appJJca·nt The Fresno County Sheri:ff's department must .be confac~ed rt)gatding 
thi-s appUcation. The City 9f M~ndota p~rks are tobacco ·free· anq alcohol free. 

Has a promoter b~en · contr~·Qted . to pr~~ent,_ -.p·roduce, ·or Qth,erwise be involved in the 
event, activity .o'r ente·rtaJ~~ent durin;g "_the _ev~nt? ¥_es_.·_· N~~· Note: ~ection 
12.20.110, if y·es,.the promo_te·r is requked ·ta provide certificate of ~.surance evidenc·;ng 
l.iability and property damag~. Umi·ts wi·th a com~lned slng·le llnilt of not 1-ess than 
$1.,000,000 with a deductib_l;e of. nor more than $500; and shaU ~pe~ify the City of 
Mendota ·and applicant as n~m-~d in~ured. · 

2 



10. If . a .promoter will p.res.ent, produce, or otherwise be involved· in the event, activity or 
ente.rtah;unent,· state. the _name, adqress and telep~o)J~ ~-umber qf . .the promoter . ~nd 
de~cribe hi~iherli't$. p~rticipatiorl in th~ event. Note: SectiO.n 5.tlS.030 Amusement. Park 
Rid~s ~rid A~tr~ctions; :Sect.I pn 5.08.300 Musical and Thea~rlpal Sho~$. The Promoter ·is 
:requlred to obtain a busln~ss Hcense. · 

NAME: . . . \ . 

ADDRESS: ~ 
PA~~IP~~~~VOLV~M~~:-'. ~· ~·'~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-

·~ 

11; Detaiied de$cri:ption of 1d:i entertainment .and acthiides, ·including e_qui.pment ari·d 
v~hicles to be usedr the na~µre ~·nd times o.f use of su~ri: equ1p·mer,it1 an~ _th~ - nature ~nd 
time of use of ·any ampH~ied sound equipment. Please· keep hi mind that anything not 
mentioned befow:wHI n~t be ~Uowed. · · · · . ~~I~=~·~ f:ackpttQf (jl·l/t:< ~ 

12. 

13. 

WHI con~~s$ion stand($) ~~ .llsed? _h Yes ___ No~ Note: f~r ba~¢baH diamon.d 
coricessio~, $150.00 "fee~ per Jeague~xemption~. 

'J."ilfthere be~ admissio.hs. char~e to the e_v~nt?. lf s9~ stat~ ~h~ exact aitio~nt of ea.ch 
ticket $ U . St~te .th~ reason for 1mposmg th1$ adm1ss1on charg~. .. . . . . 

14. WMJ there :Ile a -live. ·b.and a·t .. this . functi·on? 
----___,...,.~ 

Yes No 
(See attached f:riunlcipaJ c9de regar~ing tii_ois~ ordiAan~e) 

15.. State th~ names and addresses of all pe·r~ons ot· g,roup·s which will rece.ive any· of .the 
proceeds. from this event, including concess·ions, arid' how those proce·eds · wHI be 
divid~d atnon.~ suc.h persons "( grou~. · J~ ~~ !~ \ 

. . . . Ce;tnmt/!1 1 j at /Yltti fJt!:q- ~1' t'JMY/ r . 
16. If this pe_itni't appUcation is for alt or substantially · ail of th'e park area, or all or 

subst~ntia·rw . all of th.e p_icnlp and bandst~nd a.re, state ·the. overriding p4blir; interest or 
special circu~stances. whic:h justify excluding residents of the City of Mendota from 
using their p~-bHc park faci!f:i:ties. " · · · · 

17 . . ·1, S e~LO \Jq,lJc:? •. . h<1ve read the l\'lend~ta Municipal CPde C~ai:>ter 
12.20 re: p~ per1111ts·(attach~f'.f:). I ~nd.erst~nd all of the r~qmrements for con~uctmg an 
event or ac~'vi.ty in the use oft . e Rojas·~pierce ark or any City facility . . I' agree· 011 
behalf of 'irwsel:f and . . . , ~ (name of a·ppUcant), the 
organization. on whose oeh.alf t 1s a · :pHcat1_on is maqe, ·to indemnify, defend and hold 
the City of Mendota harmless, from and against an.y and an claims, actions·1 -suits, and 
_proceedin.gs for inone.y cfa'niages or o~her reHe·f for personal injury, property ·damage or 
·other I osses ·resulting from or. ~aused by the activity or .event for which this perm.it is 

3 

J 



iss·ued. The keys to a·ny faciifty or e:lectrica:f panel wi·ll not be issued Li:ntH this document 
h~ - signe_d hy the perrnitte~ requestin_g a facility and/9r consent/hold harmless 
agreements .are submitted to city staff and proof of iri:Surance is provided and all fees 
a·od d·~·posHs are pa-id~ . . -, . ~ . . . . . . . 

Sf gnat1:1re of Pe~ite~· c,i:> J ~ DATE: -z/ f· .. {Jj 
. . ·~ \ 

1, ; 'declare I ·have 1·ead and understand the foregoing app.Hc·~tion 
and all··.·· chments . th_er~t9~. J-fu'.rth~r µ.ecla·re that I wHf~b1de by all City, State, County a:nd .. 
Federal l:aws at said event. · · · 

· CITY MANAGER APP~<;JVAL 

Dated: . z_, 1 - .1~ 

s1~t"Pifmttee 

THJS APP.qCATl-ON IS APPROVED I RfUECTt;O FOR USE OF THE · ON . 

.. 

_____ __.,.. __ __,_ . ..........,..• THiE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SHALl APPLY, MAY INCLVDE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT REQUJ:RI;MENTS. . . , 

( . 

CITY MANAGE-R: _____ ....__ ___ _ .DATE: -------
. ***********~**********************************~*************************~******~**************************~** 
S~CURfTY REQUIRE.MENT.OR CONDITIONS AS PER CITY OF ME.NDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT: 

PouceDEPT: 

4 



Policy Number: WS244545 Date Entered: 4/3/2018 

ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

~ 4/1/2018 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~~~~~cT Jim Tekunoff 
ALL SERVE INSURANCE SERVICES 

r.t)gN:o Extl: (559) 999-1355 I FAX 
(A/C Nol: ( ) -

1066 N GRANTLAND AVE 
ioMD~~ss: ALLSERVEINS@GMAIL. COM 

FRESNO, CA 93723 
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A : NORTHFIELD INSURANCE COMPANY 

INSURED MENDOTA YOUTH RECREATION, INC. INSURER B: 

INSURER C: 

667 QUINCE STREET INSURER D : 

MENDOTA, CA 93640 INSURER E: 

INSURER F : 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DDNYYYl IMM/DDNYYYl LIMITS 

A lX COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY ' EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1, 000 I 000 

D CLAIMS-MADE ~ OCCUR x WS2244545 4/1/2018 4/1/2019 : DAMAGE TO RENTED $100,000 
f--

PREMISES I Ea occurrence) 

- ( MED EXP (Any one person) $EXCLUDED 

- PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1, 000, 000 
-

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE $2,000,000 

~ D PRO- D LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $EXCLUDED POLICY JECT 

OTHER: $ 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $ IEa accident\ -
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 

>---
OWNED - SCHEDULED 
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS 

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 
- -HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 

AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY IPer accident\ $ 

$ 

UMBRELLA LIAB H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 
f--

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

DED I I RETENTION $ $ 
WORKERS COMPENSATION 

1 mTUTE 1 
I OTH-

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ER 
Y/N 

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE D N/A 
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 
If yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT $ 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 

-
--~ " 
8/4/201~1ST ANNUAL BACKPACK GIVEAWAY@ ROJAS PIERCE PARK 350 SORENSEN AVE MENDOTA, CA 93640 

---
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

CITY OF MENDOTA 

643 QUINCE AVE SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 

MENDOTA, CA 93640 ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

I JIM TEKUNOFF 

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 

Produced using Forms Boss Plus software. www.FormsBoss.com; Impressive Publishing,LLC 800-208-1977 



CITY OF MENDOTA 

~~rs AWCA-1'<-"'--eS-51 
b<;,...~ ,,lot 2.D\lf 

FACILITY USE APPLICATION 

PLEASE COMPLETE ALL QUESTIONS OR ITEMS FOR WHICH INFORMATION IS REQUESTED. PRINT 

ALL ANSWERS EXCEPT THE SIGNATURE. 

FOR USE OF ALL ·oR SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF THE ROJAS-PIERCE PARK PICNIC AREA AND 

BANDSTAND, OR MENDOTA POOL· PARK BANDSTAND, VETERANS PARK, APPLICANTS MUST 
APPEAR BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL FOR APPROVAL OF THE PERMIT. 

NOTE: SECTION 12.20.050 APPLICATIONS FOR EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED WITH THE CITY 

CLERK DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY ANNUALLY AND SHALL BE SET FOR CONSIDERATION 

BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT ·ITS FIRST MEETING IN MARCH ANNUALLY. APPLICATIONS FOR 

EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED NOT LESS THAN TWENTY ONE (21) NOR MORE THAN ONE 

HUNDRED FIFTY (150) ,DAYS PRIOR TO THE USE OF THE FACILITY. PROMOTERS SHALL REQUEST 

AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY BESIDES THE APPLICATION. 

NOTE: SECTION 12.20.110: APPLICANT MUST PROVIDE THE CITY WITH CERTIFICATES OF 

INSURANCE SPECIFYING THE CITY OF MENDOTA AS NAMED INSURED EVIDENCING LIABILITY AND 

PROPERTY DAMAGE LIMITS WITH A COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT OF NOT LESS THAN ONE MILLION 
J?OLLARS ($1,000,000). . 

( ] COMPLETED APPLICATION. 

[ ] PROOF OF INSURANCE POLICY SHOWING CITY OF MENDOTA AS ADDITIONAL INSURED. 

[ ] PROOF OF LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR FACILITY USE 

( ] DEPOSIT, USE FEE, AND KEY DEPOSIT SUBMITTED TO FINANCE DEPARTMENT. 

[ ] OBTAINED SECURITY AS REQUIRED BY MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT 

( ] ORIGINAL SIGNATURE OF PERMITTEE WITH ACKNOWLEDGMENT. 

( ] AMPLIFIED MUSIC PERMIT IF APPLICABLE 

1 



1. This application is for the use of the following facility: 

~s,~ac.e.. ~CA~~ ~°'-\'1t\\~,_.~r\= 
I 

2. The organization, individual, business or entity applying for the use permit: 

3. The contact person on behalf of the applicant, regarding the event or activity for which 
use permit is requested together with all of the following information: · 

NAME: :\:)\~ ~CJl"'CZ_- tv\tt., ~qplor 
~ . 

AooREss (STREET AND c1Tv): \:J o°l 1 $ .. 1 M. ~tb\c.c, e A 
. TELEPHONE No.: ...::.(5@:;....;;....q...;;.l).&.......:(es;;..l5~5=------------------

4. DATE: ~' ~, "'2-DtCJ-Sei.Jtt~J TIME: Cfl~ODc.\~ - ""\'.~'() 9r'\ . . 
I 

5. Please describe the exact park area or areas· requested for Exclusive Use. (List below 
and ci_rcle the area on ttie attached map). 

6. 

·7. 

8. 

9. 

~G-\..v-\:... 1 'oev:il<..~\\ ~-\-1 =t>~1nt'i!~., , ~~s 
Purpose or function for which the permit is requested. Give statement of reasons for 
exclusive use. No.te: Section 12.20.090(b)(c) Fees and Deposits as required. 

~\..;er ~~-e.ssl b,k V-ot·~·.\\e1 '\><"'\'L.~ 1 .k>l1:fjD 
Number·of pers9ns expected to attend the function or event. ~f fi>~. I DD-2-DO 

Will alcoholic beverages be sold? Yes No. /note: if yes, you must apply for 
and receive a separate permit from the state department of alcohol beverage control, if 
so, liquor liability insurance is required to be purchased ·thirty (30) days in advance by 
the applicant. The Fresno County Sheriff's department must .be contacted · regarding 
this application. The City of Mendota parks are tobacco free and alcoh~I free. 

Has a promoter b~en contracted . to present, produce, or otherwise by involved in the 
event, activity or entertainment during the event? Yes_ No_v_ .. Note: section 
12.20.110, if yes, the promoter is required to provide certificate of insurance evidencing 
liability and property damage limits with a combined single limit of not less than 
$1,000,000 with a deductible of nor more than $500, and shall ~pecify the. City of 
M~ndo~a and applicant as named in~ured. 

2 



10. If-a promoter wm present, produce, or otherwise. be -involved in the event, activity or 
entertainment, state the name, address and telephone number of the promoter and 
describe his/her/its participation in the event. Note: Section 5~08.030 Amusement Park 
Rides and Attractions; Sect~ori 5.08.300 Musical and Theatrical Shows. The Promoter is 
required to obtain a business license. 

NAME: . /V I A-
ADDRESS: ---------------------
PART IC IP AT ION/ INVOLVEMENT: . ----------------------

11. Detailed description of all entertainment and activities, including equipment and 
vehicles to be used, the nature and times of use of such equipme~t, and the nature and 
time of use of any amplified sound equipment. Please keep in mind that anything not 
mentioned below will not be allowed . . · 

'b\"""101 W\V\S f c__, bi\L-e.. 5 1ve awc•-f t ~o~, h'Le- ~.\c 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

· 11. 

Will concession stand(s) be used? Yes No. Note: for baseball diamond ---
concession, $150.00 fee, per league, no exemptions. 

Will there be an admissions charge to the event? If so, state the exact amount of each 
ticket $ 6 . State the reason for imposing this admission charge. 

Will there be a live band at this function? Yes 
/ 

No ------
(See attached municipal code regarding noise ordinance) 

State the names and addresses of all persons or groups which will receive any of the 
proceeds from this event, including concessions, and how those proceeds· will be 
divided among such persons or groups. 

\A fe s\s f t,( '€ 'f D\A~ 
If this· permit application is for all or substantially all of ttie park area, or all or 
substantially all of the picnic and bandstand are, ·state the overriding public interest or 
special circumstances which justify excluding residents of the City of Mendota from 
using their public park facilities. 

·1, ·~\~ =t?~-e'L-- have read the Mendota Municipal Co~e Chapter 
12.20 re: park permits (attached). I understand all . of the requirements for conducting an 
event or activity in the us.e of the Qjas-Pierce Park or any City facility. 1 ·agree on 
behalf of myself and ~ ~o v-e'- (name of applicant), th~ 
·organization on whose behalf this application is made, to indemnify, defend and hold 
the City of Mendota harmless, from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, and 
proceedings for money damages or ot~er relief for personal injury, property damage or 
other losses resulting from or. caused by the activity or event for which this permit is 

3 



issued. The keys to a·ny facility or electrical panel will not be issued until this document 
is signed by the permittee requesting a facility and/or consent/hold harmless 
agre·ements are submitted to city staff and proof of insurance is provided and all fees 
and deposits are · paid. · 

Signature of Permite~: ~ OAT~: 0 - 0 q ~ \ 9 

1, ';:[::>\ 'v'\._D ~ye-e.-z._ , declare I have read and understand the foregoing application 
and all attachments the·reto. I further declare that I will abide by all City, State, County and 
Federal laws at said event. 

· CITY MANAGER APPROVAL 

THIS APPLICATION IS APPROVED/ REJECTED FOR USE OF THE . ON 

----------· THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SHALl APPLY, MAY INCLUDE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT REQUIREMENTS. . 

CITY MANAGER: 
--~--~---''----------

DATE: --------
************************************************************************************************************* 
SECURITY REQUIREMENT OR CONDITIONS AS PER CITY OF MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT: 

POLICE DEPT: DATE: ---------
4 



/l~!§ib® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DAT~~;;;;~1 

[ . THIS 'CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES , 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s}. 

PRODUCER ~2~~~CT Sara Foster 
Stratton Agency, Inc. r~gN,j;, r:vt1· 888-888-4501 I FAX 
643 Blair Island Rd Suite 402 IAJC Nol: 650-508-0121 

Redwood City CA 94063 ~oMDA~~ss: policyservices@strattonagency.com 

INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A: Markel Insurance Company* 38970 
INSURED WESTYOU-01 INSURERS: 
Westside Youth Inc 
1709 7th St INSURERC: 

Mendota CA 93640 INSURER D: 

INSURERE: 

INSURERF: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 958651477 REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE 
ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 

LTR 1t.ic::n W\/n POLICY NUMBER IMM/DD/YYYYl IMM/DDIYYYYI LIMITS 
A x COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY y 8502CY304860-10 10/23/2018 10/23/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000 

I CLAIMS-MADE 0 OCCUR 
DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES !Ea occurrence\ $ 

- MED EXP (Any one person) $ 

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000 -
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000 

~ OPRO- DLoc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $2,000,000 POLICY JECT 

OTHER: $ 

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 1002CY433701-1 10/23/2018 10/23/2019 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $1,000,000 IEa accident\ r--

I ANYAUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 
r--

OWNED X SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 
>---- AUTOS ONLY 

- ~81?8WNED x HIRED 
~ AUTOSONLY 

PROPERTY DAMAGE $ AUTOS ONLY /Per accident\ r--

$ 

UMBRELLA LIAB H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ - EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

OED I I RETENTION $ $ 
WORKERS COMPENSATION I ~f~TUTE I I OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ER 

YIN 
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE D NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 
If yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ 

A Sexual Abuse & Sexual Molestation 8502CY304860-1 o 10/23/2018 10/23/2019 Per Person $1,000,000 
Per Policy Period $2,000,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addltlonal Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required) 
The certificate holder is included as additional insured where required by a written contract or permit subject to the terms and conditions of the General Liability 
policy but only to the extent bodily injury or property damage is caused in whole or in part by the negligence of the insured. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

City of Mendota 
643 Quince Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
Mendota CA 93640 4--1: 4 
I 

d---- ~ 

© 1988-2015 ACORD.CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



CITY OF MENDOTA 
FACILITY USE APPLICATION 

PLEASE COMPLETE ALL QUESTIONS OR ITEMS FOR WHICH INFORMATION rs REQUESTED. PRINT 

ALL ANSWERS EXCEPT THE SIGNATURE. 

FOR USE OF ALL OR SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF THE ROJAS-PIERCE PARK PICNIC AREA AND 

BANDSTAND, OR MENDOTA POOL PARK BANDSTAND, VETERANS PARK, APPLICANTS MUST 

APPEAR BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL FOR APPROVAL OF THE PERMIT. 

NOTE: SECTION 12.20.050 APPLICATIONS FOR EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED WlTH THE CITY 

CLERK DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY ANNUALLY AND SHALL BE SET FOR CONSIDERATION 

BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT ·ITS FIRST MEETING IN MARCH ANNUALLY. APPLICATIONS FOR 

EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED NOT LESS THAN TWENTY ONE (21) NOR MORE THAN ONE 

HUNDRED FIFTY (150) PAYS PRIOR TO THE USE OF THE FACILITY. PROMOTERS SHALL REQUEST 

AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY BESIDES THE APPUCATION. 

NOTE: SECTION 12"20.110: APPLICANT MUST PROVIDE THE CITY WITH CERTIFICATES OF 

INSURANCE SPECIFYING THE CITY OF MENDOTA AS NAMED INSURED EVIDENCING LIABILITY ANO 

PROPERTY DAMAGE LIMITS WITH A COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT OF NOT LESS THAN ONE MILLION 

QOLLARS ($1,000,000). 

~ · COMPLETBD APPLICATION. 
PROOF OF INSURANCE POLICY SHOWING.CITY OF MENDOTA AS ADDITIONAL INSURED. 

PROOF OF LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR FACILITY USE 

[ 1 
[ ] 
[ ] 

. [ J 

DEPOSIT, USE FEE, AND KEY DEPOSIT SUBMITTED TO FINANCE DEPARTMENT. 

OBTAINED SECURITY AS REQUIRED BY MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT 
ORIGINAL SIGNATURE OF.PERMITTEE WITH ACKNO\VLEDGMENT. 
AMPLIFIED Musrc PERMlT IF APPLICABLE . 

1 

I 

I 
r 
I 



1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

·7. 

8. 

9. 

This application is for the use of the following facility: 

~tijA~ f\fXG.€- f0..-\L. 
The organization, individual, business or entity applying for the use permit: 

~ ~~)\~~ ·~"- . 
The contact person on behalf of the applicant, regarding the event or activity for ~hich 
use permit is requested fogether with all of the following information: · 

NAME: ~e...\ 'fl \JlAc, 
ADDRESS (STREET AND CITY): l\.0\0 ~r 1\-me.ncW."- \Jn' \/C:... 

TE~EPHONENo.: L~\Z.:,1.-2ll(t3 M \to'1' 

DArE:2M ~ ~~Tuu~':JA~ TIME: ~ :D0arv1 - \ 7-"uueM Umb·I t;14ff!/it~ \.o1~J I 
. CJ\" Q.)/e,v\h V\\.~Y\-t"h . 

Please describe the exact park area or areas· requested for Exclusive Use. (List below 
and circle the area on t~e attached map). 

Purpose or function for which the permit is requested. Give statement of reasons for 
exclusive use. Note: Section 12.20.090(b)(c) Fees and Deposits as required. 

~d dl~W-h\)l" =tt> -\"\-\e. t 2 M l't\M ni~ o-£ \--l\cy1cJp\t:i 

Number· of p~rs9ns expected to attend the function or eve~t. \SU .. Z,o CJ ~mi \\·e S 

Will alcoholic beverages be sold? Yes No. x · note: if yes, you must apply for 
and receive a separate permit from the state department of alcohol beverage control, if 
so, liquor liability insurance is required to be purchased -thirty (30) days in advance by 
the applicant. The Fresno County Sheriff's department must .be contacted regarding _ 
this application. The City of Mendota parks are tobacco free and alcohol free. · 

Has a promoter b~en contracted . to present, produce, or otherwise.._ _9e involved in the 
event, activity or entertainment during the event? Yes_ No.&_. Note: section 
12.20.110, if yes, the promoter is required to provide certificate of insurance evidencing 
liability and property damage limits with a combined single limit of not less than 
$1,000,000 with a deductible of nor more than $500, and shall ~pecify the City of 
Mendota and applicant as named in~ured. 

2 



10. If a promoter will present, produce, or otherwise. be involved in the event, activity or 
entertainment, state the· name, address and telephone number of the promoter and 
describe his/her/its participation in the event. Note: Section 5.08.030 Amusement Park 
Rides and Attractions; Sect~on 5.08.300 Musical and Theatrical Shows. The Promoter is 
required to obtain a business license. 

NAME: ____ tJ--+/-=--~--------
ADDRESS: 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

PARTICIPATION/INVOLVEMENT: . 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

1 ( Detailed description of all entertainment and activities, including equipment and 
vehicles to be used, the nature and times of use of such equipme~t, and the nature and 
time of use of any amplified sound equipment. Please keep in mind that anything not 
mentioned below will not be allowed. · · 

'foot\. \\I\. --w\e., \ £~\~2 , ~,\\t;\---jo..vk- , ~\?\e.s t C-\'\Air5 

12. Will concession stand(s) be used? Yes X No. Note: for baseball diamond 
concession, $150.00 fee, per league, no exemption~. 

13. Will there be ~ln)ldmissions charge to the ev~nt? If so, state the exact amount of each 
ticket $ _QL_ • State .the reason for imposing this admission charge. 
. -~ . 

14. Will there be a live band at this - function? Yes X No 
(See attached municipal code regarding noise ordinance) 

15. Sta~e the names and addresses of all persons or groups which will receive any of the 
proceeds from this event, including concessions, and how those proceeds· will be 
divided among such persons or groups. ; i 

.~t.- c..tMO\\J\t\l~ o.£: ~t o.\-htr-t, ve.~\.eK..tJl\*1 

16. ff this permit application is for all or substantially aJI of ttie park area, or all or 
substantially all of the picnic and bandstand are, state the overriding public interest or 
special circumstances . which justify excluding residents of the City of Mendota from 
using their public park facilities. 

17. I, ~~ -./y.L . have read the Mendota Munlcipal Code Chapter 
12.20 re: park permits (attached). I understand all of the requirements for conducting an 
event or activity in the USlj! of the Rojas-Pie~~ r.ark or any City facility. 1 'agree on 
behalf of myself and . C~,J ~ a)t~iv tVOCl ~n ~ (name of applicant), th~ 
organization on whose behalf this application is made, to indemnify, defend and hold 
the City of Mendota harmless, from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, and 
proceedings for money damages or other relief for personal injury, property damage or 
other losses resulting from or. caused by the activity or event for which this permit is 

3 f 
i 



issued. The keys to a·ny facility or electrical panel wm ·not be issued until this document 
is signed by the permittee requesting · a facility and/or consentlhold harmless 
agreements are submitted to· city staff and proof of insurance is provided and all fees 
and deposits are paid. · 

Signature of Permitee:_~-....,:__~__;,_-\)....:..~-=-------DATE: __ \-+-)-~ __ J _/4_ 
l 

1, ~~ -J~ , ·declare I have read and understand the foregoing application 
and all atlachments theretp. I further declare that I will abide by all City, State, County and 
Federal laws at said event. 

· CITY MANAGER APPROVAL 

THIS APPLICATION IS APPROVED I REJECTED FOR USE OF THE ON . t 

-----------...:-· _. THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SHALL APPLY, MAY INCLUDE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT REQUIREMENTS. . 

CITY MANAGER: 
~~~~~---.:..-~~~~--

DATE: -------
************************************************************************************************************* 
SECURITY REQUIREMENT OR CONDITIONS AS PER CITY OF MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT: 

POLICE DEPT: 

4 



Rojas Pierce Park (Mendota)-NM 

Ana Cervantes 559-269-1246 

Date Time 

2nd Thursday, 1/11/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

4th Thursday, 1/25/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

2nd Thursday, 2/8/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

4th Thursday, 2/21/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

2nd Thursday, 3/14/2019 9 :OOa m-11 :OOa m 

4th Thursday, 3/28/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

2nd Thursday, 4/11/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

4th Thursday, 4/25/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

2nd Thursday, 5/9/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

4th Thursaday, 5/23/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

2nd Thursday, 6/13/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

4th Thursaday, 6/27 /2019 9:00am-11:00am 

2nd Thursday, 7 /11/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

4th Thursaday, 7 /25/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

2nd Thursday, 8/8/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

4th Thursaday, 8/22/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

2nd Thursday, 9/12/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

4th Thursaday, 9/26/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

2nd Thursday, 10/10/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

4th Thursaday~ 10/24/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

2nd Thursday, 11/14/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

4th Thursaday, 11/28/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

2nd Thursday, 12/12/2019 9:00am-11:00am 

4th Thursaday, 12/26/2019 9:00am-11:00am 



ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DATE (MM/OD/YYYY) 

~ 01/07/2019 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER($), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER CONTACT Gina Vance NAME: 

Relation Insurance Services of Central California rA~8Ntf0 Ext\: (559)222-0300 I rM. Nol: (559)222-9960 
7673 N Ingram, Ste 103 ~61,A~~ss: gina.vance@relationinsurance.com 

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 

Fresno CA 93711 INSURER A: Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Company 18058 

INSURED INSURER B: Zenith Insurance Company 13269 

Central California Community Food Bank INSURER C: 

See additional named insured page INSURER D: 

3403 E. Central Ave. INSURER E: 

Fresno CA 93725 INSURER F: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL 187386486 REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR POLICYEFF POLICY EXP 
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD WVD POLICY NUMBER IMM/DDNYYYl IMM/DDNYYYl LIMITS 

~ COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000 

=i CLAIMS-MADE ~ OCCUR 
DAMA\jt: TO Rt:N I t:U 100,000 PREMISES lEa occurrence) $ -
MED EXP (Any one oerson) s 10,000 

-
A y PHPK1842457 07/01/2018 07/01/2019 PERSONAL & ADV INJURY s 1,000,000 -

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE s 2,000,000 

~ DPRO- D PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG s 2,000,000 POLICY JECT LOC 

OTHER: Employee Benefits $ 1,000,000 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $ 1,000,000 IEa accident) r>< ANYAUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 

A ,...__ OWNED - SCHEDULED PHUB635843 07/01/2018 07/01/2019 BODILY INJURY (Per accident) s - AUTOS ONLY - AUTOS 
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $ 
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY /Per accident) - - s 
UMBRELLA LIAB H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ -
EXCESSLIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

OED I I RETENTION s s 
WORKERS COMPENSATION )(I ~f~UTE I I OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ER 

YIN 

B ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE D NIA 2135108401 07/01/2018 07/01/2019 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s 1,000,000 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE · EA EMPLOYEE s 1,000,000 
If yes, describe under 1,000,000 DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE · POLICY LIMIT s 

.DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addition al Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required) 

RE: FOOD DISTRIBUTION AT ROJAS-PIERCE PARK-CERT HOLDER rs ADDITIONAL INSURED AS RESPECTS TO GENERAL LIABILITY PER CG20260413 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 

CITY OF MENDOTA-CITY HALL ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

643 QUINCE ST 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

MENDOTA CA 93640-2334 g~~· 
I 

© 1988·2015ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



Additional Named Insureds 

Other Named Insureds 

CCFB Real Estate, Inc. Not for profit org, Additional Named Insured 

Community Food Bank Doing Business As 

Food Opportunities Organization & Distribution Inc., Additional Named Insured 

OFAPPINF (02/2007) COPYRIGHT 2007, AMS SERVICES INC 



Pl-GLD-HS (10/11) 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

GENERAL LIABILITY DELUXE ENDORSEMENT: 
HUMAN SERVICES 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE 

It is understood and agreed that the following extensions only apply in the event that no other specific coverage for 
the indicated loss exposure Is provided under this policy. If such specific coverage applies, the terms, conditions and 
limits of that coverage are the sole and exclusive coverage applicable under this policy, unless otherwise noted on 
this endorsement The following is a summary of the Limits of Insurance and additional coverages provided by this 
endorsement. For complete details on specific coverages, consult the policy contract wording. 

Coverage Applicable Limit of lnsura nee 

Extended Property Damage Included 

Limited Rental Lease Agreement Contractual Liability $50,000 limit 

Non-Owned Watercraft Less than 58 feet 

Damage to Property You Own, Rent, or Occupy $30,000 limit 

Damage to Premises Rented to You $1,000,000 

HIPAA Clarification 

Medical Payments $20,000 

Medical Payments - Extended Reporting Period 3 years 

Athletic Activities Amended 

Supplementary Payments - Bail Bonds $5,000 

Supplementary Payment - Loss of Earnings $1,000 per day 

Employee Indemnification Defense Coverage $25,000 

Key and Lock Replacement - Janitorial Services Client Coverage $10,000 limit 

Additional Insured - Newly Acquired Time Period Amended 

Additional Insured - Medical Directors and Administrators Included 

Additional Insured - Managers and Supervisors (with Fellow Included 
Emolovee Coveraqe) 
Additional Insured - Broadened Named Insured Included 

Additional Insured - Funding Source Included 

Additional Insured - Home Care Providers Included 

Additional lnsu_red - Managers, Landlords, or Lessors of Premises Included 

Additional Insured - Lessor of Leased Equipment Included 

Additional Insured - Granter of Permits Included 

Additional Insured - Vendor Included 

Additional Insured - Franchisor Included 

Additional Insured - When Required by Contract Included 

Additional Insured - Owners, Lessees, or Contractors Included 

Additional Insured - State or Political Subdivisions Included 

Page 1of12 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc .• with its permission. 

© 2011 Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company 

Page# 

2 

2 

2 

2 

3 

4 

5 

5 

5 

5 

5 

5 

6 

6 

7 

7 

7 

7 

7 

7 

7 

8 

8 

9 

9 

9 

10 



Pl-GLD-HS (10/11) 

Duties in the Event of Occurrence, Claim or Suit Included 10 

Unintentional Failure to Disclose Hazards Included 10 

Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others To Us Clarification 10 

Liberalization Included 11 

Bodily Injury- includes Mental Anguish Included 11 

Personal and Advertising Injury - includes Abuse of Process, Included 11 
Discrimination 

A. Extended Property Damage 

SECTION 1- COVERAGES, COVERAGE A BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE 
LIABILITY. Subsection 2. Exclusions, Paragraph a. ls deleted in its entirety and replaced by the 
following: 

a. Expected or Intended Injury 

uBodily injury" or property damage" expected or intended from the standpoint of the Insured. 
This exclusion does not apply to •bodily injury" or •property damage" resulting from the use of 
reasonable force to protect persons or property. 

B. Limited Rental Lease Agreement Contractual Liability 

SECTION I - COVERAGES, COVERAGE A. BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE 
LIABILITY. Subsection 2. Exclusions, Paragraph b. Contractual Llabflity is amended to include the 
following: 

(3) Based on the named insured's request at the time of claim, we agree to indemnify the 
named Insured for their liability assumed in a contract or agreement regarding the rental 
or lease of a premises on behalf of their client, up to $50,000. This coverage extension 
only applies to rental lease agreements. This coverage is excess over any renter's 
liability insurance of the client. · 

C. Non-Owned Watercraft 

SECTION I - COVERAGES, COVERAGE A BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE 
LIABILITY, Subsection 2. Exclusions, Paragraph g. (2) is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the 
following: 

(2) A watercraft you do not own that is: 

(a) Less than 58 feet long; and 

(b) Not being used to carry persons or property for a charge; 

This provision applies to any person, who with your consent, either uses or is responsible for 
the use of a watercraft. This insurance is excess over any other valid and collectible 
insurance available to the insured whether primary, excess or contingent. 

D. Damage to Property You Own, Rent or Occupy 

SECTION I - COVERAGES, COVERAGE A BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE 

Page 2of12 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission. 

© 2011 Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company 



Pl-GLD-HS ( 10/11) 

LIABILITY, Subsection 2. Exclusions, Paragraph j. Damage to Property, Item (1) is deleted in its 
entirety and replaced with the following: 

(1) Property you own, rent, or occupy, including any costs or expenses incurred by you, or 
any other person, organization or entity, for repair, replacement, enhancement, 
restoration or maintenance of such property for any reason, including prevention of Injury 
to a person or damage to anothers property, unless the damage to property is caused by 

. your client, up to a $30,000 limit. A client is defined as a person under your direct care 
and supervision. 

E. Damage to Premises Rented to You 

1. If damage by fire to premises rented to you is not otherwise excluded from this Coverage Part, 
the word "fire" is changed to "fire, lightning, explosion, smoke, or leakage from automatic fire 
protective systems" where it appears in: 

a. The last paragraph of SECTION I - COVERAGES, COVERAGE A BODILY INJURY AND 
PROPERTY DAMAGE LIABILITY, Subsection 2. Exclusions; Is deleted in its entirety and 
replaced by the following: 

Exclusions c. through n. do not apply to damage by fire, lightning, explosion, smoke, or 
leakage from automatic fire protective systems to premises while rented to you or 
temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner. A separate limit of insurance 
applies to this coverage as described in SECTION Ill - LIMITS OF INSURANCE. 

b. SECTION 111- LIMITS OF INSURANCE, Paragraph 6. is deleted in its entirety and replaced 
by the following: 

Subject to Paragraph 5. above, the Damage To Premises Rented To You Limit is the · 
most we will pay under Coverage A for damages because of "property damage" to any 
one premises, while rented to you, or in the case of damage by fire, lightning, explosion, 
smoke, or leakage from automatic fire protective systems while rented to you or 
temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner. 

c. SECTION V - DEFINITIONS, Paragraph 9.a., is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the 
following: 

A contract for a lease of premises. However, that portion of the contract for a lease of 
premises that indemnifies any person or organization for damage by fire, lightning, 
explosion, smoke, or leakage from automatic fire protective systems to premises while 
rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner Is not an 
"insured contract"; 

2. SECTION IV - COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS, Subsection 4. Other 
Insurance, Paragraph b. Excess Insurance, (1) (a) (Ii) is deleted in its entirety and replaced by 
the following: 

That is insurance for fire, lightning, explosion, smoke, or leakage from automatic fire 
protective systems for premises rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with permission 
of the owner. 

3. The Damage To Premises Rented To You Limit section of the Declarations is amended to the 
greater of: 

Page 3of12 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission. 

© 2011 Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company 



Pl-GLD-HS (10/11) 

a. $1,000,000; or 

b. The amount shown in the Declarations as the Damage to Premises Rented to You Limit. 

This is the most we will pay for all damage proximately caused by the same event, whether such 
damage results from fire, lightning, explosion, smoke, ot leaks from automatic fire protective 
systems or any combination thereof. 

F. HIPAA 

SECTION 1- COVERAGES, COVERAGE B PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING INJURY LIABILITY, 
is amended as follows: 

1. Paragraph 1. Insuring Agreement is amended to include the following: 

We will pay those sums that the insured becomes legally obligated to pay as damages because 
of a "violation(s)" of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA). We have 
the right and the duty to defend the insured against any "suit,0 "investigation,0 or "civil proceeding0 

seeking these damages. However, we will have no duty to defend the insured against any "suie 
seeking damages, "investigation," or "civil proceeding" to which this insurance does not apply. 

2. Paragraph 2. Exclusions is amended to include the following additional exclusions: 

This insurance does not apply to: 

a. Intentional, Willful, or Deliberate Violations 

Any willful, intentional, or deliberate "violation(s)" by any insured. 

b. Criminal Acts 

Any "violation" which results in any criminal penalties under the HIPAA. 

c. Other Remedies 

Any remedy other than monetary damages for penalties assessed. 

d. Compliance Reviews or Audits 

Any compliance reviews by the Department of Health and Human Services. 

3. SECTION V - DEFINITIONS is amended to include the following additional definitions: 

a. "Civil proceeding" means an action by the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) 
arising out of ·violations.· 

b. "lnvestigationn means an examination of an actual or alleged "violation(s)" by HHS. However, 
"investigation" does not include a Compliance Review. 

c. "Violationn means the actual or alleged failure to comply with the regulations included in the 
HIPAA. 

Page 4of12 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission. 

© 2011 Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company 



Pl-GLD-HS (10/11) 

G. Medical Payments - Limit Increased to $20,000, ~xtended Reporting Period 

If COVERAGE C MEDICAL PAYMENTS is not otherwise excluded from this Coverage Part: 

1. The Medical Expense Limit is changed subject to all of the terms of SECTION Ill - LIMITS OF 
INSURANCE to the greater of: 

a. $20,000; or 
b. The Medical Expense Limit shown in the Declarations of this Coverage Part .. 

2. SECTION 1- COVERAGE, COVERAGE C MEDICAL PAYMENTS1 Subsection 1. Insuring 
Agreementa a. (3) (b) is deleted in its entirety .and replaced by the following: 

(b) The expenses are incurred and reported to us within three years of the date of the 
accident. 

H. Athletic Activities 

. SECTION I-COVERAGES, COVERAGE C MEDICAL PAYMENTS, Subsection 2. Exclusions, 
Paragraph e. Athletic Activities is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

e. Athletic Activities 

To a person injured while taking part in athletics. 

I. Supplementary Payments 

SECTION I-COVERAGES, SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS -COVERAGE A AND Bare 
amended as foflows: 

1. b. is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 

1. b. Up to $5000 for cost of bail bonds required because of accidents or traffic law violations 
arising out of the use of any vehicle to which the Bodily Injury Liability Coverage applies. We 
do not have to furnish these. 

1.d. is deleted In Its entirety and replaced by the following: 

1. d. All reasonable expenses incurred by the insured at our request to assist us in the 
Investigation or defense of the claim or "suit''. including actual loss of earnings up to $1,000 a 
day because of time off from work. 

J. Employee Indemnification Defense Coverage 

SECTION I-COVERAGES, SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS-COVERAGES A AND B the 
following Is added: 

We will pay, on your behalf, defense costs incurred by an ·employee1
' in a criminal proceeding 

occurring in the course of employment. 

The most we will pay for any "employee" who is alleged to be directly involved in a criminal 
proceeding Is $25,000 regardless of the numbers of '"employees," claims or "suits11 brought or 
persons or organizations making claims or bringing "suits. 

Page 5of12 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission. 

© 2011 Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance. Company 



Pl-GLD-HS (10/11) 

K. Key and Lock Replacement - Janitorial Services Client Coverage 

SECTION I-COVERAGES, SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS -COVERAGES A AND Bis 
amended to Include the following: 

We will pay for the cost to replace keys and locks at the "clients" premises due to theft or other 
loss to keys entrusted to you by your aclient," up to a $10,000 limit per occurrence and $10,000 
policy aggregate. 

We will not pay for loss or damage resulting from theft or any other dishonest or criminal act that 
you or any of your partners, members, officers, "employeesn, "managers", directors, trustees, 
authorized representatives or any one to whom you entrust the keys of a "client" for any 
purpose commit, whether acting alone or in collusion with other persons. 

The following, when used on this coverage, are defined as follows: 

a. "Client" means an individual, company or organization with whom you have a written contract 
or work order for y_our services for a described premises and have billed for your services. 

b. "Employee" means: 

(1) Any natural person: 

(a) While Jn your service or for 30 days after termination of service; 

(b) Who you compensate directly by salary, wages or commissions; and 

(c) Who you have the right to direct and control while performing services for you; or 

(2) Any natural person who is furnished temporarily to you: 

(a) To substitute for a permanent "employee" as defined in Paragraph (1) above, who is 
on leave; or 

(b) To meet seasonal or short-term workload conditions; 

while that person is ~ubject to your direction and control· and performing services for you. 

(3) "Employee" does not mean: 

(a) Any agent, broker, person leased to you by a labor leasing firm, factor, commission 
merchant, consignee, independent contractor or representative of the same general 
character; or 

{b) Any "manager," director or trustee except while performing acts coming within the 
scope of the usual duties of an °employee." 

c. "Manager" means a person serving in a directorial capacity for a limited liability company. 

L. Additional Insureds 

SECTION 11- WHO IS AN INSURED Is amended as follows: 

1. If coverage for newly acquired or formed organizations is not otherwise excluded from this 

Page 6of12 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission. 

© 2011 Philadelphia tndemnity Insurance Company 



Pl-GLD-HS (10/11) 

Coverage Part, Paragraph 3.a. is deleted in its entirely and replaced by the following: 

a. Coverage under this provision is afforded until the end of the policy period. 

2. Each of the following is also an insured: 

a. Medical Directors and Administrators -Your medical directors and administrators, but 
only while acting within the scope of and during the course of their duties as such. Such 
duties do not include the furnishing or failure to furnish professional services of any physician 
or psychiatrist in the treatment of a patient. 

b. Managers and Supervisors - Your managers and supervisors are also insureds, but 
only with respect to their duties as your managers and supervisors. Managers and 
supervisors who are your "employees" are also insureds for "bodily injury" to a co-
11employee" while in the course of his or her employment by you or performing duties 
related to the conduct of your business. 

This provision does not change Item 2.a.(1)(a) as it applies to managers of a limited 
liability company. · 

c. Broadened Named Insured -Any organization and subsidiary thereof which you control and 
actively manage on the effective date of this Coverage Part. However, coverage does not 
apply to any organization or subsidiary not named in the Declarations as Named Insured, if 
they are also insured under another similar policy, but for its termination or the exhaustion of 
its limits of insurance. 

d. Funding Source -Any person or organization with respect to their liability arising out of: 

(1) Their financial control ol you; or 

(2) Premises they own, maintain or control while you lease or occupy these premises. 

This Insurance does not apply to structural alterations, new construction and demolition 
operations performed by or for that person or organization. 

e. Home Care Providers -At the first Named lnsured's option, any person or organization 
under your direct supervision and control while providing for you private home respite or 
foster home care for the developmentally disabled. 

f. Managers, Landlords, or Lessors of Premises -Any person or organization with respect 
to their liability arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of that part of the premises 
leased or rented to you subject to the following additional exclusions: 

This insurance does not apply to: 

(1) Any "occurrence" which takes place after you cease to be a tenant in that premises; or 

(2) Structural alterations. new construction or demolition operations performed by or on 
behalf of that person or organization. 

g. Lessor of Leased Equipment - Automatic Status When Required in Lease Agreement 
With You -Any person or organization from whom you lease equipment when you and such 
person or organization have agreed in writing in a contract or agreement that such person or 
organization Is to be added as an additional insured on your policy. Such person or 

Page 7of12 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc .• with its permission. 

© 2011 Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company 



Pl-GLD-HS (10/11) 

organization is an insured only with respect to liability for "bodily injury," "property damage" or 
"personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your maintenance, operation 
or use of equipment leased to you by such person or organization. 

A person's or organization's status as an additional insured under this endorsement ends 
when their contract or agreement with you for such leased equipment ends. 

With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, this insurance does not 
apply to any ·occurrence" which takes place after the equipment lease expires. 

h. Granters of Permits -Any state or political subdivision granting you a permit in connection 
with your premises subject to the following additional provision: 

(1) This·insurance applies only with respect to the following hazards for which the state or 
political subdivision has issued a permit in connection with the premises you own, rent or 
control and to which this insurance applies: 

(a) The existence, maintenance, repair, construction, erection, or removal of advertising 
signs, awnings, canopies, cellar entrances, coal holes, driveways, manholes, 
marquees, hoist away openings, sidewalk vaults, street banners or decorations and 
similar exposures; 

(b) The construction, erection, or removal of elevators; or 

(c) The ownership, maintenance, or use of any elevators covered by this insurance. 

I. Vendors - Only with respect to "bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of "your 
products" which are distributed or sold in the regular course of the vendor9s business, subject 
to the fo11owing additional exclusions: 

(1) The insurance afforded the vendor does not apply to: 

(a) "Bodily injury'' or "property damage" for which the vendor is obligated to pay 
damages by reason of the assumption of liability in a contract or agreement. This 
exclusion does not apply to liability for damages that the vendor would have in the 
absence of the contract or agreement; 

(b) Any express warranty unauthorized by you; 

(c) Any physical or chemical change in the product made intentionally by the vendor; 

(d) Repackaging, except when unpacked solely for the purpose of Inspection, 
demonstration, testing, or the substitution of parts under instructions from the 
manufacturer, and then repackaged in the original container; 

(e) Any failure to make such Inspections, adjustments, tests or servicing as the vendor 
has agreed to make or normally undertakes to make in the usual course of business, 
in connection with the distribution or sale of the products; 

(f) Demonstration, installation, servicing or repair operations, except such operations 
performed at the vendor's premises in connection with the sale of the product; 

Page 8of12 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission. 

© 2011 Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company 



Pl-GLD-HS (10/11) 

(g) Products which, after distribution or sale by you, have been labeled or relabeled or 
used as a container, part or Ingredient of any other thing or substance by or for the 
vendor; or 

(h) 118odily injury'' or 11property damage" arising out of the sole negligence of the vendor 
for its own acts or omissions or those of its employees or anyone else acting on its 
behalf. However, this exclusion does not apply to: 

(i) The exceptions contained in Sub-paragraphs (d) or (f); or 

(ii) Such inspections, adjustments, tests. or servicing as the vendor has agreed to 
make or normally undertakes to make in the usual course of business, in 
connection with the distribution or sale of the products. 

(2) This insurance does not apply to any insured person or organization, from whom you 
have acquired such products, or any ingredient, part or container, entering into, 
accompanying or containing. 

j. Franchisor -Any person or organization with respect to their liability as the granter of a 
franchise to you. 

k. As Required by Contract-Any person or organization where required by a written contract 
executed prior to the occurrence of a loss. Such person or organization is an additional 
insured for 11bodily Injury," "property damage11 or "personal and advertising injury'' but only for 
liability arising out of the negligence of the named insured. The limits of insurance applicable 
to these additional insureds are the lesser of the policy limits or those limits specified in a 
contract or agreement. These limits are included within and not in addition to the limits of 
insurance shown In the Declarations 

I. Owners, Lessees or Contractors -Any person or organization. but only with respect to 
liability for "bodily injury," 11property damage11 or"personal and advertising injury'' caused, in 
whole or in part, by: 

(1) Your acts or omissions; or 

(2) The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf; 

in the performance of your ongoing operations for the additional insured when required by a 
contract. 

With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following additional 
exclusions apply: 

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury11 or "property damage" occurring after: 

(a) All work, Including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such 
work, on the project (other than service, maintenance or repairs) to be performed by 
or on behalf of the additional lnsured{s) at the location of the covered operations has 
been completed; or 

(b) That portion of "your work" out of which the injury or damage arises has been put to 
its intended use by any person or organization other than another contractor or 
subcontractor engaged in performing operations for a principal as a part of the same 
project. 

Page 9of12 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission. 

© 2011 Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company 



Pl-GLD-HS (10/11) 

m. State or Political Subdivisions -Any state or political subdivision as required, subject to 
the following provisions: 

(1) This insurance applies only with respect to operations performed by you or on your behalf 
for which the state or political subdivision has issued a permit, and is required by 
contract. 

(2) This Insurance does not apply to: 

(a) "Bodily injury," 0 property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of 
operations performed for the state or municipality; or 

(b) "Bodily injury'' or "property damage" included within the "products-completed 
operations hazard." 

M. Duties In the Event of Occurrence, Claim or Suit 

SECTION IV -COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS, Paragraph 2. is amended as 
follows: 

a. is amended to Include: 

This condition applies only when the "occurrence" or offense is known to: 

(1) You, if you are an individual; 

(2) A partner~ if you are a partnership; or 

(3) An executive officer or insurance manager, if you are a corporation. 

b. is amended to Include: 

This condition will not be considered breached unless the breach occurs after such claim or "suit" 
is known to: 

(1) You, if you are an individual; 

(2) A partner, if you are a partnership; or 

(3) An executive officer or insurance manager, if you are a corporation. 

N. Unintentional Failure To Disclose Hazards 

SECTION IV - COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS, 6. Representations is 
amended to include the following: 

It is agreed that, based on our reliance on your representations as to existing hazards, if you 
should unintentionally fail to disclose all such hazards prior to the beginning of the policy period of 
this Coverage Part, we shall not deny coverage under this Coverage Part because of such failure. 

0. Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others To Us 

SECTION IV - COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS, 8. Transfer of Rights of 

Page 10of12 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission. 

© 2011 Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company 



Pl-GLD-HS (10/11) 

Recovery Against Others To Us is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 

If the insured has rights to recover all or part of any payment we have made under this Coverage 
Part, those rights are transferred to us. The insured must do nothing after loss to impair them. At 
our request, the insured will bring "suif' or transfer those rights to us and help us enforce th~m. 

Therefore, the insured can waive the insurer's rights of recovery prior to the occurrence of a 
loss, provided the waiver is made in a written contract. 

P. Liberalization 

SECTION IV - COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS, is amended to include the 
following: 

If we revise this endorsement to provide more coverage without additional premium charge, we 
will automatically provide the additional coverage to all endorsement holders as of the day the 
revision is effective In your state. 

Q. Bodily Injury - Mental Anguish 

SECTION V..:. DEFINITIONS, Paragraph 3. Is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 

"Bodily injury" means: 

a. Bodily injury, sickness or disease sustained by a person, and includes mental anguish 
resulting from any of these; and 

b. Except for mental an_guish, Includes death resulting from the foregoing (Item a. above) at any 
time. 

R. Personal and Advertising Injury - Abuse of Process, Discrimination 

If COVERAGE 8 PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING INJURY LIABILITY COVERAGE is not 
otherwise excluded from this Coverage Part, the definition of "personal and advertising injury° is 
amended as follows: 

1. SECTION V - DEFINITIONS, Paragraph 14.b. is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the 
following: 

b. Malicious prosecution or abuse of process; 

2. SECTION V- DEFINITIONS, Paragraph 14. is.amended by adding the following: 

Discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, age or national origin, except when: 

a. Done intentionally by or at the direction of, or with the knowledge or consent of: 

(1) Any insured; or 

(2) Any executive officer, director, stockholder, partner or member of the insured; 

b. Directly or indirectly related to the employment, former or prospective employment, 
termination of employment, or application for employment of any person or persons by an 
insured; 

Page 11of12 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc .. with its permission. 

© 2011 Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company 



Pl-GLD-HS {10/11) 

c. Directly or indirectly related to the sale, rental, lease or sublease or prospective sales, rental, 
lease or sub-lease of any room, dwelling or premises by or at the direction of any Insured; or 

d. · Insurance for such discrimination is prohibited by or held in violation of law, public policy, 
legislation, court decision or administrative ruling. 

The above does not apply to fines or penalties imposed because of discrimination. 

Page 12of12 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission. 

© 2011 Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company 



CITY OF MENDOTA 
FACILITY USE APPLICATION 

\ 

PLEASE COMPLETE ALL QUESTIONS OR ITEMS FOR WHICH INFORMATION IS REQUESTED. PRINT 

ALL ANSWERS EXCEPT THE SIGNATURE. 

FOR USE OF .ALL OR SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF THE ROJAS-PIERCE PARK PICNIC AREA AND 

BANDSTAND, OR MENDOTA POOL PARK BANDSTAND, VETERANS PARK, APPLICANTS MUST 

APPEAR BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL FOR APPROVAL OF THE PERMIT. 

NOTE: SECTION 12.20.050 APPLICATIONS FOR EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED WITH THE CITY 

CLERK DURING THE· MONTH OF FEBRUARY ANNUALLY AND SHALL BE SET FOR CONSIDERATION 

BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT ·ITS FIRST MEETING IN MARCH ANNUALLY. APPLICATIONS FOR 

EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED NOT LESS THAN TWENTY ONE (21) NOR MORE THAN ONE 

HUNDRED FIFTY (150) ,DAYS PRIOR TO THE USE OF THE FACILITY. PROMOTERS SHALL REQUEST 

AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY BESIDES THE APPLICATION. 

NOTE: SECTION 12.20.110: APPLICANT MUST PROVIDE THE CITY WITH CERTIFICATES OF 

INSURANCE SPECIFYING THE CITY OF MENDOTA AS NAMED INSURED EVIDENCING LIABILITY AND 

PROPERTY DAMAGE LIMITS WITH A COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT OF NOT LESS THAN ONE MILLION 

£?0LLARS ($1,000,000). 

~i' 
~ 
[ ] 
[ ] 
[ ] 
[ ] 

COMPLETED APPLICATION. 

PROOF OF INSURANCE POLICY SHOWING .CITY OF MENDOTA AS ADDITIONAL INSURED. 

PROOF OF LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR FACILITY USE . . . 
DEPOSIT, USE FEE, AND KEY DEPOSIT SUBMITTED TO FINANCE DEPARTMENT. 

OBTAINED SECURITY AS REQUIRED BY MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT 

ORIGINAL SIGNATURE OF PERMITTEE WITH ACKNOWLEDGMENT. 

AMPLIFIED MUSIC PERMIT IF APPLICABLE . 

1 



1. This application is for the use of the following facility: 

~EN OOTB Q_ 0 M.'lA v fJ l R( CElJ(EYL 
. .. . 

2. The organization, individual, bus.iness or entity applying for the use permit: 

\=-~~5NO ~oc_· 

3. The contact person on behalf of the applicant, regarding the event or activity for which 

4. 

use permit is requested together with all of the following information: · 

NAME: G ctb~L\ ~omu-o _ . 
Ao~REss (STREET AND c1rv): 1 C\Q.O l'io..vipos4 f'\u.Lt $11.t"l-e Boo 1*~NO CA C/372-\ 
TELEPHONE No.: 559 - 2Co ~ - ID 29 

tl iot'l 
DATE: {:°~b~ 1 rf\a.r'5; ~pr 2, fntll(7),me rrl\ilE: __ 7_ !_u_· 0_--_2_.'_LJ_D_A_~------

5. P'ease describe the exact park area or areas· requested for Exclusive Use. (List below 
and circle the area on t~e attached map). 

\Cl? S mcot- Ave 

6. Purpose or function for which the. permit is requested. Give statement of reasons for 
exclusive use. No.te: Section 12.20.090(b)(c) Fees and Deposits as required. 

Dt?Q!Mjht cdieJ- .fuod. d1':±r:~bu.:t1M~ 
·7. · Number·of persons expected to attend the function or event. ~ '7:£) -- 200 

8. Will alcoholic beverages be sold?° Yes No. K note: if yes, you must apply for 
and receive a separate permit from the state department of alcohol beverage control, if 
so, liquor liability insurance is required to be purchased ·thirty · (30) days in advance by 
the applicant. The Fresno County Sheriff's department must .be contacted · regarding 
this application. The City of Mendota parks are tobacco free and alcohol free. 

9. Has a promoter b~en contracted . to present, produce, or otherwise be involved in the 
event, activity or entertainment during the event? Yes_ No_. Note: se.ction 
12.20.110, if yes, the promoter is required to provide certificate of insurance evidencing 
liability and property damage limits with a combined single limit of not less than 
$1,000,000 with a deductible of nor more than $500, and shall ~pecify the City of 
Mendota and applicant as named insured. 

2 



10. If . a promoter wm present, ·produce, or otherwis~ be involved in the event, activity or 
entertainment, state th_e name, address and telephone number of the promoter ~nd 
describe his/her/its participation in the event. Note: Section 5.08.030 Amusement Par~ 
Rides and Attractions; Sect~ori 5.08.300 Musical al)d Theatrical Shows. The Prom~ter is 
required to obtain a business license. 

11: Detailed description of all entertainment and activities, including equipment and 
vehicles to be used, the nature and times of use of such equipme~t, and the nature and 
time of use of any amplified sound equipment. Please keep in mind that anything not 
mentioned below will not be allowed. · 

12. Will concession stand(s) be used? Yes ~ 
concession, $150.00 fee, per league, no exemptions. 

No. Note: for baseball diamond 

13. Will there be an admissions charge to the event? If so, sta~e the exact amount of each 
ticket $ O , DO . State the reason for imposing this admission charge. 

. . 

14. Will there be a live band at this function? Yes No ------
(See attached municipal code regarding noise ordinance) 

15. State the names and addresses of all persons or groups which will receive any of the 
proceeds from this event, including· concessions, and how those proceeds ·will be 
divided among such persons or groups. 
ffieociotn ces\ ct u+s Lu\ l\ f e C\el ve bee e ·foo:A . . 

16. If this permit application is for all or substantially all of the park area, or all or 
substantially all of the ·picnic and bandstand are, state the overriding public interest or 
special circu.mstances which justify excluding residents of the City of Mend.ota from 
using their public park facilities. 

17. I, · Go .. b'f'\ela. ~mU-0 have ·read the Mendota Municipal Code Chapter 
12.20 re: park permits (attached). I understand all .of the requirements for con~ucting an 
event or activity in the use of the Rojas-Pierce Park or any City facility. I agree on 
behalf of myself and Freooo EO~ (name of applican.t), the 
organization on whose behalf this application is made, to indemnify, defend and holci 
the City of Mendota harmless, from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, and 
proceedings for money damages or other relief for personal injury, p·roperty damage or 
other losses resulting from or. caused by the activity or event for which this permit is 

3 



issued. The keys to a·ny facility or electrical panel will not be issued until this document 
is signed by the permittee requesting a facility and/or consent/hold harmless 
agreements are submitted to city staff and proof of insurance is provided and all fees 
and deposits are paid. 

1, Gu..bri e.\~ ~omero , declare I have r~ad and understand the foregoing application 
and all ·attachments thereto. I further declare that I will abide by all City, State, County and 
Federal laws at said event. 

. Signature of Permitee 

· CITY MANAGER APPROVAL 

THIS APPLICATION IS APPROVED/ REJECTED FOR USE OF THE ON 

------------· _. THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SHALL APPLY, MAY INCLUDE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT REQUIREMENTS. . 

DATE: --------
************************************************************************************************************* 
SECURITY REQUIREMENT OR CONDITIONS AS PER CITY OF MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT: 

POLICE DEPT: DATE: ----------
4 



ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DA TE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

~ 7/9/2018 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~~AA1~cT Stacey Okimoto 
Heffernan Insurance Brokers 

r11gNtfo Extl : 925-934-8500 I FAX 
1350 Carlback Avenue IA/C Nol: 925-934-8278 

Walnut Creek, CA 94596 ~oMtJ~ss: StaceyO@heffins.com 

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A: Nonprofits Insurance Alliance of California 1184 
INSURED FRESCOU-02 INSURER B : Cypress Insurance Company 10855 
Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission 

INSURERC : 1920 Mariposa Mall Suite 330 
Fresno, CA 93721 INSURER D: 

INSURER E : 

INSURER F : 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 790885897 REVISION NUMBER: 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR 
TYPE OF INSURANCE 

ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 
LIMITS LTR 1t.ic:n \M\tn POLICY NUMBER IMM/DD/YYYYl IMM/DD/YYYYl 

A x COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY y 201828175NPO 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000 
- =:J CLAIMS-MADE 0 OCCUR 

DAMAGE TO RENTED 
f--

PREMISES IEa occurrencel $ 500,000 

f--
MED EXP (Any one person) $20,000 

f--
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000 

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE $ 3,000,000 Fl DPRO- [K]Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 3,000,000 POLICY JECT 

OTHER: $ 

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 201828175NPO 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $1,000,000 IEa accidentl -
x ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ 

- -OWNED SCHEDULED 
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 

- f--

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY !Per accidentl $ 

- f--

COMP OED/COLL OED $1,000/$1,000 

A x UMBRELLA LIAS ~OCCUR 201828175UMB 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000,000 -
EXCESS LIAS CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 10,000,000 

OED J X J RETENTION $ 1 n nnn $ 

B WORKERS COMPENSATION FRWC908318 1/1/2018 1/1/2019 x I ~¥~TUTE I I OTH-
ER AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/N 

ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE D NIA 
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000 

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000 
If yes, describe under 

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1 ,000,000 DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below 
A SOCIAL SERVICE LIABILITY 201828175NPO 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 EACH EVENT $1,000,000 

NO RETRO DATE AGGREGATE $3,000,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 
Re: Mendota Community Center. 
City of Mendota is included as an additional insured on General Liability policy per the attached endorsement, if required. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

City of Mendota 
643 Quince Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
Mendota, CA 93640 

1!11~ I 

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



POLICY NUMBER: 2018-28175 
Named Insured: Fresno County Economic Opportunities Commission 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CG 20 26 0413 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED - DESIGNATED 
PERSON OR ORGANIZATION 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE 

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or Organization(s): 

Any person or organization that you are required to add as an additional insured on this policy, under a written 
contract or agreement currently in effect, or becoming effective during the term of this policy. The additional 
insured status will not be afforded with respect to liability arising out of or related to your activities as a real 
estate manager for that person or organization. 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

A. Section II - Who Is An Insured is amended to 
include as an additional insured the person(s) or 
organization( s) shown in the Schedule, but only 
with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property 
damage" or "personal and advertising injury'' 
caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or 
omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting 
on your behalf: 
1. In the performance of your ongoing operations; 

or 
2. In connection with your premises owned by or 

rented to you. 

However: 
1. The insurance afforded to such additional 

insured only applies to the extent permitted by 
law; and 

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is 
required by a contract or agreement, the 
insurance afforded to such additional insured 
will not be broader than that which you are 
required by the contract or agreement to 
provide for such additional insured. 

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these 
additional insureds, the following is added to 
Section Ill - Limits Of Insurance: 

If coverage provided to the additional insured is 
required by a contract or agreement, the most we 
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the 
amount of insurance: 
1. Required by the contract or agreement; or 
2. Available under the applicable Lim its of 

Insurance shown in the Declarations; 
whichever is less. 

This endorsement shall not increase the 
applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the 
Declarations. . 

CG 20 26 04 13 ©Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 1 



CITY OF MEND0TA. . 
FACILITY USE APPLICATION 

P'LE~SE COMPLETE AL:-L QUESTIONS OR if EMS FOR WHICH INFORMATiON rs ·REQUESTED. PR~NT 
· ALL ANSWERS EXCEPT THE SIGNATURE. 

FOR USE OF ALL 9f{ SUBSTANTIALL v. ALL OF THE Rp~AS~PIERC·~ PARK PrcNic AREA AND 

BANDSTAND, OR MENDOTA POOL PA~K BANDSTAND, VET~RAN~· PARK, APP:L.ICANTS MUST 

APPEAR BE~ORE THE CITY COUNCIL FOR APPROYA~· bF THE PERMIT. 

Nore: SECTION 12.20.050 APPLICATIONS FOR EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE ·FJU~O WITH THE CITY 

c°Lf:RK DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY ANNUALLY AND SHALL BE SET FOR CONSIDERATION 

~y THE CiTY COUNCIL AT ·ITS FIRST MEETING IN MARCH ANNUALLY. APPLICATIONS FOR 

EX(;LUSf\lE USE SHALL BE FILED NOT LESS THAN TWENTY ONE (21.) NOR l'JIQRE THAN ONE 

~UNDRED FIFTY (150) .DA VS PRJOR TO THE USE OF THE F~CJLIT'(. PROMOTERS SHALL REQUEST 
AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY BESIDES THE APPLICATION. 

~_OTE: SECTION 12._20~ 110: APPLICANT MUST -P·ROYfDE ~HE. CITY WIT~ ~:~IUIFICATES OF 
INS~_RANCE SPECIPYING THE CITY OF !VJENDOTA AS NAMED _l_NSURED EVIDENCING LIABILITY AND 

PROPERTY DAMAGE LIMITS WJTH A COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT QF NOT LESS .THAN ONE MILLION 
c;">OL_LARS _($1 ,000,000). . 

[~ETEDAPPLiCATION. , 
[ ~F INSURANCE POLICY SHOWING.CITY OF MENDOTA AS ADDITIONAL INSURED. 
[ L..r-PR0QF OF LIABILITY INSURANCE .FOR FACILITY USE . . , . . · · 

[ ] DEPOSIT, USE FEE, AND KEY DEPOSiT SUBMITIED TO FINANCE DEPARTMENT. 
( ] _OBTAINED SECURITY AS REQUlRED BY MENDOTAPOLiCE DEPARTMENT 
[ ] ORIGINAL SIGNATURE OF.PERMITI,EE wm~ ACKNOWLEDGly.fEf'iT. 
( ] AMPLIFIED MUSIC PERMIT·IF APPLICABLE . 

1 



1. This a·pplication · · for the us.~ of he following facfUty: 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

·7. 

8. 

9. 

( 

I,· business or entity a1pp.lyhig for the use permit:· 

oc ~v0iCJ,S . f1t. · . . . 

The contact person on l)eha(fof the applicant, regarding the event or activity for which 
use permit is reque ted fogether with all of the fo.Uowing information: · 

NAME: JlsQ wr~ . . . 
n ?J7Db 

~~ ........ ~~;;..;....:..;~~------~~-=-~~~----~~~ 

TELEPHONE No.: ---t,,...;=:::;;.....-Jo._.,.__~3=-. -~--~._((l ___ . _. -----------

DATE: :fovxs _daj \, °#e~( )rlME:_q___,__,; l~tj')~O( m_· -_......{)........__~ o"'--=-i>_,__f rf\_ 
Ple.~s~ de~cri.be the exact P.Cll"k area or area~· req·uesQ for Exclusive Us~. (List below 
and circle the area on t~e attached map). . 

:fus~clo -w Gnn1Ml'l;1r4 C1(\Jec -cu10 . M'\tlns tot- · 
Purpose or function for which .the permit is requested. Give statement of reasons for 

~i~;1Q~rfuSBCt~~\i;J;~b)(~ FM?l~:~os~a~~;;red. 
. I . . . 

Number·Of persons expected to att~nd the ;unction or event. Go' 5) \)eop\.Q,. 
Wiii alco~61ic beverages be ~old? Yes .. No.A note: if yes, you must apply f~r 
and re.ce1ve a separate permit from the state department of alcohol beverage control1 rf 
so, .liquor-liability insur~nce is requi-red to be purchased ·thirty (30) days in advance by 
the appli~ant. The Fresno ~ounty Sheriff's department must .be contac~ed regarding 
this appUcation. The City of Mendota parks are tobacco free and alcohor free. 

Has a promoter b~en contrac.ted . to pres.en.t,. ·.produce, ·or ot1Jerwis¥ e involved in the 
event, activity or ehtertai~~ent during the .event? Yes_.·_· No . Note: $ection 
12.20.110, if y'es, the proin.o.te·r is required tO p~ovide certificate of ms ran.ce eyidencing 
liability and property damag~ limits with a com~ined single limit of not less than 
$1,000,000 with a deductibf.e o.f. nor more than $500; ·and shaU $pecify the City of 

· Mendota and applicant as named insured. . 

2 



10. lf·a promoter will present, produce, or otherwis~ be i·nvolved· in the event, activity or 
~ntertainment, state. the name, adqress and telephone ~-umber Qf . the promoter . ~nd 
describe hislher/it$ participation in the event. Note: Section 5.0-8.030 Amusement. Park 

. Rides ~rid Attractio11s; Sedton 5.08.300 Musical and Th.eatrical Shows. The Promoter is 
requ.ired to obtain a business license. 

NAME: . . . . J /&-: 
ADDRESS: I 
PARTICIPATION/INVOLVEMENT: " . 

~~-.-~~~~~--~-.--.--.-~-.,...-.----.--.---~ 

1 ( Detaiied .description of all entertainment and activities, i.ncluding equipment arid 
v~hicles to be used,_ the nature ~nd times oJ use of suc;h: equiprnetJt, and _th~ nature c_md 
time of use of ·any amplified sound equipment. Please keep iri mind that anything not 
mentioned below wHI not be allowed. · . . .. 

(jiffr sirJf \D\11 be -~rxJ m:fo,1 lli )cJ& af2()Ll4 ov . 
~~W !iG~caj u C'.alfi~n. 97££t=hlm1ll{·1 onr: 

12. Will con~es~ion stand(S) be used? . . Yes . . . V No, Note: for baSeball diamond 
concess10~, $150.00 fee, per league, no exempt1~ . 

13. Wlff the,r~ be· an admissions charge to the event? If so, state the exact amo~nt of each 
tic-ket $ . State .~he reason _for· im'posing thi~ admission charge. 

. . 
14. Will there be a Hve. ·b.and at this function? 

----~....,... 

(See attached municipal code regarding ri_ois~ ordinance) 
Yes No 

15. State th~ names and addresses of all per!)ons or group·s which wif.I rece.ive any of the 
proceeds from this event, including concessions, and how those proceeds ·will be 
divided ilmoiig such persons or groups. J / t3-: . · 

- . I . . . 

16. If this permit application is for all or substantially -au of the park area, or all or 
subst~ntiaUy all of th,e picnl.c and bandstand are, state -the_ overriding public interest or 
special circu~stances . which justify excluding residents of the City of Mendota from 
using their public park facHities. · · · 

17 • . · l,~ ~u..Q,\~j(r) . have read the l\'lendota Municipal Code Chapter 
1 iOre:pa_rk,lermUs · (attach~~). I ~nderst~nd all of the requirements for con~ucting an 
event or 8:ct.Mty in the~~fth~ ~S"P-ip.rce Park or any City facility •. !agree on 
behalf of mysel.f and . ~will _ill__lliffi \U C\._ . (name of applicant), the 
organization on whose beh-alf this application is made, ·to indemnify, defend and hold 
t.he City ~f Mendota h __ atn:iless, from and against any and all cl.aims, actionsJ suits, and 
·proceedings for money damages or other ieJief for personal injury, property ·damage or 
other losses ·resulting from or. ~aused by the activity or event for which this perm.it is 

3 



1, , 'declare I have 1·ead and understand the foregoing application 
~nd alJ attachm nts th.er~tp._ I furth~r µeclare that I will ~bide by all City, State, Cou~ty a:nd 
Federal laws at said event. 

: 

· CJTYMANAGERAPPR9VAL 

THIS APPqCATION IS APPROVED I REJ·ECTEO FOR USE OF THE · ON 
_____ ............. __ ___,_. _. THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SHALL APPLY, MAY INCLUDE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT REQUl:REMENTS. . . 

( . 

CITY MANAGER: 
~-~--~~--.:..-~~------

DATE: _____ _ 

***********~**********************************~************************************************************** 
SE_CURITY REQUIREMENT.OR CONDITlONS AS PER CITY OF MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT: 

PouceDEPT: DATE: ______ _ 

4 



ACORU CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DATE (MMl'DD/YYYY) 

~ 1/4/2019 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY TME POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 
the terms and conditions of the pollcy, certain pollcles may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the 
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER NAME':""' Debra Whi ta 
Walter R Reinhardt Insurance Agency, Inc. r!f~~ ., ... ,. (559 > 226-4700 I r~ Nol: (559) 226-5731 

499 West Shaw Avenue, Ste. 130 t,"D1~ss:debbie•reinhardtinsurance.com 

INSURERISl AFFORDING COVERAGE NAtC• 

Preano CA 93704-2516 INSURER A: NONPROFITS INS ALLIANCB OP CA 
INSURED INSURERS: 

Centro La Familia Advocacy Service• Inc INSURERC: 

302 Fresno Street INSURERD: 

Suite 102 INSURERE: 

Fre•no CA 93706 INSURERF: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:CL1881612496 REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR 
TYPE OF INSURANCE 

POUCYEFF POLICY EXP 
LIMITS LTR llJRn I W\11\ POLICY NUMBER fMU/[')0/YYYYl . 

:z: COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,·000,000 --D CLAIMS.MADE ~ OCCUR ~~~~~~~c=eneel A s 500,000 -
~ J:mpr5?Eer sexual conduct x 2018-01682-NPO 7/1/2018 '1/1/2019 MED EXP (Any one person) $ 20,000 

...!... Social Serv Prof Lia!> PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000 

GEN\. AGGRE3ATE !..IMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000 

~ POLICY D r.'8i DLoc PRODUCTS-COMP/OPAGG $ 3,000,000 

OTHER: Non-owned & Hired Auto Lieb $ 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY ~~r:'c:!j'd~~INGLE LIMIT s 1,000,000 
..---

A ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ -- ALL OWNED - SCHEDULED 
AUTOS AUTOS 2018·01fi82-DO 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 BODlL y INJURY (Per accident) $ - - NON-OWNED rp~~~R,l!RAMAGE x HIRED AUTOS x $ ---- - AUTOS 

$ 

UMBRELLA UAB 
HOCCUR EACH OCCUARENCE $ -

EXCESSUAB CLAIMS.MADE AGGREGATE $ 

DED I I RETENTION s $ 
WORKERS COMPENSATION I ~~UTE I I ~~1-1-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/N 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE D NIA 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 
OFFICEM.1EMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 

g~~~l~I~~ ~~~ERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT s 
A Bmployee Dishonesty cov 2018·01fi82-JROJ '1/1/2018 7/1/2019 $100,000 

Forgery & Alteratio:n $2,500 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS /VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addltlonal Remartw Schedule, may be attached If more apace ls required) 
Re: use of facilitie• Medical/Cal-Prash Bnrollmants a 195 Smoot Avenue, Mendota, CA 93640 

'l'he City of Mendota, its officiala, officer1, agent•, eu;>loyees a volunteers are named aa additional 
insured, per form CO 20 26 04 13 attached. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF ntE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 

City of Mendota 
643 Quince Street 
Mendota, CA 

I 

ACORD 25 (2014101) 
INS025 (201401) 

93640 

TifE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AU'lltORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

Walt Reinhardt/DAW ~=,'1~w; 
© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



POLICY NUMBER: 2018-01682-NPO COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CG 20 26 0413 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED- DESIGNATED 
PERSON ·OR ORGANIZATION 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE 

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or Organization(s): 

Any person or organization that you are required to add· as an additional insured on this policy, under 
a written contract or agreement currently in effect, or becoming effective during the term of this poHcy. 
The additional insured status will not be afforded with respect to liability arising out of or related to 
your activities as a real estate manager for that person or organization. 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

A. Section II - Who Is An Insured is amended to 
include as an additional insured the person(s) or 
organization( s) shown in the Schedule, but only 
with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property 
damage" or "personal and advertising injury" 
caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or 
omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting 
on your behalf: 
1. !n the performance of your ongoing operations; 

or 
2. In connection with your premises owned by or 

rented to you. 

However: 
1. The insurance afforded to such additional 

insured only applies to the extent permitted by 
law; and 

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is 
required by a contract or agreement, the 
insurance afforded to such additional insured 
will ·not be broader than that which you are 
required by the contract or agreement to 
provide for such additional insured. 

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these 
additional insureds, the following is added to 
Section Ill - Limits Of Insurance: 

If coverage provided to the additional insured is 
required by a contract or agreement, the most we 
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the 
amount of insurance: 
1. Required by the contract or agreement; or 
2. Available under the applicable Limits of 

Insurance shown in the Declarations; 
whichever is less. 

This endorsement shall not increase the 
applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the 
Declarations. 

CG 20 26 04 13 ©Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 1 



_ CITY OF MENDOTA 
FACILITY USE APPLICATION 

PLEAS.E COMPLETE ALL QUESTIONS OR ITEMS FOR WHICH INFORMATION IS REQUESTED. PRINT 

ALL ANSWERS EXCEPT THE SIGNATURE. 

FOR USE Of ALL OR SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF THE ROJAS .. PIERCE PARK PICNIC AREA AND 

BANDSTAND, OR MENDOTA POOL PARK BANDSTAND, VETERANS PARK, APPLICANTS MUST 

APPEAR BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL FOR APPROVAL OF THE PERMIT. 

NOTE: SECTION 12.20.050 APPLICATIONS FOR EXCLUSIVE USE SHA~L BE FILED WITH THE CITY 

CLERK DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY ANNUALLY AND SHALL BE SET FOR CONSIDERATION 

BY THE .CITY COUNCIL AT ·ITS· FIRST MEEJ"ING IN MARCH ANNUALLY. APPLICATIONS FOR 

EXCLUSIVE USE SHALL BE FILED NOT LESS THAN TWENTY ON.E (21) NOR MORE THAN ONE 

HUNDRED FIFTY (150) PAYS PRIOR TO THE USE OF THE FACILITY. PROMOTERS SHALL REQUEST 

AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY BESIDES THE APPLICATION. 

NOTE: SECTION 12.20.110: APPLICANT MUST PROVIDE THE CITY WITH CERTIFICATES OF 

INSURANCE SPECIFYING THE CITY OF MENDOTA AS NAMED INSURED EVIDENCING LIABILITY AND 

PROPERTY DAMAGE LIMITS WITH A COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT OF NOT LESS THAN ONE MILLION 

QOLLARS ($1,000,000). 

( ] . COMPLETED APPLICATION. 
( ) PROOF OF INSURANCE POLICY SHOWINO"CIT:Y OF MENDOTA AS ADDITIONAL INSURED. 
( ) PROOF OF LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR FACILITY USE 
( ] DEPOSIT, USE FEE, AND KEY DEPOSIT SUBMIITED TO FINANCE DEPARTMENT. 
( ] .OBTAINED SECURITY AS REQUIRED BY MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT 
( ] ORIGINAL SIGNATURE OF.PERMITTEE WITH ACKNOWLEDGMENT. 
[ ] AMPLIFIED MUSIC PERMIT IF APPLICABLE . 

1 



1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

This application is for the use of the following facility: 

Com1fi~ . c~nbr 
. The organization, individual, business or entity applyin.g for the use permit: 

4/cc ho l.r e-S . A rw ii y.ma CL r 
The contact person on behalf of the applicant, regarding the event or activity for which 
use permit Is ~equested together with all of the following information: · 

NAME: J-o rfl ~· 0 vZ. yna YI 

ADDRESS(STREETANDCITY): 7l.C/ /.-/ s..J .. mc9ndt:zla C-~. <j;J,?y C) 

TE~EPHONE No.: O~-;! } 9 / g - ~ ~ 9 2 
DATE: 'f / f). 7 / j; / 2 TIME: I{) , CJ() jJ.fJ /& . / lo°f_ ~ 
Please describe the exact park area or areas· requested for Exclusive Use. (List below 
and circle the area on ttle attached map). 

411!Ve1ci1·-rr lto~al C&f111--b CG>n/.elf( 

Purpose or function for which the permit is requested. Give statement of reasons for 
exclusive use. No.te: _Section.12.20.090(b)(c) Fees and Deposits as required. · 

lfr7v&-/. :lln1'VeY-e-t f],,_ 

·7. Number·of pers~ms expected to attend the function or event. ----"'/_,s __ -_O ___ _ 

8. Will alcoholic beverages be sold? Yes No. · K note: if yes, you must apply for 
and receive a separate permit from the state department of alcohol beverage control, if 
·so, liquor liability insurance is required to be purchased ·thirty · (30) days In advance by 
the applicant. The Fresno County Sheriff's department must .be contacted regarding 
this application. The City of Mendota parks are tobacco free and alcohol free. · 

9. Has a promoter b~en contracted . to present, produce, or otherwise be involved in the 
event, activity or entertainment during the event? Yes_ No..4-. Note: section 
12.20.110, if yes, the promoter Is required to provide certificate of insurance evidencing 
liability and property dainage limits with a combined single 1.imit of not leS$ than 
$1,000,000 with a deductible of nor more than $500, and shall · ~pecify the. City of 
Mendota and applicant as named insured. 

2 



10. lf·a promoter will present, produce, or otherwise. be involv in the event, activity or 
entertainment, state the name, address and telephone mber of the promoter and 
describe his/her/its participation in the event. Note: S tion 5.08.030 Amusement Park 
Rides and Attractions; Sect,on 5.08.300 Musical an heatrical Shows. The Promoter is 
required to obtain a business license. 

NAME: ~-------------r-------~ 
ADDRESS: 
PARTICIPAT-IO_N_/_IN_V_O_LV_E_M_E_N_T_: .----/___,~--------

:;> 

12. Will con<?ession stand(s) be used? Yes )( No. Note: for ba~eball diamond 
concession, $150.00 fee, per league, no exemption~. 

13. wm·there be an admissions charge to the event? If so, state the exact amount of each 
ticket .$ • State the reason for im.poslng this admission charge. 

14. Will there be a live band at this function? _ _.._(J...;;;~-5 __ _ 
(See attached municipal code regarding noise ordinance) 

Yes . ·No -----

15. State the names and addresses of all persons or groups which will receive any of the 
proceeds. from this event, including concessions, and how those proceeds· will be 
divided among such persons or groups. 

16. If this permit application is for all or substantially all of th·e park area, or ~II or 
substantially all of the picnic and bandstand are, state the overriding public interest or 
special circumstances . which justify excluding residents of the City of Mendota from 
·using their public park facilities. · 

17 I • • 1, ~D y ~ e fl t(uz,µ?81? have read the Mendota Municipal Code Chapter 
12.20 re: park permits (attached). I understand all of the requirements for con~ucting an 
event or activity in the use of the Rojas-Pierce Park or any City facility. .1 agree on 
behalf of myself and . .J .,A: (name of applicant), th~ 
organization on whose behalf this application Is made, to Indemnify, defend and hold 
the City of. Mendota harmless, from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, and 
proceedings for money damages or other relief for personal injury, property damage or 
other losses resulting from or. caused by the activity or event for which this permit Is 

3 



issued. The keys to a·ny facility or electrical panel will not be issued until this document 
is signed by the permittee requesting a facility and/or consent/hold harmless 
agreements are submitted to city staff and proof of insurance Is provided and all fees 

. and deposits are paid. /} ·~ . . . ,. 

signature of Per~ite~/~ ~,;,-' DATE: wt l~L~ . 
1, 10 Y ff: e !/. f;-" u 2J1-1CJ, iclare I h~ve r&ad and understand th~:foregolng app;lcation 
anaH attachments theretp. I further declare that I will abide by all City, State, County and 
Federal laws at said event. · 

· CITY MANAGER APPROVAL 

THIS APPLICATION IS APPROVED / REJECTED FOR USE OF THE ON 

-------""--...... ·-· THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SHALL APPLY, MAY INCLUDE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT REQUIREMENTS. . 

CITY MANAG.ER:..__.. ____ ..._.;..,.~---- DATE: -------
**********************************************~************************************************************** 

SECURITY REQUIREMENT OR CONDITIONS AS PER CITY OF MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT: 

POLICE DEPT: DATE: 
~---------

. 4 



ACORD~ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

~ 01/19/2019 
PRODUCER THIS CERTIFICATION IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION 

East Main Street Insurance Services, Inc. ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE 
Will Maddux HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR 
PO Box 1298' ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. 
Grass Valley, CA 95945 
Phone: (530) 477-6521 Email: info@theeventhelper.com INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURED INSURER A: Evanston Insurance Company 35378 
Alcoholicos Anonimos rvtendota INSURER B: 
Primitive Cervantes 

INSURER C: 930 Oller Ave, 
Mendota, CA 93640 INSURER D: 

INSURER E: 

COVERAGES 
THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING 
ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR 
MAY PERTAIN , THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH 
POLICIES. AGGREGATE LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED. BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR ADD'L 
POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFFECTIVE POLICY EXPIRATION 

LIMITS LTR INSRO TYPE OF INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYI DATE IMM/00/YYI 

GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE INCLUDES $ 1,000,000 BODILY INJURY & PROPERTY DAMAGE 

A y ~MERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 3DS5466-M1110246 . 04/27/2019 04/28/2019 MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000 

CLAIMS MADE [8J OCCUR 12:01 AM 12:01 AM PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000 

ost Liquor Liability GENERALAGGREGATE $ 2,000,000 

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 1,000,000 

~ D PRO- D POLICY JECT LOG DEDUCTIBLE $ 1,000 

Retail Liquor Liability $ 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT ,_ 
$ 

ANY AUTO (Ea accident) 
I-

ALL OWNED AUTOS 
BODILY INJURY , __ 

$ 
SCHEDULED AUTOS (Per person) ,_ 
HIRED AUTOS BODILY INJURY I- $ 
NON-OWNED AUTOS (Per accident) 

--

- PROPERTY DAMAGE $ 
(Per accident) 

GARAGE LIABILITY AUTO ONLY - EA ACCIDENT $ 

~ANY AUTO OTHER THAN 
EAACC $ 

AUTO ONLY: AGG $ 

EXCESS/UMBRELLA LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 

~ OCCUR D CLAIMS MADE AGGREGATE $ 

$ 

I~ DEDUCTIBLE $ 

RETENTION $ $ 

WORKERS COMPENSATION AND 
I WC STATU- I 

TORY LIMITS 
I OTH-

ER 
EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY 

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 
If yes, describe .under 

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ SPECIAL PROVISIONS below 
OTHER 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES I EXCLUSIONS ADDED BY ENDORSEMENT I SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

Certificate holder listed below is named as additional insured per attached CG 20 26 07 04. 
Attendance: 200, Event Type: Meeting - Indoor. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

City of Mendota SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION 

Community Center DATE THEREOF, THE ISSUING INSURER WILL EPIBEY'QR TQ MAIL 30 DA VS WRITTEN 
195 Smoot 
Mendota, CA 93640 NOTICE TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER NAMED TO THE LEFT, 8blT FPll.blRE TQ BQ SQ SllPl.b 

IMPQSE PJQ Q81.ISPTIQPJ QR l.IP811.ITV QF DPJ>< l(IPJB blPQPJ TllE IPJSblRER, ITS PSEPJTS QR 

'REPRESEUT n Tl~ IES. 

I 

AUTHORIZED REP~ESENTATIVE /~{/ !~. 
[/!41 I ( 

ACORD 25 (2001/08) ©ACORD CORPORATION 1988 



Policy Number: 3DS5466-M1110246 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CG 20 26 07 04 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED - DESIGNATED 
PERSON OR ORGANIZATION 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL .LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE 

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or Organization(s) 

City of Mendota 
Community Center 
195 Smoot 
Mendota, CA 93640 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

Section 11 · - Who Is An Insured is amended to in
clude as an additional insured the person(s) or organi
zation(s) shown in the Schedule, but only with respect 
to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or 
"personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or 
in part, by your acts. or omissions or the acts or omis
sions of those acting on your behalf: 

A. In the performance of your ongoing operations; or 

B. In connection with your premises owned by or 
rented to you. 

CG 20 26 07 04 © ISO Properties, Inc., 2004 Page 1of1 D 



I' 
I• I ·, ••J. • ;, Event General Liability Insurance 

Proposal & Application 
PROPOSAL NUMBER 

1110246 
PREPARED ON 

01/19/2019 

All Premiums have been paid! PRICING VALID UNTIL 

01/26/2019 (7 days) 

PREPARED FOR 

Alcoholicos Anonimos Mendota 
Primitive Cervantes 
930 Oller Ave., Mendota, CA 93640 
Phone: 5592693379 Email: lxcervantez@yahoo.com 

PROPOSAL CREATED BY 

www.TheEventHelper.com Inc. 
Direct Sale 
1020 Mccourtney Rd. Suite B, Grass Valley, CA ~5949 
Phone: (530) 477-6521 Email: info@eventhelper.com 

COVERAGE LIMITS 

LICENSED AGENT (ALL 50 STATES) 

Ea st Ma in Street Ins u ra n c e Services , Inc. 
Will Maddux 
PO Box 1298 
Grass Valley, CA 95945 

INSURED BY 

Evanston Insurance Company NAIC: 35378 
Rating: A.M. BEST A(Excellent) >W 

POLICY COVERAGE INTENT 

Each Occur~ence (Includes Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage) 

$1,000,000 This is just an brief overview, see policy for exact 

Personal & Advertising Injury 
Products I Completed Operations Aggregate 
General Aggregate 
Medical Payments 
Liquor Liability 
Waiver of Subrogation 
Add itio na I Insured (s) 
Hired & Non-Owned Auto 
Deductible 

EVENT DETAILS 

Where is your event? 
Total days of coverage you need? 
Estimated to ta I attenda nee? 
Meeting - Indoor 

COVERAGE TERM 

Dates of Coverage: 04/27 /2019 

ADDITIONAL INSUREDS (SHOWING 1OF1) 

City of Mendota 
Community Center 
195 Smoot 
Mendota, CA 93640 

coverage. 
$1,000,000 Property Damage Coverage for your rented Event Locations. 
$1,000,000 Bodily Injury Coverage for your Event Attendees. 
$2,000,000 Protection from Prope'rty Damage & Bodily Injury Lawsuits. 

$5,000 
Not Included COST BREAKDOWN 

Premium 
Not Included 

Included Stamping Fees 
Tax 

Not Included 
$ l,OOO Policy Fee 

Risk Purchasing Group Membership Cost 

Amount Paid 

UNDERWRITING QUESTIONS 

CA See Underwriting Document 
1 

200 

$87.00 
$0.17 
$2.61 

$36.60 
$0.00 

$126.38 

Phone: (530) 477-6521 ·Email: info@eventhelper.com Office Hours: Monday-Friday, 7am - 5pm PST 
© 2019 www.TheEventHelper.com Inc., 1020 Mccourtney Rd. Suite B, Grass Valley, CA 95949 

Page 1 of 2 



REFUND POLICY 

Event General Liability Insurance 

Proposal & Applica.tion 
All Premi~ms have been paid! 

PROPOSAL NUMBER 

1110246 

PREPARED ON 

01/19/2 019 

PRICING VALID UNTIL 

01/26/2019 (7 days) 

If I choose to cancel my general liability policy, I will be subject to a refund fee of $36.60, the full Administration Charge on 

my policy. In the very unlikely case www.TheEventHelper.com's coverage terms do not meet my venue's insurance 

requirements and cannot be amended to do so, I am eligible for a full refund of my policy price. No refunds will be issued 

after the commencement of the policy period. 

TERMS & CONDITIONS 

NOTICE TO THE APPLICANT 

No fact, circumstance or situation indicating the probability of a Claim or action for which coverage may be afforded by the proposed 
insurance is now known by any person(s) or organization(s) proposed for this insurance other than that which i~ disclosed in this 
application. It is agreed by all concerned that if there is knowledge o_f any such fact, circumstance or situation, any Claim subsequently 
emanating there from shall be excluded from coverage under the proposed insurance. 
For the purpose of this application, the undersigned authorized agen.t of the person(s) and organization(s) proposed for this insurance 
declares that to the best of his/her knowledge and belief, after reasonable inquiry, the statements in this application and in any 
attachments, are true and complete. Underwriting Managers or the Company are authorized to make any inquiry in connection with this 
application.· Signing this application does not bind the Company to provide or the Applicant to purchase the insurance. 
If the information in this application and any attachment materially changes between the date this application is signed and t~e effective 
date of the policy, the Applicant will promptly notify the underwriter, who may modify or withdraw any outstanding quotation or · 
agreement to bind coverage. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

A. I/We warrant to the Company, that I/We understand and accept the notice stated above and that the information contained herein is 
true and that it shall be the basis of the policy and deemed incorporated therein, should the Company evicjence its acceptance of this 
application by issuance of a policy. Note: This application is signed by undersigned authorized agent of the Applicant(s) on behalf of the 
Applicant(s) and its owners, partners, directors, officers and employees. Name of Person Acknowledging Warranty: Primitivo Cervantes, 
01/19/2019 
B. I/We confirm that we understand that your Athletic I Sporting Participants, Performers/Crew/Stunts, Firearms, Auto Exposures, 
Animal Exposures, Unmanned Aircraft & explosives and Assault & Battery are Excluded From This Policy. 
C. I/We confirm that there will be no Mos h Pits or Fireworks/Pyrotechnics of any Kind. 

D. I understand there is no coverage for amusement devices, inflatables, rides or animals (classified animal event removes animal 
exclusion). This does not mean you cannot have them at your event, it means our policy will exclude .coverage for water activities, 
amusement devices, inflatables, rides or.animals. This policy will not cover any athletic or sports participants, employees, volunteers, 
or individuals compensated by the insured. · 
E. I/We understand that the event types under "EXCLUDED EVENT TYPES" are excluded from this policy. 

EXCLUDED EVENT TYPES 

Aircraft Events; Boat Shows (on the open water); Cannabis Events or Products; Concerts with Rap, Hip Hop, Heavy Metal, or Hard Rock; 
Go Kart Races; Hang Gliding/Sky Diving; Hot Air Balloon Rides or Events; Motorized Sporting Events; Parachuting; Protests, Rallies or 
Marches; Haunted Houses, Haunted Attractions; Unmanned Aircraft; Skateboarding; Fraternity Parties; Sorority Parties; Firearms; 
Paras ailing; Raves; Roller Coasters/Sky Coasters; Sky Diving; Tractor Pulls, Trampolines, . Wall Climbing, War Games/Re-enactments, 
Water Events (unless classified as water event type), Water Slides 
F. You are hereby notified that your policy will terminate effective no later than the date and time of its expiration. You have no right of 
auton:rntic renewal and additional coverage will require application with no guarantee of approval or policy issuance. 
I understand that by purchasing this insurance I am joining the Promotion, Event and Prize Purchasing Group. 
Licensed Agent in all 50 states: Wll Maddux . 

Phone : (530) 477-6521 Email: info@eventhelper.com Office Hours: Monday-Friday, 7am - 5pm PST 
© .2019 www.TheEventHelper.com Inc., 1020 Mccourtney Rd. Suite B, Grass Valley, CA 95949 

Page 2 of 2 



Exhibit A CITY OF MENDOTA CONDITIONAL APPROVAL
OF FACILITY USE APPLICATIONS FOR 

2019

Page 1 of 7

DATE/TIME
TOTAL 

NUMBER OF 
EVENTS/DAYS

EVENT   FACILITY ORGANIZATION CONDITIONAL APPROVAL TOTAL FEES WAIVED PER 
POLICY

TOTAL 
FEES DUE

03/16/2019 –
12/22/2019

3:00pm - 10:00pm

42 Events
Each on Sunday

Open Market
(Sundays)

Empty Lot on 
7th & Rio Frio

Mendota Youth 
Recreation

Mendota Youth Recreation Shall: 
      Provide Liability Insurance
      Provide A Detailed Itinerary
      Provide Portable Restrooms
      Clean Property
      Contract Police Services
      Contract Trash Services
      Obtain An Entertainment Encroachment Permit for Event 
      Not Encroach On Sidewalks or Driveways 
The City of Mendota Shall:
      Require Vendors to obtain a Business License 

Fees:
      Encroachment Permit- $1,537.50 
           ($75 x 1 day= $75) (1st event fees waived 100% ) 
           ($75 x 41 days= $3075) (All other event fees waived 50%)                                                                                       
Deposits:
      None

Fees Waived:
$1,612.50

Administrative Policy: 
2004.01 - Event Permit for Non-
Profit Organizations (Exhibit B)

$1,537.50

3/16/2019

7:00am - 12:00pm

1 Day Event
Saturday

$10 Breakfast 
Buffet with 
Games and 

Raffles for the 
Community

Community 
Center

Mendota Youth 
Recreation

Mendota Youth Recreation Shall: 
      Clean Facility
      Obtain An Amplified Music Permit
      Pick-Up Key  (3/15/2019) Return Key (3/18/2019)

The City of Mendota Shall:
      Provide Liability Insurance

Fees:
     Amplified Music Permit: $5
          ($5 x 1 day= $5)

Deposits:
     Key Deposit: $50.00 

Fees Waived:
NA

Administrative Policy: 
2004.01 - Event Permit for Non-
Profit Organizations (Exhibit B)

$5.00



Exhibit A CITY OF MENDOTA CONDITIONAL APPROVAL
OF FACILITY USE APPLICATIONS FOR 

2019

Page 2 of 7

DATE/TIME
TOTAL 

NUMBER OF 
EVENTS/DAYS

EVENT   FACILITY ORGANIZATION CONDITIONAL APPROVAL TOTAL FEES WAIVED PER 
POLICY

TOTAL 
FEES DUE

10/25/2019 - 10/27/2019

10/26/2019
 6:00pm – 12:00am

10/27/2019
 6:00pm – 12:00am

10/28/2019
 9:00am – 10:00pm

3 Day Event
Friday- Sunday

Annual Red 
Ribben 

Carnival

Rojas-Pierce 
Park (Pavilion, 

Concession 
Stand,

& Soccer 
Field)

Mendota Youth 
Recreation

Mendota Youth Recreation Shall: 
      Provide A Detailed Itinerary
      Clean Facility and Property
      Contract Police Services
      Contract Trash Services
      Obtain An Amplified Music Permit
      Pick-Up Key (10/24/2019) Return Key (10/28/2019)

The City of Mendota Shall:
      Provide Liability Insurance
      Require Carnival Operator To Obtain A Business  License

Fees:
     Concession Stand Rental: $0
           ($175 x 3 days= $525 -Waived)
     Rojas Pierce Park & Pavilion Rental: $0
           ($350 x 3 days= $1,050 -Waived)
     Amplified Music Permit: $0
           ($5 x 3 days= $15 -Waived)

Deposits:
     Concession Stand Cleaning Deposit: $150
     Rojas Pierce Park & Pavilion Cleaning Deposit: $300
     Key Deposit: $50.00

Fees Waived:
$1,590

Administrative Policy: 
City Participation in Community 
Events 
(Exhibit C)

$0.00

11/16/2019

8:00am - 4:00pm

1 Day Event
Saturday

Annual Senior 
Citizen 

Thanksgiving 
Lunch

Community 
Center

Mendota Youth 
Recreation

Mendota Youth Recreation Shall: 
      Clean Facility
      Obtain An Amplified Music Permit
      Pick-Up Key  (11/15/2019) Return Key (11/18/2019)

The City of Mendota Shall:
      Provide Liability Insurance

Fees:
     Amplified Music Permit: $0
          ($5 x 1 day= $5-waived)

Deposits:
     Key Deposit: $50.00 

Fees Waived:
NA

Administrative Policy: 
City Participation in Community 
Events 
(Exhibit C) $0.00



Exhibit A CITY OF MENDOTA CONDITIONAL APPROVAL
OF FACILITY USE APPLICATIONS FOR 

2019

Page 3 of 7

DATE/TIME
TOTAL 

NUMBER OF 
EVENTS/DAYS

EVENT   FACILITY ORGANIZATION CONDITIONAL APPROVAL TOTAL FEES WAIVED PER 
POLICY

TOTAL 
FEES DUE

12/21/2019

9:00am – 9:00pm

1 Day Event
Saturday

Annual 
Christmas 

Parade

City Streets
(7th St, 6th St, 

Pucheu St, 
Tule St and 
property on 

corner of 7th 
and Riofrio)

Mendota Youth 
Recreation

Mendota Youth Recreation Shall: 
      Provide A Detailed Itinerary
      Clean Property
      Contract Police Services
      Contract Trash Services
      Obtain An Amplified Music Permit
      Obtain An Encroachment Permit

The City of Mendota Shall:
      Provide Liability Insurance
      Require Carnival Operator To Obtain A Business  License

Fees:
      Amplified Music Permit: $0
          ($5 x 1 day= $5) (100% Waived)
      Encroachment Permit- $0
          ($75 x 1 day= $75) (100% Waived)

Deposits:
      None

Fees Waived:
$80

Administrative Policy: 
City Participation in Community 
Events 
(Exhibit C)

$0.00

07/7/2019 - 07/12/2019  
                                          

4:00pm - 9:30pm

6 Day Event
Monday- 
Thursday

Vacation Bible 
School

Community 
Center

Rivers Of Living 
Water

Rivers Of Living Water Shall: 
      Provide Proof of Liability Insurance
      Clean Facility
      Pick-Up Key (7/5/2019) Return Key (7/15/2019)

Fees:
     None

Deposits:
     Key Deposit: $50.00

Fees Waived:
NA

Administrative Policy: 
2004.01 - Event Permit for Non-
Profit Organizations (Exhibit B)

$0.00

11/02/2019

4:00pm – 10:00pm  

1 Day Event
Saturday

Annual 
Thanksgiving 

Dinner

Community 
Center

Rivers Of Living 
Water

Rivers Of Living Water Shall: 
      Provide Proof of Liability Insurance
      Clean Facility
      Pick-Up Key (11/1/2019) Return Key (11/4/2019)

Fees:
      None

Deposits:
     Key Deposit: $50.00

Fees Waived:
NA

Administrative Policy: 
2004.01 - Event Permit for Non-
Profit Organizations (Exhibit B)

$0.00



Exhibit A CITY OF MENDOTA CONDITIONAL APPROVAL
OF FACILITY USE APPLICATIONS FOR 

2019

Page 4 of 7

DATE/TIME
TOTAL 

NUMBER OF 
EVENTS/DAYS

EVENT   FACILITY ORGANIZATION CONDITIONAL APPROVAL TOTAL FEES WAIVED PER 
POLICY

TOTAL 
FEES DUE

12/7/2019

4:00pm – 10:00pm  

1 Day Event
Saturday

Annual 
Christmas 

Dinner

Community 
Center

Rivers Of Living 
Water

Rivers Of Living Water Shall: 
      Provide Proof of Liability Insurance
      Clean Facility
      Pick-Up Key (12/6/2019) Return Key (12/9/2019)

Fees:
      None

Deposits:
     Key Deposit: $50.00

Fees Waived:
NA

Administrative Policy: 
2004.01 - Event Permit for Non-
Profit Organizations (Exhibit B)

$0.00

03/13/2019 - 12/18/2019

3:00pm -11:00pm 

 42 Events
Each on 

Wednesday

Open Market
(Wednesdays)

Rojas- Pierce 
Park Parking 

Lot &
Smoot Street 
& Sorenson 

Ave. Sidewalk 
On Both Sides 
of Smooth & 
Trash Bins 

Westside Youth Inc. Westside Youth Inc. Shall: 
      Provide Liability Insurance
      Provide A Detailed Itinerary
      Provide Portable Restrooms
      Clean Property
      Contract Police Services
      Contract Trash Services
      Obtain An Entertainment Encroachment Permit for Event 
      Not Encroach On Sidewalks or Driveways 
      Change Time Frame Of Event To Comply With Administrative Policy
             2004.01-III(F) See Exhibit B
The City of Mendota Shall:
Require Carnival Operator To Obtain A Business  License

Fees:
     Encroachment Permit- $1,537.50
           ($75 x 1 day= $75) (1st event fees waived 100% ) 
           ($75 x 41 day= $3,075) (All other event fees waived 50% Waived)

Deposits:
      None

Fees Waived:
$1,612.50

Administrative Policy: 
2004.01 - Event Permit for Non-
Profit Organizations (Exhibit B)

$1,537.50



Exhibit A CITY OF MENDOTA CONDITIONAL APPROVAL
OF FACILITY USE APPLICATIONS FOR 

2019

Page 5 of 7

DATE/TIME
TOTAL 

NUMBER OF 
EVENTS/DAYS

EVENT   FACILITY ORGANIZATION CONDITIONAL APPROVAL TOTAL FEES WAIVED PER 
POLICY

TOTAL 
FEES DUE

07/28/2019

9:00am - 1:00pm

1 Day Event
Sunday

Annual 
Backpack 
Giveaway

Rojas-Pierce 
Park Pavilion 

and Restrooms

Mendota Youth 
Recreation &

Westside Youth Inc.

Westside Youth Inc. Shall: 
      Provide Liability Insurance
      Provide A Detailed Itinerary
      Clean Facility and Property
      Contract Police Services
      Contract Trash Services
      Obtain An Amplified Music Permit
      Pick-Up Key (7/26/2019) Return Key (7/29/2019)

Fees:
      Rojas Pierce Park & Pavilion Rental: $175
           ($350 x 1 day= $350) (50% Waived)
      Amplified Music Permit:$2.50 
           ($5 x 1 days= $5) (50% Waived)
Deposits:
      Rojas Pierce Park & Pavilion Cleaning Deposit: $300
      Key Deposit: $50.00

Fees Waived:
$177.50

Administrative Policy: 
2004.01 - Event Permit for Non-
Profit Organizations (Exhibit B)

$177.50

Carnival Youth 
Fundraiser

4 Day Event
Wednesday- 

Sunday

04/18/2019 - 04/21/2019

4/18/2019
12:00pm – 12:00pm

4/19/2019
12:00pm – 12:00pm

4/20/2019
12:00pm – 12:00pm

4/21/2019
12:00pm – 12:00pm

Westside Youth Inc. Shall: 
      Provide Proof of Liability Insurance
      Provide A Detailed Itinerary
      Clean Facility and Property
      Contract Police Services
      Contract Trash Services
      Obtain An Amplified Music Permit
      Pick-Up Key (4/17/2019) Return Key (4/22/2019)
**Organization shall not charge to go into the park area; however can charge a fee to 
individuals who want to access the carnival area and/or the Pavilion.
**Any proposed alcohol sales and consumption  shall be within a designated area and 
Westside Youth Inc. shall obtain any and all appropriate permits as required by the State 
Alcholic Beverage Control.
The City of Mendota Shall:
     Require Carnival Operator To Obtain A Business  License
Fees:
     Rojas Pierce Park & Pavilion Rental: $700
           ($350 x 4 days= $1,400) 50% Waived)
     Amplified Music Permit: $10
          ($5 x 4 days= $20) (50% Waived)
Deposits:
     Concession Stand Cleaning Deposit: $150
     Rojas Pierce Park & Pavilion Cleaning Deposit: $300
     Key Deposit: $50.00

Fees Waived:
$710.00

Administrative Policy: 
2004.01 - Event Permit for Non-
Profit Organizations (Exhibit B)

$710.00

Westside Youth Inc.Rojas-Pierce 
Park Pavilion, 
Soccer Field 

and Restrooms



Exhibit A CITY OF MENDOTA CONDITIONAL APPROVAL
OF FACILITY USE APPLICATIONS FOR 

2019

Page 6 of 7

DATE/TIME
TOTAL 

NUMBER OF 
EVENTS/DAYS

EVENT   FACILITY ORGANIZATION CONDITIONAL APPROVAL TOTAL FEES WAIVED PER 
POLICY

TOTAL 
FEES DUE

10/6/2019

9:00am - 4:30pm

1 Day Event
Sunday

Driver 
Awareness

Rojas-Pierce 
Park Pavilion 

and Restrooms

Westside Youth Inc. Westside Youth Inc. Shall: 
      Provide Liability Insurance
      Provide A Detailed Itinerary
      Clean Facility and Property
      Contract Police Services
      Contract Trash Services
      Obtain An Amplified Music Permit
      Pick-Up Key (10/4/2019) Return Key (10/7/2019)

The City of Mendota Shall:
      Provide Liability Insurance
      Require Carnival Operator To Obtain A Business  License

Fees:
      Rojas Pierce Park & Pavilion Rental: $175
           ($350 x 1 day= $350 - Waived)
      Amplified Music Permit:$2.50 
           ($5 x 1 days= $5 - Waived)
Deposits:
      Rojas Pierce Park & Pavilion Cleaning Deposit: $300
      Key Deposit: $50.00

Fees Waived:
$355.00

Administrative Policy: 
City Participation in Community 
Events (Exhibit C)

$0.00

3/14/2019 - 12/26/2019
(Second & Fourth 

Thursday of each month) 

8:00am - 12:00pm
(Or While Supplies Last) 

20 Day Event Food 
Distribution to 

Community

Rojas-Pierce 
Park Parking 

Lot

Central California 
Food Bank 

Central California Food Bank Shall: 
      Provide Liability Insurance
      Provide A Detailed Itinerary
      Clean Facility and Property
      Contract Police Services
      Contract Trash Services
      Pick-Up Key (The Day Prior to Event) Return Key (Day of Event)

Fees:
      None

Deposits:
      Key Deposit: $50.00

Fees Waived:
NA

Administrative Policy: 
2004.01 - Event Permit for Non-
Profit Organizations (Exhibit B)

$0.00

04/02/2019, 05/07/2019, 
& 06/04/2019  

                                          
7:00am - 2:00pm

3 Day Event Drought Reflief 
Food 

Distributions

Community 
Center

Fresno EOC Fresno EOC Shall: 
      Provide Proof of Liability Insurance
      Clean Facility
      Pick-Up Key (Day Prior to Event) Return Key (Day of Event)

Fees:
     None

Deposits:
     Key Deposit: $50.00

Fees Waived:
NA

Administrative Policy: 
2004.01 - Event Permit for Non-
Profit Organizations (Exhibit B)

$0.00



Exhibit A CITY OF MENDOTA CONDITIONAL APPROVAL
OF FACILITY USE APPLICATIONS FOR 

2019

Page 7 of 7

DATE/TIME
TOTAL 

NUMBER OF 
EVENTS/DAYS

EVENT   FACILITY ORGANIZATION CONDITIONAL APPROVAL TOTAL FEES WAIVED PER 
POLICY

TOTAL 
FEES DUE

Every Thursday Year 
Round 

9:30am - 3:00pm

42 Day Event Medical/ 
Calfresh 

Enrollments & 
M.A.P. Point 

Services

Community 
Center

Centro La Familia 
Advocacy Services, 

Inc.

Centro La Familia Advocacy Services, Inc. Shall: 
      Provide Proof of Liability Insurance
      Clean Facility
      Pick-Up Key (Day of Event) Return Key (Day of Event)

Fees:
     None

Deposits:
     Key Deposit: $50.00

Fees Waived:
NA

Administrative Policy: 
2004.01 - Event Permit for Non-
Profit Organizations (Exhibit B)

$0.00

4/27/2019

10:00am - 11:00pm

1 Day Event Anniversary Community 
Center

Alcoholics 
Anonymous

Alcoholics Anonymous Shall: 
      Provide Proof of Liability Insurance
      Clean Facility
      Pick-Up Key (4/26/2019) Return Key (4/29/19)
Fees:
     None
Deposits:
     Key Deposit: $50.00

Fees Waived:
NA

Administrative Policy: 
2004.01 - Event Permit for Non-
Profit Organizations (Exhibit B)

$0.00

7/11/2019 - 7/14/2019

7/11/2019
 8:00am - 12:00am

7/12/2019
 8:00am - 12:00am

7/13/2019
 8:00am - 12:00am

7/14/2019
 8:00am - 12:00am

4 Day Event
Thursday - 

Sunday

Annual Harvest 
Festival

Rojas-Pierce 
Park (Pavilion, 

Concession 
Stand,

& Soccer 
Field)

Mendota Youth 
Recreation

Mendota Youth Recreation Shall: 
      Provide A Detailed Itinerary
      Clean Facility and Property
      Contract Police Services
      Contract Trash Services
      Obtain An Amplified Music Permit
      Pick-Up Key (7/11/2019) Return Key (7/14/2019)
**Organization shall not charge to go into the park area; however can charge a fee to 
individuals who want to access the carnival area and/or the Pavilion.
**Any proposed alcohol sales and consumption  shall be within a designated area and 
Westside Youth Inc. shall obtain any and all appropriate permits as required by the State 
Alcholic Beverage Control.
The City of Mendota Shall:
         Require Carnival Operator To Obtain A Business  License
Fees:
     Rojas Pierce Park & Pavilion Rental: $0
           ($350 x 4 days= $1,400 - Waived)
     Amplified Music Permit: $0
          ($5 x 4 days= $20 - Waived)
Deposits:
     Concession Stand Cleaning Deposit: $150
     Rojas Pierce Park & Pavilion Cleaning Deposit: $300
     Key Deposit: $50.00

Fees Waived:
$1420.00

Administrative Policy: 
City Participation in Community 
Events 
(Exhibit C)

$0.00

$3,967.50



ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 
NUMBER 2004.01 

(amended January 28, 2014) 

EVENT PERMIT FORNON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS 

I. PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY FOR POLICY 

. The purpose for this Administrative Policy ("Policy") is intended to promote the full use 
of City streets, parks and recreation areas and facilities by Non-Profit organizations to 
provide a benefit to the community. 

II. DEFINITIONS 

"Building~' means a structure under the ownership or supervision of the City established 
as a community center, senior· center or recreational facility. 

"City Sponsored" means an event which the City of Mendota is .sponsoring on behalf of 
. a non-profit organization and has made no direct financial contribution to the event. 

. . . . 

"Community Event" is an event open to the general public authorized by the City for 
the use of a park, recreational area or building that promotes civic betterment, family 
entertainment and recreational activities for .the community. 

"Street' Fair" is a function in which it becomes necessary to place barricades blocking 
off the flow of normal traffic in a designated area of public streets. 

"Non-Profit Organization" means any non-profit association or corporation organized 
primarily for Civic betterment, family entertainment, and/or recreational acti~ities. 

"Park" or "Recreation Area" means City-owned grounds, parks and public areas 
devoted to park or recre.ational ·purposes. 

"Permit" means a written authorization issued by the City for the use of a park area or 
building as provided by this policy. 

III. POLICY 

A. Me~dota based Non-Profit organizations will have the payment for one·Community 
Event or Street Fair permit waived in any given calendar year. . 

B. Mendota·based Non-Profit organizations will receive a 50% discount for all other 
Community Event and Street Fair permits requested .in the Satl1:e calendar year. 

C. All Non-Profit organizations must have a current business license with the City of 
Mendota. 

Celeste
Typewritten Text

Celeste
Typewritten Text

Celeste
Typewritten Text

Celeste
Typewritten Text
Exhibit B



D. No~-Profit organizations not based within the city limits of the City of Mendota shall 
receive a 50% discount on all Community Event and Street Fair permits. 

E. In the event multiple Non-Profit organizations partner for an event, the Non-Profit 
organization applying for a Community Event or Street Fair permit will be considered 
the lead· applicant organization and will be responsible for all fees and deposits. All 
organizations involved in the event are required to prov~de a Certificate of Insurance 
in an amount pursuant to the facility use permit application naming the City qf 
Mendota as an additional insured unless exempted by the provisions of 
Administrative Policy No. 2004.02. 

F. Non-Profit organizations applying for a Street Fair permit for fundraising purposes 
must contact City Hall with all pertinent information and shall be subject to approval 
by Emergency Response Agencies, i.e. Police, Fire and Medical. Closure of any 
public streets shall not exceed six (6) hours. 

IV. APPLICATION 

A. All organizations _will be required to complete an application for Community Event 
and Street Fair permits thirty (30) days prior to the event. At the time the application 
is submitted all fees, deposits, proof of insurance and proof of .~~J(e4fjjt8tatus must 
be submitted for the building, park or recreation. area to be reserved: 

This policy is not in fonded to conflict with or modify City of Mendota Municipal Code. All · 
organizations ~re required to comply with the City of Mendota Municipal Code regarding 
the event. 



City of Mendota 

Administrative Policy 

City Participation. in Community Events 

INTRODUCTION: 

PURPOSE: 

DEFINITIONS: 

In light of the new administrative policy regarding the lending of City equipment 
to only events that are City sponsored, staff has recently reviewed the · 
administrative policy regarding which events are considered to be City hosted. 
After reviewing it, we realized that there are some events that are no longer 
being held on a regular basis, and some events that are common but not 
included. As such, this administrative policy is intended to clarify and replace the 
old administrative policy regarding City participation in community events. 

The purpose of this Administrative Regulation ("Regul~tion11) is intended to 
clarify and establish the role of the City of community events hosted by the City 
to promote· re·creattonal activitresthat provide·a benefittothe·community:· 

"City.Hosted" means an event in which the City of Mendota is the host on behalf 
of non-profit organization(s) and has no dire.ct financial contribution to the 
event. 

"Community Event'' is an event open to the general public authorized by the City 
for the use of a park, recrea.tional area or building that promotes family 
entertainment and recreational activities for the community. 

"City Liaison" means a city employee working with the non-profit organization(s) 
on behalf of the City, but is not responsible for cootdinating the event. 

Enacted on: .1/25/2011 Enacted by: The Office of the City Manager 

Celeste
Typewritten Text
Exhibit C

Celeste
Typewritten Text



POLICY: . 
A. ·The City Manager will appoint a city employee to serve as City Liaison for events 

hosted by the City. . 
B. Based on the availability of city resources, the City will provide support.services 

including but not limited to: 
1. Public works personnel; 
2. In-kind contributions i.e. copying, printing, postage; 
3. Facilities. 

C. The designated organization will be responsible for coordinating all facets of the 
event, including but not limited to; securing all necessary permits/applications, 
contacting events sponsors, fund-raising activities, getting approval from other 
-regulatory agencies, contracting for event services (Le. sound equipment). 

D. The City of Mendota shall host.the following events: 
1. Annual Harvest Fiesta; 
2. Driver Awareness; 
3. Red Ribbon Week and Carnival; 
4. Christmas- Parade; 
5. Senior Thanksgiving; 
6. National Night Out; and 
7. Cultural Event at the. Mendota Branch Library. 

E. City hosted events will be provided insurance coverage under the City of 
Mendota policy. 

F. City hosted events will not count towards free or discounted events in 
acco.rdance with Policy 2004.01 Event ~ermit for Organizations. . 

G. Third parties will be responsible for payment of city business license fees and 
other applicable permit fees. 

H. All city fees for exclusive use permits will be waived. 
I. Lead organization will encourage and promote participation by other City of 

Mendota non-profit organizations. 

Enacted on: 1/25/2011 Enacted by: The Office of the City Manager 



CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. January 11 1 2011 THROUGH January 20, 2011 
WARRANT LIST CHECK NO. 32694 THRU 32755 
TOTAL FOR COUNCIL APPROVAL . . = $895;156.46 

2. Council approve the submittal of a letter to Governor Brown opposing the 
elimination of Redevelopment and Enterprise Zones. I 

3. Council adopt Resolution 11 .. 03; A Resolution of the City Council of the City of 
Mendota Appointing the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tern to Represent th_e City at 
Official Functions, Meetings and Community Events. 

A motion to adopt the Consent Calendar was made by Mayor Pro Tern Amador, 
seconded by Council Member Capuchino; unanimously passed·(5 ayes). 

BUSINESS 

1. Council consideration and approval of an Administrative Policy regarding City 
Participation in Community Events. [City Ma~ager, Chojnacki] 

The City Manager informed the City Council that in light of the new administrative poiicYl 
regarding the lending of City equipment to only City sponsored events 1 staff reviewed the (· 
administrative policy that determines which events are considered to be City hosted. The i 

. City Manager reported that in the review process it was found that some events were no 
longer being held and s_ome events that are common,ly hosted were· but not included. 
The City Council h(:lld a discussion and requested (two) 2· additional events, National . 

· Night Out and the Cultural Event at the library, be added to the current list of City 
sponsored events. With the recommended adjustments, a motion to approve was made 
by Mayor Pro Tern Amador, seconded by Council Member Riofrio; unanimously 
approved (5 ayes). 

2. Council consideration, discussion and direction regarding section 9;05.040 of the 
Mendota Municipal Code as it pertains to Amplified Music. (City Manager, 
Chojnacki] · 

The City Manager provided a staff report in which she provided ~ome background information of the 
amplified music permit .and ~few items of concern that have been brought forth since the adoption and 
implementation of said ordinance. The City Council held a discussion and expressed their concerns which_ 
include the location of the party and DJ, limiting the number of attendees, potentially requiring security and 
limiting the number of permits issued to each address. The City Council directed staff to research the 
number of violators and recommended that a limit be placed on the number of permits that can be issued. 
In addition, the City Council requested that the· application have an area for the Police Chief's review and 
approval. A motipn to approve was made by Mayor Pro Tern Amador, seconded by 
Council Member Riofrio; unanimously approved (5 ayes). · 

.Council Member Flores stepped out at 6:35 P.M. and returned at 6:36 P.M. 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS. 

fV1inutes of Regular City Council 2 . 1/25/11 



AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS  

 

FROM: NICOLAS CARDELLA, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 

 

SUBJECT: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE 19-02 AMENDING TITLE 17, CHAPTER 

17.08, SECTION 17.08.040 TO MODIFY THE PROCEDURE FOR 

INITIATION OF ZONING AMENDMENTS 

 

DATE: MARCH 8, 2019 

 

 

 

BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION: 

 

The City of Mendota (City) is responsible for enforcing laws and regulations designed to 

promote orderly development and compatible land uses through the adoption and enforcement 

of appropriate zoning laws.  

 

The Mendota Municipal Code’s (MMC) existing procedure for the adoption of substantive 

amendments to the City’s zoning laws, located in Title 17, Chapter 17.04, § 17.08.040, is 

administratively burdensome and encumbers the City’s ability to promptly and efficiently 

consider and approve amendments to its zoning laws because it requires the Planning 

Commission to adopt a resolution of intention before the matter may be scheduled for public 

hearing.  

 

As there is no state law requirement for the adoption of a resolution of intention prior to 

initiating a zoning code amendment, staff proposes eliminating this requirement and permitting 

zoning code changes to be immediately scheduled for consideration before the Planning 

Commission at the request of staff, the City Council, or the Planning Commission, without the 

need to adopt a resolution of intention. 

 

In addition, the proposed amendments make various clarifying and conforming changes, and 

create additional flexibility for the scheduling of public hearings on zoning amendments.  A 

redline document showing the proposed amendments is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.  

 

It should be noted that these amendments are not themselves subject to § 17.08.040.  That 

section provides that an amendment to the zoning code “which changes any property from one 

district to another, or imposes any regulation not heretofore imposed, or removes or modifies any 

such regulations heretofore imposed shall be initiated and adopted by the following procedure.”  

However, the amendments proposed herein do not “change[] any property from one district to 

another,” “impose[] any regulation not heretofore impose,” or “remove[] or modif[y] any such 



regulations.”  Therefore, the proposed amendments are not subject to the procedure specified in 

Chapter 17.08.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

None. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Motion to introduce the enclosed ordinance and give first reading, by title only, with second 

reading waived. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

Exhibit “A” – Redline document showing proposed changes to zoning code.  



 

{7623/001/00965220.DOC} 

17.08.040 – Amendments to the zoning ordinance.  

A.  Scope. An amendment to this title which changes any property from one district to 
another, or imposes any regulation not heretofore imposed, or removes or modifies 
any such regulations heretofore imposed shall be initiated and adopted by the 
following procedure.  

B.  Initiation. Amendments to this title may be initiated in the following manner:  

1.  The commission, council, or staff may propose an amendment by a resolution 
of intention scheduling a public hearing before the commission to consider the 
proposed amendment;.  

2.  The council may propose an amendment by a resolution of intention.  

23.  A property owner or the authorized representative of an owner may propose an 
amendment to change property from one district to another by filing a verified 
petition with the commission; provided, however, such a petition shall be signed 
by the owners of at least sixty (60) percent of the area directly affected by such 
proposed amendment.  

C.  Petitions.  

1.  Form of Petition. The commission shall prescribe the form in which applications 
for changes of districts are made. The commission may prepare and provide 
blanks for such purpose and may prescribe the type of data and information to 
be provided by the petitioner to assist in determining the validity of the request. 
No application shall be received unless it is full and complete and complies with 
such requirements.  

2.  Verification of Petition. The city manager shall verify the accuracy and 
completeness of the application and the date of verification shall be noted on 
the application.  

3.  Change of C-1, C-2, C-3 or SC Districts. In addition, the applicant may provide 
to the commission such data and information as will assist the city manager in 
making a recommendation to the commission to justify its findings to the council 
as to the location and size of the proposed rezoning. Such data may include:  

a.  Economic studies and surveys;  

b.  Traffic studies;  

c.  Population studies; and  

d.  Any other information deemed pertinent.  

D.  Filing Fee. When an application to change property from one district to another is 
filed, a fee shall be paid for the purpose of defraying the costs incidental to the 
proceedings.  

E.  Administrative Investigation. The city manager shall study the proposed amendment 
and shall provide the information necessary for action consistent with the intent and 
purpose of this chapter and the general plan.  



 

{7623/001/00965220.DOC} 

F.  Notice of Commission Public Hearing.  

1.  If amendments are proposed by petition, tThe secretary shall set all proposals 
for amendmentsthe matter for public hearing no less than ten (10) days nor 
more than forty sixty (640) days after the verification of the proposal or after the 
adoption of a resolution of intention by the commission or the council.  

2.  Notices of required public hearings shall contain a description of the property 
under consideration, the nature of the proposed change, the time and place of 
the hearing, the body presiding over the hearing, the recommendation of the 
commission, if applicable, and any and other pertinent data. and  Notice shall 
be given by at least one publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
city at least ten (10) days before the hearing.  

3.  When the amendment involves the reclassification of property, additional notice 
shall be given by mailing a notice not less than ten (10) days prior to the date of 
the hearing to the owners of property within a radius of three hundred (300) feet 
from the external boundaries of the property described in the application, using 
for this purpose the last known name and address of such owners as shown on 
the latest adopted tax roll of the county or by posting of the property not less 
than ten days before the hearing.  

4.  Any failure to make notices as aforesaid shall not invalidate any proceedings 
taken for amendments under this chapter.  

G.  Commission Public Hearings — Recommendations and Notice Thereof.  

1.  The commission shall, not less than ten (10) days after the publication of the 
legal notice of a public hearing on an amendment, hold such hearing.  

2.  If, for any reason, testimony on any case set for public hearing cannot be 
completed on the day set for such hearing, the commissioner presiding at such 
public hearing may, before the adjournment or recess thereof, publicly 
announce the time and place to and at which such hearings will be continued, 
and such announcement shall serve as sufficient notice.  

3.  Upon the completion of a public hearing, the commission shall, not later than 
forty (40) days thereafter, render its decision on the matter so heard. Failure to 
so act within said forty (40) days shall serve to automatically and immediately 
refer the whole matter to the council for such action as it deems warranted 
under the circumstances. In the event of such failure on the part of the 
commission to act, the city manager shall immediately deliver to the council all 
of the records of the matter involved.  

4.  The recommendation for the approval of any amendment shall be by resolution 
of the commission carried by the affirmative votes of not less than a majority of 
its total voting members. A resolution for recommendation which receives a 
majority vote of the members present and voting but not a majority vote of the 
total voting members of the commission may, with the consent of the applicant, 
if any, and by majority vote of the members present, be continued until the next 
regular or special meeting of the commission; however, if the majority of the 
members present do not vote to continue the matter or the applicant does not 



 

{7623/001/00965220.DOC} 

consent thereto, then the action shall constitute disapproval. A resolution for the 
approval of any amendment which fails to carry by reason of no votes of a 
majority of the members present shall be deemed a disapproval.  

5.  The commission shall announce and record its action by formal resolution. 
Such resolution shall be filed with the council.  

6.  Not later than ten (10) days after final action by the commission on an 
application, notice of the decision shall be mailed to the applicant.  

7.  A denial by the commission shall be final unless appealed to the council within 
fifteen (15) days of the date such resolution is filed with the council.  

8.  An appeal may be initiated by the applicant or by any aggrieved person.  

H.  Notice of Council Public Hearing. The hearing date of the council public hearing 
shall be set by the city clerk for not less than ten (10) days or more than forty sixty 
(640) days after the filing of the commission's resolution with by the council. Notice 
shall be given as provided in Section 17.08.040(F).  

I.  Notice of Council Public Hearing — Decision and Notice Thereof.  

1.  The council shall, not less than ten (10) days after the legal notice of a public 
hearing on a proposed amendment, hold such public hearing.  

2.  The council may approve the proposed amendment and enact it by ordinance 
or disapprove it. The council shall not alter the proposed amendment without 
referral back to the commission unless such alteration was previously 
considered by the commission and unless, in the case of a district change, such 
alteration is more restrictive or reduces the area under consideration. A copy of 
the decision shall be mailed to the applicant at the address on the application. 
The decision shall be made within fifteen (15) days of the hearing. When the 
proposed amendment is referred back to the commission, the commission shall 
render a report to the council within forty (40) days of such referral, and the 
council shall render its decision within forty (40) days of the receipt of the report 
of the commission.  

J.  Appeals on Denials.  

1.  The council, not more than forty (40) days after the denial by the commission, 
shall hear such appeal after giving notice pursuant to Section 17.08.040(F).  

2.  The council shall refer any proposed reversal of such denial back to the 
commission for a report.  

3.  The commission shall render such report to the council within forty (40) days of 
such referral.  

4.  The council shall render its decision within forty (40) days of the receipt of the 
report from the commission.  

K.  Reapplications for District Amendments. No person, including the original applicant, 
shall reapply for the same change of district on the same lot or lots within a period 



 

{7623/001/00965220.DOC} 

of one (1) year from the date of the final decision on such previous application 
unless such decision is a denial without prejudice.  

L.  Appeals — Time Limits. Appeals, if any, to a court of competent jurisdiction shall be 
made within thirty (30) days after the final decision by the council. In the event such 
action is not appealed within thirty (30) days following the council's decision, it shall 
be presumed that the petitioner to a court has not acted with due diligence in 
asserting his rights, and the action of the city shall be deemed to be final.  

M.  Conditional Zoning.  

1.  The council may impose conditions to the zoning reclassification of property, to 
be given an appropriate designation on the zone map, where such conditions 
are essential to:  

a.  The community's protection against potentially harmful effects of the 
proposed use; or  

b.  Where such conditions are required to adjust the proposed use to the 
community's needs.  

2.  In the event conditions to zoning are imposed, a site plan review shall be 
required prior to development as provided in Section 17.08.090.  

(Amended during 1995 codification; prior code § 13.21.002)  



1 
 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL   ORDINANCE NO. 19-02 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA AMENDING 
TITLE 17, CHAPTER 17.08, SECTION  
17.08.040 TO MODIFY THE PROCEDURE 
FOR INITIATION OF ZONING AMENDMENTS 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mendota (City) is responsible for enforcing laws and 
regulations designed to promote orderly development and compatible land uses 
through the adoption and enforcement of appropriate zoning laws; and 

 WHEREAS, the City’s zoning laws are contained in Title 17 of the Mendota 
Municipal Code (MMC); and 

 WHEREAS, the MMC’s existing procedure for the adoption of amendments to 
zoning laws, located in Title 17, Chapter 17.04, Section 17.08.040, is administratively 
burdensome and encumbers the City’s ability to promptly and efficiently consider and 
approve amendments to its zoning laws; and 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to amend Section 17.08.040 to streamline the 
procedure for initiating amendments to its zoning laws and to promote the prompt and 
efficient consideration and approval of amendments to its zoning laws; and 

 WHEREAS, staff has prepared amendments to Section 17.08.040 to accomplish 
the City’s desires (Proposed Amendments), a redline version of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference; and 

 WHEREAS, the Proposed Amendments are administrative changes that alter 
the procedure by which the City may initiate zoning amendments; and 

 WHEREAS, the Proposed Amendments do not change any property from one 
district to another, impose any regulation not heretofore imposed, or remove or modify 
any regulations heretofore imposed, and, as such, are not themselves subject to 
Section 17.08.040. 

 NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA, 
CALIFORNIA DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  The Recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and by this reference 
made an operative part hereof.  

SECTION 2. This ordinance amends Title 17, Chapter 17.08 by amending Section 
17.08.040.  The amendment will provide that the Planning Commission, City Council, or 



 

City staff may initiate a zoning amendment by scheduling a public hearing before the 
Planning Commission, alter certain timetables for the amendment process, and make 
certain other clarifying and conforming changes.   

SECTION 3.  Section 17.08.040 of Chapter 17.08 of Title 17 of the Mendota Municipal 
Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
17.08.040 – Amendments to the zoning ordinance 
 
A.  Scope. An amendment to this title which changes any property from one district to 

another, or imposes any regulation not heretofore imposed, or removes or modifies 
any such regulations heretofore imposed shall be initiated and adopted by the 
following procedure.  

B.  Initiation. Amendments to this title may be initiated in the following manner:  

1.  The commission, council, or staff may propose an amendment by scheduling a 
public hearing before the commission to consider the proposed amendment;  

2.  A property owner or the authorized representative of an owner may propose an 
amendment to change property from one district to another by filing a verified 
petition with the commission; provided, however, such a petition shall be signed 
by the owners of at least sixty (60) percent of the area directly affected by such 
proposed amendment.  

C.  Petitions.  

1.  Form of Petition. The commission shall prescribe the form in which applications 
for changes of districts are made. The commission may prepare and provide 
blanks for such purpose and may prescribe the type of data and information to 
be provided by the petitioner to assist in determining the validity of the request. 
No application shall be received unless it is full and complete and complies with 
such requirements.  

2.  Verification of Petition. The city manager shall verify the accuracy and 
completeness of the application and the date of verification shall be noted on 
the application.  

3.  Change of C-1, C-2, C-3 or SC Districts. In addition, the applicant may provide 
to the commission such data and information as will assist the city manager in 
making a recommendation to the commission to justify its findings to the council 
as to the location and size of the proposed rezoning. Such data may include:  

a.  Economic studies and surveys;  

b.  Traffic studies;  

c.  Population studies; and  

d.  Any other information deemed pertinent.  



 

D.  Filing Fee. When an application to change property from one district to another is 
filed, a fee shall be paid for the purpose of defraying the costs incidental to the 
proceedings.  

E.  Administrative Investigation. The city manager shall study the proposed amendment 
and shall provide the information necessary for action consistent with the intent and 
purpose of this chapter and the general plan.  

F.  Notice of Public Hearing.  

1.  If amendments are proposed by petition, the secretary shall set the matter for 
public hearing no less than ten (10) days nor more than sixty (60) days after the 
verification of the proposal.  

2.  Notices of required public hearings shall contain a description of the property 
under consideration, the nature of the proposed change, the time and place of 
the hearing, the body presiding over the hearing, the recommendation of the 
commission, if applicable, and any other pertinent data. Notice shall be given by 
at least one publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the city at least 
ten (10) days before the hearing.  

3.  When the amendment involves the reclassification of property, additional notice 
shall be given by mailing a notice not less than ten (10) days prior to the date of 
the hearing to the owners of property within a radius of three hundred (300) feet 
from the external boundaries of the property described in the application, using 
for this purpose the last known name and address of such owners as shown on 
the latest adopted tax roll of the county or by posting of the property not less 
than ten days before the hearing.  

4.  Any failure to make notices as aforesaid shall not invalidate any proceedings 
taken for amendments under this chapter.  

G.  Commission Public Hearings — Recommendations and Notice Thereof.  

1.  The commission shall, not less than ten (10) days after the publication of the 
legal notice of a public hearing on an amendment, hold such hearing.  

2.  If, for any reason, testimony on any case set for public hearing cannot be 
completed on the day set for such hearing, the commissioner presiding at such 
public hearing may, before the adjournment or recess thereof, publicly 
announce the time and place to and at which such hearings will be continued, 
and such announcement shall serve as sufficient notice.  

3.  Upon the completion of a public hearing, the commission shall, not later than 
forty (40) days thereafter, render its decision on the matter so heard. Failure to 
so act within said forty (40) days shall serve to automatically and immediately 
refer the whole matter to the council for such action as it deems warranted 
under the circumstances. In the event of such failure on the part of the 
commission to act, the city manager shall immediately deliver to the council all 
of the records of the matter involved.  

4.  The recommendation for the approval of any amendment shall be by resolution 
of the commission carried by the affirmative votes of not less than a majority of 



 

its total voting members. A resolution for recommendation which receives a 
majority vote of the members present and voting but not a majority vote of the 
total voting members of the commission may, with the consent of the applicant, 
if any, and by majority vote of the members present, be continued until the next 
regular or special meeting of the commission; however, if the majority of the 
members present do not vote to continue the matter or the applicant does not 
consent thereto, then the action shall constitute disapproval. A resolution for the 
approval of any amendment which fails to carry by reason of no votes of a 
majority of the members present shall be deemed a disapproval.  

5.  The commission shall announce and record its action by formal resolution. 
Such resolution shall be filed with the council.  

6.  Not later than ten (10) days after final action by the commission on an 
application, notice of the decision shall be mailed to the applicant.  

7.  A denial by the commission shall be final unless appealed to the council within 
fifteen (15) days of the date such resolution is filed with the council.  

8.  An appeal may be initiated by the applicant or by any aggrieved person.  

H.  Council Public Hearing. The hearing date of the council public hearing shall be set 
by the city clerk for not less than ten (10) days or more than sixty (60) days after the 
filing of the commission's resolution with the council. Notice shall be given as 
provided in Section 17.08.040(F).  

I.  Notice of Council Public Hearing — Decision and Notice Thereof.  

1.  The council shall, not less than ten (10) days after the legal notice of a public 
hearing on a proposed amendment, hold such public hearing.  

2.  The council may approve the proposed amendment and enact it by ordinance 
or disapprove it. The council shall not alter the proposed amendment without 
referral back to the commission unless such alteration was previously 
considered by the commission and unless, in the case of a district change, such 
alteration is more restrictive or reduces the area under consideration. A copy of 
the decision shall be mailed to the applicant at the address on the application. 
The decision shall be made within fifteen (15) days of the hearing. When the 
proposed amendment is referred back to the commission, the commission shall 
render a report to the council within forty (40) days of such referral, and the 
council shall render its decision within forty (40) days of the receipt of the report 
of the commission.  

J.  Appeals on Denials.  

1.  The council, not more than forty (40) days after the denial by the commission, 
shall hear such appeal after giving notice pursuant to Section 17.08.040(F).  

2.  The council shall refer any proposed reversal of such denial back to the 
commission for a report.  

3.  The commission shall render such report to the council within forty (40) days of 
such referral.  



 

4.  The council shall render its decision within forty (40) days of the receipt of the 
report from the commission.  

K.  Reapplications for District Amendments. No person, including the original applicant, 
shall reapply for the same change of district on the same lot or lots within a period 
of one (1) year from the date of the final decision on such previous application 
unless such decision is a denial without prejudice.  

L.  Appeals — Time Limits. Appeals, if any, to a court of competent jurisdiction shall be 
made within thirty (30) days after the final decision by the council. In the event such 
action is not appealed within thirty (30) days following the council's decision, it shall 
be presumed that the petitioner to a court has not acted with due diligence in 
asserting his rights, and the action of the city shall be deemed to be final.  

M.  Conditional Zoning.  

1.  The council may impose conditions to the zoning reclassification of property, to 
be given an appropriate designation on the zone map, where such conditions 
are essential to:  

a.  The community's protection against potentially harmful effects of the 
proposed use; or  

b.  Where such conditions are required to adjust the proposed use to the 
community's needs.  

2.  In the event conditions to zoning are imposed, a site plan review shall be 
required prior to development as provided in Section 17.08.090.  

 
SECTION 2. Severability.  If any part of this Ordinance is held to be invalid for any 
reason, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 
Ordinance, and the City Council hereby declares that it would have passed the 
remainder of this Ordinance, as if such invalid portion thereof had been deleted. 
 
SECTION 3. This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its passage.   
 
SECTION 4.  The Mayor shall sign and the City Clerk shall certify to the passage of this 
Ordinance and will see that it is published and posted in the manner required by law.  

 

* * * * * * * * * * 
The foregoing ordinance was introduced on the 12th day of March, 2019 and duly 
passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Mendota at a regular meeting 
thereof held on the 26th day of March, 2019 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:      ______________________________ 

      Robert Silva, Mayor 



 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Matt Flood, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
John Kinsey, City Attorney 
 
 
 

 

 

 



AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS  

 

FROM: NICOLAS CARDELLA, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 

 

SUBJECT: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE 19-03 AMENDING TITLE 8, CHAPTER 

8.20 BY ADDING SECTION 8.20.155 RELATING TO RECOVERY OF 

ATTORNEY FEES IN NUISANCE ABATEMENT PROCEEDINGS 

 

DATE: MARCH 8, 2019 

 

 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Government Code § 38773.5(b) states: 

 

A city may, by ordinance, provide for the recovery of attorneys’ fees in any action, 

administrative proceeding, or special proceeding to abate a nuisance.  If the ordinance 

provides for the recovery of attorneys’ fees, it shall provide for recovery of attorneys’ 

fees by the prevailing party, rather than limiting recovery of attorneys’ fees to the city if 

it prevails.  The ordinance may limit recovery of attorneys’ fees by the prevailing party to 

those individual actions or proceedings in which the city elects, at the initiation of that 

individual action or proceeding, to seek recovery of its own attorneys’ fees. 

 

(emphasis added.) 

 

Mendota Municipal Code (MMC) § 8.20.150 is the City’s cost recovery provision for nuisance 

abatement.  It provides that “[w]henever a nuisance is not voluntarily abated by a property 

owner, the city may abate the nuisance and collect or otherwise recover the costs of such 

abatement as provided in this chapter.”  The provision makes no reference to attorney fees.   

 

In City of Monte Sereno v. Padgett (2007) 149 Cal.App.4th 1530, the City of Monte Sereno sued 

property owners for abatement of a public nuisance.  The trial court awarded the city its fees 

based on § 6.17.170 of the Monte Sereno Municipal Code (MSMC), which provided that “should 

the City commence a civil or criminal proceeding to abate a public nuisance, the costs of 

abatement which may be recorded shall include all legal costs including reasonable attorneys’ 

fees incurred by the City in commencing and pursuing civil or criminal remedies.”  (Id. at 1536.)  

On appeal, the defendants contended that § 6.17.170 “conflicts with or is preempted by” 

Government Code § 38773.5.   

 

The Sixth District Court of Appeal held that MSMC § 6.17.170 violated Government Code § 

38773.5(b) and therefore that “its application cannot be upheld” because § 38773.5(b) “requires 



that the ordinance provide for recovery by the prevailing party and forbids the unilateral recovery 

by the city.”  (Id. at 1537.)  

 

Mendota’s ordinance does not expressly provide for the recovery of attorney fees.  However, 

even if it is interpreted as providing such authority, it is arguably inconsistent with § 38773.5(b) 

because the ordinance only provides for “unilateral recovery by the city,” which Section 

38773.5(b) “forbids.”  (Id.; see MMC § 8.20.150 [“[T]he city may abate the nuisance and collect 

or otherwise recover the costs of such abatement . . . “] [emphasis added].)  Thus, under City of 

Monte Sereno, it may be argued that MMC § 8.20.150 cannot be applied to recover attorney fees 

incurred in connection with nuisance abatement activities.  

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

Staff proposes amending Chapter 8.20 to include a new § 8.20.155.  The new provision would 

state that, at the City’s election, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its attorney fees 

in any proceeding initiated by the city to abate a public nuisance.  Further, the new provision 

would clarify that abatement costs may include, inter alia, reasonable attorney fees.  These 

amendments would ensure that the City’s recovery of costs for nuisance abatement, including the 

recovery of attorney fees, complies with Government Code § 38773.5(b). 

 

Additionally, it should be noted that a substantial portion of the legal costs the City incurs for 

nuisance abatement activities occur prior to the July 4 holiday when the City commences its 

annual weed abatement.  Therefore, to ensure that the proposed amendments are made effective 

in advance of the 2019 weed abatement efforts, it is important that this ordinance be enacted as 

soon as possible.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

The proposed amendments will produce a positive fiscal impact by allowing the City to recover 

all costs, including reasonable attorney fees, incurred in connection with the City’s nuisance 

abatement activities.  A more precise discussion of fiscal impact will be forthcoming upon the 

second reading.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Motion to introduce the enclosed ordinance and give first reading, by title only, with second 

reading waived. 



1 
 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL   ORDINANCE NO. 19-03 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA AMENDING 
TITLE 8, CHAPTER 8.20 BY ADDING 
SECTION 8.20.155 RELATING TO 
RECOVERY OF ATTORNEY FEES IN 
NUISANCE ABATEMENT PROCEEDINGS 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mendota (City) is responsible for enforcing laws and 
regulations for the health and safety of the City’s residents, including laws related to 
public nuisances; and 

 WHEREAS, when property owners refuse or are unable to voluntarily abate 
public nuisances, the City incurs substantial legal costs to ensure that nuisances are 
properly abated; and 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to adopt an ordinance allowing for the recovery of 
attorney fees incurred in connection with any judicial action, administrative proceeding, 
or special proceeding to abate a public nuisance; and 

 WHEREAS, Government Code Section 38773.5 provides that a city may by 
ordinance provide for the recovery of attorney fees in any action, administrative 
proceeding, or special proceeding to abate a nuisance. 

 NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA, 
CALIFORNIA DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  The Recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and by this reference 
made an operative part hereof.  

SECTION 2. This ordinance amends Title 8, Chapter 8.20 by adding Section 8.20.155.  
The amendment will provide that the prevailing party may recover its attorney fees in 
any judicial action, administrative proceeding, or special proceeding to abate a 
nuisance.  

SECTION 3.  Section 8.20.155 is hereby added to Chapter 8.20 of Title 8 of the 
Mendota Municipal Code to read as follows: 
 
8.20.155 – Recovery of Attorney Fees 
 
 A. In any administrative action, legal proceeding, or special proceeding 
initiated by the city to abate a public nuisance, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
recover attorney fees, provided that attorney fees shall only be available in those 



 

{7623/001/00965050.DOCX} 

actions or proceedings in which the city has provided notice at the commencement of 
such action or proceeding that the city intends to seek and recover attorney fees. 
 
 B. Abatement costs may include inspection costs, investigative costs, actual 
costs of physical abatement through demolition, repair or replacement of buildings, 
removal of graffiti or other inscribed material, or any other means, incidental expenses, 
law enforcement costs directly related to nuisance abatement, and all other costs 
incurred by the city in initiating proceedings and actions to enforce abatement activities, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees. 
 
SECTION 2. Severability.  If any part of this Ordinance is held to be invalid for any 
reason, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 
Ordinance, and the City Council hereby declares that it would have passed the 
remainder of this Ordinance, as if such invalid portion thereof had been deleted. 
 
SECTION 3. This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its passage.   
 
SECTION 4.  The Mayor shall sign and the City Clerk shall certify to the passage of this 
Ordinance and will see that it is published and posted in the manner required by law.  

 

* * * * * * * * * * 
The foregoing ordinance was introduced on the 12th day of March, 2019 and duly 
passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Mendota at a regular meeting 
thereof held on the 26th day of March, 2019 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:      ______________________________ 

      Robert Silva, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Matt Flood, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
John Kinsey, City Attorney 
 
 
 

 

 

 



 

AGENDA ITEM –  STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: CITY COUNCIL DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE DOCUMENTS 

NECESSARY TO PARTICIPATE IN THE FRESNO COUNTY JPA TO RECEIVE CDBG GRANT 

FUNDS 

DATE: MARCH 12 , 2019 
  

ISSUE 

 

Should the City Council approve resolution number 19-16,  directing the City Manager to 

execute documents necessary in order to participate in the Fresno County JPA to receive CDBG 

grant funds for the period of July, 2020 thru June 30, 2021? 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the County of 

Fresno annually provide non-participating cities the opportunity to rejoin Fresno 

County's Urban County CDBG Program. Back in early 2018, the City elected to 

remove itself from the County CDBG program to participate in the State CDBG 

program in hopes to be able to apply for large grant amounts.  After careful 

consideration, staff believes that rejoining the County program, for the last remaining 

year in the current cycle, while the City completes its utility master plans and utilizes 

the existing CDBG Program Income, is recommendable.  Once the utility master plans 

are complete, the city can use those plans, should it decide to apply for State CDBG 

funds for larger infrastructure improvement grants. 

The County receives its allocation of CDBG funds from HUD based on census data and 

reallocates funds to the participating cities based on the same formula HUD uses. Cities 

may use their funds for any eligible CDBG activity, including infrastructure, economic 

development, housing and public services. Cities participating in the Urban County 

Program also participate in the HOME Program, which provides funds to eligible 

residents of those cities for housing rehabilitation and homebuyer assistance, and 

provides housing loan funds as gap financing for affordable housing development 

within those cities. Cities participating in the Urban County Entitlement Program are 

not eligible to compete for the State of California's Small Cities CDBG Program funds. 

If the City elects to join the Fresno County CDBG Program, a Joint Powers Agreement 

must be executed between the County and the City.  

ANALYSIS 



2 

 

Staff has worked out timing scenarios and since the City is not prepared to apply for 

infrastructure grants due to the lack of water, sewer, and storm drain master plans, rejoining the 

County program for the last year in the cycle, with guarantee allocations makes the most sense. 

  

FISCAL IMPACT 

 

County CDBG program provides a guarantee amount of funds to use towards priority projects.  

The amount depends on how many participate in the program, last round however, the amount 

was 171,000.   The County program also requires much less staff involvement in utilizing funds 

because they manage the process for us, which results in cost savings. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt resolution 19-16,  authorizing the City Manager to 

execute any documents and agreements necessary in order to rejoin the County CDBG program. 

 



January 17, 2019 

Cristian Gonzalez, City Manager 
City of Mendota 
643 Quince Street 
Mendota, CA 93640 

Dear Mr. Gonzalez: 

County of Fresno 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND PLANNING 

STEVEN E. WHITE, DIRECTOR 

Subject: Urban County Qualification for Participation in the Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) Program for the Program Year 2020-21 

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the County of Fresno 
annually provide non-participating cities the opportunity to rejoin Fresno County's Urban 
County CDBG Program. This letter serves to notify you of the opportunity to rejoin the 
County CDBG Program for the remaining one-year period, from July 1, 2020 to 
June 30, 2021. 

The County receives its allocation of CDBG funds from HUD based on census data and 
reallocates funds to the participating cities based on the same formula HUD uses. Cities 
may use their funds for any eligible CDBG activity, including infrastructure, economic 
development, housing and public services. Cities participating in the Urban County 
Program also participate in the HOME Program, which provides funds to eligible residents of 
those cities for housing rehabilitation and homebuyer assistance, and provides housing loan 
funds as gap financing for affordable housing development within those cities. Cities 
participating in the Urban County Entitlement Program are not eligible to compete for the 
State of California's Small Cities CDBG Program funds. 

If the City elects to join the Fresno County CDBG Program, a Joint Powers Agreement must 
be executed between the County and the City. If you are interested in rejoining the County 
Program at this time, or if you have any questions, please call Kristi Johnson at (559) 600-
4292 no later than February 15, 2019. We look forward to working with you. 

GAJt-h:le 

n Allen 
munity Development Manager 

G·1720SCanOtV\CO OFF'ICE. SUPPORT WORKING FOLDEA\C0ttta.p;nd1ne1 2019'.COSG &. GRANT\l.tr lo Non-Pamapallng C,trn iJPA} doex 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 
2220 Tulare Street, Eighth Floor I Fresno. California 93721 /Phone (559) 600-4292 /FAX (559) 600-4573 

The County of Fresno is an Equal Employment Opportunity Employer 



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE  

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 19-16 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA DIRECTING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY IN ORDER 
TO PARTICIPATE IN THE FRESNO COUNTY 
JPA TO RECEIVE CDBG GRANT FUNDS 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mendota seeks out grant funds to support the various 
programs and projects it participates in; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mendota is currently attempting to procure Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds independently; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to rejoin the Fresno County JPA that seeks CDBG 
funding on a regional basis with commensurate shares going to each participating City; 
and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota that the City Council hereby declares its intent to join the County of Fresno’s 
JPA for CDBG funds; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council 
authorizes and directs the City Manager to take the needed action and execute any 
documents necessary to ensure full participation in the Fresno County CDBG program. 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Robert Silva, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 I, Matt Flood, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a regular 
meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 12th day of March, 2019, 
by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
       ______________________________ 
       Matt Flood, City Clerk 



AGENDA ITEM 

 
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS  
 
FROM: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE 19-01: APPROVING AN 

AMENDMENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BY AND  
BETWEEN THE CITY OF MENDOTA AND KSA HOMES, INC. RELATING 
TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY COMMONLY KNOWN AS 
THE LA COLONIA PROPERTY 

 
DATE: MARCH 12, 2019 
 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
This item before you is the consideration of the final approval of the Ordinance adopting the 
second amendment to the Development Agreement for La Colonia, which as discussed at your 
previous meeting will have the following effects:  
 

• Revision of the number of lots in the subdivision from 86 to 85.  

• The full cost of the improvements to Well No. 3 will be paid from existing City Water 
funds.   

• The full cost of the storm drain conveyance and storage improvements for the project and 
surrounding areas will be paid from existing City Storm Drain Impact Fees. 

• The full cost of the traffic signal at Bass and Barboza, benefitting the project and the 
surrounding community, will be paid from existing Development Impact Fees. 

• By May 1, 2019, KSA Homes will pay $884,050.60 directly into the General Fund, 
which will then be used in full by the City to help fund a Rojas-Pierce park improvement 
project. 

 
As discussed, the intent of the agreement is unchanged from the original intent of the Agreement 
approved last August, which is to provide funding for the Rojas-Pierce park project, and this 
Amendment provides for equivalent exactions from the Developer. Only the mechanics and the 
cash flows have changed. 
 



FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
As reported at the meeting of February 26, the revised lot layout (reducing count from 86 to 85) 
will result in one less lot paying Development Impact Fees as the subdivision is built out. This 
will result in a loss of income to the City of $8,778.47. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that that City Council move to waive further reading of Ordinance No. 19-01, 
and to pass and adopt Ordinance No. 19-01: an ordinance approving an Amendment to the 
Development Agreement by and between the City of Mendota and KSA Homes, Inc. relating to 
the development of the property commonly known as the La Colonia Property. 
 



  

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL ORDINANCE NO. 19-01 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA APPROVING 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF MENDOTA AND KSA HOMES, 
INC. RELATING TO THE DEVELOPMENT 
OF THE PROPERTY COMMONLY KNOWN 
AS THE LA COLONIA PROPERTY 

 
WHEREAS, on August 28, 2018 the City Council of the City of Mendota (“City”) 

adopted Ordinance No. 18-04, approving a development agreement (“Development 
Agreement”) by and between the City and KSA Homes, Inc. (“Developer”)  
(collectively, “Parties”); 

 
WHEREAS, an Addendum to the Development Agreement was adopted on 

October 23, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, after approval of the Development Agreement, Developer 

requested certain changes to the parcel map resulting in the development property 
being subdivided into 85 lots, rather than the original 86 lots;  

 
WHEREAS, City and Developer have agreed to alter certain rights and 

responsibilities under the Development Agreement and to various clarifying and 
conforming changes; 

 
WHEREAS, to accommodate Developer’s requested changes to the parcel 

map and the Parties’ other desired modifications, the Parties have agreed to amend 
the Development Agreement;  

 
WHEREAS, staff has prepared a revised Development Agreement modifying 

the Development Agreement in accordance with the Parties’ intentions, which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference (“Amendment 
to Development Agreement”); 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA DOES 

HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1. This Ordinance incorporates, and by this reference makes a part hereof, 
the Amendment to Development Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

 
SECTION 2. This Ordinance is adopted under the authority of Government Code 
Section 65864 et seq., and pursuant to the “Development Agreement Regulations.” 

 



SECTION 3. In accordance with the Development Agreement Regulations, the City 
Council hereby finds and determines, as follows: 

 
1. The Amendment to Development Agreement is consistent with the objectives, 

policies, general land uses and programs specified in the General Plan, as 
amended, in that it establishes certain development rights, obligations and 
conditions for the implementation of the La Colonia Property; 

2. The Amendment to Development Agreement is compatible with the uses 
authorized in, and the regulations prescribed for, the general plan designations 
which will apply to the La Colonia Property; 

3. The Amendment to Development Agreement is in conformity with public 
convenience, general welfare, and good land use practice; 

4. The Amendment to Development Agreement will not be detrimental to the 
public health, safety, and general welfare; 

5. The Amendment to Development Agreement will not adversely affect the orderly 
development of property or the preservation of property values; and 

 
SECTION 4. The foregoing findings and determinations are based upon the following: 

 
1. The Recitals set forth in this Ordinance, which are deemed true and correct; 
2. Ordinance No. 18-04, adopted by the City Council on August 28, 2018 

approving the Development Agreement by and between City and Developer, 
and the Recitals therein, which are deemed true and correct; 

3. Resolution No. 18-61, adopted by the City Council on August 14, 2018, making 
findings as to the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the La Colonia Project, 
approved by and incorporated in said Resolutions, which Resolutions and 
exhibits are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full; 

4. The City’s General Plan, as amended by the General Plan Amendment adopted 
by the City Council by Resolution No. 18-62 prior to adoption of this Ordinance; 

5. All City staff reports (and all other public reports and documents) prepared for 
the Planning Commission, City Council, or others relating to the Mitigated 
Negative Declaration, the General Plan Amendment, zone change, Vesting 
Tentative Subdivision Map, the Development Agreement, and other actions 
relating to the Property; 

6. All documentary and oral evidence received at public hearings or submitted to 
the Planning Commission, or City during the comment period relating to the 
Mitigated Negative Declaration, the General Plan Amendment, zone change, 
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, the Development Agreement, and other 
actions relating to the Property; and 

7. All other matters of common knowledge to the City Council, including, but not 
limited to the City’s fiscal and financial status; City general ordinances, policies 
and regulations. 

 



 
 
 
SECTION 5.  Pursuant to 14 C.C.R. § 15162, when a negative declaration has been 
adopted for a project, no subsequent analysis need be performed upon a subsequent 
approval unless substantial evidence shows that changed conditions could potentially 
cause new significant environmental effects.  In accordance with § 15162, the City 
hereby finds:  
 

1. No substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major 
revisions of the previous negative declaration due to the involvement of new 
significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of 
previously identified significant effects; 

2. No substantial changes have occurred with respect to the circumstances under 
which the project will be undertaken which will require major revisions of the 
negative declaration due to the involvement of new significant environmental 
effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant 
effects; 

3. No new information of substantial importance, which was not known and could 
not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the 
negative declaration was adopted, shows any of the following: (A) the project 
will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous negative 
declaration; (B) significant effects previously examined will be substantially 
more severe than shown in the previous negative declaration; (C) mitigation 
measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be 
feasible, and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the 
project, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or 
alternative; or (D) mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably 
different from those analyzed in the previous negative declaration would 
substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but the 
project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 

 
SECTION 6. The City Council hereby approves the Amendment to Development 
Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” subject to such minor, conforming, and 
clarifying changes consistent with the terms thereof as may be approved by the City 
Manager, in consultation with the City Attorney prior to execution thereof, including 
completion of references and status of planning approvals, and completion and 
conformity of all exhibits thereto, as approved by the City Council. 

 
SECTION 7. Upon the effective date of this Ordinance as provided in Section 8 hereof, 
the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute the 
Amendment to Development Agreement on behalf of the City of Mendota. 

 
SECTION 8. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to perform all acts 
authorized to be performed by the City Manager in the administration of the 
Amendment to Development Agreement pursuant to the terms of the Amendment to 
Development Agreement. 

 



SECTION 9. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect thirty (30) days after its 
passage and adoption. 
 
 

* * * * * * * * * * 
 

The foregoing ordinance was introduced on the 26th day of February, 2019 and duly 
passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Mendota at a regular meeting 
thereof held on the 12th day of March, 2019 by the following vote: 

 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Robert Silva, Mayor 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

Matt Flood, City Clerk 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

John Kinsey, City Attorney 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
(Revised Development Agreement) 

 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE DEVEOPMENT AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF MENDOTA AND 
KSA HOMES, INC. 

 This First Amendment is entered into by and between the City of Mendota, a California 
municipal corporation, and KSA Homes, Inc., a California corporation, (collectively, “Parties”) 
as of _______________________  (“Effective Date”).   

RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, on August 28, 2018 the City Council of the City of Mendota (“City”) 
adopted Ordinance No. 18-04, approving a development agreement (“Development Agreement”) 
by and between the City and KSA Homes, Inc. (“Developer”) (collectively, “Parties”), attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference; 

 WHEREAS, an Addendum to the Development Agreement was adopted on October 23, 
2018, attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by this reference; and 

 WHEREAS, after approval of the Development Agreement, Developer requested certain 
changes to the parcel map resulting in the development property being subdivided into 85 lots, 
rather than the original 86 lots;  

 WHEREAS, City and Developer have agreed to alter certain rights and responsibilities 
under the Development Agreement and to various clarifying and conforming changes; 

 WHEREAS, to accommodate Developer’s requested changes to the parcel map and the 
Parties’ other desired modifications, the Parties have agreed to execute an amendment to the 
Development Agreement (“Amendment”);  

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and in consideration of the 
mutual promises and agreements as hereafter set forth, the Parties hereto agree and compromise 
as follows: 

A. Amendments to the Development Agreement 

 The Parties agree that the Development Agreement shall be amended as follows: 

  1. Recitals 

 Recitals, Section D (“Development Approvals”), Subsection 5 is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 

5. Tentative Subdivision Map No. 2018-01, proposing creation of 86 single 
family lots, a lot for commercial development, and a lot for a mini park, 
approved by the Planning Commission on June 19, 2018 (“Tentative Map”) 
(Exhibit C). The Tentative Subdivision Map proposed creation of 86 single-
family lots. In the process of finalizing lot configurations, Developer has 

Celeste
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



revised the lot arrangement to include 85 lots. The City Engineer has 
determined the Final Map to be in substantial conformance with the Tentative 
Map. 
 

  2. Article 1 
  
 Article 1, Section 101 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 101. Vested Rights.  Developer shall have a vested right to develop the 
Subject Property for the period this Agreement is in effect in accordance with the 
Development Approvals, Subsequent Development Approvals, the provisions of 
this Agreement and Applicable Rules (as defined in Section 102.1).  The Parties 
have negotiated and agreed upon the development impact fees, dedications, and 
exactions that will be required in connection with the development of the Subject 
Property.  The off-site improvements applicable to the Subject Property are set 
forth in Exhibit E (Storm Drain) and Exhibit F (Traffic Signal).  The parties 
intend that these shall be the only off-site improvements applicable to the 
development of the Subject Property during the period this Agreement is in effect.  
As set forth in Exhibit E and Exhibit F, Developer shall be eligible for 
reimbursement of the subject off-site improvements.  Reimbursement, as 
specified in each of these Exhibits, shall be payable as acceptable progress is 
made and upon timely completion of the enumerated improvements and 
acceptance thereof by the City.   

Additionally, in lieu of the Development Impact Fees that would otherwise be 
assessed to the development, which are set forth in Exhibit G, Developer shall 
remit to City a lump sum payment in the amount of $884,050.60 (“In Lieu 
Payment”) on or before May 1, 2019.  The In Lieu Payment shall be deposited in 
the City’s General Fund and shall be used to fund various park improvement 
projects as determined by the City.   

After the first eight (8) years of this Agreement, the development impact fees 
applicable to the development of the Subject Property shall be all applicable fees, 
as reasonably determined by the City, adopted by the City in effect at the time 
payment of the fees is required, including any new fees the City adopted at any 
time the Agreement is in effect.  The amount of the fees applicable to the 
development of the Subject Property after the first eight (8) years the Agreement 
is in effect shall be as set forth in the most current adopted Master Fee schedule at 
the time payment is required.  

The amounts of permit processing fees shall be in accordance with City standard 
practice and regulation at the time of this Agreement.  Nothing provided in this 
Agreement shall limit the Developer from exercising vesting rights obtained 
before or after execution of this Agreement through other means.  



To the extent not otherwise provided in this Agreement, the conditions of 
approval and mitigation measures in the Development Approvals related to 
dedications and reservation of easements are intended to meet the requirements of 
Government Code section 65865.2 related to a development agreement providing 
a provision for the reservation or dedication of land for a public purpose.  

    

 Article 1, Section 105.1, subdivision (a) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

a. All processing fees then due have been paid as required by the terms of this 
Agreement, and all In Lieu Improvements required in Exhibit E (Storm 
Drain) and Exhibit F (Traffic Signal), and any other public improvements and 
facilities required to be constructed or installed by Developer in connection 
with the development of the Subject Property, or applicable portion thereof, 
have been constructed and installed, or Developer or the proposed assignee 
have provided security adequate, in the reasonable discretion of the City, to 
assure construction and installation of any and all such public improvements 
and facilities and the City receives a copy of the assignment that meets the 
requirements of Section 105.3; or 

 Article 1, Section 105.6 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 105.6 Because of the extensive landscaping Developer will be 
constructing along the Bass Avenue frontage of the Project, and the landscaping 
improvements required for the pocket park proposed within the development, the 
City intends to form a Landscape and Lighting District (LLD) under the 
Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972 (Street & Highways Section 22500, et seq.) 
to finance the ongoing maintenance, irrigation and repair costs for those areas, 
which will all be the responsibility of the City. The Developer agrees to annex 
Tract No. 6218 into the LLD, and the Developer shall cooperate with the City and 
take any necessary actions in order to assist the City in annexing Tract No. 6218 
into the LLD.  In furtherance of the foregoing, the Developer agrees to approve 
the levy of an assessment on any residential dwelling unit in the amount that is 
adopted by the City for the 2019-20 fiscal year as part of the formation of the 
LLD, which amount shall be calculated as the total estimated lighting operation 
and landscape maintenance cost for the fiscal year, plus a ten-percent reserve, 
spread equally across the 81 units of Tract No. 6218. This assessment shall be 
subject to an annual escalation factor of no less than 2% but no greater than the 
rate of increase in the Consumer Price Index published by the U.S. Department of 
Labor for the County of Fresno. 
 
 
 
 



  3. Article 2 
  
 Article 2, Section 201.1.1 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

 201.1.1 Timely Submittals by Developer. Developer 
acknowledges that City cannot begin processing Subsequent Development 
Approvals until Developer submits complete applications.  Developer shall use its 
best efforts to (i) provide to City in a timely manner any and all documents, 
applications, plans, and other information necessary for City to carry out its 
obligations hereunder; and (ii) cause Developer’s planners, engineers, and all 
other consultants to provide to City in a timely manner all such documents, 
applications, plans and other required materials as set forth in the Applicable 
Rules.  Developer shall use all reasonable efforts to submit or cause to be 
submitted documents, applications, plans and other information necessary for City 
to carry out its obligations hereunder that are in a final form, not subject to 
unreasonable changes by Developer and that comply with this Agreement and all 
Applicable Rules.  Plan changes made after submittal pursuant to this Section will 
be subject to such additional charges as provided in Exhibit G.  The City reserves 
the right to reject any incomplete or non-conforming submittals.  

 
 Article 2, Section 201.1.1 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

 201.3 Non-Development Entitlement Plan Review.  Nothing provided 
in this Section 201 is intended to include the submission and review by the City of 
plans for off-site improvement (as required under Exhibit E and Exhibit F), 
including but not limited to, construction plans for traffic signals, storm drains, 
and public water systems or well sites.  Procedures to be used for review of off-
site improvements shall be pursuant to then existing City policies, ordinances and 
standards.  Plan submittals for off-site improvements will not be given priority 
status over any other submittals but will be reviewed on a “first in first out” basis.  
 

 Article 2, Section 202.1.2 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

 202.1.2 Off-Site Improvements.  Developer will construct all Off-
Site Improvements as provided in Exhibit E and Exhibit F pursuant to the 
description and timing provided in those exhibits.  
 

 Article 2, Section 202.1.2 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

 202.1.3 Financing of Off-Site Improvements.  Developer is 
responsible for financing the construction of the Off-Site Improvements described 
in Exhibit E and Exhibit F.  Reimbursement of these costs will be made in 
accordance with Paragraph 101 of this Agreement and Exhibit E and Exhibit F.  



 
 Article 2, Section 202.2 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

 202.2 Public Works Development Standards; Specifications.  In 
completing the construction of the On-Site and Off-Site Improvements described 
in Exhibit E and Exhibit F, Developer shall comply with (a) the condition and 
terms of the Development Approvals and Subsequent Development Approvals, 
(b) all approved construction plans, (c) all applicable laws, ordinances, and 
resolutions in effect at the time of construction not inconsistent with this 
Agreement, and (d) the construction standards contained in the City’s Standard 
Specifications in effect at the time of construction.  If the City does not have 
standard specifications for any construction to be performed, the Developer will 
complete construction in accordance with the standards and specifications of the 
State of California, Department of Transportation.  Developer shall complete all 
construction to the satisfaction of, and use materials satisfactory to, the City 
Engineer and the City.  The City Engineer and/or the City may inspect all 
construction and materials.  
 

 Article 2, Section 202.4 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

 202.4 Prevailing Wages.  As the Off-Site Improvements identified in 
Exhibit E and Exhibit F constitute public works, under State law, Developer is 
required to pay and to cause its contractor and subcontractors to pay prevailing 
wages for the construction of the Off-Site Improvements as those wages are 
determined pursuant to Labor Code Section 1720 et seq. and in implementing 
regulations of the Department of Industrial Relations and comply with the other 
applicable provisions of Labor Code Section 1720 et seq. and implementing 
regulations of the Department of Industrial Relations.  Developer shall or shall 
cause its contractor and subcontractors to keep and retain such records as are 
necessary to determine that prevailing wages have been paid as required by law. 
During the construction of the Off-Site Improvements, Developer shall or shall 
cause its contractor to post at the La Colonia Project the applicable prevailing 
rates of per diem wages.  Developer shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend 
(with counsel reasonably acceptable to the City) the City against any claim for 
damages, compensation, fines, penalties or other amounts arising out of the failure 
or alleged failure of any person or entity (including Developer, its contractors and 
subcontractors) to pay prevailing wages as required by law or to comply with the 
other applicable provisions of Labor Code Section 1720 et seq. and implementing 
regulations of the Department of Industrial Relations in connection with 
construction of the Off-Site Improvements as being subject to Prevailing wages.  
 

 Article 2, Section 204 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 



 204. Reimbursement for Off-Site Improvements.  Except as provided 
in this Agreement, Developer shall not be entitled to any reimbursement and/or 
credits pursuant to any fee programs as provided in the Mendota Municipal Code 
and/or adopted City policies for those fee programs.  
 

  4. Article 7 
  
 Article 7, Section 703 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

 703. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is executed in two (2) 
duplicate originals, each of which is deemed to be an original.  This Agreement 
consists of twenty-three (23) pages and Exhibits A through G, which constitute 
the entire understanding and agreement of the Parties.  Said exhibits are identified 
as follows: 
 

Exhibit A: Legal Description of the Subject Property 
 
Exhibit B: Site Map 
 
Exhibit C: Tentative Subdivision Map 
 
Exhibit D: Ordinance Adopting Development Agreement 
 
Exhibit E: Exaction: Off-Site Improvement (Storm Drain) 
 
Exhibit F: Exaction: Off-Site Improvement (Traffic Signal) 
 
Exhibit G: Development Impact and Processing Fees 
 

Exhibits A through G are incorporated into the Agreement.  In the event of 
inconsistency between the Recitals and the provisions of Articles 1 through 7, the 
provisions of Articles 1 through 7 shall prevail.  
 

  5. Exhibit E 

 Exhibit E is hereby amended to read as follows: 

EXHIBIT “E” 

 Exaction: Off-Site Improvement (Storm Drain System)  

The Applicant proposes to connect to the City’s existing storm drain system near 
2nd Street and Bass Avenue. Storm water would flow into or be pumped into the 
existing ditch and would be conveyed to the City’s wastewater treatment plant 
(WWTP) where it would be discharged into a retention pond. 



The Applicant proposes to connect the drainage system within the proposed 
development to the City’s existing storm drain system near 2nd Street and Bass 
Avenue via a system of catch basins, manholes and underground pipes and 
potentially a pump station, as approved by the City Engineer. The applicant shall 
improve the ditch to achieve the capacity needed to convey all current and 
proposed storm water that is tributary to the ditch, and shall construct a new 
retention basin at the WWTP, in a location specified by the City and to the 
capacity required by the City Standards. This work will also require coordination 
with PG&E for relocation and elevation of existing power poles which run along 
the northerly side of the proposed retention basin.  

The Applicant will be eligible for reimbursement from the City for labor and 
materials costs associated with completed and accepted work. Reimbursement 
will be made in progress payments, to be made not more often than monthly, 
based on invoices submitted by the Applicant for labor and materials which have 
been accepted by the City.  

  6. Exhibit F 

 Exhibit F is hereby amended to read as follows: 

EXHIBIT "F" 

The applicant will be required to construct a traffic signal at the intersection of 
Bass Avenue and Barboza Street. The signal shall provide for through and 
protected left-turn phases for each direction, and shall be designed by a qualified 
civil or traffic engineer licensed to practice in the State of California. Plans shall 
be submitted to the City for review along with the other improvement plans for 
Phase 1 of the development, and prior to start of construction.   

The traffic signal may be completed in two parts. The first part, the underground 
work for the traffic signal, including conduits, pedestals and detector loops, must 
be done together with the Bass Avenue improvements and shall be completed 
prior to acceptance by the City of the public infrastructure improvements for the 
first Final Map phase of the development.  The entire traffic signal must be in 
place, operational, and accepted by the City before a 60th building permit in the 
overall development will be released.   

The City will reimburse the Applicant for the actual documented cost of each part 
completed and accepted. Ninety-five (95) percent of this amount will be 
reimbursed in progress payments, to be made not more often than monthly, based 
on invoices submitted by the Applicant for labor and materials which have been 
completed in the prior month, with the final five (5) percent due and payable 
thirty (30) days after each part of the traffic signal work is accepted as complete 
by the City.  

 



  7. Exhibit G 

 Exhibit G is hereby amended to read as follows: 

EXHIBIT "G" 

Exaction: Development Impact and Processing Fees 

The project will be subject to two types of City-imposed fees during construction: 

1. Processing fees, including application, plan and map checking and 
inspection fees shall be per the City’s standard development fee schedule. 
In particular, plan checking and inspection fees are cost recovery for the City 
and are not fixed amounts. 
 

2. Development Impact Fees, per the City’s adopted schedule 
These fees are normally assessed per unit, per acre or per the unit specified in 
the fee schedule.  In lieu of paying these fees, Developer shall remit to City a 
lump sum payment in the amount of $884,050.60 on or before May 1, 2019, 
consisting of the total amount of fees listed below ($834,050.60) plus a Rojas 
Park impact fee ($50,000). 

 
Fee Unit Type Units Fee per Unit Subtotal 

City Management and General Services EDU 85 $218.81 $18,598.85 
Law Enforcement EDU 85 $591.49 $50,276.65 
Fire Protection EDU 85 $714.10 $60,698.50 
Storm Drainage AC 17.00 $5,169.45 $87,880.65 
Water Supply & Treatment EDU 85 $2,350.30 $199,775.50 
Wastewater & Treatment EDU 85 $1,947.56 $165,542.60 
Traffic Impact EDU 85 $690.05 $58,654.25 
Recreational Facilities EDU 85 $1,364.51 $115,983.35 
Water Connection Charges Connection  $420.77 $35,765.45 
Sewer Connection Charges Connection  $480.88 $40,874.80 
Total $834,050.60 
 

  8. Exhibit H 

 Exhibit H is deleted in its entirety.  

 
  9. Exhibit I 

 Exhibit I is deleted in its entirety.  

B. Ratification & Conflict 

Except as expressly amended by this Amendment, the terms and conditions of the 
Development Agreement shall remain unaltered, are hereby reaffirmed, and shall continue in full 
force and effect.  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms of the 



Development Agreement and the terms of this Amendment, the terms of this Amendment shall 
govern and control.   

 
WHEREFORE, the undersigned declare that they have read this document and 

understand its terms and freely enter into this Agreement. 

 

CITY OF MENDOTA    KSA HOMES, INC. 

 

By: __________________________  By: __________________________ 

Its: __________________________  Its: __________________________ 

 

 



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA APPROVING 
AN AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF MENDOTA AND KSA HOMES, 
INC.,RELATING TO THE DEVELOPMENT 
OF THE PROPERTY COMMONLY KNOWN 
AS THE LA COLONIA PROPERTY 

ORDINANCE NO. 18-04 

WHEREAS, to strengthen the public planning process, encourage private 
participation in comprehensive planning and reduce the economic risk of development, 
the Legislature of the State of California adopted Government Code Sections 65864 et 
seq. {the "Development Agreement Statute") which authorizes cities to enter into 
agreements for the development of real property with any person having a legal or 
equitable interest in such property in order to establish certain development rights in 
such property; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Development Agreement Statute, the City of 
Mendota (the "City") has enacted regulations (the "Development Agreement 
Regulations") to implement procedures for the processing and approval of development 
agreements in accordance with the Development Agreement Statute; and 

WHEREAS, the La Colonia Property is owned by KSA Homes, Inc., a California 
Limited Liability Corporation (4'Developer); and 

WHEREAS, on August 14, 2018, the City certified the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration for the La Colonia Project; and 

WHEREAS, prior to adopting this Ordinance, the City Council, on August 14, 
2018, adopted Resolution No. 18-61, finding that, where feasible, mitigation measures 
have been imposed and modifications incorporated into the Project which avoid or 
substantially lessen all significant adverse environmental impacts; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mendota adopted Resolution No. 18-
62, which approved a general plan amendment for the La Colonia Property; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mendota adopted No. 18-03, which 
approved a zone change for the La Colonia Property; and 

WHEREAS, Developer desires to carry out the development of the La Colonia 
Property consistent with the General Plan, as amended, zone change and the 
Development Agreement and the vested entitlements referenced therein; and 

1 

Celeste
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



WHEREAS, the Development Agreement will assure the City and its residents 
and the Developer that the Development will proceed as proposed and that the public 
improvements and other amenities and funding obligations, will be accomplished as 
proposed; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on June 
19, 2018, on the Mitigated Negative Declaration, the General Plan Amendment, zone 
change and project entitlements 1 during which public hearing the Planning Commission 
received comments from the Developer, City staff, public agencies and members of the 
general public; and 

WHEREAS, following the public hearing, the Planning Commission made a 
recommendation to the City Council on the Mitigated Negative Declaration, the General 
Plan Amendment, zone change, Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map and the 
Development Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 65867 of the Government Code, the City 
Council, on August 14, 2018, held a duly noticed public hearing on the Mitigated 
Negative Declaration, the General Plan Amendment, zone change, project entitlements, 
and the Development Agreement, during which public hearing, the City Council received 
comments from the Developer, City staff, public agencies and members of the general 
public; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA DOES 
HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. This Ordinance incorporates, and by this reference makes a part hereof1 

the Development Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

SECTION 2. This Ord inance is adopted under the authority of Government Code 
Section 65864 et seq., and pursuant to "Development Agreement Regulations 11

• 

SECTION 3. In accordance with the Development Agreement Regulations, the City 
Council hereby finds and determines, as follows: 

1. The Development Agreement is consistent with the objectives, policies, general 
land uses and programs specified in the General Plan, as amended, in that it 
establishes certain development rights, obligations and conditions for the 
implementation of the La Goiania Property; 

2. The Development Agreement is compatible with the uses authorized in, and the 
regulations prescribed for, the general plan designations which will apply to the 
La Goiania Property; 

3. The Development Agreement is in conformity with public convenience, general 
welfare and good land use practice; 

4. The Development Agreement will not be detrimental to the public health, safety 
and general welfare; 

2 



5. The Development Agreement will not adversely affect the orderly development of 
property or the preservation of property values; and 

SECTION 4. The foregoing findings and determinations are based upon the following: 

1. The Recitals set forth in this Ordinance, which are deemed true and correct; 
2. Resolution No. 18-61, adopted by the City Council on August 14; 2018, making 

findings as to the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the La Colonia Project, 
approved by and incorporated in said Resolutions, which Resolutions and 
exhibits are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full; 

3. The City's General Plan, as amended by the General Plan Amendment adopted 
by the City Council by Resolution No. 18-62 prior to adoption of this Ordinance; 

4. All City staff reports (and all other public reports and documents) prepared for the 
Planning Commission, City Council, or others relating to the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration, the General Plan Amendment, zone change, Vesting Tentative 
Subdivision Map, the Development Agreement, and other actions relating to the 
Property; 

5. All documentary and oral evidence received at public hearings or submitted to 
the Planning Commission, or City during the comment period relating to the 
Mitigated Negative Declaration, the General Plan Amendment, zone change, 
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, the Development Agreement, and other 
actions relating to the Property; and 

6. All other matters of common knowledge to the City Council, including, but not 
limited to the City's fiscal and financial status; City general ordinances, policies 
and regulations. 

SECTION 5. The City Council hereby approves the Development Agreement, attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, subject to such minor, conforming and clarifying changes consistent 
with the terms thereof as may be approved by the City Manager, in consultation with the 
City Attorney prior to execution thereof, including completion of references and status of 
planning approvals, and completion and conformity of all exhibits thereto, as approved 
by the City Council. 

SECTION 6. Upon the effective date of this Ordinance as provided in Section 8 hereof. 
the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute the 
Development Agreement on behalf of the City of Mendota. 

SECTION 7. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to perform all acts 
authorized to be performed by the City Manager in the administration of the 
Development Agreement pursuant to the terms of the Development Agreement. 

SECTION 8. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect thirty (30) days after its 
passage and adoption. · 

********** 

3 



The foregoing ordinance was introduced on the 14th day of August, 2018 and duly 
passed and adopted b~ the City Council of the City 9f Mendota at a regular meeting 
thereof held on the 28t day of August, 2018 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

AlTEST: 

4 - Mayor Pro Tern Martinez, Councilors Mendoza, Rosales, and Silva 
0 
1 - Mayor Castro 
0 

4 

~~ 
Victor Martinez, Mayor Pro Tern 



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
By and Between 

THE CITY OF MENDOTA 
and 

KSA HOMES, INC. 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is entered into this ~ ih"'day of 

Av5 u~t"- , 2018 (the "Effective Date") by and between the City of Mendota, a 
municipal corporation (the "City"), and KSA Homes, Inc., a California corporation 
("Developer"), pursuant to the authority of Section 65864 et seq. of the Government Code of the 
State of California. City or Developer may be referred to herein individually as a "Party" or 
collectively as the "Parties." There are no other parties to this Agreement. 

RECITALS 

A. Legal Authority. To strengthen the public planning process, encourage private 
participation in comprehensive planning and reduce the economic risk of development, the 
Legislature of the State of California adopted Sections 65864 et seq. of the Government Code 
("Development Agreement Law") authorizing any city, county or city and county to enter into 
a binding development agreement with an applicant for a development project, establishing 
certain development rights in the property which is the subject of the development project 
application. 

B. Project Description. On August 14, 2018, the City adopted the Mitigated 

Negative Declaration for the La Colonia Project (Resolution No. 18-61 ). The La Colonia Project 
includes two parcels containing approximately 18. 7 acres on the south side of Bass Avenue, east 
of State Highway 33 in the City of Mendota, bearing Fresno County Assessor's Parcel Numbers 
of 013-061-015 and 012-160-039 (the "Subject Property"). The La Colonia Project includes 86 
lots for single family homes, a lot for a mini park, and a 1.65-acre lot for future commercial 
development. Attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference is a map 
depicting the location of the La Colonia Project that is governed by this Agreement. 

C. Developer's Interest in Land. California Government Code section 65865 
requires an applicant for a development agreement to hold a legal or equitable interest in the real 
property that is the subject of the development agreement. Developer is the fee simple owner or 
has an equitable interest in the Subject Property, more particularly described in the legal 
description attached hereto as Exhibit A and the Site Map attached hereto as Exhibit B. 
Developer seeks to develop the Subject Property consistent with the 2025 Mendota General Plan 
("General Plan"). 

Celeste
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



D. Development Approvals. The following development approvals ("Development 
Approvals") affecting the Subject Property have been previously approved by the City or will be 
approved concurrently with this Agreement: 

1. A Mitigated Negative Declaration ("MND"), including project-specific 
mitigation measures adopted by the City. 

2. General Plan Amendment 2018-01, amending the Land Use Map of the 
General Plan to change the land use designation of the project site from 
"Community Commercial" and "High Density Residential" to "Medium 
Density Residential" and a smaller area of "Community Commercial" and 
"Recreational" approved by the City Council. (Resolution No. 18-62). 

3. Zone Change 2018-01, changing the zoning of the Site, adopted by the City 
Council. (Ordinance No. 18-03). 

4. This Development Agreement approved by the City Council (Ordinance No. 
18-04, adopted on August 28, 2018). 

5. Tentative Subdivision Map No. 2018-01, creating 86 single family lots, a lot 
for commercial development, and a lot for a mini park, approved by the 
Planning Commission on June 19, 2018 ("Tentative Map") (Exhibit C). 

E. Certainty Desired. Developer desires to carry out the development of the 
Subject Property as a mixed use development consistent with the General Plan, the Development 
Approvals, and this Agreement. The complexity, magnitude and long term build-out of the 
Subject Property would be difficult for Developer to undertake if the City had not determined, 
through this Development Agreement, to inject a sufficient degree of certainty in the land use 
regulatory process to justify the substantial financial investment associated with the development 
of the Subject Property. In order to obtain the housing, tax and other benefits the development of 
the Subject Property will provide and to assure that the impacts of the La Colonia Project will be 
adequately addressed, City desires certainty as to the scope of development, and in particular that 
needed infrastructure, facilities and services related to the La Colonia Project will be provided in 
a timely fashion. Developer des.ires certainty regarding the type and amount of development fees 
and exactions that it will be charged by the City and to define the design review and permitting 
process. As a result of the execution of this Agreement, both Parties can be assured that the 
development of the Subject Property can proceed without disruption caused by a change in City 
planning and development policies and requirements. 

2 



F. Subsequent Development Approvals. In addition to the Development 
Approvals, the development of the Subject Property will require various additional future land 
use and construction approvals from the City to implement the Development Approvals 
("Subsequent Development Approvals"). Subsequent Development Approvals may include 
but are not limited to: parcel maps (vesting or otherwise), conditional use permits, site plans and 
building permits. 

G. Consistent with General Plan. The City hereby finds and determines that the 
execution of this Agreement is in the best interests of the public health, safety and general 
welfare and is consistent with the General Plan. 

H. Voluntary Agreement. This Agreement is voluntarily entered into by the 
Developer in order to implement the General Plan and in consideration of the rights conferred 
and the procedures specified herein for the development of the Subject Property. This 
Agreement is voluntarily entered into by the City in the exercise of its legislative discretion in 

order to implement the General Plan and in consideration of the agreements and undertakings of 
the Developer hereunder. 

I. Project Provides Substantial Benefits. This Agreement furthers the public 
health, safety and general welfare, and the provisions of this Agreement are consistent with the 
General Plan. For the reasons recited herein, the City and Developer have determined that the La 
Colonia Project is a development for which this Agreement is appropriate. This Agreement will 
eliminate uncertainty regarding Development Approvals and Subsequent Development 
Approvals, thereby encouraging planning for, investment in and commitment to use and develop 
the Subject Property. Continued use and development of the Subject Property is anticipated to, 
in tum, provide the following substantial benefits and contribute to the provision of needed 
infrastructure for area growth, thereby achieving the goals and purposes for which the 
Development Agreement Law was enacted: 

1. Provide for the development of unused agricultural land. 

2. Provide increased tax revenues for the City. 

3. Provide for jobs and economic development in the City. 

4. Provide infrastructure improvements that can be utilized by regional users and 
future users. 

J. CEQA. The City Planning Commission, in its independent judgment, on the 
basis of an initial environmental assessment and findings of no significance, found that the La 

3 



Colonia Project will not have a significant impact on the environment and adopted a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration on June 19, 2018. 

K. This Agreement was reviewed at a duly noticed public hearing before the City 
Council of the City. 

L. The City Council, after a duly noticed public hearing, found that the provisions of 
this Agreement are consistent with the General Plan and other applicable plans and policies of 
the City. 

M. On August 28, 2018, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 18-04 approving 
this Agreement. A copy of the Ordinance is attached hereto as Exhibit D and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
hereinafter set forth, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, City and Developer (each herein sometimes called a "Party'' 
and jointly the "Parties") hereby agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

ARTICLE 1 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

100. Property Description and Binding Covenants. The Subject Property is that property 
described in Exhibit A. The Developer represents that it has a legal or equitable interest in the 
Subject Property and that all other persons holding legal or equitable interests in the Subject 
Property (excepting owners or claimants in easements) are bound by this Agreement. It is 
intended ·and determined that the provisions of this Agreement shall constitute covenants which 
shall run with the Subject Property, and the burdens and benefits hereof shall bind and inure to 
all successors in interest to the Parties. The Developer hereby warrants that any and all parties 
having record title interest at the time of execution of this Agreement in the Subject Property 
which may ripen into a fee have subordinated to this Agreement and that all such instruments of 
subordination, if any, are attached hereto and made a part of this Agreement. To the extent there 
exists any area of the Subject Property have has not yet been annexed to the City, said property 
shall be so annexed prior to expiration of the term of this Agreement as the same may be 
amended and the duration extended pursuant to the terms of Section 700. 

101. Vested Rights. Developer shall have a vested right to develop the Subject Property for 
the period this Agreement is in effect in accordance with the Development Approvals, 

4 



Subsequent Development approvals, the provisions of this Agreement and Applicable Rules (as 
defined in Section 102.1 ). The Parties have negotiated and agreed upon the development impact 
fees, dedications, and exactions that will be required in connection with the development of the 
Subject Property. The off-site improvements, dedications and exactions applicable to the Subject 
Property are set forth in Exhibit E (Storm Drain), Exhibit F (Traffic Signal), Exhibit G (Well), 
and Exhibit H (Soccer Field_). The Parties intend that these shall be the only off-site 
improvements, dedications, and exactions applicable to the development of the Subject Property 
during the period this Agreement is in effect. In lieu of portions of the development impact fees 
applicable to the development of the Subject Property, Developer shall be required to construct 
the off-site improvements as further described in Exhibit E (Storm Drain), Exhibit F (Traffic 
Signal), Exhibit G (Well), and Exhibit H (Soccer Field) (collectively, the "In Lieu 
Improvements"). 

As set forth in Exhibit E, Exhibit F, Exhibit G, and Exhibit H~ Developer shall be eligible for 
partial reimbursement of the subject off-site improvements. Portions of the reimbursements, as 
specified in each of these Exhibits, shall be payable as acceptable progress . is made and upon 
timely completion of the enumerated improvements and acceptance thereof by the City. The 
remaining portions of the reimbursements shall be repaid as credits against the cumulative 
Development Impact Fees that would otherwise be assessed to the development. These fees are 
set forth in Exhibit I. No reimbursement will be made for any costs for the improvements in 
Exhibit E, Exhibit F, Exhibit G, and Exhibit H which are in excess of the total Development 
Impact Fees which would be assessed to the development. 

To the extent that the City's regular Development Impact Fees for the development exceed the 
reimbursable portions of the offsite improvements set forth in Exhibit E, Exhibit F, Exhibit G, 
and Exhibit H, the remaining amounts shall be paid by the Developer to the City. The City shall 
divide the funds between its several Development Impact accounts in proportion to the total 
overall fee that would have been charged to the development in the absence of this Development 
Agreement. 

After the first eight (8) years of this Agreement, the development impact fees applicable to the 
development of the Subject Property shall be all applicable fees, as reasonably determined by the 
City~ adopted by the City and in effect at the time payment of the fees is required, including any 
new fees the City adopted at any time the Agreement is in effect. The amount of the fees 
applicable to the development of the Subject Property after the first eight (8_) years the agreement 
is in effect shall be as set forth in the most current adopted Master Fee schedule at the time 
payment is required. 
The amounts of permit processing fees shall be in accordance with City standard practice and 
regulation at the time of this Agreement. Nothing provided in this Agreement shall limit the 

5 



Developer from exercising vesting rights obtained before or after execution of this Agreement 
through other means. 

To the extent not otherwise provided in this Agreement, the conditions of approval and 
mitigation measures in the Development Approvals related to dedications and reservation of 
easements are intended to meet the requirements of Government Code section 65865.2 related to 
a development agreement providing a provision for the reservation or dedication of land for a 
public purpose. 

102. Rules, Regulations and Official Policies. 

102.1 Applicable Rules, Regulations and Official Policies. For the term of this 
Agreement, the rules, regulations, ordinances and official policies governing the permitted uses 
of land, density, design, improvement and construction standards and specifications applicable to 
the development of the Subject Property shall be the Applicable Rules as defined in this 
Section 102.1. The Applicable Rules are defined as those rules, regulations, and official policies 
set forth in (i) the Development Approvals; (ii) this Agreement (including Exhibits); and (iii) 
with respect to matters not addressed by these documents, those rules regulations, official 
policies, standards and specifications in force on the date of this Agreement, to the extent not 
inconsistent with the Development Approvals and this Agreement. The Applicable Rules shall 
also include, any changes in the General Plan, City of Mendota Zoning Ordinance ("Zoning 
Ordinance") or any future rules, ordinances, regulations or policies adopted by the City which 
are made applicable by the provisions of Section 102.2. 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, to the extent any future changes in the General 
Plan, Zoning Ordinance or any future rules, ordinances, regulations or policies adopted by the 
City purport to be applicable to the development of the Subject Property but are inconsistent with 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail, unless the 
parties mutually agree to amend or modify this Agreement pursuant to Section 700. 

To the extent not otherwise provided in this Agreement, the requirements of the Applicable 
Rules shall fulfill the requirements of Government Code section 65865.2 related to the 
agreement specifying allowed uses, allowed density and intensity of uses and maximum height 
and size of proposed buildings. 

102.2 Changes in State or Federal Law. This Section shall not preclude the 
application to the development of the Subject Property of changes in City laws, regulations, 
plans or policies, the terms of which are specifically mandated and required by changes in state 
or federal laws or regulations. In the event state or federal laws or regulations enacted after the 
date of this Agreement, or action by any governmental jurisdiction other than the City required 

6 



by state or federal laws, prevent or preclude compliance with one or more provisions of this 
Agreement or require changes in plans, maps or permits approved by the City, then the Parties 
shall meet and confer in good faith to determine the feasibility of modifying, extending or 
suspending one or more provisions of this Agreement as may be necessary to comply with such 
state or federal laws or regulations or the regulations of such other governmental jurisdiction 
required by state or federal laws. The Developer shall provide a reasonable number of options to 
the City and demonstrate the feasibility of modifying, extending or suspending the Agreement in 
part. Developer is required to provide all engineering and analysis (which shall meet industry 
and City standards) to support its position. 

To the extent that any actions of federal or state agencies (or actions of regional and local 
agencies, including the City, required by federal or state laws) have the effect of preventing, 
delaying or modifying development of the Subject Property, the City shall not in any manner be 
liable for any such prevention, delay or modification of said development. The Developer is 
required, at its cost and without cost to or obligation on the part of the City, to participate in such 
regional or local programs and to be subject to such -development restrictions as may be 
necessary or appropriate by reason of such actions of federal or state agencies required by federal 
or state laws (or such actions of regional and local agencies, including the City, required by 
federal or state laws). 

103. City's Reservation of Authority. The Parties acknowledge that the intent of the Parties 
is that this Agreement be construed in a manner that protects the vested rights granted to 
Developer herein to the maximum extent allowed by law. The Parties further acknowledge and 
agree, however, that the City is restricted in its authority to limit its police power by contract and 
that the limitations, reservations and exceptions contained in this Agreement are intended to 
reserve to the City all of its police power and/or statutory or other legal powers or responsibilities 
that cannot be so limited. This Agreement shall be construed to reserve to the City all such 
power and authority which cannot be restricted by contract, including compliance with the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Nor shall this Agreement be construed to limit 
the authority or obligation of the City to hold necessary public hearings, to limit the discretion of 
the City or any of its officers or officials with regard to rules, regulations, ordinances, laws, and 
entitlement of use which require the exercise of discretion by the City or any of its officers or 
officials. 

104. Term; Recordation. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the recordation 
of this Agreement with the County Recorder and shall extend for a period of twenty (20) years. 
Thereafter, unless said term is modified or extended by mutual consent of the Parties, subjec~ to 
the provisions of Section 700 hereof, upon expiration of said term, this Agreement shall be 
deemed terminated and of no further force and effect and the Parties shall, upon request of the 
City, execute an appropriate certificate of termination which shall be recorded in the official 

7 



records of the County, subject, however, to the provisions of Section 307 hereof. The City 
Planning Director shall record the Agreement within 10 days of final approval by Council. 

105. Sale or Assignment; Release. This Agreement, its rights, duties or obligations may be 
assigned, sold, exchanged or transferred, in whole or in part, in connection with a transfer by 
Developer of all or a portion of its interests in the Subject Property, subject to the terms of this 
Section. 

105.1 A sale, transfer or assignment of all or a portion of Developer's interest in this 
Agreement shall not require the approval of the City if: 

a. All processing fees then due have been paid as required by the terms of this 
Agreement, and all In Lieu Improvements required in Exhibit E (Storm 
Drain), Exhibit F (Traffic Signal), Exhibit G (Well), and Exhibit H (Soccer 
Field) and any other public improvements and facilities required to be 
constructed or installed by Developer in connection with the development of 
the Subject Property, or applicable portion thereof, have been constructed and 
installed, or Developer or the proposed assignee have provided security 
adequate, in the reasonable discretion of the City, to assure construction and 
installation of any and all such public improvements and facilities and the City 
receives a copy of the assignment that meets the requirements of Section 
105.3; or 

b. The sale, transfer or assignment is to an entity controlled by or in common 
control with Developer; or 

c. The transfer or assignments results from the death or mental or physical 
incapacity of an individual who is a controlling member of the Developer 
corporation; or 

d. The transfer or assignment is in trust for the benefit of a spouse, children, 
grandchildren or other family members of a controlling member of the 
Developer corporation; or 

e. The transfer or assignment consists of the granting of a security interest in this 
Agreement and the enforcement or use of such security interest in accordance 
with the remedies available thereunder. 

8 



105.2 Any other sale, transfer or assignment of all or a portion of Developer's interest in 
this Agreement shall require the prior written approval of the City, which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. 

105.3 Any proposed assignee or transferee shall agree to assume and be bound by all 
applicable duties, obligations and covenants of the Developer under this Agreement. The 
assumption must be set forth in an assumption agreement in a form reasonably acceptable to and 
approved in writing by the City. Any assumption agreement shall include a Notice to the 
assignee that they may be subject to fees for development of the property, as limited by the terms 
of this Agreement. 

105.4 If the Developer transfers the Subject Property and assigns this Agreement in 
violation of the terms of this Section, the City may terminate the Agreement at its discretion with 
fifteen (15) days' written notice. 

105.5 The Developer acknowledges that the City has formed a community facilities 
district (the 11 CFD") pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended 
(the 11Act") to finance all or a portion of the cost of providing police, fire and paramedic services, 
as well any other services determined by the City which are allowed to be financed pursuant to 
the Act, that are in addition to those provided in the territory within the CFD prior to the 
formation of the CFD and do not supplant services already available within the territory 
proposed to be included in the CFD and to levy a special tax to pay for such services. The 
Developer agrees to include Tract No. 6218 in the CFD or annex Tract No. 6218 into the CFD, 
and the Developer shall cooperate with the City and take any necessary actions in order to assist 
the City in annexing Tract No. 6218 into the CFD. In furtherance of the foregoing, the Developer 
agrees to approve the levy of a special tax on any residential dwelling unit in the amount that is 
no less than $855.43 per year but not greater than $855.43 per year, which shall be subject to an 
annual escalation factor of no less than 2% but no greater than the rate of increase in the 
Consumer Price Index published by the U.S. Department of Labor for the County of Fresno. 

105.6 Because of the extensive landscaping Developer will be constructing along the 
Bass Avenue frontage of the Project, and the landscaping improvements required for the pocket 
park proposed within the development, the City intends to form a Landscape and Lighting 
District (LLD) under the Landscape and Lighting of 1972 (Street & Highways Section 22500, et 
seq.) to finance the ongoing maintenance, irrigation and repair costs for those areas, which will 
all be the responsibility of the City. The Developer agrees to annex Tract No. 6218 into the LLD, 
and the Developer shall cooperate with the City and take any necessary actions in order to assist 
the City in annexing Tract No. 6218 into the LLD. In furtherance of the foregoing, the Developer 
agrees to approve the levy of an assessment on any residential dwelling unit in the amount that is 
no less than $242.00 per year but not greater than $242.00 per year, which shall be subject to an 

9 



annual escalation factor of no less than 2% but no greater than the rate of increase in the 

Consumer Price Index published by the U.S. Department of Labor for the County of Fresno. 

ARTICLE2 
DEVELOPMENT OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 

200. Permitted Uses and Development Standards. In accordance with and subject to the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Developer may develop the Subject Property for the 

uses and in accordance with the Applicable Rules, including the standards, uses and processes 

contained in the Development Approvals, Subsequent Development Approvals, and this 

Agreement. 

201. Approvals. 

201.1. Processing Subsequent Development Approvals. 

201.1.1 Timely Submittals By Developer. Developer acknowledges that 

City cannot begin processing Subsequent Development Approvals until Developer submits 

complete applications. Developer shall use its best efforts to (i) provide to City in a timely 

manner any and all documents, applications, plans, and other infomiation necessary for City to 

carry out its obligations hereunder; and (ii) cause Developer's planners, engineers, and all other 

consultants to provide to City in a timely manner all such documents, applications, plans and 

other required materials as set forth in the Applicable Rules. Developer shall use all reasonable 

effo1is to submit or cause to be submitted documents, applications, plans and other information 

necessary for City to carry out its obligations hereunder that are in a final form, not subject to 

unreasonable changes by the Developer and that comply with this Agreement and all Applicable 

Rules. Plan changes made after submittal pursuant to this Section will be subject to such 

additional charges as provided in Exhibit I. The City reserves the right to reject any incomplete 

or non-conforming submittals. 

201.1.2 Timely Processing By City. Upon submission by Developer of 

all appropriate applications and applicable processing fees for any Subsequent Development 

Approvals, City shall promptly and diligently, subject to the reasonable availability of City 

resources and City's procedural requirements, conunence and complete all steps necessary to act 

on Developer's Subsequent Development Approval applications. Upon Developer's request and 

at the City's discretion, the City may provide, at Developer's expense, additional staff and/or 

staff consultants for concurrent, expedited planning and processing of each Subsequent 

Development Approval application. 

10 



201.1.3 Effect of Legal Proceedings. Notwithstanding any pending 

administrative or judicial proceedings, initiative or referendum concerning the Development 

Approvals or Subsequent Development Approvals, and provided that such actions by City or 

Developer are not proscribed by law or court order, City shall process the Developer's 

applications for Subsequent Development Approvals as provided for hereit?- to the fullest extent 
allowed by law and Developer may proceed with development pursuant to the Development 

Approvals or Subsequent Development Approvals to the fullest extent allowed by law. 

201.2. Certificate of Occupancy. Subject to any requirements in this Agreement for 

issuance of certificates of occupancy, the City shall use all reasonable efforts to diligently and 

promptly provide a certificate of occupancy for any portion of the Subject Property when applied 

for by the Developer and upon completion of all necessary requirements to obtain a certificate of 

occupancy. 

201.3. Non-Development Entitlement Plan Review. Nothing provided in this 

Section 201 is intended to include the submission and review by the City of plans for off-site 

improvement (as required under Exhibit E, Exhibit F, Exhibit G, and Exhibit H), including but 

not limited to, construction plans for traffic signals, sto1m drains, and public water systems or 

well sites. Procedures to be used for review of off-site improvements shall be pursuant to then 

existing City policies, ordinances and standards. Plan submittals for off-site improvements will 

not be given priority status over any other submittals but will be reviewed on a "first in first out" 

basis. 

202. Public Facilities. 

202.1. Financing and Construction. Developer is responsible for financing and 

constructing the following public facilities in conjunction with the development of the Subject 
Property, all as set forth in the Development Approvals: 

202.1.1 On-Site Improvements. Developer shall construct the On-Site 
Improvements as provided in the Conditions of Approval for the subdivision. 

202.1.2 Off-Site Improvements. Developer will construct all Off-Site 

Improvements as provided in Exhibit E, Exhibit F, Exhibit G, and Exhibit H pursuant to the 

description and timing provided in those exhibits. 

202.1.3 Financing of Off-Site Improvements. Developer is responsible 

for financing the construction of the Off-Site Improvements described in Exhibit E, Exhibit F, 
Exhibit G, and Exhibit H. Partial reimbursement of these costs will be made, in accordance 

11 



with the provisions of Paragraph 101 of this Agreement and Exhibit E, Exhibit F, Exhibit G, 

and Exhibit H. 

202.2. Public Works Development Standards; Specifications. In completing the 

construction of the On-Site and Off-Site Improvements described in Exhibit E, Exhibit F, 
Exhibit G, and Exhibit H, Developer shall comply with (a) the conditions and terms of the 

Development Approvals and Subsequent Development Approvals, (b) all approved construction 

p_lans, ( c) all applicable laws, ordinances, and resolutions in effect at the time of construction not 

inconsistent with this Agreement, and (d) the construction standards contained in the City's 

Standard Specifications in effect at the time of construction. If the City does not have standard 

specifications for any construction to be performed, the Developer will complete construction in 

accordance with the standards and specification of the State of California, Department of 

Transportation. Developer shall complete all construction to the satisfaction of, and use 

materials satisfactory to, the City Engineer and the City. The City Engineer and/or the City may 

inspect all construction and materials. 

202.3. Acceptance and Warranty of Public Facilities. The City's final written 

acceptance of any Off-Site Improvements will constitute a finding that it complies with the plans 

and specifications required above. The City may not unreasonably condition, delay or withhold 

acceptance of Off-Site Improvements. The Off-Site Improvements shall be owned by the City 

upon their completion and acceptance. Developer shall provide a warranty for any defects 

(whether latent or patent) in work or material or design in the Off-Site Improvements that occur 

or appear within one year after the date of written acceptance. The warranty shall provide that 

the City may give written notice to repair or correct any defect within seven (7) calendar days of 

notice, occurring or appearing within one year, and Developer and/or its warrantor will repair or 

correct the defect without additional cost to the City. After a failure of the Off-Site 

Improvements requiring an emergency repair by City crews, the Developer or its warrantor shall 

reimburse all reasonable costs for labor and materials within foity-five ( 45) days of invoice. 

Failure to repair or correct any defect may result in an offset to, or suspension of, 

reimbursements, if any, or may be considered a default of this Agreement, until the repair or 

correction is completed to the reasonable satisfaction of the City. Developer shall include the 

City as a named beneficiary to any subcontract for or warranty of the public facilities. This 

subsection will survive tem1ination of this Agreement. 

202.4. Prevailing Wages. As the Off-Site Improvements identified in Exhibit E, 

Exhibit F, Exhibit G, and Exhibit H constitute public works, under State law, Developer is 

required to pay and to cause its contractor and subcontractors to pay prevailing wages for the 

construction of the Off-Site Improvements as those wages are determined pursuant to Labor 

Code Sections 1720 et seq. and implementing regulations of the Department of Industrial 

Relations and comply with the other applicable provisions of Labor Code Sections 1720 et seq. 

12 



and implementing regulations of the Department of Industrial Relations. Developer shall or shall 
cause its contactor and subcontractors to keep and retain such records as are necessary to 
determine that prevailing wages have been paid as required by law. During the construction of 
the Off-Site Improvements, Developer shall or shall cause its contractor to post at the La Colonia 
Project the applicable prevailing rates of per diem wages. Developer shall indemnify, hold 
harmless and defend (with counsel reasonably acceptable to the City) the City against any claim 
for damages, compensation, fines, penalties or other amounts arising out of the failure or alleged 
failure of any person or entity (including Developer, its contractors and subcontractors) to pay 
prevailing wages as required by law or to comply with the other applicable provisions of Labor 
Code Sections 1720 et seq. and implementing regulations of the Department of Industrial 
Relations in connection with construction of the Off-Site Improvements as being subject to 
Prevailing Wages. 

203. Reimbursements and Credits. For the first eight (8) years this Agreement is in effect, 
Developer shall be responsible for paying only those fees identified herein. Notwithstanding the 
above, Developer shall be responsible for paying any fees the City collects for other agencies 
pursuant to (i) state or federal law of (ii) any City agreement or City ordinance adopted or 
entered into to comply with state or federal law or judgment of a court of law, provided that 
Developer does not hereby waive any right it may have to contest the validity or amount of any 
such fee . 

204. Conditions to and Formula for Reimbursement for Off-Site Improvements. Based 
on the credit applicable to the development fees for construction of the Off-Site Improvements as 
set forth in Paragraph 101 above and in Exhibit E, Exhibit F, Exhibit G, and Exhibit H, 
Developer shall not be entitled to ~y other reimbursement and/or credits pursuant to any fee 
programs as provided in the Mendota Municipal Code and/or adopted City policies for those fee 
programs. 

205. Amendments to Development Approvals. Given the potential for a long-term build-out 
of the La Colonia Project, the Parties acknowledge that development of the Subject Property may 
require amendments to Development Approvals or Subsequent Development Approvals. 
Amendments to the Development Approvals or Subsequent Development Approvals shall be 
processed as follows: 

205.1. Administrative Amendments. Upon the written request of Developer for an 
amendment or modification to a Development Approval or Subsequent Development Approval, 
the Planning Director or his/her designee shall determine: (i) whether the requested amendment 
or modification is minor; and (ii) whether the requested amendment or modification is consistent 
with the Applicable Rules. If the Planning Director is his/her designee finds that the proposed 
amendment or modification is minor, consistent with the Applicable Rules, and is not subject to 

13 



further environmental review under CEQA (See CEQA Guidelines §§ 15162, 15163), the 

amendment shall be detennined to be an "Administrative Amendment" and the Planning 

Director or his/her designee may approve, or may approve with appropriate conditions, the 

Administrative Amendment. The determination of whether a requested amendment or 

modification is an Administrative Amendment shall be within the reasonable discretion of the 

Planning Director. 

Examples of amendments or modifications which may, depending on particular circumstances, 

be treated as Administrative Amendments, include, but are not limited to, the following: (1) lot 

line adjustments that do not alter the concepts of the project design; (2) alterations in vehicle 

circulation patterns or vehicle access points which do not adverse! y affect capacity or service 

levels; (3) changes in trail alignments; (4) substitutions of comparable landscaping for any 

landscaping shown on any final development plan or landscape plan; (5) variations in the 

location of structures that do not substantially alter the design concepts of the project; (6) 

variations in the location or installation of utilities and other fofrastructure connections or 

facilities that do not substantially alter the design concepts of the project; (7) minor alterations in 

design or configuration of buildings that are consistent with development standards for the La 

Colonia Project; and (8) minor adjustments to the Subject Property legal description. 

Administrative Amendments are subject to the City's normal processing fees at the time the 

Administrative Amendment is considered for approval. In no event shall an Administrative 

Amendment be deemed a new entitlement or otherwise subject the development of the Subject 

Property to any new or increased fees or exactions, any provisions of the Mendota Municipal 

Code or City policies or procedures to the contrary notwithstanding. 

205.2 Material Amendments. Any request of Developer for an amendment or 

modification to a Development Approval or Subsequent Development Approval that is 

reasonably determined by the Planning Director or his/her designee to be a material amendment 

("Material Amendment"), as opposed to an Administrative Amendment, shall be subject to 

review, consideration and action pursuant to the laws in effect at the time the Material 

Amendment is considered for approval. Notwithstanding any provision in the Agreement to the 

contrary, the City may impose mitigation measures necessary to comply with CEQA for Material 

Amendments. Material Amendments are subject to processing fees in effect at the time the 

Material Amendment is considered for approval. 

205.3 Future Amendments. Any future amendment or modification to a Development 

Approval or Subsequent Development Approval shall be incorporated in this Agreement without 

the need to amend this Agreement. 

14 



209. Encumbrances and Lender's Rights. 

209.1 Permitted Encumbrances. This Agreement shall be superior and senior to any 
lien placed upon the Subject Property. The Parties agree that this Agreement shall not prevent or 
limit any owner of an interest in the Subject Property from encumbering the Subject Property 
with any deed of trust or other security device securing financing with respect to the Subject 
Property. 

209.2 Lender's Rights. The holder of any mortgage, deed of trust, or other security 
arrangement ("Lender") with respect to the Subject Property, or any portion thereof, that has 
requested, in writing, receipt of notice of any event of default under this Agreement shall be 
entitled to receive a copy of any notice of default and shall be allowed an opp01iunity to cure 
such default. The Lender shall receive a second default notice thirty (30) days before the City 
institutes legal proceedings and the Lender shall again be allowed an opportunity to cure such 
default. 

The holder of any mortgage, deed of trust, or other security arrangement with respect ·to the 
Subject Property, or any portion thereof~ shall not be obligated under this Agreement to construct 
or complete improvements or to guarantee such construction or completion, but shall otherwise 
be bound by all the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be 
deemed to construe, permit or authorize any such holder to devote the Subject Property, or any 
portion thereof, to any uses, or to construct any improvements thereon, other than those uses and 
improvements provided for or authorized by this Agreement, subject to all of the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE3 
DEFAULT, REMEDIES, TERMINATION 

300. General Provisions. Subject to extensions of time by mutual consent in writing, failure 
or unreasonable delay by either Party to perform any tenn or provision of this Agreement shall 
constitute a default. In the event o°f default or breach of any terms or conditions of this 
Agreement, the Party alleging such default or breach shall give the other Party not less than 
thirty (30) days notice in writing specifying the nature of the alleged default and the manner in 
which said default may be satisfactorily cured. During any such thirty (30) day period, the Party 
charged with being in default shall not be considered in default for purposes of termination or 
institution of legal proceedings. · 

15 



After notice and expiration of the thirty (30) day period, if such default has not been cured or is 

not being diligently cured in the manner set forth in the notice, the other Party to this Agreement 
may at its option: 

1. Terminate this Agreement, in which event neither Party shall have any further 

rights against or liability to the other with respect to this Agreement or the Subject Property; 

provided, however, if portions of the Subject Property are held in separate ownership at the time 

such event of default occurs and such event of default is related only to one portion, this 

Agreement may be terminated only as to such portion and no such termination shall impair the 

continuing applicability of this Agreement to the remainder of the Subject Property; or 

2. Institute legal or equitable action to cure, correct or remedy any default, 

including, but not limited to, an action for specific performance of the terms of this Agreement; 

provided, however, that in no event shall either party be liable to the other for money damages 

for any default or breach of this Agreement. 

301. Developer Default; Enforcement. No building permit shall be issued or building permit 

application accepted for the building shell of any structure on any portion of the Subject Property 

if the permit applicant owns or controls such portion of the Subject Property and if such 

applicant or any entity or ·person controlling such applicant has been found to be in default as to 

such portion of the Subject Property by the City Council of the City of Mendota under the terms 

and conditions of this Agreement, unless such default is cured or this Agreement is terminated. 

A default as to an owner of any portion of the Subject Property shall have no impact on any 

portion of the Subject Property not owned by such defaulting owner. The Developer shall cause 

to be placed in any covenants, conditions and restrictions applicable to the Subject Property, 

lessee or City, acting separately or jointly, to enforce the provisions of this Agreement and to 

recover attorneys' fees and costs for such enforcement. 

302. Annual Review. The City Manager shall, at least every twelve (12) months during the 

tenn of this Agreement, review the extent of good faith substantial compliance by the Developer 

with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Such periodic review shall be limited in scope 

to compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement pursuant to California 

Government Code Section 65865.1. Notice of such annual review shall include the statement 

that any review may result in amendment or termination of this Agreement. The costs of notice 

and related costs incurred by the City for the annual review conducted by the City pursuant to 

this Section 302 shall be borne by the Developer. 

The City Manager shall provide thirty (30) days prior written notice of such periodic review to 

the Developer. Such notice shall require the Developer to demonstrate good faith compliance 

with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and to provide such other information as may be 

16 



reasonably requested by the City Manager and deemed by him to be required in order to 
ascertain compliance with this Agreement. If, following such review, the City Manager is not 
satisfied that the Developer has demonstrated good faith compliance with all the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, the City Manager may refer the matter, along with his 
recommendations, to the City Council. 

Failure of the City to conduct an annual review shall not constitute a waiver by the City of its 
rights to otherwise enforce ·the provisions of this Agreement; nor shall the Developer have or 
assert any defense to such enforcement by reason of any such failure to conduct an annual 
review. 

303. Enforced Delay; Extension of Times of Performance. In addition to specific 
provisions of this Agreement, either Party hereunder shall not be deemed to be in default where 
delays or defaults are due to war, insurrection, strikes, walkouts, riots, floods, earthquakes, fires, 
casualties, acts of God, governmental entities' enactment of conflicting state or federal laws or 
regulations, new or supplementary environmental regulations, litigation or similar grounds for 
excused performance. If written notice of such delay is given within thirty (30) days of the 
commencement of such delay, an extension of time for such cause shall be granted in writing for 
the period of the enforced delay, or longer as may be mutually agreed upon. In particular, a 
shutdown of the Federal government, whether ordered by the Executive or caused by the actions 
of the Congress, which affects disbursement of funds to the Applicant from any Federal agency, 
time of performance shall be extended three (3) days for every one (1) day for which the Federal 
government shutdown is in effect. 

304. Limitation of Legal Acts. In no event shall the City, or its officers, agents or employees, 
be liable in damages for any breach or violation of this Agreement, it being expressly understood 
and agreed that the Developer's sole legal remedy for a breach or violation of this Agreement by 
the City shall be a legal action in mandamus, specific performance or other injunctive or 
declaratory relief to enforce the provisions of this Agreement. 

305. Applicable Law and Attorneys' Fees. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced 
in accordance with the laws of the State of California. Developer acknowledges and agrees that 
the City has approved and entered into this Agreement in the sole exercise of its legislative 
discretion and that the standard of review of the validity or meaning of this Agreement shall be 
that accorded legislative acts of the City. Should any legal action be brought by a Party for 
breach of this Agreement or to enforce any provision herein, the prevailing Party of such action 
shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs and such other costs as may be fixed by 
the Court. 

17 



306. Invalidity of Agreement. 

306.1 If this Agreement is determined by a court to be invalid or unenforceable, this 
Agreement shall automatically terminate as of the date of final entry of judgment. 

306.2 If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court to be invalid or 
unenforceable, or if any provision of this Agreement is rendered invalid or unenforceable 
according to the terms of any law which becomes effective after the date of this Agreement and 
either party in good faith determines that such provision is material to its entering into this 
Agreement, either party may elect to terminate this Agreement as to all obligations then 
remaining unperformed in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 300, subject, 

however, to the provisions of Section 307 hereof. 

307. Effect of Termination on Developer's Obligations. Termination of this Agreement 
shall not affect the Developer's obligations to comply with the General Plan and the terms and 
conditions of any and all land use entitlements approved with respect to the Subject Property 
prior to such termination, nor shall it affect any other covenants of the Developer specified in 
this Agreement to continue after the termination of this Agreement. If portions of the Subject 
Property are held in separate ownership at the time of such termination, this Agreement may be 
terminated only as to such portion and no such termination shall impair the continuing 
applicability of this Agreement to the remainder of the Subject Property. 

400. Indemnity/Insurance. 

ARTICLE4 
INDEMNITY; INSURANCE 

400.1. Indemnification. To the furthest extent allowed by law, Developer shall 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend City and each of its officers, officials, employees, agents 
and volunteers from any and all loss, liability, fines, penalties, forfeitures, costs and damages 
(whether in contract, tort or strict liability, including but not limited to personal injury, death at 
any time and property damage) incurred by City, Developer or any other person, and from any 
and all claims, demands and actions in law or equity (including attorneys' fees and litigation 
expenses), arising or alleged to have arisen directly or indirectly out of performance of this 
Agreement or the performance of any or all work to be done on on-site or off site public or 
private improvements pursuant to this Agreement (including, but not limited to design, 
constructio_n and/or ongoing operation and maintenance unless and until the facility is dedicated 
to and officially accepted by the City). Developer's obligations under the preceding sentence 
shall apply regardless of whether Developer or any of its officers, officials, employees or agents 
are passively negligent, but shall not apply to any loss, liability, fines, penalties, forfeitures, costs 

18 



or damages caused by the active or sole negligence, or the willful misconduct, of City or any of 
its officers, officials, employees, agents or volunteers. 

If Developer should subcontract all or any portion of the services to be performed under this 
Agreement, Developer shall require each subcontractor to indemnify, hold harmless and defend 
City and each of its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers in accordance with the 
terms of the preceding paragraph. The Developer further agrees that the use for any purpose and 
by any person of any and all of the streets and improvements required under this Agreement, 
shall be at the sole and exclusive risk of the Developer at all times prior to final acceptance by 
the City of the completed street and other improvements. This section shall survive termination 
or expiration of this Agreement. 

400.2. Insurance. Throughout the life of this Agreement, Developer shall pay for and 
maintain in full force and effect all policies of insurance described in this section with an 
insurance company(ies) either (i) admitted by the California Insurance Commissioner to do 
business in the State of California and rated by not less than "A- VII" in Best's Insurance Rating 
Guide, or (ii) authorized by CITY' s Risk Manager. The following policies of insurance are 
required: 

a. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY insurance which shall be at 
least as broad as the most current version of Insurance Services Office (ISO) Commercial 
General Liability Coverage Form CG 00 01 and shall include insurance for bodily injury, 
property damage and personal injury with coverage for premises and operations (including the 
use of owned and non-owned equipment), products and completed operations, contractual 
liability (including indemnity obligations under this Agreement), with limits of liability of not 
less than $5,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage, $1,000,000 per 
occurrence for personal injury and $5,000,000 aggregate for products and completed operations. 

b. COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY insurance which shall be at 
least as broad as the most current version of Insurance Services Office (ISO) Business Auto 
Coverage Form CA 00 01 and shall include coverage for all owned, hired, and no-owned 
automobiles or other licensed vehicles (Code 1 B Any Auto), with combined single limits of 

liability of not less than $5,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

c. WORKERS' COMPENSATION insurance as required under the 
California Labor Code. Developer shall file with the City pursuant to Section 3800 of the Labor 
Code, a Certificate of Workers' Compensation. 

19 



d. EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY with minimum limits of liability of not less 
than $1,000,000 each accident, $1,000,000 disease policy limit and $1,000,000 disease each 
employee. 

Developer shall be responsible for payment of any deductibles contained in any insurance 
policies required hereunder and Developer shall also be responsible for payment of any self
insured retentions. 

The above described policies of insurance shall be endorsed to provide an unrestricted 30 
calendar day written notice in favor of City of policy cancellation of coverage, except for the 
Workers' Compensation policy which shall provide a 10 calendar day written notice of such 
cancellation of coverage. In the event any policies are due to expire during the term of this 
Agreement, Developer shall provide a new certificate evidencing renewal of such policy not less 
than fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the expiration date of the expiring policy(ies). Upon 
issuance by the insurer, broker, or agent of a notice of cancellation in coverage, Developer shall 
file with City a new certificate and all applicable endorsements for such policy(ies). 

The General Liability and Automobile Liability insurance policies shall be written on an 
occurrence form and shall name City, its officers, officials, agents, employees and volunteers as 
an additional insured. Such policy(ies) of insurance shall be endorsed so Developer's insurance 
shall be primary and no contribution shall be required of City. Any. Workers' Compensation 
insurance policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation as to City, its officers, officials, agents, 

employees and volunteers. Developer shall have furnished City with the certificate(s) and 
applicable endorsements for ALL required insurance prior to start of construction of any phase of 
development. Developer shall furnish City with copies of the actual policies upon the request of 
City's Risk Manager at any time during the life of the Agreement or any extension, and this 
requirement shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

If at any time during the life of the Agreement or any extension, Developer fails to maintain the 
required insurance in full force and effect, the Planning Director, or his/her designee, may order 
that the Developer, or its contractors or subcontractors, immediately discontinue any further 
work under this Agreement and take all necessary actions to secure the work site to insure that 
public health and safety is protected. All payments due or that become due to Developer shall be 
withheld until notice is received by City that the required insurance has been restored to full 
force and effect and that the premiums therefore have been paid for a period satisfactory to City. 
Any failure to maintain the required insurance shall be sufficient cause for City to terminate this 
Agreement. 

If Developer should subcontract all or any portion of the· services to be performed under this 

Agreement, Developer shall require each subcontractor to provide insurance protection in favor 

20 



of City, its officers, officials, employees, volunteers and agents in accordance with the terms of 
each of the preceding paragraphs, except that the subcontractors' certificates and endorsements 
shall be on file with Developer and City prior to the commencement of any work by the 
subcontractor. 

401. ~otice to Developer. The City shall promptly give notice to Developer in accordance 
with Section 600 of this Agreement of any case, action or proceeding brought against the City 
concerning this Agreement or the Subject Property. 

ARTICLE 5 
PROJECT AS A PRIVATE UNDERTAKING 

500. Project as a Private Undertaking. It is specifically understood and agreed by and 
between the Parties hereto that the development of the Subject Property is a separately 
undertaken private development and that the contractual relationship created hereunder between 
the City and Developer is such that Developer is an independent contractor and is not an agent of 
the City. None of the terms or provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed to create a 
partnership or joint venture between the City and Developer or to provide third party beneficiary 
rights to any person or entity not a Party hereto. The only relationship between the City and the 
Developer is that of a governmental entity regulating the development of private property and the 
owner of such private property. 

ARTICLE 6 
NOTICES 

600. Notices. All formal notices required by this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered 
in person or sent by certified mail, postage prepaid, to the principal offices of the City and the 
Developer with copies sent as set forth below. The addresses of the parties as of the date hereof 
are as set forth below. Such written notices, demands, correspondence and communication may 
be directed in the same manner to such other persons and addresses as either party may from 
time to time designate in writing. The Developer shall give written notice to the City, within ten 
(10) days after the close of escrow, of any sale or transfer of any portion of the Subject Property 
and any assignment or partial assignment of this Agreement, specifying the name or names of the 
transferee, the transferee's mailing address, the legal description of the land sold or transferred, 
and the name and address of any person or entity to whom any notice relating to this Agreement 
shall be given with respect to such transferred portion of the Subject Property. 

21 



Notices required to be given to the City shall be addressed as follows: 

City of Mendota 
Planning Department 
643 Quince Street 
Mendota, CA 93640 
Attention: Planning Director 

with a copy to: 

Wanger Jones Helsley PC 
265 E. River Park Circle, Suite 310 
Fresno, CA 93 720 
Attention: J. Kinsey 

Notice required to be given .to the Developer shall be addressed as follows: 

Steve Hair 
KSA Homes, Inc. 
3401 Office Park Drive, Suite 115 
Bakersfield, CA 93 3 09 

with a copy to: 

Karol Adams 
10784 Deep Cliff Drive 
Cupertino, CA 95014 

ARTICLE 7 

MISCELLANEOUS 

700. - Amendment of Agreement. This Agreement may be amended from time to time with 
respect to any portion of the Subject Property by mutual consent of the City and Developer (to 
the extent that it continues to own any portion of the Subject Property) and of the then-current 
owner(s) of the portions of the Subject Property affected by such amendment, with City costs 
payable by the amendment applicant, in accordance with the provisions of Government Code 
Sections 65867 and 65868. 

701. Waiver of Provisions. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be effective 
unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the party against whom 

22 



enforcement of a waiver is sought. No wavier of any right or remedy with respect to any 
occurrence or event shall be deemed a waiver of any other occurrence or event. 

702. Time of Essence. Time is ·of the essence of each provision of this Agreement of which 
time is an element. 

703. Entire Agreement. This Agreement is executed in two (2) duplicate originals, each of 
which is deemed to be an original. This Agreement consists of twenty-one (21) pages and 
Exhibits A through H, which constitute the entire understanding and agreement of the Parties. 
Said exhibits are identified as follows: 

Exhibit A: Legal Description of the Subject Property 

Exhibit B: Site Map 

Exhibit C: Tentative Subdivision Map 

Exhibit D: Ordinance Adopting Development Agreement 

Exhibit E: Exaction: Off-Site Improvement (Storm Drain) 

Exhibit F: Exaction: Off-Site Improvement (Traffic Signal) 

Exhibit G: Exaction: Off-Site Improvement (Well Improvement) 

Exhibit H: Exaction: Off-Site Improvement (Soccer Field and Pocket Park 
Improvements) 

Exhibit I: Development Impact and Processing Fees 

Exhibits A through I are incorporated into the Agreement. In the event of inconsistency between 
the Recitals and the provisions of Articles 1 through 7, the provisions of Articles 1 through 7 
shall prevail. 

23 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Developer have executed this Agreement as 
of the date first set forth above. 

CITY: DEVELOPER: 

CITY OF MENDOTA, KSA HOMES, INC., 

a Municipa~orpo:fl 

By: ~~ 
a California corporation 

By: ~ h.,L t+--

ATTEST: 

Name: STEPHEN W. HAIR 
Its: President 

MATT FLOOD ~''''''"''"''''' 
City Clerk ~~"of_ ~-E~//)1~ 

~ 
~~·~Q~POfLt).?}\ 

By: ~~~ ~.,,~ 
~'J. $.{ 1942 j.~ 

~ • I ;: 

~ ' I ~ ~ ' . , § 
~ A' # # 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: '~~l. ....... _ ... :.i_,'t-~~ 
~.~ IF 0 \\ "'"'~ ~,,,,,,,,,.."'''''' 

JOHN KINSEY 
City Attorney 

Date: 9/J..5(1 'is' 

24 



( 

EXHIB1T-11A11 

Legal Description 

For APf:'/Parcel ID(s): 013..()61-15 and 012 .. 160-39 

( 

THE LAND REF"ERRED TO HEREIN BELOW JS SJTUATED IN THE CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF 
FRESNO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

PARCEL 1: 

PARCE:L 1. OF PARCEL MAP NO. 90-01, IN THE CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESN01 STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA1 ACCORDING TO THE MAP THEREOF RECORDED IN BOOK 51 1 PAGE 26 OF MAPS, IN THE 
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECODER OF SAID COUNTY. 

APN: 013-061-15 

PARCEL 2: 

ALL THAT PROPERTY LOCATED IN THE CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 25, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH1 RANGE 14 EAST, 
MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRJBED AS FOLLOWS: -

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 25; THENCE, SOUTH 88°151 WEST, A 
DISTANCE OF 75.52 FEET; THENci= 1 ALONG THE EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
NORTH 44 °17' WEST, A DISTANCE OF 2.62 FEET; THENCE, ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, WITH A 
RADIUS OF 5619.65 FEET1 A DISTANCE OF 844.32 FEET; THENCE NORTH 35°361 WEST, A DISTANCE OF 
1717.29 FEET; THENCE LEAVING SAID COUNTY ROAD, NORTH 64°58' EAST, A DISTANCE OF 1784 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 0"07~ EAST1 A DISTANCE OF 2804.22 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM. THE FOLLOWING PARCEL OF LAND DEED TO THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
BY GRANT DEED RECORDED JANUARY 25t 1967, IN BOOK 5400 AT PAGE 663, AS DOCUMENT NO. 54581 

0.R.F.C., MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT A POINT IN THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 1 SAID POINT BEARS SOUTH 90°14'55" 
WEST, 75.20 FEET FROM THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION, THENCE, ALONG A UN_E 
PARALLEL WITH AND 60 FEET NORTHEASTERLY1 MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGU;S AND RADIALLY FROM 
THE NORTHEASTERLY BOUNDARY OF THE SOUTHERN PACIFIC COMPANY1S RAILROAD RIGHT OF 
WAY, 100 FEET WIDE 1 THE FOLLOWING COURSES: (1) NO~TH 43"17'1511 WEST A DISTANCE OF 2.52 
FEET AND (2) NORTHWESTERLY ALONG A TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, WITH A 
RADIUS OF 5619.65 FEET, THROUGH AN ANGLE OF' 1° 24'07", AND ARC DISTANCE OF 137.50 FEET; 
THENCE, ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WJTH AND 50 FEET SOUTHWESTERLY, MEASURED RADIALLY AND 
AT R!GHT ANGLES FROM THE' CENTERLINE OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS SURVEY FROM 
MENDOTA TO OUTSIDE CANAL, ROAD 06~FRE~33. THE FOLLOWING COURSES: (3) 1 FROM THE 
TANGENT WHICH BEARS NORTH 14,0 19'31" WEST, NORTHWESTERLY ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE 
SOUTHWESTERLY WITH A RADIUS OF 1850 FEETr THROUGH AN ANGLE OF 34°0911

1 AND ARC 
DISTANCE OF 1116.19 FEET AND (4), NORTH 48°53140; WEST1 A DISTANCE OF 416.24 FEET TO THE 
FIRST SAID PARALLEL LINE; THENCE (5), ALONG F1RST SAID PARALLEL LINE, NORTH 34"36115 .. WEST, 
A DJSTANCE OF 574.66 FEET: THENCE: (6), AT RIGHT ANGLES, NORTH 55°23 145 11 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 
19.60 FEET; THENCE (7) FROM A TANGENT WHICH BE:ARS SOUTH 34°3214411 EAST, SOUTHEASTERLY 
ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, WITH A RADIUS OF 1950 FEET1 THROUGH AN ANGLE 
OF 14"20156 11

1 AND ARC DISTANCE OF 488.35 FEET; THENCE 1 ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH AND 100 
FEET NOiRTHEASTERL.Y AND EASTERLY1 MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES AND RADIALLY FROM THE 

1 



( 

EXHIBIT 0 A" 
Legal Description 

(continued) 

c-

ABOVE DESCRIBED COURSES (4) AND '(3) 1 THE FOLLOWING COURSES (8) SOUTH 48"53140 11 EAST, A 
DISTANCE OF 485.00 FEET AND (9) SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE 
SOUTHWESTERLY WITH A RADIUS OF 1950 FEET, THROUGH AND ANGLE OF 37°53118°, AND ARC 
DISTANCE OF 1289.49 FEET; THENCE (10) 1 ALONG A NON-TANGENT LINE, SOUTH 66°30'00" EAST1 , 

27.00 FEET; THENCE (11) SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A TANGENT CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY 
WITH A RADIUS OF 90 FEET, THROUGH AN ANGLE OF 8°1515811

1 AN ARC DISTANCE OF 12.98 FEET TO 
SAID SOUTH LINE; THENCE (1), ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, SOUTH B9g14'551

' WEST, A DISTANCE OF 
63-14 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM, THE FOLLOWING PARCEL OF LAND DEED TO FLOYD C. WILLIAMS, ET 
AL, BY GRANT DEED RECORDED ON DECEMBER 16, 19771 IN BOOK 6934 AT PAGE 6681 AS DOCUMENT 
NO. 134508, 0. R. F. C. 1 MORE P.ARTICULARL Y DES CR I BED AS FOLLOWS; 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 25; THENCE, NORTH 0°5213811 EAST ALONG 
THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 25, A DISTANCE OF 372.18 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF 
BEGINNING, SAID POINT BEJNG ON THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BASS AVENUE; THENCE, 
ALONG SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 1 SOUTH 80()22'1011 WEST, A DISTANCE OF 138.39 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 29°16'3511 WEST, A DISTANCE OF 108.33 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY RIGHT 
OF WAY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 33, SAID POINT BEING ON A CURVE TO THE LEFT, WITH A RADIUS 
OF 1950 FEET1 THE RADIUS POINT OF WHICH BEARS SOUTH 65°48'26" WEST; THENCE 1 ALONG SAJD 
SURVEY TO THE LEFT, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 24°42'05'\ AN ARC LENGTH OF 840.69 FEET; 
THENCE, NORTH 48°53'40'' WEST1 485 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY WITH A CURVE TO THE RIGHT 
WITH A RADIUS OF 1950.00 FEET; THENCE, ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 14°2015611

• AN ARC LENGTH OF 488.35 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 55°2314511 WEST, A 
DISTANCE OF 19.60 FEET; THENCE NORTH 34°31 144 11 WESTJ A DISTANCE OF 353,68 FEET; THENCE 
LEAVING SAID EASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF HIGHWAY 33 AND RUNNING ALONG THE 
SOUTHERLY RIG.HT OF WAY LINE OF THE fNTAKE CANAL, NORTH 6S 0 57'45u EAST, A DISTANCE OF 
1784 FEET MORE OR LESS TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 25; THENCE ALONG SAID 
EAST LINE, SOUTH Oa5213811 WEST1 A DISTANCE OF 2432.04 FEET MORE OR LESS TO THE TRUE POINT 
OF BEGINNING. 

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM, THAT PORTION OF LAND LYING IN THE EAST HALF OF SECTION 25, 
TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RAGE 14 EAST, MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN AS DESCRIBED IN A 
GRANT DEED FROM NORMA LINDC3REN, ET AL, TO THE COUNTY OF FRESNO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
AS RECORDED IN BOOK 5772 AT PAGE 419 AND 4201 AS DOCUMENT NO. 20692, 0.R.F.C. ON MARCH 
241 1970 

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM, THAT PORTION OF U\ND LYING IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF 
SECTION 25, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH 1 RANGE 14 EASTJ MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN, AS 
DESCRISED IN A GRANT DEED FROM NORMA LINDGREN, ET AL TO THE CITY OF MENDOTA! STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, AS RECORDED ON JANUARY 13, 1988 AS DOCUMENT NO. 4208, O.R.F.C. 

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION IN THE GRANT DEED TO THE CITY OF MENDOTA1 A 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, RECORDED NOVEMBER 31 2010i 
INSTRUMENT NO. 2010~0147303 1 OFFICIAL RECORDS. 

APN; 012 .. 160-39 

2 



EXHIBIT .. B .. 

Location of the La Colonia Subdivision. 



EXHIBIT .. c .. 

--ii• 

r 

La Colonia Tentative Subdivision Map 

..., .... 1\ .... ==r·.-.:.-

~"%-=~..mat· 
ICll'- 1t.ar.1Uft.:=n.s<. 
i~~ ~~.?-:-&~ 1--T-~ 

----· ..... --:=-: .. ===--.----....... __. 

f!:im!!iilJf!FJfiiU.lfSl~,.=s=:= ~ 

~~~~l!i~ 
IWaK.l:f.~~~'TAt.& 
&:i!F!~-.::r..-w-· 

~ 

... 
3 

·i·t· 



EXHIBIT "D" 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA APPROVING 
AN AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF MENDOTA AND KSA HOMES, 
INC.,RELATING TO THE DEVELOPMENT 
OF THE PROPERTY COMMONLY KNOWN 
AS THE LA COLONIA PROPERTY 

ORDINANCE N0.18-04 

WHEREAS, to strengthen the public planning process, encourage private 
participation in comprehensive planning and reduce the economic risk of development, 
the Legislature of the State of California adopted Government Code Sections 65864 et 
seq. (the "Development Agreement Statute") which authorizes cities to enter Into 
agreements for the development of real property with any person having a legal or 
equitable interest in such property in order to establish certain development rights in 
such property; and · 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Development Agreement Statute, the City of 
Mendota (the "City") has enacted regulations (the "Development Agreement 
Regulations") to implement procedures for the processing and approval of development 
agreements in accordance with the Development Agreement Statute; and 

WHEREAS, the La Colonia Property is owned by KSA Homes, Inc., a California 
Limited Liability Corporation ("Developer); and 

WHEREAS, on August 14', 2018, the City certified.the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration for the La Colonia Project; and 

WHEREAS, prior to adopting this Ordinance, the City Council, on August 14, · 
2018, adopted Resolution No. 18-61", finding that, where feasible, mitigation measures 
have been imposed and modifications incorporated into the Project which avoid or 
substantially lessen all significant adverse environmental impacts; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mendota adopted Resolution No. 18-
62, which approved a general plan amendment for the La Colonia Property; and 

. . 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mendota adopted No. 18-03, which 
approved a zone change for the La Colonia Property; and 

WHEREAS, Developer desires to carry out the development of the La Colonia 
Property consistent with the General Plan, as amended, zone change and the 
Development Agreement and the vested entitlements referenced therein; and 

1 



WHEREAS, the Development Agreement will assure the City and its residents 
and the Developer that the Development will proceed as proposed and that the public 
improvements and other amenities and funding obligations, will be accomplished as 
proposed; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on June 
19, 2018, on the Mitigated Negative Declaration, the General Plan Amendment, zone 
change and project entitlements, during which public hearing the Planning Commission 
received comments from the Developer, City staff, public agencies. and members of the 
general public; and 

WHEREAS, following the public hearing, the Planning Commission made a 
recommendation to the City Council on the,Mitigated Negative Decl~ration, the General 
Plan Amendment, zone change, Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map and the 
Development Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 65867 of the Government Code, the City 
. Council, on August 14, 2018, held a duly noticed public hearing on the Mitigated 
Negative Declaration, the General Plan Amendment, zone change, project entitlements, 
and the Development Agreement, during which public hearing, the City Council received 
comments from the Developer, City staff, public agencies and members of the general 
public; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL.OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA DOES 
HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Sl;CTION 1. This Ordinance incorporates, and by this reference makes a part hereof, 
the Development Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

SECTION 2. This Ordinance is adopted under the authority of Government Code 
Section 65864 et seq., and pursuant to "Development Agreement Regulations". 

SECTION 3. In accordance with the Development Agreement Regulations, the City 
Council hereby finds and determines, as follows: 

1. The Development Agreement is consistent with the objectives, policies, general 
land uses and programs specified in the General Plan, as amended, in that it 
establishes certain development rights, obligations and conditions for the 
implementation of the La Colonia Property; 

2. The Development Agreement is compatible with the uses authorized in, and the 
regulations prescribed for, the general plan designations which will apply to the 
La Colonia Property; 

3. The Development Agreement is in conformity with public convenience, general 
welfare and good land use practice; 

4. The Development Agreement will not be detrimental to the public health, safety 
and general welfare; 

2 



5. The Development Agreement will not adversely affect the orderly development of 
property or the preservation of property values; and 

SECTION 4. The foregoing findings and determinations are based upon the following: 

1. The Recitals set forth in this Ordinance, which are deemed true and correct; 
2. Resolution No. 18-61, adopted by the City Council on August 14, 2018, making 

findings as to the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the La Colonia Project, 
approved by and incorporated in said Resolutions, which Resolutions and 
exhibits are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full; 

3. The City's General Plan, as amended by the General Plan Amendment adopted 
by the City Council by Resolution No. 18-62 prior to adoption of this Ordinance; 

4. All City staff reports (and all other public reports and documents) prepared for the 
Planning Commission, City Council, or others relating to the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration, the General Plan Amendment, zone change, Vesting Tentative 
Subdivision Map, the Development Agreement, and other actions relating to the 
Property; . 

5. All documentary and oral evidence rec~ived at public hearings or submitted to 
the Planning Commission, or City during the comment period relating to the 
Mitigated Negative Declaration, the General Plan Amendment, zone change, 
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, the Development Agreement, and other 
actions relating to the Property; and 

6. All other matters of common knowledge to the City Council, including, but not 
limited to the City's fiscal and financial status; City general ordinances, policies 
and regulations. 

SECTION 5. The City Council here~y approves the Development Agreement, attached · 
hereto as Exhibit A, subject to such minor, conforming and clarifying changes consistent 
with the terms thereof as may be approved by the City Manager, in consultation with the 
City Attorney prior to execution thereof, including completion of references and status of 
planning approvals, and completion and conformity of all exhibits thereto, as approved 
by the City Council. 

SECTION 6. Upon the effective date of this Ordinance as provided in Section 8 hereof, 
the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute the 
Development Agreement on behalf of the City of Mendota. 

SECTION 7. The City Manager is hereby authorized and _directed to perform all acts 
authorized to be performed by the City Manager in the administration c;>f the 
Development Agreement pursuant to the terms of the Development Agreement. 

SECTION 8. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect thirty (30) days after its 
passage and adoption. 

********** 

3 



The foregoing ordinance was introduced on the 14th day of August, 2018 and duly 
passed and adopted b~ the City Council of the City of Mendota at a regular meeting 
thereof held on the 2at day of August, 2018 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: 

4 - Mayor Pro Tern Martinez, Councilors Me.ndoza, Rosales, and Silva 
0 
1 - Mayor Castro 
0 

4 

Victor Martinez, Mayor Pro Tern 

'\ 



EXHIBIT .. E .. 

Exaction: Off-Site Improvement (Storm Drain System) 

The applicant proposes to connect to the City's existing storm drain system 
near 2nd Street and Bass Avenue. Storm water would flow into or be pumped 
into the existing ditch and would be conveyed to the the City's wastewater 
treatment plant (WWTP) where it would be discharged into a retention pond. 

The applicant proposes to connect the drainage system within the proposed 
developmentto the City's existing storm drain system near 2nd Street and Bass 
Avenue via a system of catch basins, manholes and underground pipes and 
potentially a pump station, as approved by the City Engineer. The applicant 
shall improve the ditch to achieve the capacity needed to convey all current 
and proposed storm water that is tributary to the ditch, and shall construct a 
new basin at the WWTP, in a location specified by the City and to the capacity 
required by the City Standards. 

The Applicant will be obliged to pay 1/3 of the total cost of this work as a 
condition of approval of the subdivision. As to the remaining 2/3 of the cost, the 
applicant will be eligible for reimbursement from the City. The City is able to pay 
up to $121,000 toward this reimbursement directly to the Applicant upon 
completion of the improvements to the satisfaction of the City, which shall be prior 
to the City's acceptance of the public improvements for Phase 1 of the subject 
development. This amount will be reimbursed in progress payments, to be made 
not more often than monthly, based on invoices submitted by the Applicant for 
progress work and materials which have been accepted by the City. 

Any portion of the amount eligible for reimbursement that exceeds 
$121,000 will be credited toward the total Development Impact Fees that will be 
due from this project. The total fees that will be due are summarized in Exhibit I 
of this Agreement. 



EXHIBIT Hf" 

Exaction: Off-Site Improvement (Traffic Signal Installation) 

The applicant will be required to construct a traffic signal at the intersection of Bass Avenue 
and Barboza Street. The signal shall provide for through and protected left-turn phases for 
each direction, and shall be designed by a qualified civil or traffic engineer licensed to practice 
in the State of California. Plans shall be submitted to the City for review along with the other 
improvement plans for Phase 1 of the development, and prior to start of construction. 

The traffic signal may be completed in two parts. The first part, the underground work for the 
traffic signal, including conduits, pedestals and detector loops, must be done together with the 
Bass Avenue improvements and shall be completed prior to acceptance by the City of the public 
infrastructure improvements for the first Final Map phase of the development. The entire traffic 
signal must be in place, operational, and accepted by the City before a 60th building permit in 
the overall development will be released. 

Upon completion and acceptance by the City of each of the two parts of the traffic signal work, 
the City will reimburse the Applicant for the actual documented cost of each part completed, up 
to a total of $288,000. This amount will be reimbursed in progress payments, to be made 
not more often than monthly, based on invoices submitted by the Applicant for 
progress work and materials which have been accepted by the City. 

Documented construction costs in excess of that amount shall be borne by the Applicant, 
but will be credited toward the credited toward the total Development Impact Fees that 
will be due from this project. The total fees that will be due are summarized in Exhibit I 
of this Agreement. 



EXHIBIT HG" 

Exaction: Off~Site ·improvement (Well Improvements) The City will be required 

by the Division of Drinking Water (DDW) to increase its reliable water supply capacity in 
order to serve this development. The City has wells in addition to the three currently in 

service, but none are considered "active." 

Applicant shall work with the City and DDW to design and construct improvements that 
may be necessary to bring one of the inactive wells, of City's choice, back to active 

status. This may include, but is not limited to, replacement of pumps, impeller, 

discharge piping, electrical service, control electronics and chlorination equipment. 

Upon completion and acceptance by the City of the necessary work, the City will 
reimburse the Applicant for the actual documented cost of the improvements, up to a 
total of $25,000. This amount will be reimbursed in progress payments, to be made not 
more often than monthly, based on invoices submitted by the Applicant for progress 
work and materials which have been accepted by the City. 

Documented construction costs in excess of $25,000 shall be borne by the Applicant, 
but will be credited toward the credited toward the total Development Impact Fees that 
will be due from this project. The total fees that will be due are summarized in Exhibit I 
of this Agreement. The work must be completed, and the well certified for active 
service by DDW, prior to the City issuing a Certificate of Occupancy for any home in the 
development. 



EXHIBIT "H" 

Exaction: Off-Site Improvements (Soccer Field and Pocket Park Improvements) 

1. Applicant shall reconstruct and improve the existing soccer field at Rojas Pierce Park to include: 

• Removal of existing turf and grading of the playfield surface to achieve a flat field without 
dips, rises or holes, and with sufficient slope to achieve drainage. 

• Furnish and install materials and equipment necess·ary to effect improvements and repairs to 
the irrigation system to achieve complete and even watering without dry spots over the entire 
turf area of the playfield. 

• Plant new hybrid Bermuda grass turf using hydroseed method. 

• Furnish and install new LED playfield lighting to provide vendor-recommended level of 
luminance in all areas of the field. New lighting can be powered from the existing 200-amp 
panel located adjacent to the field. 

• Furnish and install new metal bleachers on concrete pads, with metal shade structures ( 4 each). 
Each of the bleacher and shade structures shall be approximately 30 feet long. Two shall be 
installed on each side of the field, centered on the mid-field line. 

• Provide one modular restroom structure with two unisex restrooms. Connect to City sanitary 
sewer to the satisfaction of the City. 

• Provide new electronic scoreboard with sideline controls near mid-field. Scoreboard shall 
be designed for scoring soccer games, and shall be installed near the southwest corner 
of the existing soccer field. Scoreboard shall be Daktronics 50-2918 or equivalent. Colors 
and other options shall be selected by the City. An example scoreboard is illustrated below. 

2. Applicant is required by the Conditions of Approval for the development to construct certain 
improvements to the pocket park within the development. 

3. The field leveling, irrigation system, and hydro seeding of new grass shall be completed by 
February 28, 2019. 

4. All remaining improvements at the Rojas Pierce Park and all pocket park improvements must be 
completed prior to the city releasing the 60th building permit for the project. 

Cost of the Rojas-Pierce Park pocket park improvements shall be borne by the Applicant but 
shall be credited toward the total Development Impact Fees that become due from this project, 
including an allowance of $12,903 for the land donated for the pocket park. The total 
Development Impact Fees that will be due are summarized in Exhibit I of this Agreement. 

3 l :SB 
HOME 2 GUEST 

2 HALF l 



EXHIBIT .. I .. 

Exaction: Development Impact and Processing Fees 

The project will be subject to two types of City-imposed fees during construction: 

1. Processing fe.es, including application, plan and map checking and inspection fees 
shall be per the City's standard development fee schedule. 
In particular, plan checking and inspection fees are cost recovery for the City and are not 
fixed amounts. 

2. Development Impact Fees, per the City's adopted schedule 
These fees are assessed per unit, per acre or per the unit specified in the fee schedule. The 
costs of some of the items of off-site infrastructure, as set forth in Exhibit E, Exhibit F and 
Exhibit H, will be creditable against the Development Impact Fees otherwise owed by the 
Project, and will therefore serve as reimbursement for those costs. 

The Development Impact Fees charged to the project under the adopted schedule are in the 
table below. Credits will be applied to these fees in accordance with the Development 
Agreement and Exhibit E, Exhibit F and Exhibit H. 

La Colonia Development Impact Fees 

Fee Unit Type Units Fee per Unit Subtotal 

City Management and General Services EDU 86 $218.81 $18,817.66 
Law Enforcement EDU 86 $591.49 $50,868.14 
Fire Protection EDU 86 $714.10 $61,412.60 
Storm Drainage AC 17.00 $5,169.45 $87,880.65 
Water Supply & Treatment EDU 86 $2,350.30 $202,125.80 
Wastewater & Treatment EDU 86 $1,947.56 $167,490.16 
Traffic Impact EDU 86 $690.05 $59,344.30 
Recreation a I Facilities EDU 86 $1,364.51 $117,347.86 
Water Connection Charges Connection 86 $420.77 $36,186.22 
Sewer Connection Charges Connection 86 $480.88 $41,355.68 
Total $842,829.07 



ADDENDUM TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF MENDOTA AND 
KSA HOMES, INC. 

This Addendum to the Development Agreemei:it by and between the City of Mendota and 
KSA Homes, Inc. ("Addendum") is made this _h day of October, 2018 (the "Effective 
Date"), by and between the City of Mendota ("City"), a municipal corporation, and KSA 
Homes, Inc. ("Developer"), a California corporation. City and Developer are sometimes 
collectively referred to herein as the "Parties" or individuals as "Party." 

RECITALS 

A. On August 28, 2018, City and Developer entered into a development agreement 
("Development Agreement"), attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

B. Exhibit "H" to the Development Agreement provides, among other things, that 
Developer shall reconstruct the existing soccer field at Rojas Pierce Park by April 30, 2019. 

C. The Parties desire that, rather than requiring Developer to reconstruct an existing 
soccer field at Rojas Pierce Park by April 30, 2019, Exhibit "H" to the Development Agreement 
require Developer to construct a new soccer field at Rojas Pierce Park by May 30, 2019. 

ADDENDUM 

In this context, the Parties hereby agree that the Development Agreement shall be 
modified as follows: 

A. Exhibit "H" is replaced in its entirety with the following: 

1. Applicant shall construct a new soccer field at Rojas Pierce Park toinclude: 
• Grading of the playfield surface to achieve a flat field without dips, rises or 

holes, and with sufficient slope to achievedrainage. 

• Furnish and install materials and equipment necessary for a new irrigation 
system to achieve complete and even watering without dry spots over the entire 
turf area of the playfield. 

• Plant new hybrid Bermuda grass turf using hydroseed method. 

• Furnish and install new LED playfield lighting to provide vendor
recommended level of luminance in all areas of the field. New lighting can be 
powered from the existing 200-amp panel located adjacent to the field. 

• Furnish and install new metal bleachers on concrete pads, with metal shade 
structures ( 4 each). Each of the bleacher and shade structures shall be 

Celeste
Typewritten Text

Celeste
Typewritten Text
Exhibit B

Celeste
Typewritten Text
Exhibit B



approximately 3 0 feet long. Two shall be installed on each side of the field, 
centered on the mid-field line. 

• Provide one modular restroom structure with two unisex restrooms. Connect to 
City sanitary sewer to the satisfaction of the City. 

• Provide new electronic scoreboard with sideline controls near mid-field. 
Scoreboard shall be designed for scoring soccer games, and shall be installed 
near the southwest corner of the existing soccer field. Scoreboard shall be 
Daktronics S0-2918 or equivalent. Colors and other options shall be selected 
by City. An example scoreboard is illustrated below. 

2. Applicant is required by the Conditions of Approval for the development to 
construct certain improvements to the pocket park within the development. 

3. The field leveling, irrigation system, and hydro seeding of new grass shall be 
completed by May 30, 2019. 

4. All remaining improvements at the Rojas Pierce Park and all pocket park 
improvements must be completed prior to the city releasing the 60th building 
permit for the project. · 

Cost of the Rojas-Pierce Park pocket park improvements shall be borne by the Applicant but 
shall be credited toward the total Development Impact Fees that become due from this project, 
including an allowance of $12,903 for the land donated for the pocket park. The total 
Development Impact Fees that will be due aresummarized in Exhibit I of this Agreement. 

3 l :S8 
HOME 2 GUEST 

2 HALF I 

B. The Development Agreement, as modified by this Aqdendum, shall remain in full force 
and effect in all other respects. 

C. This instrument reflects the entire agreement of the Parties regarding the Addendum to 
the Development Agreement and supersedes all previous agreements or understandings 
regarding the Development Agreement. No other modification or amendment of the 
Development Agreement will be effective unless·in writing executed by the Parties. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Addendum to the Development 
Agreement by and between the City of Mendota and KSA Homes, Inc. as of the Effective Date 
set forth above. 

CITY: DEVELOPER: 

KSA HOMES, INC., 
a California corporation 

City Attorney 

Date: (Q 12'11201~ 
' I 



LOCATION OF PICKUP DATE PICKED UP BREED/DESCRIPTION
436 RIO FRIO 2/14/2019 BLK LABRADOR 

643 JUANITA 2/15/2019 BLK CHIHUAHUA

643 JUANITA 2/15/2019 WHT POODLE MIX

CORNER OF KATE 2/15/2019 WHT/BLK/BRN CHIHUA MIX LITER

CORNER OF MCABE/ SORENSON 2/16/2019 WHT/BLK HUSKY

578 NAPLES 2/16/2019 WHT/BRN BORDER COLLIE PREG

578 NAPLES 2/16/2019 WHT/BRN/BLK  CHIHUA MIX

578 NAPLES 2/16/2019 BRN/WHT PITB MIX

CORNER OF BLANCO/ LOZANO 2/18/2019 BLK PITBULL PUP

300 BLK J ST. 2/21/2019 BRN/BLK GERM SHEP MIX 

300 BLK J ST. 2/21/2019 WHT/TAN LAB MIX PREG/PUPS

ROJAS PIERCE PARK 2/23/2019 TAN/WHT PITULL PUP

MCCABE ELEMENTARY 2/26/2019 BLK/ WHT HUSKY

MCCABE ELEMENTARY 2/26/2019 TAN PITBULL

643 NAPLES 3/1/2019 BORDER COLLIE MIX

Celeste
Typewritten Text
Animal Control Monthly Log

Celeste
Typewritten Text

Celeste
Typewritten Text

Celeste
Typewritten Text



SEX TYPE OFFENSE FEE
M DOG BITE: OTHER DOG 1ST 175.00$         

M STRAY N/A -$                

M STRAY N/A -$                

M/F STRAY N/A -$                

F RUNNING AT LRG 2ND 210.00$         

F STRAY N/A -$                

M STRAY N/A -$                

M DOG BITE: PED N/A -$                

M RUNNING AT LRG 1ST 25.00$           

M RUNNING AT LRG 1ST -$                

F RUNNING AT LRG 1ST -$                

F DOG BITE: PED N/A -$                

M RUNNING AT LRG 1ST -$                

F RUNNING AT LRG 1ST -$                

M RUNNING AT LRG 2ND 100.00$         

TOTAL: 16 DOGS CAUGHT 510.00$        



Code Enforcement
Monthly Log

Page 1 of 2

Address Type of Case 1st Notice Deadline Status
Fine 

Amount
818 STAMOULES VEHICLE TAGGED FOR 72 HR TAG 2/1/2019 2/4/2019 COMPLETE $0.00
230 FLEMMING COMMUNITY CONTACT 2/1/2019 N/A ADVISED $0.00

621 OXNARD VEHICLE TAGGED FOR 72 HR TAG 2/1/2019 2/4/2019 COMPLETE $0.00
510 4TH ST MUNICODE/ PARKING VIOLATION/EXPIRATION 2/2/2019 N/A TOWED $0.00

9TH/ STAMOULES MUNICODE/ PARKING VIOLATION 2/2/2019 N/A CITED $40.00
9TH/ RIOFRIO VEHICLE TAGGED FOR 72 HR TAG 2/2/2019 2/4/2019 COMPLETE $0.00
800 GARCIA MUNICODE/ PARKING VIOLATION 2/2/2019 N/A CITED $50.00
819 8TH ST MUNICODE/ PARKING VIOLATION 2/2/2019 N/A CITED $50.00

241 ESPINOZA COMMUNITY CONTACT 2/5/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00
CASTANEDA/ AMADOR MUNICODE/ PARKING VIOLATION 2/5/2019 N/A ADVISED $0.00

500 SILVA MUNICODE/ BUSINESS LICENSE 2/5/2019 N/A ADVISED $0.00
668 SORENSEN MUNICODE/ BUSINESS LICENSE 2/5/2019 N/A ADVISED $0.00

467 KATE MUNICODE/ PARKING VIOLATION 2/5/2019 N/A CITED $40.00
1850 6TH ST MUNICODE/ PARKING VIOLATION 2/5/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00
1440 4TH ST COMMUNITY CONTACT 2/8/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00

1096 PUCHEU MUNICODE/ ANIMAL  NUISANCE 2/8/2019 N/A ADVISED $0.00
1758 TH MUNICODE/ BUSINESS LICENSE 2/8/2019 N/A ADVISED $0.00

317 BLANCO COMMUNITY CONTACT 2/8/2019 N/A ADVISED $0.00
800 GARCIA MUNICODE/ BUSINESS LICENSE 2/9/2019 N/A CITED $250.00

605 I ST MUNICODE/ BUSINESS LICENSE 2/9/2019 N/A CITED $250.00
608 4TH ST MUNICODE/ PARKING VIOLATION 2/9/2019 N/A ADVISED $0.00

461 PUCHEU MUNICODE/ PARKING VIOLATION/EXPIRATION 2/9/2019 N/A TOWED $0.00
190 STRAW COMMUNITY CONTACT 2/9/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00

109 KATE CT. MUNICODE/ PARKING VIOLATION 2/9/2019 N/A CITED $40.00
345 HOLMES MUNICODE/ BUSINESS LICENSE 2/9/2019 N/A ADVISED $0.00

259 TUFT COMMUNITY CONTACT 2/9/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00
BARAJAS/ CERVANTEZ MUNICODE/ PARKING VIOLATION 2/9/2019 N/A CITED $40.00

189 PETRY COMMUNITY CONTACT 2/12/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00
767 PUCHEU MUNICODE/ PARKING VIOLATION 2/12/2019 N/A CITED $40.00
519 LOLITA MUNI CODE/SUBSTANDARD LIVING 2/12/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00

500 BLK SORENSON MUNICODE/DOG BITE 2/12/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00
460 RIO FRIO MUNI CODE/DOG BITE 2/12/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00



Code Enforcement
Monthly Log

Page 2 of 2

541 OXNARD ANIMAL COMPLAINT 2/13/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00
617 GARCIA ANIMAL COMPLAINT 2/13/2019 N/A NAT $0.00
519 LOLITA COMMUNITY CONTACT 2/13/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00

200 SAN PEDRO ANIMAL COMPLAINT 2/14/2019 N/A UNABLE TO LOCATE $0.00
555 RIO FRIO ANIMAL COMPLAINT 2/14/2019 N/A ADVISED $0.00

DIVASADERO ST./ KATE ST. ANIMAL COMPLAINT 2/15/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00
578 NAPLES MUNICODE/ DOG BITE 2/16/2019 N/A  COMPLETE $0.00

230 MCCABE AVE. ANIMAL COMPLAINT 2/16/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00
873 QUINCE COMMUNITY CONTACT 2/19/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00
DOG POUND PATROL CHECKS 2/19/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00

654 LOZANO ST. ANIMAL COMPLAINT 2/19/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00
518 CANTU MUNI CODE/ PARKING VIOLATION 2/19/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00
LOS BANOS ANIMAL CONTROL/ LOS BANOS 2/20/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00

240 HOLMES ANIMAL COMPLAINT 2/21/2019 N/A CITED $150.00
317 J ST ANIMAL COMPLAINT 2/21/20109 N/A COMPLETE $0.00

1100 2ND ST. ANIMAL COMPLAINT 2/22/2019 2/25/2019 VEHICLE TAG $0.00
M & M GROCERY FOLLOW UP 2/22/2019 N/A ADVISED $0.00

807 CANAL ST. FOLLOW UP 2/22/2019 N/A WARNED $0.00
DOG POUND PATROL CHECKS 2/22/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00

1925 8TH MUNICODE/ PARKING VIOLATION 2/22/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00
ROJAS PARK ANIMAL COMPLAINT 2/23/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00

UNITED HEALTH CARE MUNICODE/ DOG BITE 2/23/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00
MCCABE ELEMENTARY ANIMAL COMPLAINT 2/26/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00

900 BLK MARIE MUNICODE/ EXPIRED 2/26/2019 N/A CITED $50.00
215 K ST. MUNICODE/ PARKING VIOLATION 2/26/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00

DOG POUND PATROL CHECKS 2/27/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00
MENDOTA SMOG ANIMAL COMPLAINT 2/28/2019 N/A COMPLETE $0.00



 
 

MEMORANDUM 

1 

 

                                         

Date:  March 1, 2019 
To:  Cristian Gonzalez, City Manager  
  Mendota City Council Members   
From:  Gregg L. Andreotti, Chief of Police  
Subject: Monthly Report for February 2019   
 
 
An unknown vehicle damaged a city water meter in an alley by Oller/4th.  Video surveillance may 
have captured the incident.  Follow up being conducted.  
 
A known student threatened others via social media.  He was arrested and transported to JJC.   
 
Non-injury hit and run on Derrick.  The causing party fled prior to officer’s arriving.   
 
An unknown suspect vandalized the paint of the victim’s vehicle while it was parked on Tuft Street.   
 
Subject check in the middle of Oller Street by 4th.  After contact the subject fought with the officer 
who had to use force to restrain him.  During the confrontation the officer received an injury to this 
side.  The subject was arrested and transported to Jail.  The officer was treated at Kaiser Hospital 
ER and released.   
 
A known suspect hit the victim during a disturbance at a residence on 2nd Street.   
 
An unknown suspect stole the victim’s cell phone from his unlocked vehicle on De La Cruz. 
 
Vehicle stop in the area of 5th/Oller Street discovered the driver was intoxicated.  He was arrested 
for DUI, cited and released to a sober adult.   
 
Subject check on Quince discovered he was in possession of an open container of alcohol.  He 
was cited and released.   
 
Unwanted subject at a residence on Oller Street.  He was contacted by officers while standing in 
front of the residence.  He was found to be intoxicated and in possession of an illegal knife.  He was 
arrested and transported to Jail.   



2 

 

 
Officers assisted the Sheriff’s Office at the scene of a shooting on Fairfax Avenue.  An MPD officer 
conducted CPR and treated the juvenile victim who did not survive.      
 
Subject check by 5th/Naples discovered she was wanted on an active warrant.  She was arrested, 
cited and released. 
 
Subject check by Marie/9th discovered multiple arrest warrants for his arrest. After his arrest a meth 
pipe was located hidden in his boot.  He was eventually cited and released.     
 
An unknown suspect stole mail from the victim’s mailbox on K Street.     
 
A known suspect grabbed the victim’s hand while on Holmes Street and then fled.   
 
An unknown suspect withdrew money from the victim’s bank account.   
 
A reporting party witnessed two known subjects fighting on Holmes Street.  The subjects were 
gone when officers arrived.   
 
An unknown suspect broke windows at a local health center.   
 
An unknown suspect stole the victim’s vehicle while it was parked on Puchue Street.   
 
An unknown suspect broke into the victim’s vehicle while it was parked on Gonzalez Street and 
stole personal papers.   
 
A victim had her purse stolen from her parked vehicle on Holmes Street. 
 
A subject grabbed the victim while walking by Marie and 5th Streets and then fled prior to police 
arriving.     
  
The victim’s car was stolen while it was parked on Rios Street.   
 
An unknown suspect stole property from the victim’s vehicle while it was parked on Stamoules/7th 
Street. 
 
An unwanted subject was contacted by officers at a local market on Derrick Street and found to be 
wanted on outstanding warrants.  He was arrested, cited and released.   
 
Non-injury hit and run on Maldonado.  The victim followed the suspect vehicle and notified police.   
Officers located the suspect and conducted a vehicle stop.  The driver was found to be intoxicated 
and gave officers a false name. His true identity was discovered.  The suspect then resisted 
officers.  He was arrested and transported to Jail.      
 



3 

 

An unknown suspect stole a vehicle from a local construction site and then returned it.   
 
An unwanted subject trespassed on private property on 5th street to establish a residence in a 
storage shed.   
 
The victim was hit by the suspect at a residence on I street.  The suspect was located, taken into 
custody and transported to Jail.   
 
An unknown suspect stole mail from the victim’s mailbox on Quince Street.  Video surveillance 
captured the event.   
 
Subject check on Marie Street discovered active warrants for his arrest.  He was arrested, cited and 
released.   
 
Officers recovered a stolen vehicle from Firebaugh at Lolita/6th Street. 
 
An unknown suspect stole the victim’s vehicle while it was parked on Perez Street.   
 
An unknown suspect stole the victim’s vehicle while it was parked on L Street.   
 
Subject check by Stamoules/7th discovered an outstanding warrant for his arrest.  He was arrested 
and transported to Jail.   
 
Bicycle stop by Holmes/Gurrola discovered the rider was on probation and in possession of an 
illegal knife and baggie of cocaine.  He was arrested, probation violated and transported to Jail.   
 
Subject check by Hwy 180/Belmont discovered active warrants.  He was arrested, cited and 
released.    
 
Subject check at a local mini mart on Oller Street resulted in an FI for information.   
 
Disturbance at a residence on Oller resulted in a suspect hitting the victim.  The suspect was found 
to be extremely intoxicated and then fought with officers.  He was subsequently arrested and 
transported to Jail.   
 
An unknown suspect hit the victim’s vehicle over night while it was parked on I Street.   
 
An unknown suspect stole the victim’s vehicle while it was parked on Lozano Street. 
 
Vehicle stop at Divisadero/Lolita discovered an outstanding warrant for the driver’s arrest.  He was 
arrested, cited and released.   
 
Offices recovered two stolen vehicles by Jennings/Rio Frio.    
 



4 

 

Subject check on 8th Street discovered he lied about his identity in order to avoid arrest for parole 
violation.  He was arrested and found to be in possession of drug paraphernalia.  He was 
transported to Jail.   
 
An unknown suspect opened a cell phone account in the victim’s name.   
 
Subject check at Kate/2nd discovered an active warrant.  He was cited and released.   
 
Subject check at Seventh/Kate discovered he was smoking marijuana in public.  He was cited and 
released.   
 
A Code Enforcement investigation discovered unhealthy living conditions at a location on 6th Street.  
Police Officers assisted.  The children were turned over to CPS. 
 
An unknown suspect stole the victim’s vehicle while it was parked outside his residence on 6th 
Street. 
 
The victim discovered his vehicle was broken into overnight on Black Street and property was 
stolen. 
 
The victim’s vehicle was stolen while parked on De La Cruz Street. 
 
Subject check at a local mini mart on Oller resulted in an FI for information. 
 
Subject check by Lozano/Perez related to a prior investigation discovered the subject was under 
the influence of a controlled substance and on active probation.  He was arrested and transported 
to Jail. 
 
An unknown suspect damaged the door to the victim’s residence on I Street. 
 
Subject check in the parking lot of a mini mart on Oller discovered an active warrant.  He was 
arrested, cited and released.   
 
Subject check by Naples/9th resulted in an FI for information.   
 
A known suspect cashed a fraudulent check at a local mini mart on Marie Street.  Video 
surveillance captured the incident. 
 
A parent on Kate Street reported his minor child cut off the locked ankle monitor and then fled their 
residence.   
 
An unknown suspect forced entry in to the victim’s vehicle and stole property and miscellaneous 
paperwork from within.   
 



5 

 

Non-injury traffic collision at Santa Cruz/Black.  Both parties remained on scene.   
 
Disturbance at a residence on Tuft discovered both parties fought with each other causing minor 
injuries.  Both parties were arrested and transported to Jail.   
 
A known suspect cashed a fraudulent check at a local market.  The suspect left a copy of her CDL 
with the victim.  Officers discovered the same suspect cashed another fraudulent check at a market 
on 7th Street the day prior.    
 
An unknown suspect stole the victim’s aluminum cans from her yard on 8th Street.   
 
Officers witnessed a non-injury traffic collision at Oller/9th.  Both parties remained on scene.   
 
A police department patrol vehicle was hit on the passenger’s side by a known vehicle that fled the 
scene prior to officers returning to their vehicle.  Follow-up discovered the suspect vehicle.  Case is 
ongoing.       
 
A juvenile who cut off her ankle monitor and fled her home returned and was contacted by officers.  
She was contacted, arrested and transported to JJC. 
 
Officers conducted a subject check at a local park and discovered the subject was listed as a 
missing person.  He was advised of his status and found to be okay. 
 
The victim discovered his vehicle was into while parked on Rio Frio and property was missing.  
Suspect unknown. 
 
Subject check on 4th Street discovered an active warrant for his arrest.  He was arrested, cited and 
released.   
 
An unknown suspect stole the victim’s vehicle while it was parked, unlocked on Lozano with its 
keys in it.   
 
Vehicle check on Hwy 180/Belmont discovered the occupant was in possession of 
methamphetamine and meth pipes.  He was arrested, cited and released.   
 
Traffic collision with injuries on I Street.  The driver causing hit parked cars and caused an injury to 
his passenger.  The passenger was transported to CRMC for treatment.  The driver was found to 
be intoxicated and arrested for DUI.  He was transported to Jail.   
 
An unknown suspect broke into the victim’s vehicle while it was parked on Garcia Street.    
 
Subject check at a local mini mart on Oller resulted in an FI for information. 
 



6 

 

Disturbance at a residence on Oller discovered the subject causing was intoxicated.  When 
contacted by officers he resisted arrested. He was subdued, arrested and transported to Jail.     
 
An unknown suspect attempted to steal the victim’s vehicle while it was parked on Lozano Street. 
 
The victim’s vehicle was stolen while parked in front of his residence on Gregg Ct. 
 
Disturbance at a residence on Sorensen discovered the subject causing was wanted on an 
outstanding warrant.  He was arrested and transported to Jail.   
 
An unknown suspect damaged a tire on the victim’s vehicle. 
 
Subject check at 4th/J Street discovered active warrants for his arrest and that he was in possession 
of methamphetamine.  He was arrested, cited and released. 
 
Officers assisted Cal Fire investigators at the scene of three vehicle arsons in the parking lot of a 
local mini mart on Marie Street.   
 
An unknown suspect stole the victim’s vehicle while it was parked on Lozano Street. 
 
An unknown suspect attempted to commit a fraud via email with City Hall staff.    
 
Officers recovered a stolen vehicle that was stolen from De La Cruz Street.   
 
Officers recovered a stolen vehicle on Pucheu Street. 
 
Officers served a search warrant on Holmes in regard to a fraudulent check and identity theft 
investigation.  Evidence was collected. A second location was discovered on Gregg Ct. and 
searched.  Evidence was collected.   
 
Non-injury hit and run by Belmont/Derrick was witnessed by the victim.  The suspect was located 
by officers and positively identified by the victim.  He was arrested, cited and released.   
 
Subject check at the old Silver Creek site north/west of the airport runway.  Officers located five 
subjects residing in the rubble on the site.  FI’s were completed on all and the property owner was 
contacted. 
 
Unwanted subject at a location on Lolita.  Officers contacted him and discovered he was 
intoxicated.  He was arrested and transported to Jail.   
 
Theft of surveillance cameras on De La Cruz. The investigation identified a suspect.  A parole 
check was conducted at the suspect’s residence and the stolen cameras were located.  He was 
arrested and transported to Jail.   
 



7 

 

Vehicle stop on Oller/10th Street discovered the driver was intoxicated.  He was arrested for DUI, 
cited and released.         
   
A restrained person went to the protected person’s property on Unida and attempted to contact her.  
Officers located him and took him into custody for violating the restraining order. He was 
transported to Jail. 
 
Subject check at 9th/Naples discovered an active warrant.  He was arrested, cited and released.   
 
An unknown suspect broke into the victim’s residence and stole property.  Video surveillance 
captured the incident.   
 
Vehicle stop at Belmont/Hwy 180 discovered the driver was intoxicated.  He was arrested for DUI, 
cited and released.   
 
An unknown suspect stole the victim’s registration tag from his license plate while his vehicle was 
parked on 9th Street. 
 
A wanted person was arrested at his residence on Marie Street.  Additional warrants were located 
for his arrest.  He was transported to Jail.   
 
Surveillance cameras were stolen from the victim’s residence on Black Street.  A photo of the 
suspect was captured during the theft. Officer later contacted a suspect at a local mini mart in 
possession of the stolen cameras.  He identified another suspect as the actual thief.  He was 
arrested and transported to Jail.   
 
A surveillance camera was stolen from the exterior wall of a residence on Santa Cruz. 
 
Slow speed non-injury traffic collision (vehicle vs. school bus) on 10th Street.  No students on board 
at the time. Vehicle rear-ended the bus.   
 
Subject check at 7th/Stamoules discovered he was in possession of an alcoholic beverage.  He was 
cited and released.   
 
Officers witnessed a known theft suspect fleeing on foot on Sorensen by Ash Avenue.  He was 
witnessed tossing latex gloves and a full face ski mask as he fled.  He was contacted and FIed for 
information.  A check of the area could not determine any wrongdoing.    
 
An unknown suspect stole the victim’s vehicle tires while on I Street.    
 
Non-injury traffic collision occurred where one of the drivers was found to be unlicensed.  He was 
cited and released on scene.   
 



8 

 

A known suspect hit the victim and then fled prior to officers arriving to the location on Airport Blvd.  
The victim was uncooperative with police.   
 
Subject check on Holmes Street discovered an active warrant.  She was arrested, cited and 
released.   
 
Non-injury hit and run.  An unknown driver hit the victim’s vehicle while it was parked on Oller 
Street. 

 
A restrained party contacted the protected party and threatened to kill her if she called police. 

 
Disturbance on I Street resulted in the suspect abusing the victim.  The suspect was not present 
and the victim was uncooperative.   
 
 
     
 
Strategic Planning: 

 Personnel attended new computer report writing software/program training 

 Police Department assumed oversight of Animal Control duties 
o Absorbed by Code Enforcement   

 Range Master attended Rifle instructor training.  

 Appointed Records Unit intern 
 

 
 
 

Personnel Information: 

 Officer off due to surgery associated with OJI 

 Transferred patrol officer into SRO position for coverage 

 Hired candidate as Police Officer 

 Sergeant resigned  
o Recruiting for Sergeant 

 The following Police Department positions remain vacant and frozen: 
o One Police Officer 
o One Administrative Assistant 


	3-12-19 City Council Meeting Agenda
	2-20-19 MUSD-City Council Minutes
	MINUTES OF MENDOTA
	SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	JOINT-MEETING OF THE
	MENDOTA CITY COUNCIL AND
	THE MENDOTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	Joint Meeting called to order by Mayor Silva at 6:08 p.m.

	Mayor Silva introduced the City staff that were present at the meeting.
	Roll Call

	2-26-19 City Council Meeting Minutes
	MINUTES OF MENDOTA
	REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	Meeting called to order by Mayor Silva at 6:00 p.m.

	Roll Call

	2-27-19 Special City Council Meeting Minutes
	MINUTES OF MENDOTA
	Meeting called to order by Mayor Silva 10:00 a.m.

	ROLL CALL CITY COUNCIL
	ROLL CALL PLANNING COMMISSION

	Warrant List 3.12.19
	20190312 Agenda Item Contract Approval Rojas-Pierce_Surveys
	Reso. 19-14 Rojas Pierce Park Surveys
	190226 Rojas Pierce Park Surveys-Proposal
	190226 Rojas Pierce Park Surveys-CSA
	Staff Report Facility Use 2019
	Reso. 19-15 Facility Use Applications
	Facility Use Applications
	19-15 Exhibit A Facility Use Applications.
	MASTER SPREADSHEET

	19-15 Exhibit B
	19-15 Exhibit C
	Staff Report re Zoning Code Amendments (00967351)
	17.08.040 Redline Changes (00965220)
	19-02 Zoning Amendment Initiation
	Staff Report re Attorney Fees Amendment (00967344)
	19-03 Cost Recovery for Attorney Fees
	STAFF REPORT TO REJOIN COUNTY CDBG
	Letter from County
	19-16 Joining Fresno County CDBG JPA
	Staff Report La Colonia DA Amendment
	19-01 First Amendment to Development Agreement.
	BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
	NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:
	AYES: NOES: ABSENT: ABSTAIN:

	19-01 Exhibit A First Amendment to DA.
	DA Amendment Exhibit A.
	DA Amendment Exhibit B.
	18-06 Addendum to La Colonia DA 45
	18-06 Addendum to La Colonia DA 46
	18-06 Addendum to La Colonia DA 47

	Animal Control Monthly Log
	Code Enforcement Monthly Log
	Sheet1

	Police Department Report
	Staff Report Contract Approval Rojas-Pierce_Surveys

	AGENDA: 


